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Introduction

G4S is the world’s leading global, integrated security
company specialising in the provision of security and
related services to its customers across six continents.

Our mission is to create sustainable value for our
customers and shareholders by being the supply partner
of choice in all of our markets.

Our strategy addresses a positive, long term demand
outlook for our core services and seeks to deliver
sustainable, profitable growth.

Our strategic plan focuses on growth, productivity,
active portfolio management and disciplined financial
and risk management.

Our success is underpinned by our customers, our
people and our values.

Financial highlights

Underlying revenue' Underlying PBITA! Underlying EPS'
£6.8bn  £424m  13.6p
(2013 £65bn?) (2013 £393m?) (2013 129p)

Total revenue? Total PBITA? Total EPS?
£68bn  £329m 9.8p
(2013 £66bn) (2013 £23m) (2013 (24 7p))

Total cash generated by Dwidend per share

continuing cperations

£553m  9.24p

(2013 £496m) (2013 896p)

I lo clearly present under ying perfornance spealic items have been excluded and disclosed separately — see page 90 For basis
ol preparation and an dnalysis of speafic tens see page 91

2 2013 underlying results are shown at constant exchange rates and have been re stated for the adoption of IFRS10 and IFRST |
and re-presented for businesses subsequently classified as discontinued or identified as part of the portfollo managernent
programme - see page 90 for details

1 Including speofic items Sce page 91 for details
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Our services

G4S works to safeguard the welifare

and prosperity of millions of people
worldwide — helping to create safer

and better environments in which people
live and work The breadth of our services
and geographic coverage provides both
resilience and growth opportunities.

' %
Secure solutions 84

Eroup revenue
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Security and facilities management (FM) services

Security systems
and technology

Market and strategy

(45 15 a global provider of secunty and FM services with a top-three market
position in the majonty of the 31 manned secunty markets in which we
operate Security and facthbes management services accounted for 59%

of group revenues in 2014

As one of the few global securtty companies, our main international competitors
in developed markets tend 10 be regional and international companies
operatng in a single market segment such as manned securtty, security systems
or facilities management There are also many local security companies operating
n devetoped and emerging markets

We aim to differentiate our business to customers through our expertise,
excellent service delivery integrated secunty solutions and geographic coverage

The secure solutons business covers a wide range of
services, Including

Market and strategy
Security systems and technology represented
around 8% of group revenue 1n 2014

The global security systems market 15 a large
growing market (source freedonia, November
2014) but regonal market dynamics vary widety
in terms of competition, products sotd and
customer segments QOur technology strategy
therefore has to adapt to meet each regions
unigue requirermnents

We aim to drive outsourcing and enhance
the value of traditional security services through
greater use of technology (see p23)

Security systems and technology includes

Rusk services Risk management and consuftancy services including risk
and consultancy  analysis, personal protection, cormphance and investigations,
traming, mine detection and clearance services

Security installation  Access control, CCTV,

and maintenance intruder alarms fire
detection and video
analytics to identfy and

£4,004m

(2013 £3,898m)
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Monitoring Key holding, mobile securtty, patrol and response

and response services, and alarm receving and monitoring facilities notify operators of issues

Secure facilives  Integrated facilities services for entire sites or estates System software/  Security and building

services for commercial customers and governments Integration systems technology
integration

Manned security  Traned and vetted securrty officers

services

Revenue Revenue

£566m

{2013 £550m)
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Care and justice services

Specialist
outsourced services

Market and strategy

Care and justice services represented around $% of group
revenue I1n 2014 The market structure is typically consohdated
an the supply side with a small number of providers. Larger
companies are usually better equipped to deliver such

tughly speciahsed services

While the care and Justice services market 1s concentrated
primarily in the UK, USA, Australia and New Zealand, we see
a number of countries exploring the possibility of cutsourcing
these services 1o the private sector in the future

Care and justice services offers highly specialised
services to central and local governments and
government agencies and authoriues

Juvenile and Management of all aspects of a facility

adult custody and those held within the facility —

and rehabilitation  similar centres are also used for the
detention of asylum applicants

Prisoner Transportation of prisoners and asylum
escorting applicants between courts, police stations
and custody and asylum centres

Asylum services  Management of housing provision and
other services for asylum applicants

Market and strategy

Based mainly in the UK, G4S offers

a range of outsourang services,
which together accounted for around
8% of group revenues n 2014

We aim to offer innovative and
cost-effective solutions to customers

Police Support for frontline

services policing including the
prowvision of custody suite
services and forensic
medical services, and
back-office support
functions for police forces !

Welfare- Assisting long-term

to-work unemployed pecple |
programme Into work

Uulity Data and meter !
services services, and contact

centre management
for private energy
and utility companies

Electronic Electronic tagging and monstoring of
MonItoring + offenders at home or in the community
Revenue Revenue

£605m

(2013 £586m)

£504m

(2013 £399m)
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Cash solutions ,!rg'up revenue

Cash solutions & secure logistics

Market and strategy

The cash solutions business accounted for around 6% of group
revenue in 2014 We are the market leader or number two in

54 of our 62 cash solutions markets The main providers of similar
services are a small number of international competitors in mainky
developed markets Our cash solutions business is integrated into
our wider organisation and processes through shared customers,
management structures and systems in many countries The
market 1s highly regulated, often by central banks and the business
requires complex infrastructure and significant expertise

We aim to

* play a key role in the management of the cash cycle on
behalf of central banks, commercial banks and retailers,
allowmng them to focus on their core business

+ use our developed market cash cycle expertise and track
record to encourage central bank and financial institution
outsourang in emerging rmarkets

= continue the expansion of mnovative technology such
as CASH360™ for retall customers (see page 25)

Revenue

£1,071m

(2013 £1,063m)
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The cash solutions business covers a wide range
of services including

Cash Managing cash on behalf of financia! instrtutions,

management  Including cash transportation, high-securrty

outsourcing cash centres, counting and reconciling cash,
fitness sorting of notes for use in automated
teller machines (ATMs), counterfeit detection
and removal, distnbution of cash to bank
branches, ATMs and retail customers

Cash Provision of consultancy services to

consultng central banks and commercial banks on
overall cash management strategy bank note
production and secunty and all aspects of
cash cycle efficency

ATM Managing ATMs on behalf of banks, retailers

management  and independent ATM providers — including
cash forecasting, cash transportation and
reconciation serwces, first-line mantenance
and ATM engineering services

Retail cash Prowision of systems and hardware which

management  prowide an automated cash office for retail
sites to Improve secunty and faster banking
of cash, electronic audit trails of takings and
a real-time wview of retail cash balances

International  Bespoke international transportation and
transportation nsurance of currency and other valuables

Cash Secure transportation of cash using specialist

transportation vehicles, screened and trained personnel and
purpose-built technology to transport protect,
count and reconcile cash 1o customer records




Business model

Deliver’ing Customer Our business model 1s market led;

focused solutions

everything begins with the customer
We seek to understand our customers’
strategic and commercial objectives so
that we can design and deliver security
solutions which support them

Customer relationships and contacts

GAS has a very dwerse contract portfolio The duration of contracts  a higher capital intensity being usually five years in duration
varies from annual sporting events to 25-year contracts In cash ar tonger In practice many annual contracts lead to
solutions most contracts are annual, with those contracts requining long-term relationships

Service excellence

We foster a high performance culture which focuses on service excellence, operational
management and financial performance High performance leads to strong customer
relationships, motivated employees and achievement of strategic goals — cntical elements
of delivering sustainable, profitable growth

Solutions design

AN

Customer
understanding

By analysing customers’ existing and future complex security needs and bringing together
our expertise in market sectors, technology, project management and service delivery we
design solutons which help our customers to manage nisks improve service, protect people
and assets and achieve therr own organisational objectives

Understanding customer needs 1s central to our success This enables us to align
our organisational objectives to those of the customer and means we can help our
customers to be successful See pages 2 to 4 for an overview of our service hines

We build customer understanding through involvement in industry bodies and academig
Institutions, strategic work with customers, customer service assessments and feedback.

Market Demand

yANE

There 15 positve demand for our core services around the world See page 10
for a discussion of some of the market growth drivers

Scale and capabilities

With 623,000 dedicated employees and operations 1 over | 10 countries,

our ability to deploy skilled staff on a global basis to support local and international
customers 1s central to our business model This coverage means we can share
learning and experiences across our markets to the benefit of our customers and
our business We work in line with relevant international standards and strive to
achieve consistent high quality employee engagement, health and safety. traming
and ethical business practices across our operations

IMAGE REMOVED
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A key element of our growth and customer service strategy 1s to leverage the opportunity to design, sell and deliver more sophisucated,
complex solutions n more countries Such services tend to have longer contract terms and higher margins than manned security alone
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Our customers and markets

Leveraging strong
market positions. ..

Ve are a global business with large, IMAGE REMOVED
established market positions in developed
markets and outstanding positions In fast-
growing emerging markets Our emerging
market businesses accounted for 36% of
group revenues and 40% of profits in 2014,

North America UK & Ireland Europe Services

20% 23% 2 | % (@ Securrty and facilities
management

@ Security systems and

Revenue Revenue Revenue technology
OB 0106016, 0101010, (® Care and justice
(D Outsourcing

@ Cash solutions

IMAGE REMOVED

Latin America

104

Revenue
Africa
(of
B Developed markets 7%3
W Emerging markets Revenue Asia Middle East
M No presence y,
ololole | 9%
For a detaded surmnmary of our activities employees R
and performance by region see the Business Review evenue
secticn on pages 34 to 41 @@@@
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...to meet the growing global
demand for security

Our strategy addresses the positive long term
demand for security across a wide range of
commercial and government customers We have

a diverse range of services to meet our customers’
requirements and have a broad geographic footprint
to meet their demand for security around the world.

IMAGE REMOVED

In its recent study into the

global secunty industry, ndependent
research firm Freedonia projects
that the secunty market will grow
at an average of 6 8% per annum
from 2013 to 2023 See page 10
for a description of some of the
drvers of growth

6.8%

expected market growth from
2013 to 2023 per annum
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Chairman’s statement
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John Connolly
Chairman

Building on
strong foundations

“As | reported last year, G4S has embarked on
a group-wide transformation with a strengthened
management team and a clear strategic plan.
In 2014 that plan was put into action and the
board has been pleased with the clear progress
made in all areas of the business, including financial
performance This provides strong foundations
for further progress in 2015 and beyond.”

Dividend per share

9.24p

(2013 896p)

8 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2014

A year of progress

During the second half of 2013 the new management
team developed a strategic plan which envisaged

a group-wide transformation programeme and extensive
proposals to implement new processes and disciplines,
emphasising our key values of customer service

and integrity

The board approved the new strategic plan in 2013 and
in 2014 the board devoted considerable time 1o assessing
the implementation and effectiveness of that plan

| am debghted to report that, over the course of 2014,
the group has maoved forward across a broad front

as management has made excellent progress executing
the group’s strategic plan with great skill and energy
The board has been particularly pleased with the
progress made n strengthening the global leadership
teamn reinforcing the group's values, investing in organic
growth, customer service and operational efficiency
Management also successfully supplemented the groups
portfolio management programme and strengthened
risk management

In March the company reached a settlement with the
UK Government in relation to historical billing issues
and management developed and began implementing
a fundamental programme of corporate renewal

This focused on strengthening the cutture and control
processes 1n our UK Government business

As noted above, the group's transformation programme
extends well beyond our UK Government business and
1s being implemented on a group-wide basis The board
has been pleased with the progress made to date and
will continue to monrtor management’s implementation
of the programme during 2015

The Board

In 2015, we will be making a number of changes to
the membership of the board Mark Seligman has now
served on the board for nine years and 1n ing with
UK corporate governance guidelines, will retire from
the board after the 2015 AGM Mark has made a
significant contnbution board dunng a penod of great
change and | am very grateful for all that he has done

In preparation for his retirement from the board,

Mark handed over the chairmanship of the Audit
Committee to Tim Weller, a serving CFO with
considerable finanoal and business skills and experence

Mark remained on the Audit Committee until the end

of 2014 to ensure a smooth handover and to assist with
the tender process for the role of the companys external
auditor That process resulted in a clear recommendation
from the Audit Committee, fully endarsed by the board
that shareholders approve the appointment of PwC as
the company's external auditor for 2015




Grahame Gibsen will stand down from the board at
the conclusion of the 2015 AGM and retire from the
group m Qcober 2015 Grahame is the longest serving
member of our board, having been appointed in 2005,
and he has been a senior executive of the G45 group
and rts predecessors since 1983 1 would hke to record
the board's gratitude to Grahame for the enormous
contribution he has made to the group The board
extends s best wishes 1o Grahame and hrs family in
his retirement

The Nominatton Committee has commenced a process
o recruit a new non-executive director and | expect
that process to be completed dunng the first half of 2015
With the new non-executive director i place, | believe
we will have a board which retains a good knowledge
of the group and its businesses whilst also having the
broad spectrum of skills, experience and background
appropriate for this company and the strategy it 1s
pursuing It also has a suitably diverse composition

in terms of nationality and gender; which 1s important in
any business but particularly so in one which is as large
and geographically and culturally diverse as GA4S In 2015
the board wilt continue with a programme of regular
engagements with management teams from across the
group, which enables the non-executive directers to
broaden and deepen therr knowledge of the group

and its strategy, rmanagement and operations

Financial performance
The progress made in 2014 was reflected in the
group s financial performance

110das Mareng

Orgaruc growth was 3 9% overall and 9% in emerging
markets That growth, combined with the success of
restructunng and efficiency programmes, saw underlying
profit ncrease by 8%, underlying earnings increase

by 12% and cash generated by operating businesses
increase from £420 mdlion to £326 million

The board has confidence in the group's performance
and prospects and the directors propose an increase of
5% in the final dmdend which is payable on 12 June 2015

With an intenm dmdend of 342p (DKK 03198)

per share paid on |7 October 2014 and a final dvidend
of 582p {DKK 0 6041) per share, the total dividend

for the year will amount to 9 24p per share

(2013 B 96p per share)

The progress which has been made n 2014 was

the result of a great deal of hard work by the group’s
management and 623,000 employees, many of whom
work in challenging circumstances They provide vital
services for the group’s cusiomers around the world
and | would like 1o express my apprecation for their
continuing dedication

John Connolly
Charrman

IMAGE REMOVED
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Chief Executive Officer’s review
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Ashley Almanza
Group Chief Executive Officer

Delivering sustainable
profitable growth

“In 2013 we established a new strategic plan to
transform G4S and deliver sustainable, profitable
growth, In 2014, the group made good progress
executing this strategic plan and | am pleased
to report a 12% increase in underlying earnings
(to £210 million) and a 25% increase In cash flow
from operating businesses (to £526 million).
The group’s performance and prospects are
reflected in the directors recommendation to
increase the final dividend by 5% to 5.82 pence
per share. Much remains to be done to realise
the full potential of our strategy.”

10 GA4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2014

2014 review

Qur strategic pfan combines cultural transformation with
sustained investments In organic growth and producuvity
improvements, together with active portfolio
management and disciplined financial and nisk,
management I'm pleased to report that we made good
progress in all of these areas dunng 2014

Our markets

As the world's leading global integrated security
company our MIssion IS to create sustainable value
for our customers and shareholders by being the
supply partner of choice in all of our markets

Independent studies indicate that global demand

for securtty 1s expected to grow at a compaund

average rate of 7% per annum between 2013 ang 2023,
reaching ¢ £210 billon in annual revenues by 2023

The main drvers of Industry growth are diverse and include
the economic environment and GDP growth
infrastructure investment, levels of conflict and cnime
customer attitudes 1o risk and focus on security; customer
efficency and outsourcing cbjectives, regulation and the
regulatory environment, technological change and
innovation, interest rates and the role and policies

of central banks influence the cash handling industry

Through its umque market positions G45S has
attractive exposure to the growing demand in global
secunty markets We also have a diverse and proven
range of serwices and the expertise to address this
organic growth potental

Investing in organic growth

In 2014 we took action to strengthen our sales capability,

customer relationships and customer service We invested

In strategic account management and also implemented !
a systematic approach to measurng and monrtornng |
customer satisfachon

We continued to invest in service and product innovation |
and strengthened our sales operations and cur sales
capactty These investments have begun to improve our
pipeline management and in 2014 we won new contracts
with a total value of £2 | bithion |

In 2014, we achieved revenue growth of 8 9% in our
emerging market businesses and 6 9% in cur North
Amencan businesses As expected, revenues in our UK & i
Ireland and Europe regions dechined by 1%, reflecting the

end of the Electronic Monitoring contract in the UK and |
the end of the prison service contract in the Netherlands

Our People

It 1s essential for the successful and sustanable growth |
of our business that we attract, retain, develop and !
ncentivise the best people in our industry ‘

Dunng 2014 we made a number of key appointments 1o
the Group Executive Committee (GEC) Peter Neden has
been appointed to the role of Regional President, UK &
Ireland Peter 1s a proven service ndustry executive, covenng
both commercial and government sectors in the UK.

John Kenning joined us in the role of Regional CEQ,
North America and Technology. succeeding Grahame
Gibson who retires this year John has a successful track
record in sales and secunty technology




In July this year Jenmi Myles will take up the role of group
HR. Director, succeeding lrene Cowden wha retires in june
Jenni has held a number of senior HR posittons at G45
including HR Director for our North Amencan and Latn
American businesses Jenni brings a deep knowledge of our
industry and company combined with a track record of
leading and supporting large orgarisational change
programmes Grahame and Irene have each made an
enormous and valuable contnbution to G45 and they leave
with our profound thanks and best wishes

Mel Brooks was promoted to Group Strategy

& Commercial Director after successfully managing our
large Indian business Mel brings security and technology
expertise from a vanety of senior leadership roles he
has he'd bath in G4S and in the defence industry

Beyond the GEC, we continued to invest heavily in
refreshing and strengthening our sentor management team
Since spring 201 3 we have made | 14 senior appointments
to our senior leadership cadre of 220 executives,
compnsing 64 external hires and 50 internal promaotions
The new appointments cover key positions in general
management, sates, business development, operations,
technology, procurement, IT, finance and nsk management
All of these changes have been designed to strengthen
our organisation and support the group-wide
transformation of G45

Our global leadership development programme was
re-launched in 2014 We are also simplifying and
reinforaing succession and development planning to ensure
that our leaders of tomorrow are identified and given the
appropriate opportunities to develop early in their careers
Qur investment in training and development permeates
the entire organssation and ts nowhere more iImportant
than in custorner-facing roles

I would like to thank the mare than 623,000 colleagues
across the world whose skill, energy and dedicat:on 10
our customers and our company is reflected in the
progress made by G4S 1n 2014

OurValues

During 2014, we updated and re-launched our group
values and mounted an awareness and training programme
to ensure that G45 managers and employees understand
how to put our group values Into practice (N everyday
business activities To support and reinforce this
programme we have updated and re-launched our
whistleblowing policy and comipliance monitoning

.

Qur corporate values influence every aspect of
our cutture and day-to-day business actrvity, and
we recognise that CSR strategies are best achieved
when integrated into business practices It 1s with
that in mind that our CSR strategies and pnortties
are developed Iin conunction with our aperational
businesses and help ta improve the way we work
and our approach to doing business Our prionty
areas are business ethics and anti-bribery and

Our values at work — an integrated

now comes under the formal oversight of our group
general counsel

We established Safety first” as a new group value and all
senior executives completed mandatory safety leadership
training which we are extending across the group in 2015
We established the new posttion of Group Head of
Health and Safety and appointed an experienced safety
professional to this role Whilst we have been successful

In raising safety awareness and strengthening our resources
and systems we remain fundamentally dissatisfied with our
overall safety performance | deeply regret to repart that
in 2014 41 of our colleagues lost their kves in work-related
inadents (2013 49 work-related fatalibes), including 14
colleagues who died in attack-related incidents protecting
cur customers and their property

Work-related fataliies have a devastating impact on
farmiles and cclleagues at G45 and they motivate us to put
Safety First Zero harm remains our goal and each and
every member of the global leadership team 1s committed
to this geal In 2014 we also established a UK corporate
renewal plan and made good progress in implementing the
plan Implementation of this plan remains a pricrity in 2015

Productivity

Over the past 18 menths we have established a number
of important programmes to mprove the productivity of
G4S Given the scale and current stage of orgarusational
maturity of G4S, these programmes address a matenal
opportunity to improve our performance and create
shareholder value Our restructunng and organisational
efficency programmes made good progress in 2014 and
we believe there are further opportunibies to implement
lean processes and more efficient, organisation structures
Any new programmes will be subject to stringent financal
economic and operational criteria

Our operational reliability and efficiency programmes
broadly fall into two categories Firstly, direct labour
efficiency which ams to ensure we deploy the correct
service at the nght time, thereby helping to improve
customer service and reduce costs (see page 27)
Secondly, route planning and telematics, which seeks

to reduce vehicle and crew requirernents and to reduce
fuel and maintenance costs whilst simultaneously
improving driver safety (see page 27)

In 2014, we established the new position of Cheef
Procurement Officer and recruited an expenenced
procurement leader and team We am to achieve

reporting framework

corruptton heafth and safety, and human nghts

To better reflect the focus which our values

have within our organisation and the importance
we place upon ethics and sustainability, we have this
year implemented an integrated CSR reporting
framework which 1s ted by our Annual Report

and Accounts and supported by a CSR report

and our websne

Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4S plc
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Chief Executive Officer’s review continued

procurement efficiencies by using our global scale to
consohdate supply chamn management and secure
better terms of business We are also beginning to
improve visibility, understanding and control of our
buying behawiours to improve efficency

Last year we completed the first phase of our UK
shared service centre to standardise key processes and
reduce the cost of functional support In 2015 we wall
extend the scope of shared services performed at our
UK centre and we will consolidate our North American
back office We have begun to assess the feasibility of
applying our shared service model in other regions

We are undertaking a disciplined and progressive

IT transformation programme During 2014, we focused
on bulding our IT leadership and development
capability We currently spend around £180 million

on IT services and we are now progressively employing

IT service management models to Improve consistency
and efficiency m IT infrastructure, development
and operations

Acuve Portfolio Management
During 2014 we continued to apply the ‘
structured approach to portfoho management

which we established in 2013 Since the inception

of this management disciphne we have completed the

divestment of eight businesses at attractive exit

multiples, generating aggregate proceeds of £248 millon

and an aggregate profit on disposal of £32 million

Businesses sold previously contributed revenue of over

£700 midlion at an average net margin of 2 8%, well

below the group average We also discontinued a

further 22 businesses Portfalio management remains an

important discipline in ensuring that we maintan ‘
strategic focus. capital disaipline and effective financial

performance across the group

Delivering value through our key programmes

Our strategic plan encompasses key programmes which address multiple sources of value

| . Transform our
culture through
our people and
values (pi4)

il

¥ N\ 3.Make our
\_2 organisation more
productive (p24)

2. Invest in organic
growth, customer
service and
operational
excellence (p20)

|

i Building capacity in our people

! * Strengthened global leadership
team — | 14 appointments to top
220 executive roles (50 internal,
64 external)

|
|
|
} * Re-launched leadership programmes
| Re-focusing our values
‘ » Greater emphasis on Health
and Safety (Safety first)
| * Employee communications and
1 training to reinforce group values
Enhanced whistleblowing and

case management

Managing risk
* Investment in improved
risk management

Enhancing our

performance management

* Increased ngour in our
performance contracts

+ Algned incentives with values
and performance

12 GA4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Strengthening organic sales and

business development capability

— invested addiwonal ¢£20m

* Appointed new sales leaders across
the group

* Investment in sector and
technology specialists

» Appointed 385 additional new hires
Into sales and business development
roles in the past 2| months

Improving sales operations

* More proactive management of
sales pipehne

* Investing in customer relatonship
and global account management

+ Better alignment of sales incentives
with customer satisfaction

+ Extending proven serwvices frorm one
market to another

Investing in organisational efficiency

De-layering our organisation

« Shorter lnes of communication,
reduced costs and increased time
focused on customers

Globalising key funcuons
+ Improve consistency, effictency and
effectiveness of our support functions

Creating shared service centres

for back office functions

* Leverage scale of organisation
and standardise processes

= Implemented first phase in finance
in UK in 2014

= US shared service centre in 2015

IT transformation

*» Progressive, disciplined change
programme to improve efficiency
and consistency In IT infrastructure,
development and operations




Disciplined risk and financial management
During 2014 we established an enterprise risk
management system based on the “three lines of
defence” model As noted above we have invested
heavily In strengthening our senior leadership teams
and reinforang our group values, both of which are
important components of our risk and financeal
management systems We also strengthened our
contract risk management processes and made
significant investrments in financial control resources
and audit and assurance capacity

The importance of contract nsk management

was highlighted agam last year with the £116 million
settlement of the electronic monitonng contract

and a further charge to profits of £45 million refating

Qutlook

GA45' strategy and plan address a posttive,

long term dernand outlook for cur core services
and seek to defiver sustainable profitable growth

We are making good progress with the implementation

of our strategic plan and this was reflected in the
groups commercial, operationzl and financial
performance in 2014 The group’s performance
and prospects are also reflected in the directors’

recommendation to increase the final dwidend by 5%

There remains much to be done to realise the full
potential of our strategy and we expect to make
further progress in 2015

to provisions on legacy UK contracts

Ashley Almanza
Group Chief Executive Officer

z 4.Actively manage

our portfolio and
performance (p30)

$ 1; ‘% 5.Embed
disciplined
financial and risk
management (p32)

Investing in operational excellence

— accelerated best pracuce (ABP)

Direct labour efficiency

* Uses subject matter experts working with
local line managers to deploy the correct
service at the nght time, Improving
customer service and reducing costs

* Multi-year programme covenng 39
businesses and 376,000 employees
n the first phase

Telematics and route scheduling
programmes for our fleet
* Telematics
— reduces fuel and maintenance
costs, improves driver safety
— In 4,500 vehictes at the end of 2014
* Route scheduling
- fewer vehicles and efficient crew
requirements leading to improved
customer service
— 7,000 vehicles to be covered by
end of 2015

New global procurement programme

* Baseline study identified addressable
spend of £1 3bn (70% in eight categaries)
— matenal opportunities to reduce costs

+ Negotiating with a number of key
supphers with the first global
procurement deals signed

*+ Leveraging our scale

Reviewed 56 under performing
or immaterial businesses in 2014
+ Bight businesses sold in 2014 including
US Government Selutions
— raised gross proceeds of £177m
in 2014 and gross proceeds £248m
since 2013
+ 20 discontinued, 22 under review and
14 to be retaned with performance
improvemnent plans
Businesses sold had revenue of more
than £700m and an average net margin
of 28%

Soundly financed
* Investment grade credrt rating
and £998m of unutilised credtt facities

Global capex rauoning — central

pool of capital

* Investment hurdle rate 10% post
tax IRR

* Rebalance investment towards
organic growth

Improve sustainable free cash
flow and working capital
management
* Implementing a

“cash matters ' cuiture

Strong focus on financial

stewardship

* Strengthened capability and
capacity in audit, risk and
financial management

* Strengthened contract
review process

Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4S ple
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Strategy in action

A

|. Transform our culture through
our people and values

Strengthening
capability

Our strategic review in 2013 idenufied
the need to strengthen our resource
and capability in a number of key areas
of the business — leadership, senior

line management, sales and business
development.¥Ve have also strengthened
our teams In IT, procurement, finance
and risk management

2014 highhghts J

new senior appointments to new value
the global leadership team

New

whistleblowing
policy created

4 Safety first

2015 prioriues J

Increase heatth and safety focus on road safety

Extend health and safety leadership traning to

a wider population

* Implement an online system to better capiure and
record health and safety incident data

+ Enhanced whistleblowing hothne and case management

system to be implemented globally

Global engagement survey to be undertaken and fed

back within the organisation

» Design and implement a new single regional leadership

programme for middle managers

-

4 G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Qur financial performance 1s underpinned by recrurting
developing and deploying the best people againsi our
most Important opportunities by applying our group
values in everything we do and by defivenng outstanding
customer service

The group values are:

Safety first

We prioritise safety management to protect
the health and well-being of our colleagues
and those around us

Customer focus

We have close, open relationships with our
customers which generate trust and we worlk in
partnership for the benefit of our orgamisations

Integrity
We can always be trusted to do the nght thing

Best people

We employ the best people, develop their
competence, provide opportunity and Inspire
them to live our values

Performance
We seek to improve performance year on
year to create long-term sustainability

Teamwork and coflaboration
We collaborate for the benefit of our
customers and G45

Experuse

We develop and demonstrate our expertise
through our innovative approach to creating
and delivering the night solutions

Our plans to improve customer service are outhined
in more detal on pages 20 and 23 How our values
are integrated into the groups strategic prionities Is
covered throughout the Strategic Report and in this
section we discuss

1 Safety first — protecting colleagues and those around us
it Integrity — being trusted to do the nght thing

n Best people — employing the best people and
providing opportunity




IMAGE REMOVED

B
Ethical employment \
partnership — global

Since 2008, G4S has had an ethical employment
partnership with UNI, the global urien federation
(4S5 was the first UK company to enter such

a partnership, which drives improvements in
employment standards across the global security
industry, while helping to ensure that employee
and union rghts are respected throughout

the company

I
Nuclear power N

— United States

At one of the newest and largest nuclear power
facthvies in the United States, the G45 Regulated
Security Solutions team has worked safely for
nearly | | years since a recorded lost-ume
accident, and worked nearly 2 million safe
man-hours by implementing a comprehensive
behaviour-based safety programme

IMAGE REMOVED
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Secure solutions — India

YVith a workforce of 130,000 people across

25 states, G45 India launched a strong health

and safety initiative aimed at spreading the

concept of “zero harm™ for its employees and
customers Throughout the year, 1t ntroduced a

series of campaigns aimed at making the
workplace environment safer

IMAGE REMOVED
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[ I \
Driving Force — global

In 2014, 19 colleagues lost their lives in road

traffic acaidents The Driving Force inmative

aims to significantly reduce these incidents

Based on an imual pidot in seven countries,

Driving Force 1s now being rolled out to every
G4S company globally

Two of the pilot countries experienced significant
reductions in the number of fatal road traffic
accidents in the twelve-month study period

As well as informative hterature packs distributed
within the business, Driving Force rules include
traning, vehicle checkhsts, and basic driver
evaluauon and investigation tools to help
understand the root cause of incidents




Strategy In action continued
Strengtheming capability

Achievements

Qur performance management approach addresses
both non-financal and financial performance in an
integrated way and 1s outlined in more detal in the
key performance indicators section of the Strategic
Report on pages 32 and 33

Safety first

“The nature of our work and the environments In

which we operate can expose some of our employees
to a high nsk of harm Mitigating and managing these risks
so that our people return home safely every day 1s our
paramount concern Tragcally, colleagues from across the
group are injured and sometmes kiled during the course
of therr work. Any death or injury 1s unacceptable and In
2014 we have invested in additionat health and safety
resources with the am of preventing such incidents
across the group and to leamn from those which do occur
so that we can address the root causes

The continued effort to iImprove the safety of our staff
15 led from the top of the organisatien with personal
leadership from each member of the Group Executive
Committee supported by human resources experts and
108 safety professionals across the group

Processes and practices across the group are challenged
frequently by our health and safety professionals and
critical country reviews, carmed out by experts who are
independent of the business under review, highlight
learming potnts following every senious inadent

To ensure that our managers take ownership and
responsibility for improving health and safety, we recently
re-designed incentive plans to ensure that avoiding harm
1o employees, and 1o those with whom we come into
contact during the course of our business remains the
focus for managers across the organisation Improved
health and safety performance will continue to be a

key area of focus in 2015

IMAGE REMOVED

Best people — building capability

Since Aprit 2013 we have strengthened our global
leadership team materially, with 1 14 appointments to
our top 220 executive roles Of the | 14 appointments
50 were internal promotions and role changes and 64
were external hires These changes have been focused on
senmor ine management, sales and business development
We have also strengthened our tearns in IT, procurement
finance and risk management

The senior leadership programme 1s being re-launched n
2015 10 better reflect the strategic priorities of the group
A new cohort of senior managers with potential to move
to more complex roles will be identified to particpate
The programme, which started m 2005 will support

and challenge participants to contribute to sustainable
business performance and continue their own personal
leadership development Every element of the
programme wilt explicitly promote the (45 values

and draw on good practice from existing G4S senior
'eaders around the world

IMAGE REMOVED

Please see page 58 for the boards policy on diversity

Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4S plc

|7

wodsl 3@xeng




Strategy in action continued
Strengthening capability

Employee engagement
Qur employee engagement programme 15 based on
the internally developed PRIDE model

P rotect their basic needs

R espect them as indmduals

1 nvolve them in the business

D evelop therr skills and potential
E ngage them fully

More information on all of these areas can be found

in our CSR reporting framework, ncluding our CSR
report and www g4s com/csr We are currently planning
our next global employee engagement survey in 2015
The survey 1s based on the PRIDE mode! and the
principle that where employees feel Protected Respected
nvolved, Developed and Engaged, they are more likely
to perform at their best, provide customers with
exceptional service and be great advocates for the
organisation The last global study was undertaken in
2013 and recewed over 380,000 responses — a 62%
response rate Feedback from the 2013 survey and the
forthcoming 2015 survey 1s shared with the relevant
business leaders, so that we can address areas which
employees have highlighted as in need of iImprovement
Examples where feedback has resulted in change include

* enhanced health and safety leadership and training
+ increased internal communications
* leadership programme launched in the Americas
* Increased training resources being offered in
Latin America and Europe

Performance management

During 2014 we re-defined our performance measures
and incentives for our employees and our approach
continues to address both non-finanaal and financial
performance in an integrated way Performance indicators
include measuring customer needs, and achieving
sustainable profit and cash flow, and provide clear

and strong alignment between management prionities
and sharehaolder value

Integrity

Ethical conduct 1s not just a solution to the challenges
of legal complance, but a means of doing business
which provides customers employees, partners and
communities with the confidence that they are working
with an ethical organisation Acting with integrity across
the wortd 1s a key element of our business strategy and
a positive differentiator

A
Business ethics and anu-bribery and corruption
Every year we review our business ethics policy to ensure
it reflects the current business and political environment
and addresses any nsks which may exist Implementation
of the standards descnibed in the policy 1s the
responsibility of local managers These are subject
to review through our internal and external audit
programmes and from investigations triggered by
whistleblowers or colleagues raising concerns with
their managers

I8 G485 ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014

As outlined in more detall on page 31, part of the remut
of the Regional Risk and Audit Committees which were
established in 2014 s to ensure comphance with our
robust anti-corruption poltaes and embed the Integrity
value across the regions Compliance statements are now
signed by the businesses and regions on a quarterly basis

In 2014, we completed a review of our global
whistleblowing policy and practices against the principles
of the UK Whistleblowing Commissions Code of Pracuce,
making a number of changes as a result of that review
We have selected a new global hotline provider and

will be implementing a new global whistleblowng

systern in 2015 We are also implermenting a new case
management tool which will enable us to capture
information on whistleblowing cases across the group and
1o analyse trends and issues raised on a more systematic
basts We have re-established our ethics steenng group

— which was first created to ensure our compliance with
the requirements of the UK Brbery Act — to ensure the
approprate focus on whistleblowing and ethical behaviour
across the group and make sure that we are constantly
challenging ourselves to meet the highest standards

From time to ume, concerns about the conduct of our
colleagues or our business partners are brought to our
attention We take all such concerns senously and work
with internal audrt and external investigators to ensure

all 1ssues raised are addressed appropnately Information on
current issues can be found on page 21 in our CSR report,

Human nights

Our human rights framework supports the continued
development of an ethical and sustainable business
model that encourages the improvement of standards,
job creation community support and broader benefioal
impacts on societies throughout the world

The framewark 1s being embedded across the group,
along with newly-developed processes for assessing the
group’s human rights risks in marny areas such as bidding
for contracts, entering new markets and analysing our
existing countres of operation These practices are driven
by an annual assessment of human rights risks and a series
of assessments and reviews 1 markets where risks exist

Where risks or concems are identified, action is taken
to make sure that we put in place processes 1o mitigate
or reduce any nisk. In some cases, this means that

a business or operation can be scrutinised intensely by
either G4S or independent experts For example, in the
spring of 2014, the board cornmissioned an independent
review Into the group’s operations In Israel The findings
from the review were presented to the charman of our
CSR Committee and to a number of the Group
Executive Committee members, and were pubhshed on
the group’s website in the interests of transparency

More detal on human rights risk assessment can be
found in the Risk Management section and the group's
separate CSR report




rh———

Ebola response —Africa N
Responding to the outbreak of Ebola in
the region, G4S Sierra Leone, in conjunction
with our G45 Africa head office, developed an
Ebola awareness programme for employees,
incorporaung posters, handouts and training
Symptomn testing, hand washing faciities and
the provision of personal protective equipment
were implemented at G4S offices as part of the
programme of increased preventative measures,
and a comprehensive contingency plan was
developed These measures greatly assisted
in the prevention of infection and subsequently
have been shared with other affected countries
such as Mali, Nigeria and Guinea

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

I
Compliance and Investigations \
— North America

The United States’ second largest school
district, serving one million students and

90,000 employees, worked with the G4S
Compliance and investigations team to reduce
workers' compensaton fraud and abuse losses
The organisation-wide programme saved the
customer more than $10 million in fraudulent
claims and resulted n 24 arrests and ¢convictions
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Strategy in action continued

i

2. Invest In organic growth, customer
service and operational excellence

Customer focused

Following the strategic review
undertaken in 2013, we concluded that
the group had been under-investing in
organic growth opportunities and since
then we have established a number of
programmes designed to strengthen

organic sales and business development.

2014 highlights l

£55bn  £1.1bn

annual value of sales pipeline  annual contract value of
as at end December 2014 new business won

c.90% c.£20m

contract retention rate
for existing contracts

annualised addiional
investment in sales and
business development

» Group-wide inttiatives to iImprove organic growth
and customer retention rates

= Investing in a more ngorous approach to customer
relationship management

* Investment in technology development and sales

* Roll out of standardised sales operations
system commenced

2015 priorities

* Implement our standardised customer satisfaction
survey tools across the group

+ Complete roll out of standard sales operations

» Continue to Improve pipeline management

* Increase multi-serace offenings to exising and
new customers

20 G45 ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Achievements

Investing in organic growth opportunities
Group-wade initiatives to take advantage of the
organic growth opportunity including

+ sales capability assessment and recruitment

* mandatory implementation of standard sales
operations systems

* sales performance in all businesses

* customer engagernent and retention

* global account management

= priaing policy and management

In the past |8 months, we have appointed new sales
leaders in all of our six regions and at group level

Across the group as a whole, we have appointed 394
additional new employees into sales and business
development roles, Including industry sector specialists
1N a number of our regions We have also been
implementing a standard tool for measuning

customer satisfacton Through regular customer
surveys and feedback, we will be better able to identify
and quickly address service issues and deepen and
strengthen customer relationships

Customer relauonship management
We are also investng in a more rigorous approach to
customer relatonship and global account management

Ve are placing greater emphasis on managing and retaining
the existing customer base and have continued to invest

in new service developrnent and mnovation for exising
customers Ve have also begun to export commercially
proven services across countries and regions

Owr investment in organic growth implemented through
these programmes provides long-term support for our
sales pipeline During 2014, we won new work with

an annual contract value of over £i | bilhon and a total
contract value of £2 | billon See the Business review on
pages 34 to 41 for a description of the type of new
contracts won per region We contnue to build and to
replerush our pipeline which, after taking into account strong
conversion in 2014 had an annual contract value of £55
bilion at the end of December 2014




Annual contract value
of sales pipeline at end

Large, diversified sales pipeline \

of December 2014

Buring 2014 we won new work

with an annual contract value of over
£1 | bilen and a total contract value
of £2 | billion We continue to build
and replenish our pipeline which after
taking Into account strong conversion
in 2014, had an annual contract value
of £55 billion at the end of 2014

£3.90n

Leads and prospects {unrisked)

N
Global agriculture \
— Latin America

G4S provides secure solutions to one of the
world’s leading global agriculture compantes that
has operations in more than 90 countries In Laun
America, G45 services more than 30 customer
locations in Brazil, Argentina, Colombia, Chile and
Mexico, Incorporating risk mitigation, integrated
secunity solutions and world-chss technology

bn

£l

Bidding

L

£0.5™

Negotiation

(MAGE REMOVED
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Bank of America — global

With operations in more than 40 countries,
serving 48 million consumers at 4,800 retail
banking offices and 15,800 ATMs, the needs of

a global customer like Bank of America are
complex and dynamic G4S partners with them
to provide total security including software,
systems and over 5,000 security officers posted
at more than 1,300 buildings and banking centres
across the world

[ \

IMAGE REMOVED
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[

Lake Turkana — Africa \
In April 2014, G4S was named security partner
for the £500 million Lake Turkana sustainable
energy project in Kenya Lake Turkana is a
large-scale infrastructure project in Kenya,
transforming the lives of many Kenyans and
providing a sustainable low-cost source of energy
Part of a public and private secter joint iImuatve,
G4S will work alongside other international
businesses under a three-year rolling contract for
up to |5 years

The G45 solution includes securing generators
and bore-holes, over-seeing the taking of water
from those bore-holes and controlling access on
and off the site It also involves the staffing of an
operations room with a communications system
which all the major contractors will be using




Strategy in action continued
Customer focused

We have also started 1o strengthen our sales
operations so that we can manage our pipeline

more pro-actively and improve the alignment of
sales incentives with sales performance and customer
satisfaction Sales incentives have been redesigned

for 2015 to better align them to drive growth,
customer retention and customer satisfaction

Investment in technology specialists

In 2014, the group initiated a strategic review of
capabilities In technology addressing IT and back office
technology, operational technology and customer-facing
technology The opportunity for using technology to
drive back office efficencies for areas such as payroll
and accounts payable through shared service centres

1s outhned on page 24 and operattonal technology such
as telematics 1s outlined on page 27 In terms of customer
facing technology, the group derived 8% of revenue from
secunty systems revenue in 2014 but this 15 largely
concentrated (n the North Amenica and Europe regions

IMAGE REMOVED

The global security systems market is a large, growing
market (source Freedonia World Securty Services
Report, November 201 4)

We believe speaific technologies with significant market
potential inctude

* advanced access control systems

+ video and image analytics software Through
constant automated digital screering and filtering,
video analytics can identify and notify operators
of potential 1ssues allowing secunty officers to make
quick, nformed deasions

*+ integration software for connecting and
conirolling multiple devices to create an
end-to-end secunty solution

» data analytics software for pocling and rapidiy
synthesising large volumes of data and

» automated cash management systerns

The group has proven in-house product development
capabilities in a number of these areas

= United States — OneFaality™ technology solution
spanning secunty, safety and facilities management,
Secure Trax™ automation of typical security
communication including incident reporting via
a handheld device and Risk360 securtty inaident
information capture, investigation and analysis tool,

+ UK — Symmetry™ access controi and bullding
management system, electronic monitoring equipment,

* South Afnca — Deposita end to end cash management
solution for retall customers and

* Europe — CASH360™ end to end cash management
for retall soluttons (see page 26) and locabised product
centres (e g Hotelo access control technology)

Regional markets vary widely in terms of competition,
producis sold and customer segments, and our approach
15 adapted to meet each custormer's umque requirements
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Strategy In action continued

2
A

3. Make our organisation
more productive

Leverage our
global scale and
technology

One of our key goals is to improve
operational and overhead efficiency
and organisational effectiveness. We
also aim to better leverage the scale of
the organisation through group-wide
procurement and IT programmes for
the first ume.

2014 highlights

* Global procurement and IT functions established
» Annual addressable procurement spend identified
» Strategic review of [T resources and capabulity
completed
* Began implementatian of accelerated best practice
{ABP) across the group including
— 4,500 vehicles fitted with telematics devices by
the end of 2014
— Implemented route scheduling programme
~ Started our mul-year labour scheduling
programme covering 39 countries and
376 000 employees
» Phase | of UK shared service centre completed

2015 priorities

= Migrate G45 Canada into North Amenca shared
service centre

« Improve development and deployment of IT systems
and tools across the group

= Continue implementation of direct labour
efflicency programme

* Suppler negotiation and rationalisation
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Achievements

Organisational effectiveness

As well as taking action to strengthen our organisation
with new appointments, we have also been reviewing
our organisational design to ensure that management
structures are both effective and efficient In a number of
regions we have embarked on a de-layening programme
which aims to shorten lines of communication, reduce
costs and increase the amount of time devoted to
customers and the marketplace We have also created
two global functions that should deliver significant
synergies In the areas of IT and procurement

During 2014 we also established a project to globalse

a number of our key functions — such as HR
communications, finance and legal We believe that global
functions will improve the consistency, effectiveness and
efficiency of our functional services

Shared service centres

An example of our approach to improve back oflice
efficiency through shared service centres 1s in the UK,
where we have completed the first wave of consoldating
finance functions spread across nine different accounting
locations and six different accounting platforms into one
combined UK-based shared service centre on a single

IT platform

tn North America, Canada will be consolidated into the US
shared service centre during 2015 and beyond that we see
cpportunities to bring one smaller US business into scope
that I1s not currently in the US shared service centre

In the AME region we have made tangible progress since
last year in evaluating how we can transition to regional
hubs by, for example, co-locating simpler transaction
processing activities before consolidating onto a single

IT platform




I
Direct labour \
management ~ global

Labour costs are around 75% of the tozal cost base
for the group Our in-house employee scheduling
system provides reporting, key performance
indicators (KPls) and management information Total hours billed and paid
around direct labour management, so that businesses
can better manage theiwr labour costs This solution

15 already in the process of being implemented in 13 \/
countrtes and a significant number of other countries

will have access to it i 2015

Labour efficiency measurement

{output from billing and payroll systems)

Reconciled to

A detailed management information pack of KPls has Contracted hours and actual hours delivered
also been produced by the secure solutions Service {output from operating systems)
Excellence Centre (SEC) to enable businesses to

better measure labour efficiency by tracking unbilled \/

overtime, non-billable hours and reconcilation of
labour hours in a much clearer and more consistent Variance analysed and ongoing
way Is proving to be very valuable It reconciles the improvements rmade
output from payroll systems — what has actually been
paid — and compares it to the expected output from
the operating systems 1 e ,what the scheduling system
expects to pay and bill to customers It highhights any
variance for further review and analysis, enabling us
to make improvements going forward

T
Cash Solutions/SEC \
partnership — Serbia, Europe

G4S Cash Solutions, Serbia has to manage

a very broad range of note denominations and
so the size and volume of notes they transport
and insert in ATMs is different compared with
most other cash solutions businesses

As with all cash solutions SEC reviews, the team
looked for efficencies that could be achieved by
applying proven methods to improve efficiency
and customer service, while reducing costs and
increasing profit. These include combining routes,
increasing productivity, reducing premium hours,
reviewing branch boundaries, realigning customer
sites and re-planning to reduce or eliminate
route cross-overs, and absorbing new contracts
INtO existing routes

IMAGE REMOVED

In Belgrade, a dedicated teamn from G4S Serbia
worked with the SEC and improved productivity
by removing routes and vehicles by integrating
collections or deliveries into other routes and
planning the routes differently
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B
Australia care and justice \
services —Asia Middle East

(A4S 1s one of the leading private providers

of care and |ustice services in Australia and

New Zealand, overseeing almost 1,500

offenders and transporting ever 100,000
prisoners and 86,000 non-emergency patients

in 2014 Leveraging our local knowledge and
international expertise, a key part of the G4S
Austrahia growth strategy 1s to develop our care
and justice portfolio in new markets (Queensland
and Western Australa) and new sectors (policing)
To support this we have invested in senior
executive level sector expertse in those states,
in poheing in Austraha and transferred policing
experts from the UK business

[ IR
CASH360™ — global )
CASH360™ 15 the first integrated end-to-end

cash management system that controls every

stage, from cash payment by purchasers to
depositing the proceeds into sellers’ bank

accounts it has been launched in Europe

and other markets Over the fast three years,
CASH360™ revenues have grown over five-fold
IMAGE REMOVED and we have plans to launch m more markets

This wall enable our banking and retail customers

to become more efficient and secure and help

them to spend more ume with their customers

By automaung the enure process, CASH360™ has
been able to mitigate the risks that surround the
management of money in a wide range of scenarios
The financial benefits for customers include better
cash flow, simplified operauons, a safer
environment and reducton in losses, giving
business owners and managermnent more ume to
focus on tradfng successfully Users have reported
n-store costs of handling cash reduced by up to
70% and the elmination of “shrinkage” — loss of
inventory that can be attributed to a variety of
causes, from employee theft to administrative
errors
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Strategy in action continued
Leverage our global scale and technology

Group procurement

During 2014 we established the position of

chief procurement officer and conducted a baseline
survey of non-payroli spend This allowed us to determine
the scale and the nature of the opportunity to reduce
costs by employing a global approach to procurement

By bringing procurement under a global funcuon we

can use our scale to better negotiate deals with

suppliers, reduce costs and make more structured
purchasing decisions

The baseline survey camed out n 2014 dentified
addressable spend of £1 3bn, of which 70% was
attrbutable to eight broad categories of expenditure
Since then we have started the process of employing
expenenced category managers and opened negotiations
with a number of our key suppliers We concluded our
first global procurement deals in early 2015 in IT and
telecoms, and believe that this approach presents
significant opportunities to reduce our costs and achieve
better service and value for money

IT transformation
In IT, we have a new group chief Information officer,
and have established a global leadership team

We are adopting industry-recognised T service
management models, dreng consistency and efficiency in
IT infrastructure, development and operations The first
phase of transformation 1s focused on infrastructure

In addrion 1o improving supply chain management we
are also using vendors |7 platforms to give us visibiity
and contral of our spending

We are also taking a global approach to rationalise the
numerous email systems which exist across the group,
Improving communication and productrity We are taking
a simitar approach to the rationahsation of our telecoms
infrastructure and data centres

On IT development, we have begun to offshore the
software development that underpins our accelerated
best practice for labour scheduling and route planning
Finally, during 2015 we will seek to bring a standard
approach to our IT operations

Operauonal excellence

In addttion to programmes focused on organic growth, we
have prograrmmes under way designed to improve operatng
and organisationdl efficency These programmes are
descnbed collectively as Accelerated Best Pracuice (ABP)
Two years ago we invested In creating Service Excellence
Centres (SECs) for both secure solutions and cash solutions
SECs aim to delver gross margin improvement and
improved customer service by drving consistent operational
excellence throughout the business.

ABP programmes include

Telematics and route planning

We have around 34,000 vehicles in our fleet and spend
over £300m per year on vehicle capial nvestrnent and
operaling costs The telematics programme involves the
nstallation and use of tracking devices ihat enable us
1o measure and reduce fuel and maintenance costs and
improve driving safety At the end of 2014 4,500 of
our vehicles were fitted with telematic devices

Qur route scheduling programme involves the use of
equipment and software that enables our businesses to
plan and operate optimal routes for collections, delivenes
and site visits When fully deployed, the programme can
reduce both vehicle and crew requirements and improve
customer service by helping our crews 1o meet delivery
collection and visit windows By the end of 2015 we plan
to have 7.000 vehicles operating under an enhanced
route scheduling system

Direct labour efficiency programme

The programme ams to Improve customer service and
reduce costs by deploying the nght secunity officers at
the nght tme and at the nght cost, and by mimimising
non-biflable time This 1s an encrmous mult-year
programme covering 39 businesses and 376000
employees in the {irst phase alone

Direct lzbour efficiency reconciles the output from payroll
systems — what's actually been paid — and compares it to
the expected output from the operating systerns 1 e, what
the scheduling system expects to pay and highlights any
vanance for further review and analysis enabling us to
make Improvements going forward See the case study on
page 25 for more information
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Strategy in action contnued

v

4. Actively manage our portfolio
and performance

Portfolio
management

Portfollo management remains an
important tool for capital discipline
and performance management

2014 highhghts
businesses reviewed businesses sold

£248m

gross proceeds raised
since 2013

2015 prionties

= Cease or sell 20 smaller businesses

» Continue to invest in the organic growth opportunrues

to dnve sustainable profit and cash flow
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Achievements

Duning 2013, our strategie review wlentified a number
of businesses which were underperforming or tacking in
scale We also fooked at business risk profiles and market
values Depending on our assessment of all of these
factors, we deaded to either sell, discontinue or invest In
the turnaround of these businesses During 2014, we
reviewed 56 businesses in greater depth and detail

Of these we have sold eight businesses including US
Government Solutions, which was managed through

a proxy structure over which we had Imted control
Since 201 3, our disposal programme has raised around
£248m from businesses which generated a below group
average operating margin of 2 8% Of this £177m was
raised in 2014

Portfolio management remans an important tool

for caprtal disciphine and performance management

A further 20 smaller businesses are being sold or ceased,
and another 22 are currently under review None of
these smaller businesses alone or in aggregate has a
material iImpact on our revenue our profit or our cash
flows Our portfolio management programme has
improved our strategic focus and we have released
capital at attractive overall realisatians

At the same time as divesting under-performing
businesses or those lacking matenality, we have been
nvesting in the organic growth opporiunity, where we
expect 1o see good returns on our investment and to
make G45 more productive As outlined in the previous
""Strategy in action ' sections, we have been investing in
our continuing businesses In the following areas people
sales and business development technology and business
improvement programmes, including restructuning to
drive operational excellence and orgamsation efficency




Active portfolio management

During 2013, we conducted a “bottom-up analysts
of all of our businesses, evaluating their performance
and prospects The results showed that 62 countries
were expected to contribute 95% of the total PBITA
expected in 2016

Since then, we have reviewed 56 businesses \
looking at strategic value, risk profile and matenality

of contribution {growth, PBITA and cash generation)

and sold eight businesses, raising gross proceeds of

£248 milion Twenty further businesses are being sold
or closed

IMAGE REMQVED

Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4S plc 29

1i0das 38a3en5




Strategy in action contnued

3t

5. Embed disciplined financial
and risk management

Improving
cash flow

The group’s capital allocation and
contract review processes have

been strengthened to ensure that all
investment opportunities compete for
capital in a single ‘pool’ and are evaluated
against a stringent set of economic and
risk criteria.

2014 highlights |

£526m

Cash generated from
operating businesses

in 2014
bn

£

revolving credit bank facility
refinanced in January 2015

£553m

Total cash generated
from continuing operaticns
in 2014

c.200

contracts across the
group reviewed by the
CFC on a quarterly basis

2015 prioriies I

* Improve cash generatian
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Achievements

Operaung cash flow

fn 2014, we made a matenial change to the cash
measure used in budgets monthly reviews, long-term
business and incentive plans to deliver fi ee cash flow
after working capital Our performance management
cycle around cash flow has also changed QOur debtors
sales outstanding (0SO), based on revenue for the last
90 days of 2014 was 48 days and there are many
businesses where there are opportunities for
improvement We have moved the monitoring of cash
and cash collections from monthly to weekly, and moved
the collections agenda beyond fimance by engaging the
business in cash collections We also need to be more
disciplined about commercal terms for recevables, drive
better terms from our supply chain through the new
procurement processes and to reduce the time from
event to biling On average across the graup we bill m
|3 days, and as with DSO, there 1s considerable variation
in the timehiness of billing across the group

We are developing a programme across the global
finance and cormmercial communities to systematically
look at both the order to cash cycle, and the procure
to pay cycle and analyse the systemic roct causes that
affect cash flow and then drive improvement based on
this root cause analysis

Contracts, nsk management and delivery
assurance

We now have enhanced contract management
processes in place across the group There are clear
reserved powers for the approval of contracts at group
executive committee and board level to approve bidding
for major, complex contracts and all matenal contracts
with low profitability are subject to rewew at regional,
group or board level, as appropriate, 29 contracts went
through this process in 2014 For more detal please see
the risk management sectton on page 42

Contract risk management and governance model

IMAGE REMOVED




We have also introduced a 360-degree model for
ongoing contract assurance ('Contract 360"} As the
name implies this bnngs together a review of the
financial commercial, legal, deliver y and reputauonal nsks
in taking on work for a customer and means that there
1s & holistic view of contract risk, both before we commn
and during the contract hife cycle Then, during contract
execution amongst other things, we review the progress
on delivery commitments made and we monitor
customer satisfaction as well as cornmercial and financial
performance Contract 360 1s well developed and
embedded in our UK business and will be progressively
implemented across all regions in 2015

In terms of the broader contract portfolio, every
quarter the finance organisation reviews the financial
performance of all the major contracts, and the CFO
performs a top-level review of the top 200 contracts
across the group each quarter, equivalent to around a
third of group revenue These contract disciplines give
us early sight of emerging contract 1ssues and the
Contract 360 review process enables us to develop
the appropriate commercial and legal strategy and
ensures that the accounting 1s sound

Capability building

These contract management changes would not be
possible without capable people and effective processes,
in finance risk management and control In Audit and
Risk. we have appointed a Head of Global Risk and Audit
In finance we have four new regional CFOs and a new
group Financial Controller Together with their teams they
have significantly improved our internal financial reporting
We have a much more rngerous monthly and quarterly
close process monthly reviews through group finance
that focus on quality of earnings, as well as enhanced
processes around balance sheet integrity and control

Regional Risk and Audit Commuttees

We also introeduced regional risk and audit committees
across the group, and these bring together the ongoing
risk management agenda in the region compliance
matters, 1ssues arising from internal and external audr,
and an ongoing review of any Issues requirng judgement
They are chared by the Regional CEO and include
representatives from group as well as Regional Finance,
and are also attended by our external auditor

The Regional Rusk and Audit Committees are now a
core part of the governance processes within the group
Together with the other changes discussed above, they
provide an enduring platform in nsk management and
controls and have resutted in sigruficant strengthering
of the stewardship In the group

—
Capital disciphne N

We believe our new approach to capital discipline
15 working, one single capital pool, a minimum
10% post-tax internal rate of return on all
Investments, a group wide investment committee
that oversees both revenue and capital
investments, and rebalancing capital away from
acquisitions to organic capital investment The
more rigorous process around capital discipline
was reflected in £138m capital expenditure

(2013 £178m) down 22% from 2013 The lower
spend is also a deferral of spend into 2015 as we
bring some capital investment under the global IT,
shared service and other programmes

Restructuring

In 2013, we invested £63m to reduce costs mainly in
the UK and Euvrope New areas of opportunity identified
1n 2014 accounted for a further £29 million charge
These programmes were essential in strengthening our
competitive position, principally in the UK and in Europe
In the UK cash solutions business, we have reduced our
branch footprint by 20% and headcount by around

10% In Europe, we have consolidated our regional HQ
In Amsterdam, consoltdated our operations in the
Netherlands and Belgium, and across the group funded
some modest de-layering of duplicated or overlapping
management and supervision

Balance sheet

The board remains committed to mamnianing a strong
balance sheet with the long-term net debt to EBITDA
ratio of less than 25 times At the end of 2014, the

net debt/EBITDA was 2 8x — a little higher than our long
term aim manly because of the payment relating to the
UK electronic monitonng contract settlement The group s
tevolving credit bank facility was successfully refinanced in
Janwary 2015 with improved pricing, terms and conditions
achieved The new facility 15 a five-year £1 bithon
commutted facility provided by a consortium of leading
internationak banks Our unutlised but committed faciliies
at the year end were £998m We continue to be soundly
financed and have good access to capital markets as
demonsirated by the recent renewa! of the revolving
credit facility
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Strategy in action* Key performance indicators

o1t

Key performance indicators

Our progress in implementing
our key strategic objectives 1s
measured using key performance
indicators (KPIs) for the group

tn addiion to the group's financial KPIs of revenue
growth, operating cash flow, and profit, manager s
across the group are also incentivised to achieve
personal objectives These are agreed on an
indradual basis and are usually linked to bustness
plan miestones

Financial KPls

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Description

(G4S has an arganic growth
strategy based on strong
market positions in structural
growth markets We are
investing in iImproved customer
service and sales and business
development people, and aim
1o build long term relationships
with customers

We believe there is sull great
potental to sell more complex
solutions which tend to have
longer contract terms and
higher margins

The group has a number of
Intiatives — called Accelerated
Best Practice — to drive
efficiency and operational
improvement across the group

Performance

In 2014, revenues grew 3 9%
to £68bn (2013 £6 5bn),
with organic growth of 8 9%
in emerging markets and | 4%
growth in developed markets

In 2014 PBITA grew 7 9%

to £424m (2013 £393m) as a
result of these initiatives starting
to benefit PBITA in emerging
markets was up 10 3% and in
developed markets PBITA
increased by 12 3%

Key Link to

(QP‘ Transform aur culture through our people and values strategy

A7 Invest in organic growth and customer seraice
it

C Make our orgarisation more productive

[\f Actwely manage our portfolio and performance

H + Embed disciphned financial and nsk management
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IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

A key prniority for the group
15 to drive improved cash
generation, through better
working capital management
and capital disciphne

G45 15 looking to deliver
sustainable growth in earnings
over the long term

Total cash flow from

continuing operations in

2014 increased | 1% to £553m
(2013 £496m) Cash generated
from operating businesses was
£526m (2013 £420m), up 25%
excluding one off corporate
tems of £27m (2013

£76rm) per page 93

In 2014, underlying earnings
increased || 7% to £210m
(2013 £188m) As a result of
the share placing in August
2013 and the subsequent
Increase In average number

of shares in 1ssue, EPS increased
54% 1o 136p (2013 129p)

Non-Financial KPls

In 2015, examples of performance contracts
of senior managers include personal
objectives aligned 1o their respective roles,
such as customer retention for business unn
managers, succession strategies for human
resources roles and cost savings for
procurement roles We beheve that strong
employee relavonships help to deliver
excellent customer service

Values including Safety first ]

People and Organisation

Operational excellence

Business development

HR standards and KPis

In addmion, our businesses are required to
report monthly on key metrics relating to

Safety first W

Industmal relations

Employee retention

Recruitment

The abjectives and targets are focused on
maintaining the G4S values, including Safety
First and driving sustainable profitable growth

C &

3
=2

2\

w0 &

! To cleady present underlying performance, specific tems have been excluded
and disclosed separately - see page 90 For basis of preparation and an

analysis of speafic tems see page 9|
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Business review

20 | 4 G4S is managed through a geographic
and functional organisational structure

Business review

Underlying regional and group financial performance

The analysis of the groups business perfarmance reflects intermal management reporting lines which are based on geographic regions

The group's underlying segmental results are presented below, excluding specific termns and operations identified in portfolio rationalisation
Prior year results are presented at constant currency and have been restated for the adoption of IFRS10 and [FRS1 [, for businesses
classified as discontinued operations during the year and for the transfer of business between regions to reflect the way the businesses
are managed across the group

Revenue PBITA Organic

At constant exchange rates £m £m growth

2014' 20132 Yo % 201 4! 2013? Yo %
Africa 485 440 102% 46 36 27 8% 10 1%
Asia Middle East 1,260 1,192 57% 107 103 319% 57%
Latin America 653 570 14 6% 39 35 11 4% 14 6%
Emerging Markets 2,398 2202 839% 192 174 10 3% 8 8%
Europe 1,400 1,409 (0 6%) 85 82 37% (07%)
North America 1,365 1,277 69% 75 56 339% 69%
UK & freland 1,587 1,608 {1 3%) 132 122 82% (| 4%)
Developed Markets 4,352 4,294 | 4% 292 260 12 3% 13%
Total Group before corporate costs 6,750 6,496 3% 484 434 11 5% 39%
Corporate costs (60) (40 46 3%
Total Group 6,750 6,496 39% 424 393 79% 39%

| To clearly present undet lying performance specific items have been excluded and disclosed separately — refer to page 90 for a reconcilaven to total results

2 2013 results are presented at constant exchange rates and have been restated for the adoption of IFRS 10 and #RS 1| for businesses classified as discontinued
operations and exclude the results of portfolic businesses

The statutory segmental analysis as presented in note 6 of the financal staternents sncludes revenue from businesses that are being sold

or ceased and for the pror year the impact of foregn exchange by region was as follows — Afca £nd (2013 £56m), AME £67m 2013 £180m},

Latin Amenca £10m (2013 £123m), Europe £2im (2013 £117m), North Amenca £nil (2013 £82my), UK and kreland £nit (2013 £7m)

Cperating prefit n note 6 of the financial statements includes the trading resufts from businesses that are being sold or ceased, interest and tax
from joint ventures and for the prior year the impact of foreign exchange by region was as follows — Afnca £nil (2013 £4m) AME £6m (2013
£5m}, Latin America £1m {2013 £9m), Europe £1m (2013 £6m). North Amenca £nil (2013 £3m), UK and Ireland £2m (2013 profit of £3m)

2014 Revenue and PBITA by region

IMAGE REMOVED MAGE REMOVED
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Africa

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Andy Baker
Regional President — Africa

G4S 1s the largest provider of integrated
security solutions in the region, with
operations in 24 African countries.

We focus on core sectors in the region,
particularly telecommunications, aviation,
mining, oil and gas, embassies and ports,
as well as post-conflict humanitarian work
with government agencies and NGOs

2014 highhghts I
+10%  $8
Organic growth Africa securtty market
n 2013
125000 +28%
!
Employees PBITA growth
Revenue PBITA
£m m
014 20138 Yo % 2014* 2013 YoY %
485 440 102% 46 36 27 8%

*  Source Freedonia World Securty Services report, November 2014 excluding
resqidential securty

All tables show underiying
performance at constant
exchange rates

tn Africa revenue and organic growth was (0% and PBITA
increased 28% benefiting fiom the growth n revenue as well
as overhead efficiency programmes

New contracts won across the region include work for customers
such as financial mstitutions and utilities in Kenya, gold mining in
DRC embassies in Tanzama and Sierra Lecne a hydro-elecinc
plant in Mozambique and mine clearance work in Southern Sudan
In South Africa, we won major new contracts with distribution
compantes and financial institutions

The sales pipeline in Afnica has a diverse and growing number

of new contract opportunities in areds such as financial institutions,

aviation, mining o1l and gas and embassy security The region also
remains focused on embedding Acceterated Best Practices
primarily in the areas of direct labour management and on
organisational efficiency

Africa case study — Tangier Med Port

In 2014, G435 Morocco was awarded a three-year contract
for Tangier-Med Port, one of the largest capacity ports in
the Mediterranean and Africa G4S protects the port's
assets, commodities and people through a broad range

of specialised services, including operauonal and technical
security focused on passenger and freight screening

IMAGE REMCVED

| Africa case : )
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Business review continued

Asia Middle East

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Dan Ryan
Regional CEQ —Asia Middle East

G4S 1s the leading security provider

in the Asia Middle East region with
operations in 29 countries. Our largest
countries by revenue are India,

Saudi Arabia and Australa.

2014 hightights |

+5./%

Organic growth

264,000

420

Total secunty market size
in 2013

+3.9%

Employees PBITA growth
Revenue PBITA
m £m
2014 20132 Yot % 2014 20132 YoY %
1,260 1,192 S7% 107 103 39%
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Revenue and organic growth in Asia Middle East was 6% and

PBITA increased 4% reflecting a good performance in the region
The performance on PBITA reflects only three months' contribution
from the Manus Island immigration processing centre contract

in 2014 compared with the full 12 months of 2013 The contract
ended in March 2014

The region benefited from new contracts in aviation demining
and risk management for international ol and gas companies in
Iraq, electronic secunity systems contracts in the UAE Qatar and
Guam, and the extension of a contract with a major LS motor
manufacturer nto Australia and UAE

We invested in establishing a China outbound business
development function in the fourth quarter, which will focus
on developing business across the group with Chinese
muttinationals with overseas operations

The sales pipeline 1s strong in areas such as care and justice services
In Australia and New Zealand and a number of port security
systems opportunities in the region

We have made significant investment in sales and operational
capability in the region Country sales leaders have been recruited
for most countnies and a customer satisfaction programme was
launched in the first quarter of 2015 In addition, orgarsational
structures are being rewewed with the aim of streamlining regional
and country overheads

In terms of portfolic management, we have exited six businesses
In the regien during the year

[ R \
Asia Middle East — UAE systems

Following investment in 2014, the Middle East systems

business generated nearly £50 milllon of new business

from customers in sectors such as government, real estate
and transportation

IMAGE REMOVED




Latin America

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Marun Alvarez
Regional President, Latin America & Caribbean

G4S 1s a leading Integrated cash solutions
and secure solutions provider for
commercial and government customers
across 16 countries in Latin America,
with Brazil, Colombia and Argentina
being its largest markets in the region

by revenue.

2014 highhghts !
+14.6%  $26r
Organic growth Total secunity market size
in 2013
76000  +|14%
, L]
Employees PBITA growth
Revenue PBITA
&m m
2014 2013 Yor % 2014 013 YoY %
653 570 14 6% 39 35 114%

Revenue and organic growth in Latin America was | 5% with
a number of contract wins In the ports car manufacturing,
transportaton financial services, telecommunications and
extractives sectors The macro-economic slowdown impacted
the technology businesses in Brazil and Chile

PBITA was | 1% higher with the legislated increase in pay m
Brazil, partally recovered in the second half of the year and offset
by the drop in commodity prices in Chite creating a difficult
environment 1o pass on Cost Increases to mining customers

Our sales pipeline for the Latin America region 1s growing well,

with a number of farge new multi-year manned security and facilities
management opportunities for muttinational customers in Brazil
and manned secunty customers in Peru

[
Latin America case study — \
Food manufacturing

G45S provides technology, security solutions, secure
faciities management and high-leve! risk consulting to
one of the world's largest food companies and one of
Brazil’s largest employers across more than 35 sites

IMAGE REMQVED
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Business review continued

Europe

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Graham Levinsohn
Regional CEQ — Europe

G4S Europe has activities in 23 countries
in Scandinavia, Benelux, Southern Europe,
Eastern Europe and Central Asia. It has
strong market positions in cash solutions
and around 20% of the region’s revenues
are security systems-related.

2014 highlights |
(0.6%) $390
G4S Revenues Total security market size
in 20137
64000  +3.7%
’ 1
Employees PBITA growth
Revenue PBITA
£m £m
2014 014 YaY % 2014’ 201 YoY %
1,400 1,409 {06%) 85 82 37%
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In Europe revenue declined 0 6% with the insourcing of the
Department of Justice contract in the Netherlands This was
largely offset by healthy revenue growth in some Eastern European
countries, as well as Austna and Turkey PBITA was 4% higher

than 2013 reflecting efficiency improvements and benefits of the
restructuring programme implemented in 2013 and 2014

We made further progress with portfolio management in the
region. disposing of three businesses including the sale of our
business in Sweden for £35 million The region also continues

to focus on implementation of Accelerated Best Practice targeting
direct labour efficiency, cost leadership in the areas of organisational
effivency and effecuveness, and on procurement and IT benefits

Recent contract renewals include Schiphot airport contract for
five years in the Netherlands and a major Belgian bank

Qur European markets are showing some signs of stabilising and
with our investment in sales and business development including
sector specialists in aviatton, ports and justice we have a diverse
contract pipeline in these sectors

-]
Europe case study — GSN N
In January 2014, G4S won the majority of GSN cash
solutucons business in the Netherlands for five years, valued
at €50m per annum GSN serves the major banks in the

Netheriands and is thewr provider of cash counting, handling
and legisucs including the maintenance of cash devices

IMAGE REMOVED




North America

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

John Kenning
Regional CEO for North America & Technology

GA4S North America i1s predominantly
an integrated secure solutions business
for commercial customers, with

some government contracts including
juvenile detention services and border
protection [t has recently launched an
innovative cash management solution
for retail customers, CASH360™

(see page 26)

2014 highlights |
+69% 46
Organic growth Total securty market size
n 2013
57000  +339%
’ L}
Employees PBITA growth
Revenue PBITA
£m £m
2014’ 2013 Yo % 014 2013 Yor %
1,365 1,277 659% 75 56 339%

John Kenning succeeded Grahame Gibson as CEQ for the

North America region in Decemnber 2014 following Grahame's
retirement from the role after 30 successful years with the group
John brings extensive security and systems experience to the group

Revenue grew by 7% in North America reflecting a strong
performance in commeraial security, compliance and investigations
and yustice services

We have retaned contracts with major financial institutions and

IT companies, and grown cur busingss in the wholesale retail sector
We have extended our youth justice services {o now cover |3
states There were also major contract wins i the industrial,
healthcare and biotech sectors

PBITA for the region was 34% higher; reflecting higher revenue
and improved direct fabour efficiency resulting i a reduction m
non-billable overtime and overheads

With the introduction of the Affordable Care Act, effective In the
fourth quarter of 2015, we have reviewed and modified our plans
We do not expect the Act to have a materal impact on the groups
business, as our plans were broadly compliant with the legislation

The region 15 expanding its shared services centre to include
Canada, which will generate overhead savings 1n 2015

Good progress was made In the region on rationalising the
bustness portfolio The sale of the cash solutions business in
Canada completed for £6¢ million in January 2014 and the sale
of the US Government Solutions business for £36 millien
completed in November 2014

Overall, the North Amenican business has a strong contract pipeline
with opportunities across diverse sectars including commerce retall
irdustry and government

[ IR
North America case study — )
International Gem Tower

The International Gem Tower 1n New York opened in
2014 and is designed specifically for the global dramond,
gem and jewellery industry Because security, safety and
speed are essenual to success, the developers required

a comprehensive, world-class soluticns including security
technology, consulung, personnel and internauonal logistics

IMAGE REMOVED
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Business review continued

UK & lreland

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Peter Neden
Regional President — UK & [reland

G4S 1s the leading provider of cash

and secure solutions in the region

with a broad range of expertise covering
specialist event security, government
outsourcing, including care and justice
services, and cash solutions

2014 highlights |
(1.4%) G 7bn
Organic growth Total security market size
n 2013
37000  +8.2%
, L]
Employees PBITA growth
Revenue PBITA
£m £m
2014 20132 Yot % 2014" 2003 Yot %
1.587 1,608 {13%) 132 122 8 2%
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Fallowing his successful leadership of the region as interm
regional president for the UK & Irefand region, Peter Neden
was appointed the regional president in January 2015

Revenue declined | 3% and PBITA was 8 2% higher than the prior
year with improved performance m the UK cash solutions business
being partially offset by the ending of the Mo) Electronic Monitoring
contract

Significant restructunng programmes were implemented in the
UK cash selutions Ireland cash solutions and secure solutions
businesses covering branch networks {Ireland and UK cash
solutions) and organisational design These initiatives will mitigate
some of the impact of the toss of a large ATM retal contract from
the fourth quarter of 2014 The region also continues to focus on
implementation of Accelerated Best Pracuce, focused on direct
labour efficiency and cost leadership in the dreds of organisaticnal
efficency and effectiveness and on procurement and IT

UK contracts won during 2014 include selection by the
Department for Work & Pensions (DWP) to manage community
work placement contracts for the long term unemployed, renewal
of the Rainsbrook Secure Training Centre contract renewed cash
solutions and manned secunty contracts with major financial
institutions, a new contract with a major property management
company, the first major smart metening programme, the North
East Prisons secure healthcare contract a new seven year contract
for natonal infrastructure and a regional secure solutions contract
with a global IT company

The UK & lreland bidding pipeline 15 broad-based and has grown
strongly in the areas of facilities management and outsouraing

B
UK & Ireland case study — DWP N
The YWork Programme aims to help long term
unemployed peaple in the UK into work and since June
2010 G4S has been delvering the Work Programme in
three contract package areas, helping more than 45,000
long-term unemployed people Into work and 1s one of
the highest performing providers In April 2014, G4S

was awarded a contract to delwer Community Work
Placements in six areas

IMAGE REMOVED




Underlying service line operating review

Secure solutions

At constant exchange rates

PBITA

£m

2014 Yot % 2014 2013¢

Emerging Markets
Developed Markets

1,951 . 9 5% 136 £22
3,728 . 21% 227 206

Total

5,679 45% 363 328

The secure solutions businesses achieved 5% growth in revenue and |19 PBITA growth

Emerging markets revenue grew by 10%, and PBITA grew 12% drven by contract mix, price increases and cost efficoencies
Developed markets revenue grew 2% with PRITA growth of 10% There was good growth in North America offset by a decline

in the UK, resulting in part from exiting unprofitable contracts

Cash solutions

At constant exchange rates

Revenue PBITA
£m £m

2014 20132 YoY % 2014 20134

Emerging Markets
Developed Markets

447 420 64% 56 52
624 643 (30)% 65 54

Total

1,071 1,063 0 8% 121 106

Cash solutions revenue increased by 1% and PBITA grew
by 14%, helped by a strong improvement in the UK cash
solutions business and good performances elsewhere

Emerging markets revenue growth was 6% and PBITA was

8% higher Developed markets revenue declined 3% principally
in the Ireland cash solutions business PBITA in developed
markets grew 20%, reflecting strong performances in the

UK and Europe

IMAGE REMOVED

[

At constant exchange rates To present clearly underlying
performance specific tems have been excluded and disclosed
separately ~ see page 90

2013 results are presented at constant exchange rates and have
been restated for the adoption of IFRS{0Q and IFRSI | for businesses
classified v discontinued oparatcns and exclude the results ol
businesses wWenuhed as part ol the por toho rationalisation

IMAGE REMOVED
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Risk management

Embedding risk management

in the business

Our aim 1s to gain a deep
understanding of the principal risks
we face at all levels of the business
and to focus management attention
on effective mitigation of the most
critical risks.

Our risks

The last year has continued to highlight the dynarmic
nature of the markets in which G4S operates The
geo-polircal stuation in the Middle East has been very
volatile Global economic recovery has been highly
vanable G45 also continues to face the operational and
health and safety risks which are particular to the securrty
business, along wrth the financial control and commercial
risks common to all multinational companies

How we manage our risks

Our nsks are captured in a global nsk reporting
information system These nisks are reviewed at least
annually by the operating compantes, with more matenal
nisks being rewewed quarterly The group Executive

Risk Committee and board Risk Committee review

the most significant nsks on a regular basis, and the board
regularly rewiews the overall impact of these major risks
on the group’s actmties

\

“2014 has seen us make significant
stnides in improving our risk
management approach 2015 1s
about embedding this in our
operations across the world”

John Connolly
Risk Committee Chairman
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What we did in 2014

The improvements to our nisk management processes
have continued during 2014 The quarterly Regional
Risk and Audit Committees are now well established
and similar committees have been established in the
larger countries A new Governance Risk and Control
(GRC) information system has been implemented and
good progress has been made in transitioning countries
from the previous risk management system The new
contract management approval and broad risk-based
contract review process has been embedded effectively
in the UK&I region A quarterly financial contract review
process has been implemented globally

The board has provided greater formality and detall
concerning 1ts risk appetite, hinking it more exphcitly to
the group’s principal residual risks and a structured risk
universe This detailed nisk appetite statement has been
shared with all the Regional Risk and Audit Committees
and they have provided positive feedback on 1t During
2015 the document will be shared more widely with
individual countries and business units and increasingly
used to inform priontisation of nsk mitigation activities

Alastair James, who joined G45 1n 2013 as Group
Drrector of Risk and Programme Assurance, has now
been apponted Group Director of Risk and Audit

We will continue to have separate internal audit and
risk management teams reporting to Alastar but we will
ensure that these processes are appropriately integrated

What we will do in 2015
We will complete the transition of all countries to
using the new GRC tool for risk management

We will migrate existing group control standards
self-assessments as well as Group Internal Audit to

the GRC tool from the separate platforms which
support them currently This will enable a much greater
consistency of reporting and a much tighter link between
control eflectiveness and nsk assessment

We will embed the newly formulated board nsk appetite
into the business and use 1t to drive priorttisation of
risk mitigation plans

The contract nsk management processes that have been
successfully implemented in the UK will be extended
globally We will work to harmonise and simplify contract
sign-off processes to ensure that they are effective without
being a barmer to sales success and revenue growth

As new processes and systems stabibise there will be
an increasing focus on ensuning quahty of nisk assessments
and progress of planned mitigating actions




Enterprise risk management governance model

Board risk committee

The board Risk Committee
sets the group s risk appetite,
assesses the group’s principat
residual risks and assesses
the overall enterprise rsk
management process

Meets four times per year

Executive risk committee
The Executive Risk
Committee considers the
group’s principal residual risks
and the progress of mitigating
actions Meets four times

per year

Operating companies

Our cperating companies
identify and assess the risks
to their business cbjectives
and plan appropriate
mrtigating actions These are
recorded In our group-wide
risk management tool

-

...|

External audit

Independent aversight of
the entire process

Board
The board has ultmate

Board

} responsibility for assuring
risk management processes

by reviewing the most critical
risks and controls

Board Risk
Committee

Board Audit
Committee

Board audit committee
The board Audit Committee

ensures the groups control
framework 15 operating
effectively Meets four times
per year

Executive Risk
Committee

Regional Risk and
Audit Committees

Regional risk and audit
committees

The Regional Risk and
Audit Committees review

I regionat level risks,

2 the progress of mitigating
achions, and

3 quarterly audit and

Operatng companies I financial control status

reports nternal financial
reviews and balance
sheet integnty and any

We employ three lines of defence to control
and manage risks across the group

accounting judgements
Ist Line Business operations and support ]

Each regional committee

Responsibility for the first ne sits with the managers meets four times per year

of our busmnesses, whether line management or
financial support The senior management team within
each business 15 responsible for implementing and
maintaining appropriate controls across their business

Result. Ensures standards expected by the group,
our customers and other stakeholders are met

AN

2nd Line Control and oversight functions T

The second hne consists of oversight functions at
both regional and group level Including nsk, finance,
legal, human resources, cperations information
technology, commercial and CSR,

Result. Prowides support to the business managers

AN

3rd Line Internal independent assurance

The third line 15 designed to detect or prevent
unexpected outcomes and compnises the internal
audr function As part of its annual programme

of work, internal audit conducts regular reviews of
risk management processes and gives advice

and recommendations on how 10 improve the
control envirenment

Result. Provides independent assurance over the

design and operation of controls
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Risk management continued

The board nsk
committee will
undertake a review
of a major contract at
each of its meetings

Contract risk management and governance model

Based on financial, legal,
reputational and operational
nisk critena

Referred to the region group
or board as appropriate for
review and approval

Bid's customer value proposition,
cormmercial terms and nsk

conducts audits of -

Internal audrt IMAGE REMOVED

mitigation strategy are challenged

selected contracts

Contracts subject to
on-going scrutiny at
regional or group level
based on commercial
scale and level of risk.

Expected risk return is
assessed before approval 1s
given or withheld

Key contractual requirements and
nsk mrtigation strategies, based on
- = - complexity and risk profile of
mobilisation, are mapped to
accountable contract managers

What are the key risks faced
by G4S?

During February 2015, the Regional Risk and Audit
Committees met to agree the regional pnncipal
residual nsks These meetings were facilitated by group
risk management and identified the nisks to each
region’s strategic business abjectives and to on-going
business operations The meetings were informed by
the country level risks recorded in the group’s risk
managernent systems

Group risk management and the CFO consolidated these
nisks and identified common themes and regional risks
which were matenal to the group

These group principal residuat nsks were reviewed
and approved by the Executive Risk Committee and
the Risk Committee of the board

The group's principal residual risks must be considered
in the context of the board's nisk appetite, which can be
summarised as follows

GA45 has a higher risk appetite with regard to growing
and transforming its business

» G4S operates in high risk lines of business in which
our core competence and value add 1s managing those
nsks effectively We should be willing to take on such
business when we have the expertise to deliver and
achieve a good commeraal return on the rnisk we are
accepting frorm our customers
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There are many opportunities for growth

* Broadening our service provision with
existing customers,

« Taking existing services INto new countries,

* Bringing new high value add services to market
that build on our core competencies and brand,
and we should be ambitious in seeking out
and pursuing these opportunities

There are many opportunities to Improve the productivity
of the business (see pages 24 to 27) and we should set
ambitious programmes of change and improvement.

However in delivering this agenda of change and growth
we need 10 manage the risks we are taking on effectively

* By thoroughly assessing the nisks of major contracts,
applying the best resources and our best expertise,
and hence putting In place mitiganon strategies which
will control the risks to a commercially acceptable level,

* By applying commeraial and financial discipline

and contrels 1o manage our growth portfolio, and

By applying effective programme and project

management to our change agenda




Principat risks

Link to Strategic Priorities

A8

Transform our cufture through our people and values

4

Invest in organic growth and customer service

N
A
Make our orgamsation more productive

1

Actively manage our portioho and performance

1

Embed disciphned financial arxd nsk management

Key

N\ Increased sk

Reduced nsk

<> Na change

Health and Safety (H&S)

Risk descripuon

The prowision of integrated security
services often in hostle or dangerous
orcumstances across such a broad
diversity of countries presents
particular health and safety challenges
The protection of our stafl, pecple in
our care and third parties, including
the public, 1 of utmeost importance
We believe that accidents are
preventable and that ‘zero harm 'is
an appropiiate goal We put safety first
and priontise the wellbeing of our
employees, setting the benchmark for
health and safety across the industry

The principal health and safety risks
are work-related attacks and road
traffic accidents In 2014, 41 (2013 49)
employees lost their lives We are
committed to strengthening our
health and safety systems, processes
and cuftures

Fatalives and serious injuries to our
staff impact not only the individuals
concerned, but also their families and
loved cnes

Movement since 2013 O
We added Safety first as a core value for

ol i

the group We appointed a group head
of health and safety to prowide
leadership to our existing network of
health and safety professionals across the
group We have introduced an enhanced
MHealth and Safety (H&S)} management
system which has further developed our
capabilites and processes This has
included increasing the personal
responsibility borne by country Managing
Dhrectors for inaident reporting and
investigation of senous injunes, and an
enhanced safety leadership traming
course for senor management. We have
rolled out a road safety programme
called Drwing Force Rules and
strengthened governance around
firearms management

Mitgation prioriues for 2015
Compliance with our core H&S
standards will continue to be monitored
and perodically audited, with reviews
of performance at a regional, group and
board level via the CSR Committee
Management Incentrves are algned

to safety best practice Detaled
assessments of H&S practices n a
number of high-nsk countnes will be
undertaken, with implementation of the

resulting action plans being

personally monstered by the country or
business leader This Step Up’ iniiative
will be part of a broader program
encompassing the roll out of safety
leadership training to managers across
the group, as well as implementation of a
process whereby business leaders report
and take ownership for follow up close
out and sharing of lessons learnt for any
serious work-refated inadents VWe wall
continue to develop our road safety
toolkits, and the Service Excellence
Centres will continue to develop cur
mitigating strategies with regard to
attacks on our people Our Health and
Safety management system will be
augmented with the introduction of
toollats and templates to suppart
implementation in locat businesses, and
we will review the training for our H&S
practitioners across the group 10 ensure
they are equipped to implement these
enhanced procedures An enhanced IT
system for incident reporting will be
implemented and self-assessments of
H&S controt compliance will be
mtegrated into the nsk management and
audit [T system
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Principal risks continued

Culture and Values

Risk description

G45 provides secunty to people,
premuses and valuable assets In its

care and justice services businesses it
also prowides services which interact with
detainees, victims of crime, those on state
assistance, vulnerable people and other
members of the public This requires our
staff to conduct themselves with the
utmost integnity Ve operate n more
than | 10 countries around the world
with a diversity of locat and national
cultures These factors mean that having

a strong set of corporate values that unite
the organisation deeply embedded in
our cutture 15 of particufar mportance

If we fail to behave in accordance with the
high standards that we set ourselves, there
15 a rsk that we will not delver on our
commitment to custorners, and fall to
comply with legislabon and nternational
standards Ve may also compromise the
safety and secunty of our employees and
the assets or people that we are protecting

This ¢can lead to penalties, failure to
renew contracts and uftmately reduced
profitability and damage to our global
brand and reputabon

Movement since 2013

We have completed a corporate renewal
programme which has been assessed by
the UK government. The G45 values were
re-launched globally, with the addition of
the Safety First value and an emphasis on
delivering long-term sustatnable value for
customers, employees and shareholders

We have contnued to embed our
hurnan nghts framework, based on the
UN Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights, into the group's practices,
such as our nisk and compliance systems
and processes

Corporate governance has been
enhanced through the Enterpnse

Risk Management process and
introduction of Regional Risk and
Audit Committees Leadership training

People

Risk descripuon

We are a people business and we take
great care 16 ensure that we employ the
best people to deliver quality services
to our customers We employ 623,000
people world-wide, and are the largest
secunty solutions prowider In the world
This means we have expertise in
screening and training, which together
with our integrity and trustworthiness

15 an important factor in why customers
choose G45

In a global and diverse business such as
ours, there are inherent risks associated
with recrurting, motivating, developing

and traiming employees on a large scale,

as well as appropnately rewarding and
retaining our crucal talent and ensunng
effective succession n management roles
Screening 1s also a particular challenge in
some terntones which lack supporting
infrastructure from the relevant authortties
In these territones we idenufy alternative
measures which are approved by group
MR to mtigate this sk as much as possible

Falure to recrutt, retain, motvate and
develop key managers, sales
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A8

professionals and front line staff can
affect customer service, customer
retention and sales growth impacting
our financial performance

Movement since 2013 C

(G4S human resource processes are well
estabhshed and effective Dunng 2014 we
appointed a significant number of new
individuals to management positions in
regions and countries around the globe
This has included recrutment from a
range of high quality companies both
within and cutside the secunty sector, as
well as the promotion of internal talent
We have also invested sigrficantly in
strengthening our sales resource

In a low-margn, low-salary business there
will always be challenges n retaining staff,
and in particular we expenence this as a
challenge in Africa and Europe

Mitigauon prionties for 2015

On 1 july 2015 Irene Cowden will retire
as group HR Director She will be
succeeded by Jenn Myles, who since
201} has been the HR Director for
MNorth Amenca and Latin Amenca, having
been with G45 since 1998

=N

I]

has been undertaken, and
management performance incentives
explicrtly inked to all of the values
were implemented

Mitigaton priornities for 2015
On-line management training will be
implemented covering all of the G4S
values Demonstration of the values

wilt continue to be integral to
management performance cantracts in
2015 Improved whistleblowing processes
are also being mplemented

A values self-assessment programme

will benchmark managers’ views of
petformance versus the group values and
a global employee and management
survey being undertaken this year will
provide essential feedback on how the
values are working in practice: across

the organisation

In 2015 our management incentives

will be further reviewed to ensure they
are competitive motivational and drive
the right behaviour in ine with our values
and business objectives Common talent
review processes will be cascaded
throughout the organisation
supplemented by the introduction of
new leadersnip development programs
This will strengthen our succession plans
and support retention of key talent. To
help employee retention at alf levels of
the organisation, the global employee

and management surveys will be
undertaken in the first half of the year,
providing rich insight nto our employees’
opinions This will assist in identifying
prionity areas for action, which will be
implemented and tracked across the
remainder of the yearThe recrutment of
operational employees will be augmented
by shaning best practices across the group
and providing detalled guidance and
oversight 1o ensure appropriate screening
standards are met



Brand and Reputation

Risk descripuon

We provide our customers across the
world with a wide range of high quality,
well controlled services Nevertheless
the nature of the group's activities means
that we can face high inherent
reputational risks related 1o the
countries In which we operate, the
services we provide, the customers and
suppliers we work with, the people in
our care and our interactions with
members of the public with whom our
colleagues come into contact

Ouwr reputation can be damaged when
we fall to meet our own standards or
the expectations of our key stakeholder
groups Service fatures or behaviour

by G45 or its partners which dees not
meet those standards can result in
adverse publicity and damage to the
group's reputation

Movement since 2013~

In the UK, we have significantly improved
our relationship wrth central government
following some high-profile 1ssues which

were raised in 2013, and we have since
won new contracts Globally we have
implemented a process for reviewing all
business opportunities with regard to
our values and the reputational risks
they bring This enables us to make
appropriate decisions whether or not

to bid There were material oppertunities
during 2014 which we decided not to
bid for

On cccasion, services we provide meet
significant challenges which exceed

our reputational risk appetite, at which
paint we kaok for alternative options,
which may resuft in non-renewal of
existing contracts or disposal of

certain businesses

Mitigation priorities for 2015

We are embedding human nights due
dilgence processes and reputational
considerations into our systems for
evaluating new market entrnies or bidding
for new contracts We are also reviewing
and audrting our performance on human
rights In existing markets which are

Major contracts

Risk description

The group has a number of long term,
complex high-value contracts with
mufti-national, government or other
strategic customers The groups growth
strategy includes a greater focus on
higher value, and mare technology-rich
services Thus will increase the complexity
and urigueness of customer
requirements and contracts

For such contracts there are risks to

the group accepting onerous contractual
terms, mobilising contracts well,
transitoning effectively from mobilisation
10 on-going contract management,
delivering to contractual requirements,
and managing complex billing
arrangements, contract change control
and sub-contractors

Falure to ensure effective contract
take-on, mobilise successfully and
manage complex contracts effectively
throughout their ifecycles can impact
the groups labiliies, customer
satsfaction reputation, revenue,

cash flow, and profitability

Movement since 2013 s

We have established Group and
Regional Investment Committees

In the UK, we have implemented a major
contract approval process with oversight
from these committees, strengthened
the contract on-boarding process, and
rolled out a 360° contract review of all
aspects of our most significant contracts
A quarterly financial review of the top
200 contracts across the group has been
implemented Regional legal counsels

considered to be high nsk, Customer
satisfaction monstoring 15 being
implemented across the group

We are promoting G45 values and
communicating our desired behaviours
with colleagues across the group,
engaging proactively with ethical and
sustainability ratings agencies and
analysts, and increasing our dialogue
with customers on high profile contracts
and 1ssues We have invested in an
enhanced corporate media team to
develop relationships with and educate
commentators and journalists and are
implementing a programme of poliical
risk management and engagemenit to
continue to bulld relauonships with
politicians and regulators

We are also enhancing our
whistleblowing and case management
processes, to ensure that employees
can raise 1ssues of ethics to the highest
level of the arganisaion and to enable
us to identify trends and emerging
reputational rsks

and regional finance directors now
report directly to the group legal
counsel and group CFO providing
greater independence Group internal
audit has recruited a speaahst contracts
auditor to audit both ndvidual major
contracts and also the effectiveness

of the processes described above

Mitigation priorines for 2015

The new major contract approval and
360° contract review processes
implemented m the UK during 2014 will
start to be rolled out globally in 2015
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Principal risks continued

Delivery of core service lines

Risk description

We deliver our core secure solutions
services In 91 markets and our core
cash solutions services In 62 markets
A number of these businesses have
been acquired over time, resulting In
cultural differences, varying degrees of
operational maturity and multiple
infarmation systems

This can create risks arcund core
operational service delivery and
supperting functions Falure to meet
the service delivery requirements of
our customers, because we have not
implemented the rght soluttons or
followed appropriate agreed procedures
can create nisks around cash losses,
attacks on our staff subcontractors or
third parties, and the non-delivery of
the service level agreements and KPls
agreed with our customers

Addrticnal nsks relate to business
resilience, control systemns, and the
avallability of critical systems, facilities
and people to perform contractually
agreed services

Thus can lead to financal penalues
and negatively impact customer
retention and goodwill, to the
detniment of financial performance

Movement since 2013

GAS has continued to focus on
developing and censolidating

IT platforms, implementing the Service
Excellence Centre programmes

of standardisation, and drving and
monitoring contract formalisation
praocesses across our developing markets
We have recrured new chief operating
officers in a number of regrons and
countries to drive the operational
standards expected from our customers

Laws and Regulations

Risk descripuon

G45 operates :n many jurisdictions
globally, with complex and diverse
regulatory frameworks

An additional complexity anses from
the extraterritorial reach of some of
the fegislation to which the company
is subject

Risks include increasing htigation and
class actions, bribery and corruption,
falure to obtain operating licences,
non-compliance with local tax
regulations, changes to employment
legislation, non-compliance with human
rights legislation, and new or changed
restrictions on foreign ownership Risk
also arses from new or changing
regulations which require modification
of our processes and staff training

Non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations could have farreaching
consequences, including higher costs
from claims and Itigation inability to
operate in certain jurisdictions, either
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through direct ownership or joint
ventures, loss of management control,
damage to our reputation, and loss
of customer confidence

Movement since 2013 O

Our internal policies and procedures
clearly set cut that most of these risks,
including comphance with local laws and
regulations, are the direct responsibilty
of local management An Ethics Steering
Group has been formed to provide
oversight and support complhance with
the internal policies and procedures

to mitigate the risks Specifically,

whilst ownership of implementing
anti-bribery and corruption policies lies
with the business Managing Directors,
our legal communties have been
assigned comphance oversight with a
direct escalation route to the group legal
counsel Also, where group internal
audit has dentified non-complance,

for example with licensing and labour
regulations, these have been reported
and acted upon

Mitigation prionties for 2015
The G4S Way supports the best
practice processes and standards for
all aspects of service delivery with the
aim of improving service excellence
and margin

Develepment of our technology solutions
strategy and nnovation In cash services
will pronde added value to our
customers QOur nsk management is being
improved by integrating the Service
Excellence Centre operational standards
inte our Governance, Risk and Control
tool This 1s supported by the continued
implementation of our Service Excellence
Centre standards through an Accelerated
Best Practice programme

A programme of customer satisfaction
monitoring Is being implemented
across the group

Mitigation priorities for 2015

The Ethtcs Steering Group will
strengthen us effort 1o provide
comphance with internal policies

and procedures and we are introducing
new systems and processes for
whistleblowing and incident
management We will be implementing
a process for political risk management
to ensure that we are monitoring
regulatory and other emerging poliucal
risks wathin our key markets This process
will be supported by a programme

to enhance our engagement with
regulators, politicians and political
influencers across the group

GA4S continues to llaise wath relevant
governments and authonties to
positively influence the regulatory
environments in which we work




Growth strategy

Risk description

Our growth strategy 1s to leverage

our expertise to expand our core
service lines into more complex
cutsourcing areas which increase
long-term customer partnerships, to
focus on organic growth opportunities
with less reliance on acquisitions and
to leverage our expertise in security
systems technelogy across key markets

There are risks that we will lose
contracts or growth opportunities
through price competition and market
changes, that we fail to successfully enter
target markets or terntories, that we
become over-reliant on large customers,
and that adverse government legislation
changes could impact on eur grawth
potential or force exit from markets

and territories

Failing to create higher value

solutions that differentiate us from
local commoditised competritors could
impact targeted growth n revenues
and margins

Movement since 2013

We appointed Mel Brooks as group
strategy and commercial director and
developed and enhanced the leadership
and capacity of the regional commergal
and strategy teams We have
implemented a global account
management structure and established
an ‘outbound programme for working
with Chinese and North American
multinational clients We have been
innovating and developing our core
service lines through the application of
technolegy and consulting services The
major elements of the growth strategy
have been allocated to specific members
of the group executive commitiee to
ensure integrated ownership

Geo-political

Risk description

We operate 1n more than 110 countries
across the developed and developing
world with wide-ranging government
and political systems differing culturat
landscapes, and varying degrees of rule
of law, and within conflict and post-
conflict zones The risk factors range
from political volatilsty, revolution,
terranism, military intervention and
insurgency The geo-political risks we
face impact us in many ways the health
and safety of our stafl and customers,
the continued operation of our
businesses, and the ability to secure
our assets and recover our profits

Movement since 2013 ~

We percelve the inherent external
threat to have increased in the last

year given the backdrop of an increased
global terror threat the seizure of
terriary by Islamic State, tensions n
Ukraine, and potential increase in
pelitical instability and the risk of cvil
unrest in parts of Africa Europe and
Latin America Given the wide range of
countries in which the group operates
there will always be some with a degree
of serious political Instabiity We take
great care with our operations in these
countries to monitor the situatton closely
and respond appropriately

Mitigation priorities for 2015

We are making significant investments

N our sales and business development
systems and capabiities We are
developing cur customer relationship
management tacls as well as our
approach to global account managerment.
We are taking a more rigorous approach
in the monthly regional pipeline reviews
and instilling improved contract pipeline
management discipines

Mitigation priorties for 2015

We have a great deal of experience

of operating In a wide range of difficult
territories We collaborate with our local
partners and/or agents, conduct early
risk assessmenits before and during
secunty assignments, have robust
operating procedures, and work closely
with our local and global customers in
managing the rnisks of operating in such
environments We have a global process
for assessing the gecpolitical nisks of
different countries which determines the
types of customers we will serve and
the types of services we will provide
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Principal risks contnued

Information Security

Risk description

The clents, staff, supphers and partners
of G45 that entrust their sensitive and
confidential business information into
our care nghtly expect that we will take
all reascnable steps to protect it

Given the high-profile nature of some
of G4S operations globally, we are at
nsk of cyber and physical attack by
criminal orgarisations and indvidual
hackers There is also the risk that an
indvidual with legitimate access to
business information could disclose it
inappropriately, or that an insider could
disrupt the avaifability of key systems

An information security breach could
result in censure and fines by national
governments loss of confidence in the
G4S brand and reputation, specific koss
of trust by clients, especially those in
government and financial sectors,

and disruption to service delivery

and integrity, particufarly in cash solutions
business operattons

Movement since 2013 ~

The sophistication of hackers continues
to increase and we see a broad range

of other corporates coming under attack.
Given the high profile G4S has, and the
nature of our business, we believe the
threat of external attack has increased
over the year

G4S constantly monitors attacks agairist
Its systems and takes steps 1o safeguard
business information entrusted to us A
rew set of Mandatory Minimum Securtty
Controls have been developed and we
have assessed each of our businesses’
compliance to these standards,
developing plans where improvements
need to be made Additienally we have
assessed the aperational level security
of over 600 systems, capturing a nsk
assessment of each system in ine with
our group standards

Additionally a group IT Auditor was
appointed o provide independent
assurance of our Mandatory
Mirimum Security Controls and
Systems Risk Assessments

Cash losses

Risk description

We have cash solutions businesses
spread across the world responsible for
cash held on behalf of our customers
We provide cash transportation from
one site to another in high-securty
vehicles, a range of cash management
services Including secure storage,
counting, reconciliation and sorting of
notes for ATMs, a range of ATM services,
and secure international transportation
of cash and valuables

There are inherent risks In this business
related 1o external attacks, internal theft
and poor cash reconciiation

Cash losses can have a major impact

for our customers and ourselves in
respect af less of profit, ncreased cost

of insurance and health and safety
considerations for our staff and the public

Movement since 2013 O
Through the work of the Service
Excellence Centres (SECs) working with

the regions, improvements have been
made to processes and systerns in many
of our cash sclutions businesses over the
course of 2014 Responsibility for auditing
cash reconciliation in cur cash processing
centres has been transferred from the
cash solutions SEC to group Internal Audit

Mitigavion priorities for 2015

Our cash solutions SEC and group
Internal Audit work in cotlaboration
with the regions to embed robust
procedures into every cash business to
mitigate cash losses Innovative security
defence products are in use, ranging
from pavement box tracking to vehicle
protection foam and protective
pavement boxes

All cash transactions are subject to strict
authorisation himits and we have
controlled cash reconciliation procedures
that are undergoing implementation
across the group to ensure cash s fully
accounted for and controlled Those
procedures are subject to audits and a
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Mitigation prioriues for 2015

G4S will continue to manage risks

to information by integrating the
information risk framework with the
global nsk framework, and will ensure
that nisks above the risk appetite are
appropriately managed The GA4S

global information security centre of
excellence will develop best practice m
coordination with regional and business
unit committees, through the publication
of policy and the identfication of risk
with appropriate mitgation strategies

We will be smplementing new
monitonng and compliance systems
throughout 2015 to increase our
controls over the unstructured
inforrmation assets held on camputers,
file systems and emait

new system will be implemented in

2015 for businesses 1o conduct |
self-assessments twice a year

The outcome will be controlled certrally
at group level In 2015, we will be
waorking to harmonise the standards of
cash reconaliation audits with those of
group Internal Audit We alsoc have a
robust process to monitor all cash-
related loss incidents through a team of
physical secunty specialists and we
ensure that lessons learned are shared
through the SEC

Following a reorganisation at the end of
2014, during 2015 GA4S will be
integrating ts UK & Ireland and
European cash solutions businesses
under the leadership of Graham '
Levinsohn As weil as strengthenng our

go-to market offering this will also

enable enhanced development of best

practice, which will be transmitted via

the cash SEC to our cash solutions

businesses in the rest of the world




Chairman’s introduction

IMAGE REMOVED

John Connolly
Chairman

Committed to
good governance

“Ensuring that good governance is achieved throughout G45
is vital for the delivery of long term sustainable value for
shareholders and for afl the group’s stakeholders It 1s important
therefore that the right tone 1s set by the board and the way it
operates It s equally important that strong governance
framewaorks are applied throughout the group”

This report explains how the G4S group 15 governed

by setting out the details of the work of the board over
the last year and the processes adopted by the board

It also describes some of the mechamsms by which the
board satisfies itself that adequate controls are mantained
throughout the group

In a group as large and diverse as ours, it 1S iImportant

to ensure that strong controls are in place and that there
are adequate processes to ensure those controis are
mplemented At the same time we are aware of the
need to allow our business to develop and, most
importantly to concentrate cn meeting the needs of
our customers The board 15 conscious of the importance
of maintaining the nght balance

After a period of considerable change in the recent past,
2014 was a year of stability and consclidation for the
board in terms of membership and indeed the frequency
with which the board met As the new members of the
board have learned more about the business and
relauonships between board members have developed
and strengthened, the board has become more effective
at providing an erwironment for constructive challenge
and debate It 1s my expectation that the work of the
board will concentrate more on business as usual after
the challenges of the past couple of years, but we will not
lose sight of the need for the board — and for the entire
group — to mantain the highest governance standards

John Connolly
Chairman

In this section

Board of directors 54
Executive committee 56
Corporate governance report 58
Audit Committee report &7
Directors’ remuneration report 72
Directors' report 87
Directors’ responsibilities 90

Board highlights 2014

« Concluded an investigation by external lawyers on the boards
behalf into events surrounding the group’s electromic rmontoring
contract with the UK Ministry of justice (Mo]) and agreed a financial
seftlement with the Mo

Conducted visits to three business sites in the UK

Recewed in-depth presentations on the UK & Ireland and Europe
regions, the groups technology and [T strategy, service excellence
centres and risk management processes

Conducted a review of the group's strategy

Agreed to recommend a change of external auditor

Approved a new £ibn revolving credt finance facility

Focused on the heakth and safety of employees

Commissioned a review of its own performance

-

IMAGE REMOVED
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Board of directors

Jehn Connolly
Non-executive
TMAGE director/Chairman

REMOVED of the board

IN TR
Jjune 2012

Key strengths and expenence Developing
the board and its governance of the group
Extensive experience of working in a
global business environment and in sectors
of strategic )Importance to the group

A chartered accountant, John spent tus
career until May 201 | wath global
professional services firm Delortte

was Glabal Chairman between 2007

and 2011, and pnor to that Global
Managing Director between 2003 and
2007 He was Senior Partner and CEQ

of the UK partnership from 1999 unul his
retirement from the firm

Current external cormmitments Chairman
of Amec Foster Wheeler plc and of a
number of private companies Beyond
commercal business roles he is on the
Board of Governcrs of London Business
School charman of the Board of Trustees
of Great Ormond Street Hospital Chanity
and a member of the CBI President's
Adwisory Council

Mark Elliott
Non-executive
director/Senior
independent director

DO
September 2006

Key strengths and expenence Extensive
international board and executive
experience having held a number of senior
management positions at IBM, including
leadership of [BM's operations n Europe,
the Middte East and Africa with responsibility
for operaticns n more than |10 countries
General Manager 1BM Global Solutions,
Managing Director of IBM Europe, Middle
East and Africa, member of the board

of IBAX, a hospital software company

jointly owned by IBM and Baxter Healthcare,
formerly chairman of Reed Elsevier's
remuneration committee and chairman

of the Dean's Advisory Council of the Kelly
Schoot of Business, Indiana Universiy

IMAGE
REMOVED

Current external commutments Non-executive
charman of QinetiQ Group plc and
chairman of Kodak Alars Holdings Limited

Ashley Almanza
Executive director/
IMAGE Chief executive

REMOVED R

May 2013

Key strengths and experience Extensive
board and executive management
experience and strong track record
working across International borders in
complex businesses Held a number of
semior executive roles at BG Group

fram 1993 to 2012, including Chief

Financial Officer from 2002 to 2011 and
Executive Vice President from 2009 to 2012
As Executive Vice President he was
accountable during 2009 and 2010 for the
strategic and operational management of BG
Group's UK European and Central Asian
businesses He also led a consortium of
global companies through complex
government negotiations in Central Asia

He holds an MBA from London Business
Schoot and was previcusly Chairman of
the 100 Group of Finance Directors

Current external commitments Non-executive
director of Schroders ple and Noble
Corporation, but will step down from the
board of Noble Corporation in the near
future Board member of the Ligue
Internationale des Societés de Survellance

Grahame Gibson
Execunive director

IMAGE
REMOVED

April 2005

Key strengths and expenence Extensive
knowtedge of the group and rts predecessor
companies in many different markets and

in a number of executive functions Joined
Group 4 in 1983, starung as finance director
(UK) followed by a number of senior roles,
including deputy managing director (UK),
vice president {(corporate strategy),

vice president (finance and administration)
vice president operations {central and south
eastern Europe and UK} and chief operating
officer of Group 4 Falck A/S He was the
group's regional CEC for the Amencas unil
Novermber 2014 and was chief operating
officer between 2005 and 2012 Will retire
from the board at the conclusion of

the 2015 AGM

Current external commitments Board
member of the Ligue Internationale
des Societes de Survellance
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Adam Crozier
Non-executive

IMAGE director

REMOVED (A I

January 2013

Key strengths and experience Wide-ranging
experience of business transformation in

a number of public and private sector
organisations in the media, logistics and
retal sectors and a serving FTSE 100 CEO

Started his career with Mars before josning
the Daily Telegraph followed by Saatch
and Saatchi where he became joint chief
executive He then became chief executive
of the Football Association and was
subsequently appointed chief executive

of the Royal Mall Group where he oversaw
an extensive programme of modernisation
and change to enable the business to
compete in the UK and international
marketplaces Since Aprit 2010 he has
been chief executive of ITV plc

Current external commitments
Chief executive of ITV plc

Winme KinWah

Fok
IMAGE Non-executive
REMOVED gegr
October 2010

Key strengths and expertence Internatonal
board and senior management experience
with extensive knowledge of Asian markets
and strong involvement in Scandinavia.

Takes a particular interest in the group’s
businesses in Asia

An auditor by traiming, was involved in
management posrtions in finance, audit

and corporate adwvisory work and a wide
range of roles in asset management firms
Investing with a focus In Asia Senor partner
of EQT and CEO of EQT Partners Asia
Limited, managing director of CEF New
Asia Partners Limited

Current external commitrments Senior
adviser to Wallenberg Foundations AB,
non-executive director of Voivo Car
Corporation, non-executive director of

SEB AB, Kemira Oy and HOPU Investments
Co Ltd




Htmanshu Raja
Executive director/

MAGE Cﬁr:tef financial
REMOVED officer
Qctober 2013

Key strengths and experience Strong track
record as a financial executive in global
services businesses

As well as having responsibility for all core
finance functions iIncluding tax audt, treasury
and investor relations, Himanshu oversees
the IT, procurement and Service Excellence
Centres for G4S globally

Prior to joining G45, Himanshu was CFO

at Misys, and from 2010 to 2012 he was
CFO of Logica pic Himanshu worked for
more than 10 years at BT Group ina
number of dwsional finance director roles
ncluding Chief Financial Officer of BT
Global Services, BT Design, BT Operate
and BT Wholesale His early career included
finance and systems roles at Worldcom
Internanonal, JUNET and MFS

Himanshu 1s a qualified chartered
accountant and holds an henours degree
N law

Current external commitments. None

Clare
Spotuswoode

IMAGE Non-executive
REMOVED director
June 2010

Key strengths and expertence Considerable
experience in the public sector, the energy
markets and the financal services sector
as well as setting up and managing her
own businesses A mathematician and
economist by training, worked for the

UK Treasury, director general of Ofgas

the UK gas regulator, policyholder advocate
for Norwich Union's with-profits
policyholders at Aviva and a member of
the [ndependent Commission on Banking
and the Future of Banking Commuission

Current external commuments Chairrman
of Gas Strategies Group and Flow Group,
nan-executive director of llika plc, Enquest
plc Partnership Assurance Group plc,
Seven Energy International Limited and
BW Offshore Limrted, and independent
director of the Payments Council

Mark Seligman
Non-executive
director/Deputy
chairman

d

January 2006

IMAGE
REMOVED

Key strengths and expenence Extensive
financial and management experience
having worked in the finangial services
sector with a focus on investment banking
Takes particular interest in the financial
performance af the company, including 1ts
financing and transactional acivity Qualified
as a chartered accountant with Price
Waterhouse Semior roles at 5G Warburg
& Co Ltd and Barclays de Zoete Wedd
Head of UK Investment Banking at CSFB
Charman of UK tnvestment Banking at
Credtt Suisse, member of the Credit Suisse
Global Investment Banking Executive Board
and senior adviser to Credit Suisse Europe
Will retire from the board at the conclusion
of the 2015 AGM

Current external commitments Alternate
member of the Panel on Takeovers and
Mergers, member of the Regional Growth
Fund Adwvisory Panel, non-executive
director and audit comnmitiee chairman
for BG Group plc, and senior independent
director of Kingfisher ple

Tim Weller
Non-executive
IMAGE director
REMOVED o @

April 2013

Key strengths and expertence Significant
experience of the energy and utlities sectors
and serving FTSE 250 CFO An accountant
by training, jotned KPMG in 1985, nsing to
partrership in 1997 before joining Granada
plc as direcior of financial control Between
2002 and 2010, he ganed significant further
experience in the energy and utdities sectors
holding CFO positions with Innogy {one af
the UK’s leading integrated energy
compantes at the time), RWE Thames Water
(the world's third largest water and
wastewater service company) and Unrted
Utitities Group PLC (a UK-based water and
wastewater service company} He was

Chief Finanaial Officer of Cable & Wireless
Worldwide plc between 2010 and 201 |

Current external commuitments CFO of
Petrofac Limuted the international ol and
gas service provider and a non-executive
director of the Carbon Trust

Paul Spence
Non-executive
IMAGE director
REMOVED 'A XC JRi)

January 2013

Key strengths and expenence In-depth
knowledge of outsourcing in both the
public and pnivate sectors and extensive
international expenence in key developing
countries such as India, China and Brazil

A graduate of the Wharton School at the
University of Pennsylvania with a degree in
economics and decision sciences served a
30-year career with Capgermint and 1ts
predecessors Having started in the US
and become managing partner of mid-
Atlantic smformation and technology for
Emst & Young he went on to gain significant
Iinternational experience for |6 years as
managing pariner of Ernst & Young
Consulting Austraha, CEQ of Capgermini
Ernst & Young in Asia and CEO Capgemini
Ernst & Young UK. He then spent eight years
serving on Capgemini’s executive
management committee during which
tme his roles included deputy group
CEQ and CEQO of Capgermini Global
Outsourang Services

Current external commitments None

Key to committee membership
8 Nominauon
Remuneration
8 Audit
CSR

@ Risk
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Executive committee

Ashley Almanza
Executive director/
IMAGE Chief executve

REMOVED

See page 52 for
full biography

Our executive team
(45 15 managed through a
functional and regional structure

~

Our structure enables us to deliver
our strategic objectives, maintain

a strong governance framework,
develop integrated solutions, target
key regional markets and build
customer relationships

Mel Brooks
Group strategy
IMAGE & commercial
REMOVED director

Mel became group strategy and
commercial director i july 2014,
responsible for ensuring that the group

has robust strategy and planning processes,
a technology strategy and high quality sales
operations and bidding resources across
the organisation

Mel's previous role within G45 was regional
strategy director for the Asia Middle East
region and CEQO for G45 India where he
tead the transformation of the businesses,
focusing on key customer segments and
Improving customer service

Prior to joining G45 Mel held a number
of sentor line and functional roles in the
defence and technology industry where
he was responsible for service line and
commercial strategies, technology
development and leadership of a number
of business unit turnaround programmes

Marun Alvarez
Regional president,
IMAGE Latn America &

REMOVED Carnibbean

Martin joined G4S as Regional President,
Latin Amenca and Canbbean for G45
Amencas in 2013

Martin has extensive expenence working In
the region and a wealth of expenence in
strategic commercial and operational roles
Martin joined G45 from Dell, where he
served eight years as executive director

of mulu-country Latin America (MCLA),
responsible for 38 countries, mare than

US ! billon in revenue and the Amencas
|Shared Service Centre with over 3000
employees Prior to Dell, Martin spent 10
years with DHL holding varicus management
and leadership roles including vice president,
DHL Mexico and General Manager for
several other countries in the region

Martin has an MBA from IESE in
Barcelona and a Bachelor's degree in
International Trade and Finance from
Louisiana State University

Irene Cowden
Group HR director

IMAGE
REMOVED

Irene has spent her career in HR
management, specialising In employee
relations, organisational development
talent management employee engagement,
compensation and health and

safety matters

She has been involved in major change
projects including the cultural and
integration aspects of mergers and
acquisitions, as well as large scale
organisational change involving workforce
restructuring and working in partnershg
with major trade unions

Irene has worked in the security ndustry
for 37 years and has held director level
positions at bustness unit, divisional and
corporate level She was appointed to the
board of Secunicor ple n 2002 as group
HR. director She will retire from the group
executive in June 2015

Irene 15 a Feflow of the Chartered Insttute
of Personnel and Development (FCIPD)
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Andy Baker
Regional president
IMAGE — Africa
REMOVED

Andy joined G45 as Reglonal President
for G4S Afncain 2012

Andy has wide ranging expenence of
managing and buillding sustainable
businesses across Alrica, with a strong
ernphasis on technology and logistics

Andy jomned G45 from Nashua Group,
the second largest ICT business in South
Africa, where he was Group Chief
Executive Officer

Prior to this, Andy spent four years as group
chief operating officer of Altech, a JSE listed
technology group with revenues of US

%1 2bn and operations in 15 countries
Andy also spent |3 years at DHL as
regional MD of Southern Africa and Turkey

Andy holds an MBA from
Cranfield University

John Kenning

Regional CEOQ
IMAGE for MNorth America

REMOQVED & technology

John joined G4S in November 2014 to
lead the diverse range of services the
North America businesses prowvide such
as consultng, Investigations, security,
technology and youth services solutions
across multiple private and public sectors

lohn has a proven track record feading
global organisations Prior to joining

G453, john was executive vice president
and president, commercial business for
OfficeMax where he led the global
business-to-business {B2B) division

John was formerly president, North
America commeraal for ADT/Tyco Security
Services, where he ted the transformation
of the business to a technology services
leader and also led the separation of

the restdential and commeraial secunity
businesses in North America

John 1s a board member for Miami
University Advisory Athletic Beard and
past board member of the Make-a-Wish
Foundation John holds a bachelor's degree
n business from Miami University




Graham

Levinschn
IMAGE Regional CEQ
REMOVED — Europe

Graham became Regional CEQ - Europe
in November 2013 Graham has more than
20 years’ experience In the security industry,
having joined Secuncor Cash Services in
1994 as general manager — marketing

Since then, Graham has held a number of
commercial and line management posiions
in both the cash and security lines of the
business Graham was responsible for the
creation of the UK cash centres outsourcing
business in 2001 as managing director,
before moving on to become dvisional
managing director for G45 Cash Services
UK, and then regional president ~ Nordics
He became group strategy and
development director in 2008 and jomed
the executive committee in 2010

Graham s a fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing and a director
of COESS, ESTA and member of the Ligue
Internationale des Societés de Surveillance

Seren Lundsberg-

Nielsen
IMAGE Group general
REMOVED counsel

Seren began hus career as a lawyer in
Denmark and since 1984 he has had a wide
range of legal experience as general counsel
for international groups in Denmark,
Belgiumn and the US before joiming Group 4
Falck in 2001 as Group General Counsel

Seren has been involved In a wide range
of successful mergers and acquisitions
during his career; Inclucing the acquisition
of Wackenhut and the Group 4 Falck
merger with Securicor

Seren has overall responsibility for all
internal and external legal services for G45
as well as the group’s insurance programme

Seren s a member of the Danish Bar and
Law Society a member of the advisory
board of the Danish UK Chamber of
Commerce and author of the book
Executive Management Contracts, published
in Denmark.

Himanshu Raja
Group chief
financial officer

IMAGE
REMOVED

See page 53 for
full biography

Dan Ryan
Regional CEQ
IMAGE —Asia Middle East
REMCOVED

Dan joined GA4S in August 2010, frem
glabal logistics and transportation company
Neptune Orient Lines (NOL), where he
was a member of the group executive team
and held a number of senior management
positions including regional president roles
for Greater China, Middle East and Europe
dunng his 20-year career there In his last
posizion with the group, Dan led the project
to review, redesign and transform NOL's
organisation across all ts Amenicas dwistons

Dan 1s a charter member of the Middle
East Logistics/Supply Chatn Management
Forum, Hong Kong Liner Shipping
Association and the Amencan Chamber

of Commerce — Shanghai He holds an
MBA. from the University of Notre Damne
in Indiana and a BS Finance, from California
State University, Sacramento

Peter Neden
Regronal president
- UK & Ireland

IMAGE
REMOVED

Peter became Regional President of UK
& Irefand 1n January 2015 following his
appomntrment on an intenim basis n May
2014 Peter was previously Regional
managing director of G45 Outsouraing
Services for the UK & Ireland region

Previous roles included responsibility

for the business development programme
within G45 in the UK and Africa regions
as well as a number of senior positions

in both the commeraial and government
businesses across the group

Prior to the merger between Group 4
Falck and Securicor Peter was Securicors
development director, having joined the
company in 2001 Peter's early career
ncluded a number of sales, marketing and
general management roles within Centnica

Peter has a degree in economics from the

University of Nottingham
Debbie Walker
Group
IMAGE communications
REMOQVED director

Debbie 15 group communications
director, heading the corporate
communications team which focuses on
the group's key audiences — media,
government, employees and customers
Debbie 15 also responsible for the group's
CSR and human nghits strategies

Prior to the merger between Group 4
Falck and Secuncor, Debbie held a number
of senior marketing and communications

roles within the Securicor group from
1993 1o 2004

Debbie 1s also vice chairman of the

CBI South East Regional Council

(the representative body for all CBI
member companies based in the South
East of England and the Thames Valiey),
having previously served as chairman for
two years
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Corporate governance report

Our governance framework

The board leads the group's governance framework,

setting broad strategic targets, monitonng progress approving

proposed actions and ensuring appropriate controls are In
place and operating effectively

Management decisions, development of strategies and
policies and implementation of board decisions fall to the
group executive committee

Regional management teams have responsibility for businesses
within their regions and are tasked with smplementing policies

and controls at business unit level, as well as ensunng they
meet agreed financial and nen-financial goals

The presence of a majority of ndependent non-executrve
directors on the board ensures objectiity, challenge and
debate It 15 the primary responsibility of the board to
provide effective leadership for the group and this 1s dene
by, amongst other things, ensuring that decision making 1s
conducted throughout the group within a strong internal
controf framework — and by setting values and standards

There 1s a detaied schedule of matters which are reserved
to the decision of the board

Governance structure

These matters fall under |12 categories

Strategy and management

Structure and capital

Financial reporting and controls

Risk and nternal controls

Contracts

Communication

Board membership and other appointments
Remuneration

Delegation of authority

Corporate governance matters

Policies

Gther matters - such as setthng material liigation making
majcer changes to the group s penston scheme rules and the
appointment of group adviscrs

By way of example, board approval is required for unbudgeted
capital projects of more than £10m, entering into a sales
contract where annual revenue 15 anticipated to be more than
£50m, any changes to the group s capital structure, and the
annual operating and capital expenditure budgets

The board fulfils a number of s mest iImportant functions
through its committees The work of these committees 15
described below in this report The terms of reference of
each of the committees are avalable on the company's
website at www gds com

.

Remuneration
Committee

See pages 70-B4

Committee

See page 62

Risk
Committee

Audit
Committee

Nomination
Committee

I See pages 63 64 I

I See pages 65 69—l

ISee page 61 —l

Group Executive Committee

Investment Executive Risk
Committee Committee

T
H
H

Regional
Risk & Audit
Committees

T

Regional
Executives
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Board balance

Board composition

As at the date of this report, the board comprises | members
the non-executive chairman (John Connolly), seven other
non-executive directors and three executve directors The board
constders all the non-executive directors to be independent

The names of the directors serving as at 31 December 2014
and their biographical details are set out on pages 52 and 53
All the directors served throughaut the year Grahame Gibsen
one of the executive directors, and Mark Sefigman, the non-
executive deputy chairman, will retire from the board at the
conclusion of the company's 2015 Annual General Meeting

The Nomnation Committee is engaged In a process 10 recrug
a new non-executive director

Induction, infermation and professional development

A tallored induction 1s provided to new directors joining the beard
In the case of non-executive directers, this includes spending time
with the executive directors and other senior executives to
understand the business, its structure and pecple, as well as the
company's strategy and financial performance Induction also
provides details of the group’s governance policies and structure
and nisk management framework

To buitd on the induction programme, directors recewve further
briefings both to help in their own development and also to
enhance their awareness of the different elements of the business
Briefings are provided to all board members on legal, governance
compliance and reporting developments and to those members
of board committees on matters which are refevant to their work
on the committees In question

In additicn, non-executive directors are encouraged to learn about
the group’s business and to meet employees and management
through site visits, attendance at group and regional conferences

In 2014, non-executive directors vistted a cash centre, an adult
prison and a youth training centre operated by the group and
attended part of the group management conference

Board balance

John Connolly, Adam
Crozier, Mark Elliott,
Winnie Fok, Mark

8 Seligrnan, Paul Spence,
Clare Spottiswoode,

Non-Executive
directors

Tim Weller
Executive Ashley Almanza,
directors Grahame Gibson,
3 Himanshu Raja

IMAGE REMOVED

Board performance review

In 2014 Lintstock Limited conducted a performance review for the
board The review involved detalled self-assessment questionnarres
being completed by board members and regular board committee
attendees, as welt as ndividual interviews with each director and the
company secretary The resulting report was considered by the
board when it reviewed its own performance and informed its
planning for the board's priorties in 2015 Lintstock also reviewed
the performance of each of the board committees, which i turn
considered the resulting reports when reviewing their performance

As part of its review process, Lintstock also reported on the
performance of each of the directors and separately on that of

the chairman The individual directcr reviews were used as the basis
for the chairman’s individual discussion with each of the directors
about their performance and any traning and development needs
The report on the chairman was used to (inform the discussion
about the chairman which was conducted by the senior
independent director without the chairman being present

Lintsteck has no connection with the company other than
evaluating the board and its committees’ performance

2015 primary board objectives \

Following consideration of Lintstock's report on the board's
performance, and after consideration of pronties chosen

by the board and the strategy adopted by the company,

the board has agreed a set of primary objectives for its work
in 2015, which wall include

* Rewewing progress on strategy execution and a range

of business improvermnent programmes approved by

the board

Monrtoring the performance of the wider leadership team
Addressing the new requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Increasing focus on people in terms of succession planning
for the semor executives, emplayee satisfaction and
management development

* Mamntaining emphasis on risk management

» Gaining greater understanding of markets and competitors
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Corporate governance report continued

Director re-election

The company's articles of association require that all
continuing directors are subject to electon by shareholders
at the next Annual General Meeting following their
appointment and that they submit themselves for re-election
at feast every three years and that at least one-third of the
directors not standing for election for the first time stand for
re-election at each annual general meeting However in
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
provision on re-election of directors, all the continuing
directors stand for re-election every year

Conflicts authorisation

Each of the directors has disclosed to the board any
situations which apply to them as a resuft of which they
have or may have an interest which conflicts or may conflict
with the interests of the company In accordance with the
company’s articles of association, the board has authorised
such matters The affected directors did not vote when their
own interesis were considered Where the board deemed
i’ appropriate, such authonisation was given subject to certan
conditions The board reviews such matters on

a regular basis

Diversity

With operations in over | 10 countries, the group operates in

very diverse communibies and its workforce reflects that diversity
In terms of its mix of gender, age, race, religion, nationality, language,
background and experience The board recognises that the group
benefits greatly from this diversity and needs to continue to
promote It n order to help create an organisation which attracts,
supports and promaotes the broadest range of talent This allows
indrviduals to reach their full potential and the group to provide the
best service 1o its customers Diversity is a consideration that forms
part of any new recruitment for, and appointment to, the board
Although appointments will always be made on ment, the
Nomination Cormmittee and the board recognise that the board
performs better when its members are from varying backgrounds
and possess dfferent experiences and perspectives Diversity waill
therefare continue to be a key consideration when contemplating
the composrtion and refreshing of the board and sermor
management, akhough the board has no specific targets in

relation to diversity including gender
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Relations with shareholders

The company actively seeks to engage with shareholders
and during 2014, senior management had contact via
one-on-one meetings, group meetings and telephone
conference calls with shareholders representing over
80% of the share register across over |50 institutions

In November, the chief executive and chief financial
officer provided a caprtal markets update via a webcast,
which 13 avallable on the company’s website Additional
meetings are held after the preliminary and half-year
results are announced

The chairman met with major shareholders as part of

a general governance road show The chair of the CSR
Committee Clare Spottiswoode, and relevant senior
executives met with a group of scaally responsible
investors in June 2014, updating them on the group's
corporate responsibility programme Tim Weller in his
capacrty as chair of the Audit Committee, consulied major
shareholders regarding the external audit tender As charir
of the Reruneration Committee, Mark Etliott engaged
with a number of shareholders and therr representatives
on remuneration 1ssues

It 15 intended that all the directors will attend and be
avaltable to answer questions at the company’s Annual
General Meeting which 1s an important opportunity for
communication between the board and shareholders,
particularly private shareholders At the Annual General
Meeting, the meeting 1s Informed of the number of proxy
votes cast and the same informaticn 1s published
subsequentiy en the company's website
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Board meetings and information flow

Seven board meetings were held during the year ended

31 December 2014 One of these meetings was an extended
two-day board and strategy session at which, in addition to normal
board business, the board and executive committee met and
reviewed the group strategy by region and by business ine, as well
as considering succession planning risk appetite, the technology
used by the group and the financial basis of the strategy

Prior to each board meeting, comprehensive papers are circulated
to the directors addressing not only the regular agenda tems on
which the executives will report, but also details of any matters
requinng approval or deasions, such as significant transactions or
events or important market 1ssues

At each meeting the board recerves reports from the chairman,

the chief executive, the chief finanaal officer and the company
secretary an HR and health and safety report and an investor
relations report, which includes summanies of analysts’ reviews and
any comments received from major shareholders since the previous
board meeting The board receves regular in-depth presentations
from regional management and from the management of business
uruts and the board makes wisits to business sites from tme to tirme
After meetings of the board committees, the respective charrmen
report to the board on the matters considered by each committee

Regular board dinners are held prier to board meetings which
provide an opportunity for the directors to discuss topics in an
informal environment cutside the more formal setting of the
beard meeting

After each board meeting the chairman holds meetings with
the non-executive directors without the executives being present

There are seven board meetings scheduled for the current
year, Including a two-day board and strategy meeting

Meeting attendance in 2014

Board
scheduled
Executive directors
Ashley Almanza (CEQ) 7
Himanshu Raja (CFO} 77
Grahame Gibson 617
Non-executive directors
lohn Connolly {chairman} 147
Mark Seligman (deputy chairman} "7
Mark Elliott (senior independent director) 77
Clare Spotuswoode 77
Winnte Fok 7
Paul Spence 717
Adam Crozier 6f7
Tim Weller 6/7

Fair, balanced and understandable
assessment

In relation to compliance with the Code, the board has given

consideration to whether the annual report and accounts, taken

as a whole 15 fair, balanced and understandable The preparation

of the annual report and accounts 1s coordinated by the finance

investor relations and company secretariat teams with group-wide '
support and nput from other areas of the business Comprehensive

reviews were undertaken at regular intervals throughout the i
process by senior management and other contributing personnel
within the group The statement required to be given by the
directors by Code provision C | | can be found on page 88 !

Risk management and internal control

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the groups |
systern of sk management and internal contral and for reviewng g
its effectiveness each year The system 15 designed to manage rather g !

than elimnate the nisk of fallure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst !
matertal misstatement or loss

The group s key risks are summansed in the princpal risks section
on pages 44 1o 50

The key features of the group's risk management process, which
was In place throughout the year under review, are

Senior executives In each business unit and region use a
common risk management framework to provide a profile
of those risks which may have an impact on the achievernent
of their business objectives

Each significant nsk 1s documented in the group’s nisk
management system, showing an overview of the risk, its owner
how the risk 1s managed, and any improvement actions Risk
appetite/tolerance 13 considered in the context of the residual
(after controls and rmitgation) risk with a particular focus on
“High" net risks To be categorised as "High” a risk must meet
at least one of the following criteria

— major impact on the achievement of the business strategy;
— sernious damage to business reputation,

— severe business disruption,

— impact of > 5% on operating profit or assets

+ The risk profiles ensure that internat audit reviews of the
adequacy, apphcation and effectiveness of nsk management
and internal controls are targeted on the key risks
* Risk management committees have been established at
regional and group level
* Risk and control self-evaluation exercises are undertaken for
each operating company, for most companies at least twice a year,
and updated nisk profiles are prepared Similar exercises are
undertaken as part of the integration process for all major
acquisittons The results of the company nsk evaluations are
assessed by the regional rsk management committees”
* Both the regional commuttees and the group executive risk
committee receive internal audit reports and regular reports 1
on risks They monitor the actions taken to manage risks 1
I
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The process 15 carred out under the overalt supervision of the
group executive risk committee, which comnpnises the group chief
financial officer, the group general counsel, the group
communications director, the group human resources director;

the group director risk and audit and the group head of nsk. The
group executive sk committee reports 1o the group executive and
to the Risk Caommittee of the board The process outlined above 1s
reviewed regularly by the board through its Risk Commitiee to
ensure Its robustness and surtability to meet the group’s needs

During 2015 the risk management improvement plan will focus on

* embedding the nsk management approach into businesses

across the group,

enhanoing the quality of mformation being provided by businesses,

managing the groups residual risk exposure,

* progress on implementation of mitigation action plans,

* new and emerging risks,

* rolling-out enhanced contract approval and contract review
processes for large contracts ploted in the UK region across
the rest of group

Further information about the Risk Committee, ris remit, work
during 2014 and 1its plans for 2015 can be found on pages 63-64

The internal control system includes clearly defined reporting hines
and authorisation procedures, a comprehensive budgeting and
monthly reporting system, and written polictes and procedures

In addiion to a wide range of internal audit reports, senior
management also receive assurance from other sources ncluding
securtty inspections, third party reviews, company financal control
reviews, external audit reports, summaries of whistleblowing actity,
fraud reports and risk and control self~evaluations

The group has in place robust internal cantrol and risk management
systemns for financial reporting The group has a single global
consolidation system which s used for both internal management
reporting, budgeting and planning as well as external reporting

The group has a comprehensive budgeting process with the budget
being approved by the board Forecasts for the year are reported
quarterly Actual results at business unit, region and group level are
reported monthly and vanances are reviewed A programme of
business internal financial reviews 1s performed by a finance team
from either region or group to check the accuracy of financial
reporting and comphance with the group finance manual

The Audit Committee undertakes a high-level review of risk
management and internal control each year As well as the above
processes and sources of assurance, the Audit Committee also
considers the following year end reporting i conducting this review
* Summary of internal audit work Including update on all open
audits with a deficent rating, analysis of resutts by region,
cornmon audit findings and areas identified for mprovement
in internal controls
= Summary of internal financial reviews including significant
accounting or financial control issues and common
concerns ident fied
= QOverview of year-end financial control status reports completed
by all businesses confirming adherence to group standards with
any exceptions reported
* A broad overview of the general risk management and internal
control systems in place dunng the year
* Review of nsk management processes and of the group’s
principal residual risks by the Risk Committee of the board
* External audit year end reporung on financial controls
and accounting

Further information about the Audit Committee, its remit, work
during 2014 and 1ts plans for 2015 can be found on page 65-69

The Audit Committee has confirmed that 1t 15 satisfied that

the group's nsk management and internal contro! processes and
procedures are approprate The board has reviewed the group’s
rsk management and internal control systemn for the year to

31 December 2014 by considering reports from the Audit
Committee and the Risk Committee and has taken account

of events since 3| Decernber 2014

G4S Government Solutions, Inc {' GSI } which was disposed of in Novernber
2014 was governed through a proxy agreement under which the group

was excluded from access to operational information therefore GSt was not
subject to the same nsk management process as is apphed 1o other group
companies | he board had however satisfied itsell as 10 the adequacy of the
internal control processes adopted by GSI which ncluded a risk review by an
external advisor

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The board's staterment on the company’s corporate governance performance 1s based on the September 2012 edition of the
UK Corporate Governance Code, which is avallable on the Financial Reporting Council's website (https /fwww frc org uk)

The Listing Rules require companies to disclose whether or not they have complied with all relevant provisions in the Code
and 10 report how the main principles in the Code have been applied by the company The Code recognises that alternatives to

following its provisions may be justified in particular arcumstances (f good governance can be achieved by cther means, provided
the reasons are explained clearly and carefully In such cases companies must also illustrate how their actuat practices are
consistent with the principle in question and contribute to good governance

The company complied throughout the year under review with the prowisions of the Code The Corporate governance
report, together with the Audit committee report and the Directors’ remuneration report, describe how the board has

applied these provisions
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The Nomination Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

“There have been no changes to the composrtion
of the beard or its committees during 2014
Nevertheless the committee has been active
to ensure that the membership of the board 15
appropnate and, where necessary, refreshed
Both Grahame Gibson and Mark Seligman will
leave the board in 2045 and this has meant that
the future composition of the board and rts
committees have been given careful consideration”

John Connolly
Nomination Committee Charrman

Meetings
Committee membership and attendance aitended
John Connolly (chairman) 3of3
Adam Crozier 3of3
Mark Eflott 3of3

Responsibilities

The Nomination Committee Is responsible for making
recommendations to the board on appointments and on
mantaining a balance of skills and experience on the board and

Its commuttees Succession planning for the board 1s a matter which
15 devolved primanly to the Nomination Committee, although the
committee’s delberations are reported to and debated by the full
board The board itself also reviews mare general succession
planning for the senior management of the group

The committee's terms of reference are avallable at
ww w g4s com/investors

Succession planning

The entire board has considered succession planning for the
senior management of the group 1n some detail during 2014 and,
in addition, the Nomination Committee gave further consideration
1o the succession plans for the maost sentor board roles

IMAGE REMOVED

Refreshing the board

After the changes to the board and the board committees made

In 2013, it was felt that no changes were requred dunng 2G4,

but the chairmanship of the Audit Committee passed to Tim Weller
followsng the AGM Mark Seligman wll retre from the board in
2015 and stood down from the Audit Committee at the end of
2014 The Nomination Commitiee has therefore begun a process
to seek a new non-executive director The specification for the ideal
candidate was drawn up after discussion by the full board and the
Nominaton Committee 1s being assisted by the external executive
search consultant, the Zygos Partnership Zygos has no other
connection with the company other than as provider of recruitment
consultancy services to the Nomination Committee

Grahame Gibson will also stand down from the board in 2015
but the board and the Nomination Comrmittee have agreed not to
seek a replacement executive director at this tme

A number of the serving non-executive directors’ terms of
appointment expired during 2014 and the committee
recommended to the board that such appointments be extended
after consideration of the directors’ independence commitment to
the role, their other comrnitments and the experience and qualities
they bring to the board When the directors concerned were also
members of the Nominatton Commuttee, they did not participate
In the committee’s deliberations

Diversity
The board’s approach to diversity 15 set out on page 58

Committee performance

The performance of the Nomination Commiitee was reviewed
as part of the exercise undertaken by Lintstock to assess the
performance of the board and each of its committees Whilst the
Nomination Committee’s performance was determined to have
been satisfactory, the review did idenufy additsonal 1ssues which it
could consider The committee has already begun to address
those 1ssues

Priorities for 2015

The comrittee’s primary speaific focus in 2015 will be the
recrurtment of a new non-executive director In more general terms
thaugh, it will continue to monitor carefully the need 1o refresh the
memberstup of the board and each of its committees and to ensure
that membership has an appropriate range of talents and
experience to fulfil their duties and to meet the needs of the group
and 1ts strategy over the medwm and longer term It will also ensure
that succession planning 15 given appropriate prioritisation
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The CSR Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

“We are aware that both the inherent nature
of the group’s actvity and the numerous and often
complex and challenging environments in which
operates has a potential impact on societies
Our task 1s to ensure that such impact 1s a positive
one The work of the committee focuses on health
and safety, business ethics and anti-bribery and
corruption and human rights to ensure 1t 15 clasely
aligned to the group’s values Good progress was
made n health and safety during the year with the
safety rules campaign which took place across the
group and road traffic awareness matenal made
avallable to all businesses However, oo many of
our colleagues still lose their lives to work-related
incidents, therefore health and safety remains a
priorty n 20457

Clare Spottuswoode
CSR Commuttee Chair

Meetings
Committee membership and attendance attended
Clare Spottiswoode (cha) 3of3
Winnie Kin Wah Fok 3of3
Paul Spence Jof3

Other regular attendees include Grahame Gibson, cne of the
executive directors of the board, the group communications
director and the group human resources director When Grahame
Gibson steps down fater in the year, Peter Neden, Regicnal
President for the UK and Ireland region and a member of the
group executive committee will succeed him as the regular
executive attendee at CSR Commitiee meetings Peter has already
attended one meeting in 2015

Responsibilities

The CSR Committee reviews and monirtors the group's CSR
strategy, which includes developing palicies on varcus CSR-related
matters for consideration by the board and reviewing the activities
of the executives who have responsibility for CSR matters The CSR
Committee also reviews and maniters how the group performs
against relevant pohcies The committee oversees reporting on CSR
matters and the company's separate CSR Report for 2014, which
provides more detall on the group’s CSR strategy and progress
made during the year, s avallable at www gds com Further details
of the committee’s responsibilities can be found in the committee's
terms of reference which are avallable at www gd4s com/investors
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As part of the CSR Committee's focus en health and safety during
the year the committee oversaw a number of initiatives such as the
rol-out of health and safety traning to the semior management
community and the Safety First campaign aimed at embedding

10 fundamental rules of safety in all businesses As part of its normal
cycle of work, the committee recerved six critical country reviews
{CCRs) duning the year CCRs provide important information to
serpor managerment and the committee and are an important tool
1o support those businesses where fatalities have occurred in
assessing their health and safety management, raising awareness and
sharing good practices The committee also reviewed the process
for and policy on sericus incident reporting and investigation

As part of the annual review of the group’s Business Ethics

Policy, the document which defines what the group considers are
acceptable and unacceptable business practices, the committee
reviewed and commented on proposed changes In addiion,

the committee oversaw the review of the whistleblowing policy and
practices in place across the group which resulted in a number of
changes being made to better align it with the principles of the
“Whistleblowing Commussion’s” code of practice in the UK

This review also led to the selection of a new global whistleblowing
hotline system, which will be implemented during 2015 A new
case management tool which will enable the capture of information
on whistleblowing cases across the group and the analysis of
trends and 1ssues raised In a more systernatic way 1s also due to

be iImplemented

The CSR Committee receives regular updates on current issues and
allegations from the groups internal audit, human resources and
CSR tearns

Committee performance

The assessment of the committee's performance concluded that

it performed well in monitoring comphance with CSR pohicies and
reviewng the integration of CSR processes within the groups
broader risk management regime The committee's targeted
approach focusing on a small set of 1ssues was found to be effective

Prioriuies for 2015

Priorities for 2015 are to drve continued improverments in
health and safety and to monitor and review the implementation
of enhanced whistleblowing systems and case management tools
across the group




The Risk Committee

MAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED
“In 2013, recognising that nisk oversight and risk
governance are wital to the continued growth
and profitabilty of the group, the board constituted In 2014, a significant amount of the Risk Committee’s tirme was
a separate Risk Committee The Risk Committee allocated to nsk governance The commitiee reviewed and
was tasked with providing robust oversight of approved the revised group risk framework developed In response

to the report commissioned from Delortte dunng 2013 In doing
so, the commuttee sought to ensure that the proposed changes
would renforce the group by providing a sound risk management
the past year, changes to the governance structures and internal controls systern to identify the risks facing the group
and processes were implemented These are now as a whole, assess their likelhood and impact, develop robust

well embedded in the business and are supported mitigation plans and define clear control processes Throughout the
by a new risk management information system In year, the commiitee receved regular reports on the progress of
2015 we will focus on ensunng that the business its implementation

gets the maximum value from the nvestments The committee also defined the companys nsk appetite and

made in 2014 by focusing on the quality of risk developed a more precise and formal group risk appetite statement
assessments and on making measurable progress which was subsequently approved by the board

on planned mitigation actions at all levels of

the business”

the management of risk within the group We have
made considerable progress in this respect During

The principal residual risks to the group's 2014 business plan

were reviewed and approved and reports from the group nisk
John Connolly funcuion on impiementation by management of mitigatton actions
Risk Committee Chairman to address them were also received The commitiee noted that the
progress It reducing residual nisk levels over the year across the
group was variable In sore cases, this was due to changes external
Mestngs 10 GA45 such as an increase in terronism threats political instability

Committee membership and attendance attended  and oml unrest in certain regions, while in others the level of
investment and timescales required to drive improvement in specific

John Connally {chairman) 3of3  areas needed to be recogrised For example, although there was

Ashley Almanza 3of3  sgnficant progress in the approach to health and safety across the

3of3 EOuP dunng 2014, more time 15 needed to ensure new practices

Himanshu Raja
! become fully embedded in all businesses and translate into a

Paul Spence 3of3 sgnificant reductton in the risk of njunies
Tim Weller 20f3
The committee tasked management with ensunng that the nght
Other regular attendees include the group general counsel, and balance 1s struck between the level of residuat nsk and the
the group director of nsk and audt allocation of the group’s resources to opportunities for
mproverment. Further detals of the prncipal risks and uncertainties
Responsibilities facing the business are set out on pages 44 to 50

The Risk Commitiee advises the board on the group's overall nisk
appetite, develops the group's risk management strategy, advises
the Audit Committee and the board on risk exposures and reviews
the level of nsk within the group and assesses the effectiveness

of the group’s internal control and rsk management systems

The committee’s compaosition ensures that a broad-ranging set of
skills and experience come together to lock at how the group
manages risk in the business The Risk Committee will consider all
significant nisks to the group, not only financial nsks Further details
can be found in the committee’s terms of reference available at
www g4s comfinvestars
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Contract risk management was another key area of focus for

the committee which oversaw the inception and implementation in
the UK of new review processes for new and ongoing contracts
With regard ta new cantracts, the group risk function was tasked
with reviewing and improving centracts “onbearding’ processes to
ensure that, n addtion to financial assessment criteria other criteria
focusing on the ability to win and deliver the opportunity were also
considered These changes to the group's contract risk management
were iImplemented in the UK during the year and implementation
across the rest of the group 1s planned dunng 2015

The committee will receve regular reports on 1ts iImplementation
and key themes identified through these contract reviews are to
be reported regularly to the committee

The committee also conducted a review of twao large high-risk
and complex on-going contracts in the UK and a sub-committee
considered a major contract bid, the risks associated with it and
proposed mitigation plans

IMAGE REMOVED

Committee performance

The assessment of the committee’s performance showed that the

composition of the commitiee and the charmans leadership were
hughly rated 1t was also reported that the commitiee was effective
in providing oversight of the controls in place over significant risks

Priorities for 2015

Areas of focus for 2015 will include reviewing progress on
ernbedding a risk management approach into businesses across
the group with a view to increasing the quality of information
being reported, reviewing the group's residual risk exposure and
progress of mitigation action plans, as well as reviewing new and
emerging risks

IMAGE REMOVED
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The Audit Committee
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“'As announced In last year's report, | succeeded
Mark Seligman as chairman of the Audst
Cormnmittee after the AGM in June 2014 Mark
remaned a member of the committee until the
end of the year and | am very grateful for hts
support dunng this tme During the year, the
group made significant progress in strengthening
the organisation in terms of finance, internal audit
and risk management The Audrt Committee’s work
focused on the group's system of internal controls,
the quality of our group financial reperting and
the effectiveness of the external and internal
audtt processes We also conducted a tender
for the role of the group's external auditor This
has resulted in the proposal to shareholders at
the 2015 AGM to confirm the appomntment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as group auditor”

Tim Weller
Audit Committee Chairman

Committee membership and attendance Meetings attended
Scheduled  Unscheduled
Tim Weller (chairman)’ 40f4 20f2
Mark Seligman? 40of 4 20f2
Adam Crozier 4 of 4 20of2
Paul Spence 4 of 4 20of2

I TimWeller became chairman after the AGM in June 2014

2 Mark Seligman stood down as charman after the AGM i June 2014 and
as a member on 3| December 2014

The commuttee members were selected for their range of
commercial and financial expertise, necessary to fulfil the
committees responsibilities Each member of the Audit
Committee brings significant and relevant expenence ganed at
senior management level Their skills and experience are set out

on pages 52 and 53 The Audit Committee s charman MrWeller is,
and Mr Seligman was considered by the board to be members of
the Audit Committee with recent and relevant financial experence

Audit Committee meetings are attended by the chief financial
officer, the group financial controller; the head of group nternal
audit, the company secretary, the group director of risk and audrit
and representatives of the group's external auditor The chairman

of the board and the chief executive also attend meetings from time
to tme in agreement with the chairman of the committee

After each meeting, the chairman of the committee reports to the
board on the matters which have been discussed

Responsibilities

The committee makes sure there 15 effective governance of the
group’s financial reporting and internal controls to ensure the
integrity of its financiat statements and adequacy of related
disclosures The committee also has oversight of the performance
of both the internal audit function and the external auditor Further
details can be found in the committee’s terms of reference avalable
at www g4s com/investors
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The committee has an annual agenda which includes standing items
that the committee considers regularty, as well as specific matters
that require the commuttee s attention
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Significant 1ssues considered by the Audit Committee
The primary issues considered by the commuittee in the 2014 financial statements and how these were addressed, were

Significant 1ssue considered

Miugauon/Action

Revenue recognition on UK Government and other contract-related provisions

The group delvers outsouraing services that can be complex
1n nature There is a nsk that billing and revenue recognition
on these contracts 1s not in accordance with contractual
entitlerments or that contracts are forecast to be loss making
over the remaining Iife of the contracts and therefore

provisions rmay be required | he identficabion of potential loss

making contracts and measurement of any related provision
requires judgemant to be exercised and there 1s a nsk that
provisions are not esumated appropnately This was a prime
area of focus for the Audt Committee and external audrt.

Dunng the year management enhanced the pracesses and controls for contract reviews and now
reviews on a quarterty basis the top 25 contracts for each region as well as thase contracts with
lowe profitabilty In addtion a new process of 360 degree contract review on the largest and most
complex contracts was mtroduced covenng financial legal reputavonal and operatonal nsk
critena These reviews are attended by at least one member of the group executive committee

Each quarter the Audit Committee receives a report summansing the results of these
reviews and Lhe centract judgements made ! he commillee was saushed that the
judgements made by management were balanced and the recommended prowisions were
approprate

Goodwill impairment testng

The total value of the group’s goodwill and other intangble
assets as at 31 December 2014 was £2 Ibn and relates to a
significant number of historc acquistions. The estimation of the
recoverable amount of goodwilt supported by the group s cash
generating units requires significant judgement, primarily n
relation to the achievabyhity of long termy business plans and

macroeconomic assumpbcons and related modelling assumptions

undertying the valuabon process Duning the year there have
been some changes in matenal contracts that required further
focus on the review of future projections. Consequently this
continued to be a sigrificant area of focus for the committee,
and a prime area of external audtt focus

The committee addressed these matters through receving reports from management
cuthning the basis for the assumptions used 1n relation to terminal growth resulting
headroom and sensitivities applied by management and alternative valuation bases such
as reference to transactions for similar assets

The committee was satisfied with the carrying value of goodwill

Taxation

The group operates In many tax junsdictions, including
countries where tax legislation 15 not always applied
cansistently and under certan complex contractual
circumstances where the responsibility for tax ansing s
not always clear

The committee asked the external auditcr to ensure that taxation constituted an importart
area of focus duning the exaernat audit and to report on key tax 1ssues identified dunng the audit
process The committee also asked management to pay partcular attenton to the review of the
fevel of estimation of tax provisions and conngenaies in the financial staterments

The commitiee was satisfied with the repor t from the external auditor and that the
provisions n the finanad slaterments are adequate

Risk of management overnide of internal controls

The group cperates in a large number of dverse locations
with a significant number of local financial systems and
processes which could potentally lead to management
overnde of internal contrels Dunng the year the group has
continued to make signihiuant investiment i strengthening
capability n finance imternal audnt and nsk, and mntroduced
stronger internal contrals and group oversight to mtigate
these nisks These include monthly reviews of the quality of
earnings a comprehensive internal audit plan and a regular
ctycle of reviews of local business units or country balance
sheets and controls

The commitiee reviewed the overall control environment of the group and monitored
progress aganst the approved group internal audit plan for the year the different financial
control and balance sheet review processes and the output of the whistieblowing process
In addtion the committee recewed regular updates on the implementation of risk and audit
cornmitiees in each of the regions the consistent application of the different nanaal
controf processes across the group and the half year review of financial statements by

the external auditor

The commiitee also exarmined significant accounting esurmates and judgements and the
supporting documentation for ewidence of fraud or bias that may represent a risk of
matenal misstatement The committee satislied itself that the nsk of matenal misstatement
resuling from management overnde of internat controls was not significant

Presentation of the income statement

In order to give better understanding of the underlying
performance of the business the underlying results of
the group are presented with separate disclosure of
restructunng changes and speafic tems

The commuittee discussed the ratienale for this presentation with manragement and with

the external audttor and concluded that separate presentation of the restructuning charges
and other specific tems prowdes users of the group's financial statements with added clanty
and transparency and therefore faciitates a clearer assessment of the group s performance
over time

Managerment confirmed to the commuttee that appropriate accounting pelicies gudance
and controls had been exerased over the treatment of restructurng items and other
specific tems, allowing the commitiee to be savsfied that the presentation and disclosures
were far balanced and reasonable

Going concern and liquidity nisk

T'he group has net debt of £1 578 mdlien and the board
has set a goa! of net debt to EBITDA of <25 times over
the medium term

The commttee reviewed the groups forecasts of cash flow and net debt, taking into account
reasunably possibie 1k sensibvities, as well as the finanang facliies avalable to the group

noting the group had renewed its revohang credit finance faality for up to a further seven years.
The committee also reviewed compliance with covenants and the avalabilty of headroom in
relabion to those covenants

The comrmittee was satsfied that the group adopt the going concem basis of accounting
in the finangial statements and recommended the same to the board
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Internal control

The group has in place robust systems of internal control and risk
management for financal reporting Their mam features include
clearly defined reporting lines and authorisation procedures, a
comprehensive budgeting and monthly reporting system, written
policies and procedures and the use of a single global consolidation
system for both internal management reporting, budgeting and
planning as well as external reporting The group budget 1s approved
by the board A regular update 1s provided by the group CFO on
the outlook Actual results at business unit, region and group level
are reported monthly and vanances reviewed A programme of
business internal financial reviews (IFRs) 1s performed by a finance
team from erther region or group to check the accuracy of financial
reparting and comphiance with the group finance manual

The system 15 designed to ensure the integrity of financial reporting
and the committee's responsibility 1s to ensure these internal
controls remain effective The committee does this primarily through
reviewing the process followed by management to review the
group's contrel environment such as IFRs

The committee also receives quarterly reports from group
internal audit, summarising the results of internal audrts carned out
Open audits with a deficient rating, as well as common audrt
findings and areas identified for improverment, any instances of
alleged fraud. in parucular allegations of fraud invohlving employees
in roles with responsibility over internal controls, are also included

In addiiion during 2044, the group introduced regional risk

and audit committees in each of the regions formed by regional
management, group management and internal and external auditars
They bring together a formal review of sk management for each
region, nternal and external audit 1ssues ansing and any significant
Judgements in the financial statements The Audit Committee
reviews the 1ssues arising from these regional risk and audit
committees The Audit Committee has confirmed to the board

that 1t is satisfied that the group’s nsk management and internal
control processes and procedures are appropriate

Internal audit review

The Institute of Internal Auditors suggests that internal audit
functions are subject to an external assessment at least every
five years In May 201 3, the Audit Committee commussioned
an independent review of the group’s Internal audit function
by Deloitte

Delotte reported in November 2013 and found that the existing
internal audit function was organised and diligent and made some
suggestions for improvement in certain areas The committee
adopted Deloitte's recommendations aimed at sirengthening the
iternal audit funchien and placing more emphasis on auditing the
“third line of defence” activities Resources available to the internal
audit functron were increased significantly

A follow-up report from Deloitte was commissioned to assess

the progress made by the group internal audit function The report,
submitted 1o the commuttee 1n August 2014, concluded that,
atthough good progress had been made, certain areas required
further work Several intiatives, such as increasing collaboration
between the risk and group internal audit functions, developing

a nsk-based internal audit plan as well as changes to the reporting
and communication on a quarterly basis of summary audt findings
to the regional nsk and audit committees had resulted n clear
improvements The need to ensure the efficent coordination

of iniatives from internal audit, the finance team and the risk
functron was identified and addressed through the creation of

a working group

In October 2014, the group director; nsk and programme

assurance was appainted to the combined role of group director of
risk and audit. The group mternal audit team was remnforced
significantly both through increasing the size of the team and also

its experiise through the addition of a number of specialists in the
areas of contracts and T

Each year, the committee reviews and approves the internal audit
plan The 2015 plan 1s more risk based than its predecessors and
covers 55% of the group’s businesses and 83% of the group’s
revenue Reports from internal audit are reviewed at each
committee meeting and the committee monitors senior
management's responsiveness to 1ssues raised in these reports

External auditor

The committee considers the reappomtment of the external
auditor, Including the rotation of the audit partner each year and
assesses its independence on an ongoing basis The external auditor
15 required to rotate the audit partner responsible for the group
audit every five years The current external auditor, KPMG Audit Plc
was first appointed in 2005 and the current lead audit partner has
been in place since June 2014 KPMG undertook the audnt of the
group's consolidated accounts for the year ending 31 December
2014, having been reappointed at the company's 2014 AGM

Last year the company indicated that it planned to put the externat
audit engagernent for the 2015 financal year out to tender and
the associated tender process i1s cuthned on page 68 The 'Big Four’
audrn firms were invited to take part in the tender After discussion
wrth the committee the company and KPMG mutually agreed

that KPMG would nct partcipate in the tender, noting the longevity
of their appontment. Responses to the audit tender were assessed
using detailed evaluation criteria which incorporated key aspects
of the Finanaial Reporting Council s audit quality framework,
including organisaticn, capability and serwvice delivery audit qualtty,
audit approach and team capability and fit Having concluded the
process at the end of September 2014, the commuttee
recommended to the board that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(PwC) be appointed as the groups external auditor for the

2015 financial year A resolution to this effect will be put 1o the
shareholders at the company's AGM on 4 June 2015

Subject to shareholders’ approval, PwC will take over the audn
engagement contract for the year ending 31 December 20(5

There are no contractual obligations restricting the company s
choice of external auditor

A tn-partite transiion plan setting out the agreed principles,
framework and timeline to ensure the efficient and effective transfer
of the external audrt arrangement from the incumbent to PwC

has been prepared
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Corporate governance report continued

Audit tender process

In Apnl 2014 having considered proposed changes to the UK Corporate Governance Code and the recommendations of the
Financial Reporting Council, the company announced 11s intention to put the external audit engagement for the 2015
finanaial year out to tender The process the company followed s outlined below

RFP development

A request for proposal document was developed following
consuhation between the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the chief financiat officer and distnbuted to the four largest
(Big Four’) audit firms in May 2014

Expressions of interest receved

Having recewved the request for proposal document,

each of the participant audit firms completed a confidentiality
undertaking and a conflict of interest declaration and affirmed
its intention to respond

Preliminary meetings

A preliminary meeting was held with each of the partiapant
audit firms and members of the Audit Committee and

chief financial officer in early june 2014 1n order o establish
the committee s overall requirements and the significance
attached to the selected evaluation criteria

Data room access

Access was then granted te historic informaton held within an
externally hosted virtual data room throughout June-july 2014

Meetings with G4S senror management

A series of meetings and conference calls were held during
June-Juty 2014 between the partiapant audrt firms and
members of the group finance leadership team, company
secretatiat and regional finance directors in order to
supplement the data room material

Written proposals

A written response to the request for proposal was recerved
from participant audrt firms in early August 2014 together
with a preliminary indication of the firms' independence to
act as the groups auditor

Evaluation and assessment
of the proposals

During August-September 201 4, these proposals were
assessed and scored against the group's weighted evaluation
critera by executives from the group finance leadership team
company secretanat and regional finance directors

High-level meetngs

During August-September 2014, addittonal meetings were
held between participant audt firms and the chairman of the
Audit Commsttee and, separately, the chief financial officer

Presentations

At the end of September 2014, parucipant audrt firms made
a final presentation of their overall proposals — and confirmed
their iIndependence 1o act as the group’s auditor — to the
members of the committee, chief executive officer and

chuef financial officer

Recommendation to the board
by the Audit Committee

N

On the basis of the above — and in conjunction with

the evaluation of the audt finns' wiitten proposals —

the committee recommended to the board that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be selected as the group's
external auditor for the 2015 financial year

Board decision

The board accepted the committee'’s recommendation at
its October 2014 meeting
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Non-audit services

To ensure that the independence of the audit 1s not compromised,
the committee has put a policy in place on the non-audit services
that can be provided by the external auditor, the relevant approval
process for certain services and those services the auditor 1s
prohibited from providing In essence, the external auditor 15
prohibited from providing services that could create 2 conflict of
mterest result in the audit firm auditing its own work or result in
the performance of management funchions The commsttee has
pre-approved certan services which can be provided by the auditor
subject to specified fee mits above whtch further approval 1s
raquired All other services would require prior approval by

the committee

Every year the Audit Committee reviews 1ts policy on the provision
of non-audrt services by the external auditor This year, the Audrit
Committee's review was carned out in light of the new EU
regulatory framework for statutory audit, which was adopted In
April 2014 and 15 due to come into force in june 2016 The review
resulted in a number of amendments to the non-audit services
policy to better align the policy with the propesed EU reforms
The st of pre-approved services, which includes consultation and
due diligence services related to mergers and acquistions, audits
of employee benefit plans, reviews of internal accounting and
control pohcies and general advice on financial reporting standards,
was amended to include work of a reporting accountant nature
(for example, stock exchange circulars or comfort letters)

The approval process for non-audit services was also amended

so that a two-tier approval process 1s now Iin place, whereby any
engagerent with the external auditor for pre-approved services
above a certain threshold requires the jont prior approval of the
Audit Committee chairman and the chief financial officer and any
engagement with the external audrtor for any other services or

for pre-approved services above a second, higher, threshold requires
prior approval from the committee

The provisien of any non-audit services by the audit firm must,

in any event, comply with the requirements in that regard of the
Auditing Practices Board The auditor, KPMG Audit Pic, has written
to the Audit Committee confirming that, in s opinion, it was
independent for the period through to 5 March 2015

Details of the fees paid for audit services, audit-related services
and non-audit services can be found in note 10 to the financial
statements The external audit 1s a complex exercise involving more
than 1,000 KPMG personnel covering over |10 countries in which
G4S operates

In anticipation of taking over the audit engagement contract for the
year ending 3} December 2015, in order to ensure independence,
PwC had previously terminated all services which fell within the
scape of the non-audit services palicy by 31 December 2014

Since the Audit Committee is keeping under review whether and
when to bring tax compliance and tax advisory services within
the scope of the non-audrt services policy, it 1s anticipated that the
vast majonty of tax compliance and tax advisory services being
undertaken by PwC will have erther terminated or transitioned by
30 June 2015 There were around thirty such services ongoing
across the group at the beginning of 2015, however, these are
deemed nsignificant both indmdually and in aggregate

Effectiveness of the external auditors

A combination of formal and informal processes 1s used in the
assessment of the effectiveness of the externai audit process

A formal questionnaire 1s completed at the end of the audit by
members of the audit committee, group finance department and
the finance director s of significant operations across the group and
the output 1s reviewed by the Audit Committee The assessment of
the external audit concluded that st remained effective and the
external auditor independent

Commuttee performance

The assessment of the committee's performance showed that the

committee remains effective at discharging its responsibilities and in
particular in reviewing the quality of the group's financial reporting

Priorties for 2015

The priorities for the committee for the next year will nclude
overseeing the transition of the group s external audit to the new
audttor, reviewing the implementation of further changes to the
internal audit function and testing the effectiveness of changes made
to the internal contrcls environment
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Directors’ remuneration report

The Remuneration Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

*l am pleased to present the directors’
remuneration report for 2014 As indicated by
John Connolly and Ashley Almanza in their
respective staterments, in 2014 we made
considerable progress in the implementation of
our strategy and improved financial results Those
results are reflected in the pay outcomes for
our executive directors”

Mark Elhott
Remuneration Committee Chairman

The Remuneration Commuittee spent much of 1ts time
communicating with management on the implementation of

our new annual and long term Incentive systems We focused

on ensuring that these systems supported leaders both in
delvering desired financial results and in the delivery of our strategy
In particular, we discussed non-finangial measures of health and
safety and group values and the manner in which they interact with
our financial measures We also discussed those tems to be
included in and excluded from our underlying performance metnics
to ensure they reflect the highest quality cutcomes We are satisfied
that our new leadership team has embraced and communicated
those pnnaiples as they have delivered the new incentive systems
across the group

How performance 1s reflected in remuneration outcomes

= There was strong growth in underlying group profit before

tax and amortisation {PBTA} and underlying group operating cash
flow, which reflected strong operating performances overall in
both emerging and developed markets At group level, the stretch
financial targets set for the annual bonus were exceeded resutting
N maximum payouts under the financial element of the annual
bonus for two of the executive directors

Scoring for non-financial metrics ranged from 57% to 98%

of maximum As indicated above, we place a great deal of
emphasis on health and safety across the group, and take our
responsibilities to our employees and to wider society very
seriousty As there were a number of health and safety incidents

i the year, the Remuneration Committee tock these into
account for the bonus outcomes for all of our senior executives
Full details of the bonus cutcomes for each of the executive
directors are set out on page 79
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¢ In ine with our policy, any annual bonus due to the directors in
excess of 50% of maximum will be deferred for a period of
three years and paid in GAS shares

Although operational performance in the year was strong awards
that had been made under our performance share plan in 2012
did not pay out The threshold level of performance over the
three-year performance period of the plan that ended in 2014
was not met for ether relative TSR or EPS growth This largely
reflects the challenges the business has faced, and now addressed,
in the earler years of the performance penod

How we implemented our remunerauon pohcy

When operating the policy, the committee takes account of the
overall appreach and structure of employee reward across the
group and pay decisicns for the wider workforce as well as the
results of relevant benchmarking data ft 1s the committee s intention
that pay should reflect the responsibility attached to the role
fulfilled indwidual performance and other relevant market
infermation Qur remuneration must allow the company to attract,
retan and motivate directors who will lead the group in the long
term interest of is stakeholders

Base salary increases

As disclosed last year, the CEO's salary was increased to £8%0,000
with effect from | January 2014, whereas salaries for other
executive directors were unchanged This year, both the CEC

and CFO receved a salary increase from | January of 3%

This increase took account of market salary levels as well as salary
increases elsewhere in the group As announced in October 2014,
Grahame Gibson will be reuning from the board at the AGM in
2015 and his salary wiil remain unchanged again in 2015

How we operate cur annual bonus plan

There were no changes 1o the way in which we operated our
annual bonus during 2014 For 2015, the committee has decided
to operate the annual bonus with financial measures of
performance of underlying group earmings and underlying group
operating cash flow before capex The non-financial measures of
performance are aligned with the group's strategic objectives and
will continue to Include health and safety Underlying group earnings
will replace the underlying group PBTA financial performance
measure under the annual bonus for 2015, as we consider this to
be a better indicator of the group's performance going forward

Our long-term incentive plan

We gained ¢ 97% support from our shareholders for our new
long-term incentive plan at the AGM in 2014 We plan to continue
to operate our long-term incentive plan unchanged in 2015

UK Code compliance

We had anticipated the changes which were introduced by the
revised UK Corporate Governance Code in September 2014 with
respect to malus and clawback Qur incentive arrangements are
already subject to malus and clawback, as explained on page 75

As a resuft, no changes were needed to our Incentive arrangements
to comply with the new requirements in 2015 The Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference have also been amended to bring
them into line with the new Code requirements and can be found
on our website at www g4s comfinvestors
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Consulting with our shareholders

We are cornmitted ta consuliing with our top shareholders on

key remuneration 1ssues in late 2013 and early 2014, we consulted
with |3 of our largest shareholders as well as certain shareholders’
representative bodies in respect of the proposed new LTIP and the
directors’ remuneration policy Their feedback caused us to add
clarfications on our policy statement and to alter some of the
performance measures in the new LTIP | will be available to answer
questions and hsten to the views of ocur shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Returements

Trevor Dighton stepped down from the board at the 2013 Annual
General Meeting and retired from the company on 30 July 2014
Detarls of Mr Dighton's termination arrangements are set out in
detall on page 8|

As reported above, in October 2014 1t was announced that
Grahame Gibson would retire from the board at the Annual
General Meeting on 4 June 2015 The committee will consider
the retirement arrangements for Mr Gibson over the coming
months, and we will provide full disclosure of these arrangements
N next years report

| would hke to take this opportunity to thank Mark Seligman,

who will step down from the Remuneration Committee this year
when he leaves the board at the AGM in 2015 The commuttee has
benefited greatly from Mark’s knowledge and expenence

The committee’s performance

The committee’s forrmal performance review carried out at the end
of 2014 concluded that the committee was effective and continued
to perform well In partculan the committee had achieved 1ts goal
1o have greater involvement in the operation of incentive schemes
across the group and to monitor the level and structure of
remuneration for senior managers across the group

Voting on remuneration

The annual report on remuneration will be put to an adwsory
vote at this year's Annual General Meeting, and we lock forward
to receiving shareholders support once again this year

Mark Elhott
Remuneration Committee Chairman

26 March 2015

Commuttee membership and attendance Meetings attended

Scheduled  Unschedided

Mark Efliott (chairman) Jof3 20f12
Winnie Fok 3of3 20f2
Mark Sefigman Jof3 20of2
Clare Spottiswoode 3of3 | of 2

Responsibtlities

The Remuneration Committee I1s responsible for all elements of
the remuneration of the executive directors, other members of
the group executive committee and the charrman of the board

It also agrees with the board the framewark and policy for the
remuneration of other senior managers of the group and reviews
and recommends the remuneration of the company secretary

In determiring remuneration policy, the committee takes into
account a vanety of legal and regulatory requirements, and the
relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code

The commitiee also determines policy on the duration, notice
penod and termination payments under the contracts with the
executive directors, with a view to recognising service to the
company whilst ensuning that failure 1s not rewarded and that the
duty to mitigate loss 1s recogrised

The committee approves the design and determines the targets
and formulae for performance-refated pay schemes operated by
the company It approves the eligibility of executive directors and
other group executive committee member s for annual bonuses and
benefits under long term incentive plans and assesses performance
against the objecuves of those plans

The committee’s terms of reference are available on the company s
website at wwwg4s com/investors

Qur remuneration approach

We seek to attract and retain the best people whilst ensuring that
the remuneranon policy and practice drive behaviours that are in
the long-term interests of the company and its shareholders

FIVBLLIDAOS)

[ Fixed pay

» base pay
* retirement benefits
* other benefits

[ Short-term incentives

= annual bonus plan {one year)

[Long-term incentives

* Long term incentive plan (three years)

Remunerauon Policy

The company's remuneration policy for directors was set
out in full in the company’s 2013 Annual Report and
Accounts on pages 66 ta 72 and can also be found on the
company's website It was approved by sharehalders at the
companys Annual General Meeting held on 5 June 2014 with
98 38% of all votes cast in favour The policy refers to a new
long term incentive plan which was also approved at the
2014 Annual General Meeting, with 96 88% of all votes cast
in favour That policy came into effect on 6 June 2014 and
will continue to apply for up to three financial years unless
a new or revised pohcy 1s approved by shareholders in the
meantime Neo changes are proposed For convenience a
summary of some of the main features of the policy 1s set
out on pages 72 1o 77 below
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration policy — summary

Remunerauon policy for executive directors

| Base pay

Purpose and link to strategy

Base pay 15 set at competitive levels in order to recrurt and
retain high calibre executives with the skills required in order
to manage a company of the size and global footpnnt of G45

The tevel of pay will reflect 2 number of factors including
indmdual experience, expertise and role

Operauon

Reviewed annually and fixed for |2 months commencing

| January Interim salary reviews may be carmed out following
significant changes i role, scope or responsibilsty or at any
other time at the committee s discretion

The final salary decision may alse be influenced by role,
experience, iIndividual and company performance internal
relativities and increases for group employees

Maximum opportumty
Actual base pay for each executive directer s disclosed
each year in the Directors’ remuneration report

In determining salary increases, the committee considers

market salary levels ncluding those of appropnate comparator

companies

Ordinarily, annual salary increases would be no more than

the average annual increase across the group However, In

exceptional arcumstances a hugher levet of increase may

be awarded for example

+ following a significant change to the nature or scale of
the business, or

+ following a sigruficant change to the nature or scope of
the rale, or

+ for a new appointment, where the base pay may nisally
be set below the market level and increased over time,

as expenience develops and with reference to the individual s

performance in the first few years in the role

Where exceptional increases are made we will fully disclose
and explain the rationale for such increases

Performance measures
None, although indvidual performance may have a bearing
on salary increases

| Benefits

Purpose and hink to strategy
As with base salary, a suitable range of benefits 1s made
avallable 1n order to recruit and retain high calibre executives

Operauon

Executives are entrtled to a number of benefits compnsing
paid holday, healthcare for themselves and therr farmily and hfe
insurance of up to 4 umes base salary, car allowance, business
related transpor t, imited financial advice from time to time
and expatnate benefits where relevant. A relocation allowance
reflecting reascnable costs actually incurred will be paid

Other benefits may be granted at the discreticn of the
Remuneration Committee

Reasonable business expenses n line with G45 expenses
policy (e g travel, accommodation and subsistence) will

be reimbursed and in some instances the associated tax will
be borne by the company
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Maximum oppeortunity

maximum benefits per director per annum

* holidays — 30 days

* car allowance — £20,000

* business related local transport — £40,000

+ for financial advice, expatnate benefits and relocation
expenses, the expense will reflect the cost of the provision
of benefits from time to time but wall be kept under review
by the commitiee
other benefits granted at the discretion of the committee
up to 3% of base pay per annum per director
reascnable business expenses which are reimbursed are
not subject to a maxumum, since these are not a benefit to
the director

Any allowance in relation to relacation will provide for the

reimbursement of reasonable costs incurred

Performance measures
None




| Annual bonus

Purpose and link to strategy
Rewards the achievement of annual financial and strategic
business targets and delivery of personal objectives

Deferred element encourages long-term shareholding
and discourages excessive rsk taking

Operation

Awarded annually based on performance in the year
Targets are set annually and relate to the group and/or
the business managed by the executive

Bonus autcome 5 determined by the committee after the
year end, based on annual performance against targets

Bonuses are paid n cash, but executives are required to defer
any bonus payable in excess of 50% of their maximum benus
entitlement into shares Deferrat 1s for a minmum penod of
three years Dividends or equivalents accrue during the
deferral perned on deferred shares

Bonuses are not pensionable

Maximum opportunity
Maximum opportunity of 150% of base pay per annum for
the CEO and the CFO

125% of base pay per annum for any other executive director

Performance measures

Typrcally, executive directors bonus measures are weighted

so that

* between 70% and 85% of the bonus 1s based on
achievement of challenging financial performance measures
{e g profit before tax and amortisation, organic growth
cash-flow measures, etc ), with each measure operating
independently of the others, and
the remainder s linked to personal and/ar non-financial
measures, which are strategic or operational in nature

Each year, the committee may use its discretion to vary the
exact number of measures, as well as their relative weightings,
and this will be disclosed in the annual remuneratton report.

As a result of the number of factors taken into account in
determining bonus, there 1s no minimum pay-out level

For lustrative purposes, in the event that only threshold has
been achieved, pay-out would be 35% of maximum, rsing to
full pay-out should achievement of a stretch performance
level be achieved for all measures assuming the non-financial
performance measures were satisfied

The deferred element of the bonus is not subject to any
further performance measures but I1s subject to clawback
n certain crcumstances The non-deferred part of the
bonus, which s settled in cash, 1s also subject to clawback.
(See separate section below on page 75)

LLong Term Incentive Plan (current)

Purpose and link to strategy

Incentivises executives to achieve the company's long-term
financial goals, as well as focus on value creation whilst aligning
the interests of executives with those of shareholders

Operation

Executive directors are granted awards on an annual basis,
which vest over a penod of at least three years subject to
continued service and the achievernent of a number of key
performance measures

The Remuneration Committee reviews the quantum of
awards to be made to each executive each year to ensure
that they remain appropriate

Dvdends or equivalents accrue during the vesting period
on awards that vest

The award 1s settled by the transfer of market-purchased
shares to the executive directors

All the released shares (after tax) must be retaned untl the
minimum shareholder requirement 1s met, Currently, the
minimum shareholding requirement 1s 200% of base salary
for the CEQ and 150% for the other executive directors

Maximum opportunity
Maxarum opportunity of 250% of base pay per annum for
the CEO

Maxamum opportunity of 200% of base pay per annum for
the other executwe directors

Performance measures

Awards vest based on performance over a penod of at least
three financial years commencing with the financial year in
which the award 1s made

Performance will be measured based on a combination of
earnings per share growth, total shareholder return against a
comparator group and average operating cash flow For awards
made In 2014, these were in the proportion of 40% 30% and
30% respectively However, the committee retains the flexibilrty
to amend these proporiions, provided that no single measure
will be a significantly greater proportion than the others

At threshold, 25% of the rejevant portion vests This increases
on a straight-line basis up to 100% for performance in line with
maximum Targets are set out on page 83

Awards are subject to clawback in certain circumstances
(see below on page 75)
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Retirement benefits

Purpose and link to strategy

As with base salary and other benefits making avallable a
suitable rettrement benefits package awds the recrutment
and retention of high calibre executives, allowing such
executives to provide for their retirement

Operation

G45 operates a defined contnbution group-wide personal
pension plan in the UK in which executives may participate
Alternatively, G45 may provide a cash allowance in heu of
a contribution into such plan

The current executive directors receive cash allowances
The CEO receives 25% of base pay as a cash allowance, the

Remuneration policy for non-executive directors

CFO receves 20% of base pay and the other executive
directar receves 40% of base pay reflecting his histonic
partiapation in a defined benelits plan which has been closed

The tevel of award 1s kept under review by the committee
and 15 intended to be broadly market comparable for the roles

Maximum opportunity

Maximum opportunity of up to 25% of base pay for the
CEO and 20% for the other executive directors save that
40% of base pay per annum s payable to Grahame Gibson

Performance measures
None

| Chairman's fee

Purpose

To attract and retain a high calibre chairman by offering
a market competitive fee, which also reflects the
responsibilities and time commitrnent There are no
performance-related elements

Operauon

The chairman's fee is disclosed each year in the Directors
remuneration report The fees are reviewed annually by

the committee The annual fee 1s an all-inclusive consolidated
amount The committee retans the discretion to review the
chairman’s fees at any other time if appropnate

The chairman’s fees are reviewed aganst other companies of
a similar size

Maximum opportunity
Ordinanly, any increase of the chairman’s fee would be in line
with other increases for similar roles in other companies

Fees payable to the charrman and other non-executive
directors in aggregate per annum shall not exceed the
maximum specified in the company’s articles of association
for the relevant year

| Non-executive directors’ fees (excluding the chairman)

Purpose

To attract and retain hugh calibre non-executive directors
(NEDs) by offering market competitive fees which should
reflect the responsibiliies and time commitrment. There are
no performance-related elements

Operation

NED fees including any additional fee for any additional
role listed below are disclosed each year in the
Directors remuneration report

With the exception of the chairman, the fees for NEDs

are structured by composition build-up consisting of

* a base fee

+ an addittonal fee for chainng a committee

« an addmonal fee for the role of deputy chairman

« an additional fee for the role of semior independent director
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The NED component fees are revtewed annually by the
executive directors The board retains the discretion to review
the NED fees at other tirmes as appi opriate, to reflect any
changes in responsibilities or commitment

The basic fee covers commitiee membership and each NED 15
expected to participate in ene or more board committees All
the fees are reviewed aganst other companies of a similar size

Maximum opportumty
Ordinardy, any increase of the NEDs fees would be in line
with other increases for similar roles in other companies

Fees payable to non-executive directors (including the
chairman} in aggregate per annum shall not exceed the
maximum specfied in the company’s articles of associabion
for the relevant year




| Benefits

Purpose

Benefits may be provided from tme to time in connection
with the chairman and other NEDs perfarming thesr roles,
such as business travel, subsistence and entertainment,
accommodation and professional fees for tax and socal
securnty compliance, and other ancillary benefits

Operaton

Reasonable business expenses in line with G45 expenses
policy (e g travel, accommaodation and subsistence) wifl be
rembursed and in sorme Instances the associated tax will
be borne by the company

Notes to the directors’ remuneration policy summary

| Performance measures

Annual Bonus Plan —The actual performance measures and targets
are set by the Remuneration Committee at the beginning of each
year The performance measures used for our annual bonus plan
have been selected to reflect the group’s key performance
indicators The committee aims to ensure that the measures
appropriately encourage the executive directors to focus on the
company's strategic annual priorities, whilst the targets are set to

be stretching but achievable

The aim Is to strike an appropriate balance between incentivising
annual financal and strategic business targets and each executive
director’s key role-speaific cbjectives for the year

Long Term Incentive Plan — In choosing the performance measures
for the Long Term Incentive Plan, the committee aimed to find a
balance of measures which reflect the cornpany’s long-term
financial goals as well as incentivise executives to create sustainable,
long-term value for shareholders

Legacy plans — The commuttee reserves the right to make

any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office
notwithstanding that they are not In ling with the pohcy summansed
above where the terms of the payment were agreed (1) before the
policy came into effect or (1) at a time when the relevant individual
was not a director of the company and, in the opinion of the
committee, the payment was not in consideration for the Individual
becoming a director of the company

Maximum opportunity

Reascnabte business expenses which are rembursed are
not subject to a maximum, since these are not a benefit to
the director

Benefits and expenses will reflect the actual cost of provision

For these purposes, payments may in¢clude the committee satisfying
awards of vanable remuneration In cases where all or part of the
variable remuneration award was in the form of shares, the payment
terms are those agreed at the time the award was granted

In particular, awards made under the previous Performance Share
Plan will continue to vest in accordance with the rules of that plan
and to the extent that the relevant performance tests are met
Details of the vesting of the awards will be pudlished in the annual
remuneration report each year

The non-executive directors do not participate in any incentve
schemes nor do they receive any benefits other than those referred
to In the above table

2 Malus and claw-back mechanisms

Since 2010, any cash and/or shares awarded under the annual
bonus plans and the previous Performance Share Plan may be
subject to clawback. The Long Term Incentive Plan and the annual
bonus plan may be subject to malus or clawback from the executive
director concerned If the Remuneration Committee so determines
and, in the case of misstatement of accounts, where the Audit
Committee concurs The time period in which the clawback can be
operated depends on the reason for the overpayment as

set out in the table below

The amount to be clawed back directly from the executive director
will be the overpaid amount, but the Remuneration Committee
retains the discretion to claw-back the "net’ {Ie post-tax) amount
of the award received by the executive director

Malus and claw-back
deferred elements}

Annual Bonus Plan (including LTIPs

2014 Plan

PSP {previous) Current LTIP

Materal misstatement of
group financial accounts

up to 2 years after
the payment of the
cash element

up to 2 years after vesting
{except where due to
fraud or reckless behaviour
when 1t shall be & years
after vesting)

up to 2 years after vesting

Misconduct up to 6 years after up to 6 years after vesting
the payment of the
cash element

Fraud urthmited unlimited
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Principles and approach to recruitment and internal
promotion of directors

When hinng a new executive director; or promoting to the

board from within the group, the committee will offer a package
that s sufficient to retan and motvate and, if relevant, attract the
rght tatent whilst at ali times aiming to pay no more than is
necessary Ordinanly, remuneration for a new executive director
will be in Iine with the policy set out In the table summansed above
However, discretion may be required for exceptional arcumstances
such as dealing with remuneration relinquished in a previous job
The maxamum level of on-going varable pay that may be awarded
to new executive directors on recrutment or on promotion to the
board shall be hrmited to 400% of base salary as set out in the policy
table summansed above {calculated at the date of grant, excluding
any buy-out awards — see below} Remuneration and any buy-out
arrangements will be announced as far as possible at the time a
new executive director or chairman 1s appointed, or in the
following Directors’ remuneration report

When determining the remuneration of a newly appointed
executive director, the Remuneration Committee will apply

the following principles

The on-going remuneration package to be designed in
accordance with the policy table summansed above

New executive directors will participate In the annual bonus
scheme and long term incentive plan on the same basis as
existing executive directors

The Remuneration Committee shall have discretion to grant
one-off cash or share-based awards to executive directars
where It determines that such an award I1s necessary to secure
the recruitment of that executve director and where 1t 1s in the
best interests of the company to do so Such awards would only
be made as compensation for remuneration relinquished under
a previous employment (1 e buy-out arrangements) and would be
intended to murror forferted awards as far as possible by reflecting
the value, nature, time honzons and performance measures
attached In such arcumstances the company will disclose a full
explanation of the detall and ranonale for such one-off awards
In certain circumstances, it may be necessary to buy out long
notice perods of previous employment

With regard to internal promotions, any commitrents made
before promotion and unconnected with the individual's
promction may continue to be honoured even If they would
not otherwise be consistent with the policy prevailing when the
commtment 15 fulfilled

For external and internal appointments the Remuneration
Comrnittee may agree that the company will meet certam
relocation expenses (including fegal fees), as set out In the
policy table

In determining the approach for all relevant elements, the
Remuneration Committee will consider a number of factors
including (but not limited to) external market practice current
arrangements for existing executive directors and other
internal refativities
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Service contracts

Shareholders are entrtled to nspect a copy of executive
directors’ service contracts at the company's head office
and annually at the AGM

Execuuve directors’ service contracts all have the following features

= Contracts are drafted in Iine with best practice at the time the
executive directors were appointed

* Terminable on 12 months' notice by either party

Specific provisions for Ashiey Almanza and Himanshu Raja’s
centracts (dated 2013} that are not in Grahame Gibson's

contract (dated 2008) include

* Follomng board approval, Ashley Almanza 1s allowed to hold

two external nan-executive appointments (he 1s currently

a non-executive director of Noble Corporation and of Schroders
plc. although he will stand down from the board of Noble
Corporation in the near future) and retan the fees pad directly
to him for the appointments Hirmanshu Raja is allowed to hold
one external non-executive appointment and retain any fees paid
directly to him for the appointment Grahame Gibsons contract
does not specifically deal with NED posrions which will
therefore be subject solely to board discretion

Mitigation oblhgations on termination payments are explicitly
included in the 2013 contracts Notice payments for Ashley
Almanza are payable monthly and those for Himanshu Raja

are payable in two six-monthly instatments, in advance

There are no express mitigation provisions in Grahame
Gibson’s contract

Non-executive directors letiers of appointment.
* Appointment is subject to the provisions of the arucles
of association of the company as amended from time to time
regarding appamtment, retirement, fees, expenses, disquahiication
and removal of directors
+ All continuing non-executive directors are required to stand
for re-election by the shareholders at least once every three
years, although they have agreed to submit themselves for
re-election annually in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code
Initial period of appointment 15 two years
Al reasonably incurred expenses will be met
* Fees are normally reviewed annually




Loss of office payment
The duration of the notice penod 1n each of the executive directors
contracts 1s 12 months

The Remuneration Committee would consider the application of
mitigation obligations in relation 1o any termination payments
where such provisions exist n the executive director’s contract

The contracts do not prowide for the payment of a guaranteed
bonus in the event of termimation Directors (other than Himanshu
Raja} will not be eligible for bonus accrual dunng any penod of
garden leave In the case of Himanshu Raja, his contract provides
for such accrual although any payment would depend on the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee

The value of the termination payment would cover the balance

of any salary and associated benefits payments due to be paid for
the remaining notice period, the value of which will be determined
by the Remuneration Commitiee The Remuneration Comrrittee
would also retain the discretion to make appropriate payments
necessary to finalise any settlement agreement, but in exercising
such discretion the Remuneration Committee wilt rermain mindful
to ensure that there 15 no reward for {aiture

The fees for outplacement services and reasonable legal fees in
connection wrth advice on a settlement agreement may be met
by the company

The table below iflustrates how each compenent of pay would be
calculated under different circumstances

Plan Automatic good leaver calegories

Treatment for good leavers

Treatment for other leavers

Annual bonus (cash Al leavers other than voluntary
element) resignation and summary dismissal

Executive directors may receve a bonus to be
paid on the normal payment date and in

Bonus opportunity
will Jlapse

accordance with the agreed performance measures
but reduced pro-rata to reflect the ime employed

Annual bonus Injury, disabitity or ill health

{deferred share * Redundancy
element) + Retrement
* Death

+ Termination without cause
Change of control or sale of
employing company or business
+ Any other arcumstances at
the discretion of the
Remuneration Commitiee

Deferred shares may be released (f the executive
director ceases employment prior to the third
anniversary as a result of one of the good

leaver reasons

Deferred share
awards shall lapse

Performance Share Ijury, disability or Il health

Plan (previous) + Redundancy

Retirement

Death

Change of control or sale of

employing company or business

*+ Any other arcumstances, provided
that the Remuneration
Committee considers there
are exceptional arcumstances

Awards will vest on the relevant vesting date on

a time-apportioned basis, unless the Remuneration
Committee determines otherwise, and subject to
the achievement of the performance measures

Awards will tapse

Long Term Incentive  * Injury disability or il health
Plan (current}) * Redundancy
* Retrement
* Death
* Change of control or sale of
employing company or business
* Any other circumstances at
the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee

Awards will vest on the refevant vesting date on

a time-apportioned basis, unless the Rermuneration
Committee determines ctherwise, and subject to
the achievernent of performance measures at the
relevant vesting date

Awards will lapse

The vesting date for such awards will normally
be the ongnal vesting date unless otherwise
determined by the Remuneration Committee

As directors may leave employment for a wide range of reasons, the Remuneration Committee retains discretion to approve payments
where the reason for leaving does not fall precisely within the prescribed “good leaver” category The commitiee will take account of the
directors performance in office and the circumstances of ther exit. The committee will seek to balance the interests of sharehclders
the departing director and the remaining directors Any awards subject to performance condttions would be assessed at the end of the

relevant period and be subject to tme apportionment
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Executive directors

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration In respect of qualifying services for the 2014 financial year for each
executive director, together with the comparative figures for 2013 Aggregate executive directors’ emoluments are shown in the final
column of the table

Base pay Benefits Annual Bonus PSP Pension refated benefits Tora!
£ 4 £ £ £ £
2014 M3 2014 2013 20014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Ashley Almanza 890,000  s00000 100559 61,55¢ 1,308,300 648000 nfa nfa 222500  I50000 2,521 359 1459556
Grahame Gibson 609084  £39483 83 604 110,652 439823 103 000 0 0 243633 255,793 1376864 1,108928
Himanshu Raja 625,000 156 250 121729 25179  B90625 234375 nfa nfa 125 000 31,250 1762354 447054

Naotes

a

Certan informauon in 201 3 relates to part years dunng which Ashley Almanza and Himanshu Raja served as execuuve directors

For Ashley Almanza, figures for 2013 include the penod from | April 2013 when he commenced employment and when he was Group CFO from

1 May 2013 (dunng which tme his base pay was £625 000 per annum} prior to his appontment as Group CEQ from 1 June 2013 (when his base pay increased
to £850 000 per annum)

Tor Himanshu Raja figures for 2013 are from s appointment date on 7 October 2013 and this includes the perniod from | October 2013

Benefits include car allowance business related travel heatthcare disability and Iife assurance Benefit values include the cost of certain travel overnight
accommodation and meals which HMRC treats as a taxable benefit and on which the company will pay tax in due course as it does not consider such expenses
10 be benefits In the ordinary sense The grossed-up amounts for 2014 are £43,54 1 for Ashiey Almanza. £59 521 for Himanshu Raja and £14 861 for Grahame
Gibson Benefit values also include local travel costs of £ 180 and £22 320 for Ashley Atmanza and Himanshu Raja respectively who bear the tax themselves and
other business costs which HMRC deems to be benefits In 2014 for Grahame Gibson the benefits value includes a total value of £31 257 relaung to flghts for
tum and his family between the UK and US

The benefits values for 2014 also include taxes met by the company in respect of certan expenses which were incurred i 2013

Fart of Mr Gibson s salary 1s paid in sterhing and part in US$ The LSS element has been canverted into steriing for the purposes of reporting at the
exchange rates prevakag in each month in which Grahame Gibson was paid The average exchange rate dunng the year was $1 65055 (51 56493310 2013)

Any bonus due abeve 50% of the indmduat s maximum banus entitement is awarded as deferred shares which vest after a penod of three years

In addition Ashley Almanza received £122,500 from Schraders ple and 2 fee of $96 000 as well as shares valued at $230 993 from Noble Corporation from his
nen executive directarships referred to on page 76 and retained such remuneration

Non-executive directors

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration in respect of qualifying services for the 2014 financial year for each
non-executive director together with the comparative figures for 2013 Aggregate non-executive directors’ emoluments are shown in
the last column of the table

Base fes Sl Char of Comrimittee Depuly Chan Henehits lotal lotd

2014 2063 014 2013 X014 2013 2014 W03 2014 23 2014 2043
John Connolly 356500 343000 nfa na na n/a nfa nfa 5307 2638 361307 350638
Adam Crozer 58 400 56 8OO nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa n/a 1 489 2i98 59 889 58 998
Mark Elloty 58 400 56 800 10756 5896 17,778 17550 nia nia 2495 3871 89 410 84417
Winnie Fole 58 400 56 800 nfa n/a nfa nfa nfa nfa 10087 15117 68 487 71917
Mark Seligman 58 400 56 BOO nfa n/a 7,582 17 550 46 BOD 46 800 2 166 377 114948 134922
Paul Spence 58,400 56,800 nla nfa nfa nfa nla nfa 39 545 72,348 97 945 129 148
Clare Spotuswoode 58 400 56 B0OQ nfa n/a 17775 9855 nfa n/a 1,916 3099 78091 69 754
Tim Weller 58 400 42 600 nfa n/a 10192 nia nfa n/a 1,954 1256 70 545 43856

Notes The above fees were pro rated where the appointments or retirements were part way through the year

Lobh W N

Mark Elliott was appointed as chair of the Remuneration Commitiee and sermor independent directer on 6 June 2013
Clare Spottiswoode was appointed as chair of the CSR Committee on 6 June 2013

Mark Seligman stepped down as chair of the Audt Committee on 5 june 2014

Tim Weller was apponted as Chair of the Audit committee or: 6 June 2014

Benefit values include the cost of overmght accommodation travel and meals which HMRC treats as a taxable benefit and on which the company will pay tax
n due course as i does not consder such expenses 1o be benefits in the ordinary sense

The 2013 benefis vatues differ from the figures reported in the 2013 remuneration report in some casas Gllowing a review of the calculation methodclogy This 1s
mannly related to the classificauon of the rembursement for flights to attend board meetngs
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Further notes to the single total figure of
remuneration tables

2014 Annual bonus

Dunng the financial year ending 31 December 2014 the
performance measures relating to the annual bonus scheme

rules were consistent with the remuneration policy, with 85% of
the bonus for all executive directors based on achievement of
challenging financial performance measures set at the beginning

of the year The financial performance measures that apphed to
Ashley Almanza and Himanshu Raja were based on budgeted group
profit before tax and amortisation and budgeted group operating
cash flow before capital expenditure The financial performance
measures for Grahame Gibson consisted of four financial objectives,
three of which were for the Americas region and the fourth was
related to group PBTA On-target performance would result in

a payment of 60% of maximum entrtlerment, with [00% only being
earned In the event of achievement of a stretch performance
significantly in excess of budget

The remaning 5% was linked to objectives relating to non-financial
performance, which consist of personal objectives or relate to the
organisation In ine with all senior business leaders across the group,
the executive directors’ personal performance-related objectives
included an objective on health and safety

The maximum bonus potential has remained unchanged from
2013 Itis 150% of base pay for Ashley Almanza and Himanshu
Raja and 125% of base pay for Grahame Gibson Bonuses are pard
in cash up ta 50% of maximum entitlement Where the bonus
amount s in excess of 50% of the maximum bonus potential, the
amaount which exceeds 50% will be delivered in the form of a
deferred share award which vests after a period of three years

The tables below show how pay was linked to performance in 2014
and set out details of each of the financial measures the targets in
respect of these measures and the actual outcemes

Ashiey Almanza
% of
maximum Score
Financial measures Targets Achievernent bonus achieved
Group PBTA £279m £304m 0% 7%
Group OCF £511m £553m 15% 15%
Tosl B5% 85%

Non-financial objectives were set in the following areas
Heatth and Safety

Strategy

Pecple organisaton & values

Governance

Stakehotder Engagement

15 % of maxamum bonus potential was allocated 1o non-finanaal measures
and the level of achievement was assessed at | 3%.

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Himanshu Raja

Kol

maximurm Score
Financial measures Targets Achievement bonus achieved
Group PETA £279m £304m 70% 70%
Group OCF £511m £553m 15% 15%
Toral 85% 8sx%
Nen-financial objectives were set in the following areas
Health & Safety
People capability bulding values and orgamsation
Governance & control
Operatanal Excellence
Cost Leadership intatives
15% of maxamum bonus potential was allocated to non-financial measures
and the level of achievement was assessed at 10%
Grahame Gibson

% of

mMaximum Scare
Financial measures Targets Achievement bonus achieved
Group PBTA £279m £304m 15% 15%
Regional PBITA £118m £114m 40% 1904%
Regional Qrganic Growth 8 1% 9 2% 15% 15%
Regional QCF £138m £110m 15% 0
Total B5% 4% 04%

Non-financial objecuves were set in the following areas

Health & Safety

Business Development/growth

Operauonal Excellence

People Organsation 8 values

Cost teadership iniuatives

15% of maxamum bonus potential was ullacated to nan-financial measures
and the level of achievement was assessed at 8%.

The table below sets out the annual bonus awards which were
made to executive directors in respect of the financial year
ending 3| December 2014

2014 annual

2014 annual bonus

2014 annugl  bonus (% of  deferred (%

bonus {£) salary) of salary)

Ashley Almanza £1 308,300 147% 72%
Hirmanshu Raja £890425 142% 68%
Grahame Gibson £439 823 1% 9%

*  Any bonus due above 50% of the indmdual s maximurn bonuws entitlement
is awarded as deferred shares which vest after a period of three years

Deferred

Cash shares

Ashley Almanza £667 500 £640 800
Himanshu Raja £468 750 £421 875
Grahame Gibson £380678 £59 145

The PSP value shown in the single figure table relates to the 2012 PSP awards made in March 2012 The performance measures
were earmings per share growth and relative total shareholder return Nerther of these performance tests were met and the outstanding

award lapsed

-
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

TOTAL PENSION ENTITLEMENTS (AUDITED INFORMATION)
Nerther Ashley Almanza nor Himanshu Raja 15 2 member of the group s pension plan which s a defined contrbution group personal
pension plan avallable to all UK employees Instead they receive cash allowances of 25% and 20% of their base pay, respectively

Grahame Gibson ceased accruing penstons under the company's defined benefit scherne in 2006 A salary supplement in lieu of pension
of 40% of basic salary was paid His accrued pension at the relevant dates in the defined benefits scheme {all figures are in £:000s) 1s shown

in the table below

Total accrued Total accrued

Pension nput Pension input annual annual Normal

amount amount pensicn at pension at  Date accrual retirement

014 2013 3141214 3H1213 ceased date

Graharmme Gibson 0 1] 242 217 6/4/2006 1 7/172013

Notes.

I In 201t Grahame Gibson transferred the majon ity of fis pension benefits to a private pension arrangement leaving a residual pension payable from age 60
Grahame Gibson has passed normal reurement date and the accrued pension shown includes the application of a tate retirement factor

2 The earliest date when entitlement to a pension anises without consent and without actuanal reduction 1s age 60 (the normal retirement. date)

3 On 3 March 2015, Grahame Gibson transferned his remaning and residual pension benefits in an amount of £363 188 10 a private pension arrangement.
The transfer value was calculated using the same actuanal basis as that used by the trustees of the pensior: scheme for all members,
SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (AUDITED INFORMATION)
Awards under the LTIP approved by the shareholders at the company’s AGM in June 2014 were made n July 2014 They were, however
deemed to have been made in March in order to be consistent with the compary’s normal grant pohcy Details of the awards made to
the executive directors are summarised in the table below and further detalls are given in the table on directors shareholdings and nterests

on page 81

Numberof  Face value EPS TSR and AOCF % vesting at
Director Award type shares (£) Performance condition Performance penod threshoid
Ashley Almanza Caondrional shares 962370 2235000 40% EPS/ 30% TSR/ 30% AQCF  01/0172004 31122016 25%
Grahame Gibson Conditional shares 463615 1071880  40% EPS/ 30% TSR/ 30% AOCF  01/01/2014  31/12/2016 25%
Himanshu Raja Condiional shares 540657 1,250000  40% EPS/ 30% TSR/ 30% AOCF  01/0112014 3171272016 25%

| The face value calculation was based on a share price of £2 312 which represents the average closing share price duning the three business days following

the announcement of the company s 2013 financal results

L Further detaiis on performance conditions are set out in the table below

PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR LONG TERM INCENTIVES AWARDED IN 2014

40% of each award granted 30% of each award granted 30% of each award granted
Average annual growth in Proporuon of Ranking against the bespoke Proporuon of Average operaung cash Proportion of
EPS period ending cn 31 allocation vesting comparator group by allocanon vesting flow allocation vestung
December in the third year reference to TSR
Less than 5% pa Nl Belerw median il <|05% Nl
5% pa {}5% over 3 years) 25% Median 25% 105% 25%
+ 510 12% pa Pro-rata between 25% Between median and upper  Pro rata between 25% Between 105% and 125% Pro rata between 25%
and 100% quartile and 100% and 100%
Greater than + 12% pa 100% Upper quarile 100% 125% 100%

{35% over 3 years)

The bespoke comparaior group consists of companies constituent
of the FTSE 100 index corrected to exclude finanaial nstitutions
and companies In the extractive sector and include competitor
companies which are outside that index.

The company's current pohicy is to use market purchased shares
to satisfy LTIP awards Participants in the LTIP will recewve a further
share award with a value equivalent to the dividends which would
have been paid in respect of LTIP awards, vesting at the end of the
performance penod
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The company calculates whether the EPS performance targets

have been achieved by reference to the company's audited accounts
which provide an accessible and objective measure of the
company's earmings per share The committee may alter the terms
of the EPS measure If it feels that it 1s no longer a far measure and
15 no longer ncentvising TSR ranking will be venfied externally




STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING AND SHARE INTEREST (AUDITED INFORMATION)

The executive directors are required to buld up a minimum shareholding in G4S, as explamned m the remuneration policy Shares are
valued for these purposes at the year-end price, which was 277 90p per share at 3| December 2014

Number of shares owned outrght

Number of Total shares Share
Deferred under LTIP ownership Shareholding
shares held as awards subject requirements requIrements
2014 013 at31/12/14 10 performance {% of salary) achieved
Ashley Almanza 100 000 100000 B85 640 1739407 200% 3%
Hunanshw Raja 50000 o] 50686 888,188 {50% 1%
Grahame Gibson 657553 659 208 0 11411310 150% 100%

MNotes

Deferred share awards and PSP or LTIP awards do not include the further shares with a value equivalent 1o the dwvidends which are paid in respect of
shares receved The number of shares is gross and will be subject to tax when they are released

In addition to the above each of the directors has a deemed interest in the total number of shares held by the company s employee benefit trust
As at 3] December 2014 the trustees of the employee benefit trust held 6 408 450 shares (2013 — 6934 564)

Includes any shares owned by connected persons

The table does not include the deferred shares awarded to Ashley Aimanza Himanshu Rzja and Grahame Gibson in respect of the portion of their
annual bonus for the 2014 financiat year which exceeds 50% of thewr respective maxarmum bonus entrifement

5 There were no vested but unexercised interests
The shareholdings for non-executive directors are shown below
As at As at
31122014 31122013
John Connolly 200 000 100 Q00
Adam Crozier 2000 0
Mark Elhott 25,000 25000
Winne Fok 20000 20000
Mark Seligman 75 496 75496
Paul Spence 10000 100C0
Clare Spottiswoode 4 681 4 681
Tim Weller 37 570 37570

There have been no changes in the interests of each of the directors between 31 December 2014 and the date of this report

There are no requirements for the non-execuiive directors or former directors to hold shares once they have left the company

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS (AUDITED INFORMATION})
No payments have been made to former directors of the company during the financial year ended 3| December 2014 other than
those payments set out befow (Payments for loss of office)

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Trevor Dighton

Trevor Dighton, who stepped down as a director of the company in June 2013, ceased to be an employee on 30 July 2014 Mr Dighton
was entitled under the terms of his contract to payment comprising the following until his departure

« Base pay of £42 500 per month

+ Car allowance of £1,333 33 per month

« Cash allowance in lieu of pension of £17 000 per month

The total payment made for the period from | January 2014 1o 30 July 2014 was £425 833 No further payment is due to be made

Trevor Dighton has not receved any bonus in respect of the year under review His unvested awards under the PSP were subject
to performance and were pro-rated to 30 July 2014 The award made in 2012 did not vest as the performance tests were not met
The award made in 2013 remains subject to performance which will be tested at the normal vesting date
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE

The line graph below shows the rune-year annual Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance against the FTSE 100 index The directors
believe this to be an approprate form of broad equity market index against which to base a companison given the size and geographic
coverage of the company and the fact that the company s itself a member of the FTSE100

2006 — 2014 Total Shareholder Return

o] 06 o7 08 (1] 10 I 12 13 14
== (G4S =8=FT5SE |00 index

CEQO’S PAY IN LAST NINE FINANCIALYEARS

Year 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 200 012 2013 2014
Nick Nick Nick MNick Mick Nick MNick Nick Ashley Ashley
Incumbent Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Almanza Almanza
CEQ s wotal single figure of annud
remuneration(£ 000) 1908 2269 2376 3248 2823 1542 1,186 514 1 459 251
Bonus % of maxmum awarded T6% 95% 83% 74% 53% 0% 0% 0% 72% 98%
PSP% of maxmuom vesting 63% 75% 100% 100% 58% 14% 0% 0% n/a nia
Notes

I Nick Buckles stepped down as CEO on 31 May 2013 and Ashley Almanza took over as CEO from | june 2013

2 After July 2011 the CEQs total single figure of annual remuneration included payment in fieu of pension This was 40% of base pay for Nick Buckles and 15 25%
of base pay for Ashley Almanza, Pnor to July 201 | a notonal sum equal to 40% of relevant base pay has been included The value of shares that vested in the
relevant year under the PSP (or a notenal value in the case of shares vested but unexercised) have been included in the prior years CEQO s total figures since that

1s the most relevant year for measurement of performance
3 The figures before 2013 did not include taxable expenses

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN CEO'S REMUNERATION
The table below shows how the percentage change n the CEO’s
salary, benefits and bonus between 2013 and 2014 compares with
the percentage change in the average of each of those components
of pay for a selected group of G4S employees The Remuneration
Committee has chosen all employees in the UK as the group which
should provide the most appropriate comparator

Percentage change in remuneration
between 2013 and 2014

GA4S employs over 623 000 employees globally Inflation 1s a key
driver of general increases in salary and the structure of the
benefits provided s often drven by the local market practice
Hence as the Group CEO 1s based in the UK, employees in the
same country rather than all employees within the group have been
chosen as the comparator

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE COF SPEND ON PAY
The table below illustrates the relative importance of spend on
pay compared with other disbursements from profit

Annual
Salary Benefits Bonus Disbursements 2014 2013 Change
CEOQ 57% 1B% 101% Dradends pad £138m £130m 62%
See note Total employee costs £4952m  £5333m* (7 1%)

Average change for all other UK employees (29%) (33%) below

* Information on benuses is not readily available for all other UK employees.
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STATEMENT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF
REMUNERATION PCLICY IN 2015

A summary of the directors’ remuneration policy 1s set out
on pages 72 to 77 and the full policy can also be found on
www g4s com/investors

Executive directors’ remuneration

Reurements
As reported in October 2014, Grahame Gibson will retire from
the board at the Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2015

The committee will consider the retirement arrangements for
Mr Gibson over the coming months, and we will provide fult
disclosure of these arrangements In next year's report

Base pay

For 2015 at the annual pay review it was dectded to increase
Ashley Almanza's and Himanshu Rajas base pay by 3% from
£890,000 and £625,000 respectively to £916,700 and
£643.750 respectively No change was made to the base pay
of Grahame Gibson

Annual Bonus Scheme

The annual bonus for the 2015 financtal year will operate on

the same basis as that for 2014 and wili be consistent with the
remuneration policy The maxtimum bonus opportunity remains at
150% of base pay for both Ashley Almanza and Himanshu Raja
and 125% of base pay for Grahame Gibson The financial measures
are group earrings and operating cash flow These have been
selected as they suppaort the company s key strategic objectives As
for tast year, the financial measures are allocated an 85% weighting
For Messrs Almanza and Raja non-financial measures will account
agan for up to 15% of their maximum bonus opportunity

These are based on the group's core values and cover the following
key areas

« Heafth & Safety

* Growth, Market Share and Reputation

= Best People

*» Operational Excellence

» Cost leadership

* Values

Mr Gibson's bonus will be measured sclely aganst the financial
measures mentioned above Details of the performance measures and
targets are deemed to be commercally sensitive since they relate to the

2015 financial yearTo the extent that they are no longer commercially

sensitwe targets and performance levels against them waill be disclosed
i the company’s 2015 annual report and accounts The proposed

target levels for 2015 have been st to be challenging and align with the

business plan In revewng the targets, the committee took Into account
a number of factors including for example the fact that in relation to

group earmings, the rinimum target that needs to be met In order for

any bonus to be payable must be at least equal to the earnings in 2014

The committee considered the proposed targets relating to non-

financal measures and concluded that these were also demanding,

Long Term Incentive Plan

The level of awards due to be granted in the 2015 financial year
uncler the LT!P approved by the shareholders at the 2014 AGM

will be consistent with the rermuneration policy As for 2014, the
Remuneration Commuttee considers that a combinatron of earnings
per share growth, total shareholder retumn and cumulative cash flow
targets are the most appropnate performance measures for the
2015 awards as they provide a transparent method of assessing

the company’s performance, both in terms of underlying financial

performance and returns 1o shareholders

Awards granted under the LTIP durning the 2015 financal year are
subject to the performance conditions listed in the table below

PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR LONG TERM INCENTIVES AWARDED IN 2015

40% of each award granted

30% of each award granted

30% of each award granted

Average annual growth in Proportion of Ranking against the Proportion of Average operating Proporuon of

EPS period ending on 31 allocanion vesung bespoke comparator group  allocation vesung cash flow atlocation vestng

December in the third year by reference to TSR

Less than 5% pa Nil Below median Nil < 105% Nil

5% pa (15% over 3 years} 25% Median 25% 105% 25%

+ 510 17% pa Pro rata between 25% Between median and Pro rata between 25% Between 105% and 125% Pro rata between 25%
and 100% upper quartile and |00% and 100%

Greater than + 12% pa 100% Upper quartile 100% 125% 100%

(36% over 3 years)

The companys current pahcy 1s to use market purchased shares
to satisfy LTIP awards

Participants in the LTiP waill receve a further share award wath
a value equivalent to the dwidends which would have been pad
n respect of LTIP awards vesting at the end of the

performance period

The company calculates whether the EPS performance targets

have been achieved by reference to the company's audited accounts
which provide an accessible and objective measure of the
companys earmings per share

Adjustments to the EPS will be made in respect of

+ Constant exchange rates — in line with previous years, these
will be normalised to the rates in the base year
« Acquisitions — earnings will be added to the EPS base at the level
used In the acquisition business case
* Disposals ~ earnings will be removed from the EPS base at the
business plan rate
Share buy-back - the company will only execute buy-backs if the
Investment 1s economically accretive and it 1s in the interest of the
company The adjusted EPS for the purposes of calculating
performance against the LTIP target shall be further adjusted by
(a) increasing the average number of shares in 1ssue during the
performance year by the number of shares bought back during
the past three years
(b) Decreasing the net interest cost in the performance year in
respect of the interest charge on the cash cost of any share buy
backs during the past three years Interest will be calculated at the
groups average costs of funds for the year
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

The Remuneration Committee will apply discretion in the event of iImpairment If the impairment 15 not a result of management farlure

then it will not impact the payout

The Remuneration Committee may alter the terms of the EPS measure if it feels that it 1s no longer a far measure and 1s no longer

Incentivising

-

Operating cash flow is a measure taken before capital expendrture and investments to ensure that management s not incentivised to
under-invest in growth opportunities Operating cash flow 1s expressed as EBITDA +/- worlung capital and provisions movemenit as a
percentage of EBITDA Average operating cash flow 1s the average over three years

TSR ranking will be venfied externally

Non-executive directors’ remuneration

The fees payable to the non-executive directors are set by the executive directors and the chairman The fees payable to the non-executive
chairman are set by the Remuneration Committee In both cases, fees are reviewed mid-year

ADVISORS TO THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For 2014, the Remuneration Cormmittee receved advice from Delortte as the committee’s appointed advisor on executive and senior
management remuneration rmatters Towers Watson provided management remuneration informatton in respect of serior management
whao are not on the board The Remuneration Committee has satishied itself as to the independence of Deloitte Deloitte 1s a member
of the Remuneraton Consuttants Group and operates voluntarily under 1its code of conduct th the UK,

Advisor Appotntment

Services provided to Remuneratuon Committee Feesfor  Other services provided 1o Company

s&rvices to
Rem Co

TowersWatson 2006

Information on executive rermuneration and pay benchmarking £23005  Prowvision of market remuneration

data for semor management collation
of pension data for accounting
purposes and pensicns advice

Deloitte 2014

Adwice on executrve remuneration £57 200  Adwice on controls, tax advice on

expatriate and share plans and also
provided other consulting services.
These services were provided by
different parts

of Delortte

Alithos 2007

TSR —vesung indicatiens for n-flight plans verifying the TSR £10000  MNore

vesting percentage and advice on potenual peer companies

Fees for services to the Remuneration Committee are at an agreed rate based
on tme involved

Herbert Sruth Freehls LLP {HSF) provided legal adwice to

the company, including in relation to the operation of the
company’s Incentive arrangements and on executive directors’
service agreements This advice was avallable to be considered by
the Remuneration Commitiee

The group chief executive, Ashley Almanza, provided guidance

to the Remuneration Committee on remuneration packages for
senior executives within the group Further guidance was receved
from the group’s HR director, Irene Cowden and the director of
compensation and benefits Sok Wah Lee Nerther the group chief
executive nor the group HR director participated in discussions
regarding their own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee 1s satisfied that the advice 1t receved
during the year was objective and independent based on the
expenience of its members generally

Information about who are the members of the Remuneration
Committee and their attendance at meetings of the committee
during the year under review can be found on page 71
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STATEMENT OFVOTING AT GENERAL MEETING

At the company’s Annual General Meeung which took place on

5 June 2014 two ordinary resolutions were passed, one to approve
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy set cut in the annual report for
the year ended 3| December 2013 and ancther to receve and
approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended
3| December 2013

The results of the vote are set out In the table below

Resclution For Aganst Withheld
Directors Remuneration Pelicy 9818% 162% 787216
Directors Remuneration Report 28 25% 1 75% 37767285
Mark Elliott

Remuneration Cornmittee Chairman

26 March 2015




Directors’ report

This is the report of the directors of the board of G4S plc for
the year ended 3| December 2014

| The company

G4 ple 1s a parent company with subsidiaries, associated
undertakings and joint ventures in numerous junsdictions

GA45 plc has its pnmary listing on the London Stock Exchange and a
secondary listing on the NASDAQ OMX exchange in Copenhagen

2 Reporting obligauons

In compliance with relevant listing rules and also DTR4 1 5R

and DTR4 | 8R, the annual report contains the consolidated resutt
for the year, shown in the consclidated income statement on page
99, a management statement contained in the Strategic Report and
m the Directors' report and responsibility statements on

pages 85 to 88

Detalls of the development and performance of the group's
business dunng the year, its position at the year end, future
developments, principal nsks and uncertainties and prospects of
the group and other information which fulfil the requirements of
a management report are contained on pages 8 to 50 of the
Strategic Report and are incorporated by reference in this
Directors’ report The Corporate governance report the Audit
Committee report and the Directors remuneration report set
out on pages 51 to 84 and the chuef financizl officer’s review on
pages 89 to 95 are also incorporated in this report by reference
The group's financial nsk management objectives and policies in
relation to s use of financial nstruments, and 1ts exposure to price
credit, iquidity and cash flow risk, to the extent matenal are set
out in note 3| to the consolidated finanoal statements on pages
|37 to 141 which s also incorporated by reference in this
Directors’ report.

3 Dividends

The directors propose the following net dvidend for the year

* Intenm dividend of 342p (DKK 03198) per share paid on
|7 October 2014

* Final dvadend of 5 82p (DKK Q604 1) per share payable on
12 June 2015

Sharehclders on the Damish VP register will recewe their dividends
i Darush kroner Shareholders who hold their shares through
CREST or in certificated form will receive their dvidends in sterling
unless they prefer to receve Danish kroner in which case they
should apply n writing to the Registrars by no later than

7 May 2015

4 Significant busmess acquisitions, disposals and
developments

* In January 2014, G45 Cash Solutions (Canada) Limited

was disposed of in Canada

In January 2014 G4S Holdings (Narway} AS was disposed of
1in Norway

In March 2014, a settlement agreement was entered into with
the Ministry of Justice in the UK in relation to contracts for
electrontc monitoring services provided between 2005 and 2013
and two faciliues management contracts

In July, G4S Secure Solutions AB was disposed of in Sweden

» In November 2014, the US Government Solutions business
was disposed of in the USA,

In January 2015, refinancing of the mult-currency revohving
credit faciity agreement with a new princtpal amount of

GBP 1,000 000,000 was completed

5 Capital

The 1ssued share capital of G4S ple at 31 December 2014 1s as
set out on page 151 {note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements} and consisted of 1,551,594 436 ordinary share of

25 pence each The number of shares in 1ssue as at 26 March 2015
remains unchanged

Resolutions granting the directors power, subject to certain
conditions, to allot and make market purchases of the company's
shares will be proposed at the company’s Annual General Meeting
The resolutions are set out in the Notice of Meeting on pages 165
and 1 66 and further explanation 1s prowded on pages 169 and 170
At 31 December 2014 the directors had authonty in accordance
with a resolution passed at the company’s Annual General Meeting
held on 5 June 2014 to make market purchases of up to
155,159,000 of the company’s shares

The company does not hold any treasury shares as such However
the 6,408,450 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust
("the Trust”) and referred to on page 151 (note 36 10 the
consolidated financial statement) are accounted for as treasury
shares The Trust has waived its nght to recewve dividends in
respect of the company’s shares which 1t held during the period
under review

6 Significant agreements

The company was party to a GBP 1,100 000,000 multi-currency
revolving credit facility agreement which required prompt
notification of a change of control event following which funds
commiited but unutilised could be cancelled and repayment of
outstanding commitments would need to be made within 45 days

This facility was refinanced, effective 7 January 2015 with a new
principal amount of GBP | 000,000,000 The change of control
clause remains unchanged

The company entered mnto two US Private Placement Note
Purchase Agreements {the "USPP Agreements }, on | March 2007
and |5 July 2008 respectively The first USPP Agreement is for
WSD 550,000,000 and series B-D semor notes representing

USD 450,000,000 remain cutstanding and mature between

} March 2017 and 1 March 2022 The second USPP Agreement

1s for USD 513500000 and GBP 69,000,000 and seres B-F senior
notes representing USD 448,500 000 and GBP 69,000,000 remain
outstanding and mature between |5 July 2015 and 15 July 2020
Under the terms of both USPP Agreements the company 1s
required to offer the note holders the nght to purchase the

notes at par value together with interest thereon upon a change
of control

Under the terms of the GBP 2,000,000,000 Euro Mecium
Term Note Programme the company issued three tranches of
Medium Term Notes (MTNs) to various institutions on |3 May
200% (GBP 350,000,000, 2 May 2012 (Euro 600,000,000) and
& December 2012 (Euro 500000.000). In the event of a change
of control, a put option comes into force according to which
holders of any MTN may require the company to redeem the
MTNs at par if the MTNs carry a sub-investment grade in the
period mmediately prior to the change of control, or in certan
circumstances where the MTNs are downgraded to sub-investment
as a result of the change of control
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Directors’ report continued

7 Research and development expenditure

Research in connection with the development of new services

and products and the improvement of those currently provided

by the group s carned out continuously Research and development
written-off to profit and loss duning the year amounted to

£10m (2013 £5m}

8 Employees

For the group's business to be successiul and sustainable 1 the
future, the directors recognise the imnportance of having highly
engaged employees They act as ambassadors for the G45 brand
by providing great customer service and many want to stay with the
organisation long term To continually improve levels of employee
engagement, the group aligns its strategies to the PRIDE model
which sets out how the group should protect, respect. involve,
develop and engage people Businesses develop their own
employee engagement plans based on feedback obtained from a
group-wide bienmal employee survey where the questions asked
relate to the PRIDE model In the last survey in 201 3, over 380000
employees shared their views about how they felt about working
for G45 and for the last 12 months plans have been implemented
to respond to the i1ssues they raised

As an organisation with a hugely diverse workforce the group

has opportunities for generating innovative 1deas and creating
competitive advantage The group’s ability to leverage this advantage
15 best achieved If an environment 15 created where employees

feel included and able to share therr own ideas and challenge other
pecple’s To help create such an environment the group has
employment policies and procedures that do not discriminate and
make 1t clear that behawviours that seek to undermine the dignity

of others will not be tolerated These policies cover aspects of
employment such as recrutment and training, development and
premotion opportunities They are intended to ensure that the
group s able to reach the widest talent pools in order to source
the best people Once recrurted, the group wants to enable people
to reach their full potential regardless of their background or any
disablities The group s inclusive approach to employment and
efforts to support employees who face challenges when they
become disabled in the course of therr work are some of the
rany reasons why over B0% of respondents in the last employee
engagement survey stated that they would recommend G45 as

an employer to a friend

Protecting the group's employees 1s important not only as one of
the drivers of engagement, but also as a business prionty given the
groups challenging and sometimes hostite operating environments
Hawving robust secunty practices helps ensure the safety of the
group’s own employees as well as those of 1ts custorners, so that
both ¢an perform their duties without fear of harm As well as these
procedures, the group has a clearly defined health and safety
strategy and management system that dentifies the actions needed
for businesses to improve their safety performance This includes
communication and consultation with employees an matters of
health and safety Safety cormmittees and representatives fulfil a vital
role in raising potental problems, reinforaing safety messages and
updating processes and procedures as operations change
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In the last 12 months the group has accelerated s efforts to
embed a health and safety cutture with the addttion of ‘safety first’
as a core value, the delivery of a seres of toolkits and templates
to Improve road safety awareness and the provision of en-line
training about safety leadership There 1s much more to do and
efforts will continue 1In 2015 to protect the group’s people and
work towards its goal of zero harm

The group 1s commutted to union relations at global European
and local country and business unit levels and has both a
well-established international framework agreement with the
global union federation UNI, and a European Works Councl
Some of the group’s union relationships have existed for over a
decade, with high levels of trust and respect developed on both
sides Regular meetings with employee representatives take place
with consultation and communication including updates on the
companys performance and any financial or economic factors
affecting &£, The meetings also enable businesses to gather
feedback on employee views about proposed changes and any
concerns which may ctherwise escalate f not addressed quickly
In non-urionised businesses other employee forums and
cormnmunication channels such as newsletters and employee
brefings are used to ensure people are updated regularly on the
company's performance and have the opportunity to ask questions
on matters likely to affect thewr interests

9 Financial instruments

Details of the financial risk management objectives and policies

of the group and exposure to Interest risk, credit risk, hquidity risk
and foreign exchange risk are given in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements

10 Political donanons

Each year the company's shareholders have passed a resclution

on a precautionary basis 1o allow the company and its subsidianes
to make politicat donations to political organisations or incur
polrical expenditure not exceedng £50,000 However the board
confirms that the group's policy 1s not to make any financal
contribution to political parties and that the company and its
subsidiaries have made no contributions during the year to political
parties carrying on aclivities, or to candidates seeking election
within the £, or anywhere else in the world

Il Greenhouse gas emissions

Alongside the risks faced by people and infrastructure from climate
change are the challenges presented by the economic chmate
Increased fuel costs and the introduction of carbon taxes” ensure
that energy efficency and ervironmental impact remain important
to the effectiveness and sustainability of our business We recognise
the impact that our business actevities can have on the erwironment
and are commtted to managing this impact In a responsible manner
Through our chimate action programme we measure, report and
aim to reduce the intensity of our environmental impact

VWhat we are doing

Since 2008 we have used WBCSD' and WRI GHG™ protocols
to measure our Scope | and 2 emissions — vehidle fleet, fuel
refrigerants and electrniaity usage for GA45 businesses over which
we have financial and operational control In addition we have
measured Scope 3 emissiens from employee business air travel




The businesses that reported data in our 2014 GHG measurement
represent 95 4% of the group’s operations, across a |2 month
penod This level of measurement, including each of our main
service types allows us to calculate refiably the total GHG
emussions for 100% of the group

How we are performing

The G45 total carbon footpnint during 2014, extrapolated to 100%
of the business equates to some 538 303 /CO,¢ Since 2010, our
carbon intensity has decreased by |5 7% per £m of revenue This
reduction translates to a rea! reduction of 5 6% n carbon emissions
against a 24 6% growth in the business during the same period,
much of which inciudes carbon emissions from services which our
customers have outsourced to G4S This 1s a positive achieverment
which recognises the efforts made to increase the energy and fuel
efficency of our business

*+  World Business Ceuncll for Sustainable Development.

** World Resources Institute greenhouse gas

GHG emissions

(Based on 95 4% measurement) 2013 2014

Vehicles {inc refrigerants) 319,902 322,674
Total buildings (inc refrigerants) 169,435 157,031
Inclucing electricity ermusstons of 129,352 124,000
Ar travel 23793 20,925

Carbon intensity

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Tonnes CO2e per
£m turnover 905 854 793 814 763

Due 1o a falure of our supplier's management systems 1t has
been necessary to estmate 33% of our UK energy consumption
dunng 2014, equating to some 2% of our overall energy usage

To estimate this figure, we calculated an average dally consumption
rate based on our previous ussage, taking national weather and
temperature data nto account, this was then extrapolated to
cover the missing perod

Prioriues for 2015
Continue to implement energy efficiency strategies with the aim
of reducing carbon intensity by at least 4 5% per annum

For further details of our clirmate action programme, please
visit www gds com/cap

[2 Substantial hoidings
The company had been notified under DTR 5 of the following
interests in the ordinary capstal of G45 plc

Asat 3| 122014

Invesco 217.113.381(1399%)

Tweedy, Brown Company LLC 71420862 (506%)"

Caollege Retirement Equities Fund 49 655,900 (3 2%)

* noufication recenved pror 1o the 1ssue of 140925 757 new shares on
28 August 2013 therefore percentage based on total shares In issue
prior to that date

Beoween | | 2015 and 26 3 2015

College Retirement Equities Fund 47,686,279 (3073%)

|3 Auditor

A resolution to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP chartered
accountants, as auditor 1o the company for 2015 and for therr
remuneration to be fixed by the Audit Committee will be
submitted to the Annual General Meeting The financial staternents
on pages 99 to 164 have been audited by KPMG Audit Plc

14 Directors
The directors, bicgraphical details of whom are contained on
pages 52 and 53, held office throughout the year

In accordance with the code provisions on re-election of directors
in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 each of the directors
continuing in office will offer themselves for re-election Messrs
Gibson and Seligman will retire from the board at the con¢lusion

of the company’s Annual General Meeting in 2015 and will not
therefore stand for re-election The board beheves that the directors
standing for re-election possess experience and expertise relevant
to the company s operations, that they continue to be effective, that
they are committed to the success of the company; and that they
should be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting

a

The contracts of service of the executive directors have no
unexpired term since they are not for a fixed term They are
terminable at 12 months' notice None of the non-execuive
directors has a contract of service

The company has executed deeds of indemnity for the benefit

of each of the directors in respect of habilites which may attach to
them In their capacity as directors of the company These deeds are
qualifying third party indemnity prowisions as defined by section 234
of the Companies Act 2006 and have been in effect since

3 November 2006 for Messrs Elliott, Seligman and Gibson

14 jJune 2010 for Ms Spothiswoode, | October 2010 for Ms Fok,

8 June 2012 for Mr Connally, | January 2013 for Messrs Spence and
Crozier, | Apnl 2013 for MrWeller | May 2013 for Mr Almanza and
7 October 2013 for Mr Raja Copes of the forms of indemnity are
avalable on the companys website In addition, indemnities have
been granted by the company 1 favour of certain of the directors
of certan of the group s subsidianes in the UK, Gerrmany and the
Netherlands The company has maintaned a drectors’ and officer s
hability insurance policy throughout the year under review

Detalls of directors’ interests (including the interests of their
connected persons) in the share caprtal of G45 plc and of the
directors’ remuneration are set out on pages 70 to 84

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Drrectors report confirm that, so far as they are each aware

there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company's
auditor s unaware and each director has taken all the steps that
he or she ought to have taken as a director to make him or herself
aware of any relevant audrt information and to establish that the
company's auditor is aware of that information

None of the directors had a material interest in any contract
significant to the business of the group during the financial year

By order of the board

Peter David
Company Secretary

26 March 2015
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Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
annual report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the group and parent company financial statemertis in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that law
they are required 1o prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and apphcable law
and have elected to prepare the parent company financal
statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standands

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial

staterments unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and

of thewr profit or loss for that period In preparing each of the

group and parent company financial statements the directors are

required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

* make Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

* for the group financial statements state whether they have been
prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU

* for the parent company financial statements, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any materal departures disclosed and explained in the parent
company financial statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the group and the
parent company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financia! postion of the parent company and enable them
to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also
responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report
Chrectors remuneration report and Corporate governance
statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity

of the corporate and financial information included on the
cornpany's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions
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Directors’ responsibility statement

Each of the directors, the names of whom are set out on pages

52 and 53 of this annual report, confirm that, to the best of his or

her knowledge

* the financial statements i this annual report have been prepared
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and give
a true and far view of the assets habiliues financiat position and
profit of the company and the group taken as a whole and

* the management report required by DTR4 1 8R (contained in
the Strategic Report and the Directors report) includes a far
review of the developrnent and performance of the business
and the posiion of the company and the group taken as a whale,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertanties
they face

The Strategic Report from the inside front cover to page 50

and pages 8% to 95 includes information on the group structure, the
performance of the business and the principal risks and
uncertainties it faces The financial statements on pages 99 to

+64 include information on the group and the company’s financial
results, financial outlook, cash flow and net debt and balance sheet
positions Notes 22, 26,27, 30 and 31 to the consolidated financral
staternents include information on the groups investments cash and
cash equivalents borrowings, denvatives, financial risk managerment
objective, hedging policies and exposure 1o interest, foreign
exchange, credit lquidity and market nsks In addition to the above,
the directors have considered the group's cash flow forecast for the
next 12 months The directors are satished that these cash flow
forecasts, taking into account reasonably possible risk sensitivities
associated with them and the groups current funding and facilibes
and rts funding strategy show that the group will continue to
operate for the foreseeable future

Accordingly the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
group and the company will continue 1o operate within the level
of avallable funding for the foreseeable future and 1t 15 therefore
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statemenits

The directors consider that the annuzl report and accounts, taken
as a whole 15 fair balanced and understandable and prowides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the companys
performance, business model and sirategy

The statement of directors’ responsibiliies and the Strategic
Report was approved by a duly authorised committee of the board
of directors on 26 March 2015 and signed on its behalf by
Himanshu Raga, chief financial officer

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Cfficer

26 March 20i5



Chief Financial Officer’s review

IMAGE REMOVED

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer

Disciplined financial
and risk management

We have made good progress in embedding a
new and robust financial and risk framework
into the business and building the capability
to ensure that the change is enduring.

Introduction
We made good progress during the year in executing our strategic
plans, this 1s reflected in the progress in our financial performance

The group’s revenue from continuing operations increased by
39% to £6,750m PBITA was £424m’, a 7 9% increase on £393m?
in 2013, and earmings grew by H 7% to £210m

Revenue in our emerging markets grew by 8 9% to £2,398m and
now represents 36% (2013 34%) of the groups total revenue and
40% (2013 40%) of the groups PBITA In our develaped markets,
revenue increased by 1 4% to £4.352m with growth of 6 9% in
North America and modest declines in the UK and Europe of

| 3% and 0 6% PBITA in both emerging and developed markets
grew faster than revenue reflecting good operating leverage
across our markets

Other specific items in the current year were a net £66m charge
and resulted from increases in provisions for contract losses of
£45m refating to UK government contracts the re-measurement of
certain balance sheet assets and habikties and other tems of £32m
and a net £10m charge relating to losses from smaller portfolio
entities being sold or ceased and interest and tax from joint
ventures These charges were offset by a pension settlement gan of
£21m relating to the transfer of the Netherlands secure solutions
defined penefit pension scheme o an ndustry-wide scheme

Ouwr restructuring programmes in 2013 and 2014 continued to
deliver good retumns, making the group more efficient and effective
i 1ts operating and overhead base Dunng 2014, we invested a
further £2%m In restructuring programmes principally 1n the UK

& Ireland to bring the Ireland business under UK management and
to introduce a shared services centre in the region, and in

Europe we accelerated some of the best practice plans to reduce
our overheads

The group also recogrised a profit of £63m on discontinued
operations pancipally from the sale of the cash solutions business
in Canada, the businesses in Sweden and Norway and the disposal
of US Government Solunons for combined gross proceeds of
£177m We now operate in over | 10 countries Portfolio
management remains an important discipling In ensuring we
maintan strategic focus, capital disaplne and disciplined financial
management across the group

PBIT for the year was £270m compared with the loss of £67m
in 2013 Total profit for the year was £169m compared with a loss
of £35/min 2013

The group has previously highhighted its focus on cash and free
cash flow and it 1s pleasing to report that cash flow from continuing
operations improved by | 1% to £553m (2013 £4%96m) There
remains more 10 do to improve our operational processes around
billing and cash collections and this remains a key target for 2015

The group's net debt at 31 December 2014 was £1.578m
(2013 £1,552m) resulting in a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 28

In January 2015 the group renewed its £1 |bn revolving credit
facility We saw good demand for the new facility of £ 1bn which
matures in January 2020, with the option of two ane year
extensions which If exercised give the group facliies through
to January 2021 and January 2022 respectively

Underlying EPS was [36p,up 54% on 129p 1n 2013 and total
earnings per share was 9 8p compared with loss per share of 24 7p
in 2013 The group has declared a final dividend of 5 82p (2013

5 54p), making the total dmdend for the year 924p (2013 896p)
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

Strengthening our capability
During 2014, we made good progress in strengthening our financial
and risk management across the group

We made a number of key changes across the finance organisation
with the appointment of a new group financial controller, and
appointed new regional finance directors in four of our six regions
They in turn have begun to strengthen the finance capability in thewr
teams We also went lwe on the first phase of our regional shaced
service centres for the UK & Ireland, and are developmng plans to
implement similar shared services in some of our other regions

We brought together our risk and audit funcuons with the
appointment of a Director of Risk and Audit

We made progress in embedding our three lines of defence
model with the introduction of regional sk and audit cormmittees
These provide a key forum to review the regional level nisks for

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Summary income statement
For the year ended 3! December 2014

each region, mitigations and actions and a quarterly review

of internal and external audit matters arising and any key
judgements Significant matters anising from the regional risk

and audit committee are reported to the Board Audit Committee
by the Director of Risk and Audrt

As reported under the govermance report, we have also
strengthened our contract nsk and management processes

Outlook

Our strategic plan addresses a positive, long term demand outlook
for our core services and seeks to deliver sustainable, profitable
growth We are making good progress with the implementation of
our strategic plan and this was clearly reflected in the group's
commeruial, operational and financal perforrmance in 2014 There
remains much to be done te realise the full potential of our strategy
and we expect to make further progress in 2015

Specific items

Acquisition
Underlying  Other specific related Underlying Total
results’ items charges Total results’' results
2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 20132
im £m £m £m im fm
Revenue 6.750 98 - 6.848 6,496 6,615
PBITA before restructuring costs 424 (66) - 358 393 86
Restructunng costs - (29) — (29) — (63)
PBITA 424 (95) - 329 393 23
Amortisation - - (58) (38) - (6%)
Goodwill impairment - -~ - - - (40
Acquisition-related expenses - - () (£)] - (4
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries - - — - — 24
PBIT 4124 (95) (59) 270 393 (67)
Interest (120 (2) - (122) (122) (123)
PBT 304 (97) (59 148 271 (190)
Tax (76) 21 13 (42) (68) (47)
PAT 228 {76) (46) 106 203 (237)
Discontinued operations - 63 - 63 - (114
Profiv/{loss) for the year 228 (13) (46) 16% 203 (35D
Non-controlling interests (18) 1 - (17) (15) 8)
Profit/{loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent 210 (12) (46) 152 188 {359)
Earnings per share Basic and diluted t36p 9 8Bp 12 9p (24 7)p
Reconciliavion of summary income statement to consolidated income statement
The table below reconciles revenue and PBITA as conginally presented in the prior year consohdated income statement to the results
presented in the current year consolidated income statement
2014 2014 2013 2013
Revenue PBITA Revenue PBITA
£m €m £m £m
Statutory results as reported 6,848 414 7428 442
Effect of discontinued operations - - (145) 4
Effect of adoption of IFRS10 and IFRSI | - - (222) zn
Restated results reported in consohdated income statement 6,848 414 7,061 417
Partfolio businesses and joint ventures (98) 10 {19 5
Exchange differences - - {446) (29)
Restated results as reported in the summary income statement 6.750 424 6496 393
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Basis of preparation

The following discussion and analysis 1s based on, and should be
read in conjunction with, the consolidated financial statements
including the related notes, that form part of this annual report
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB and as adopted by the
EU A reconaliation of the summary income statement to the
statutory results 1s set out on page 90

To clearly present the underlying resufts of the group, PBITA
represents the underlying continuing profit before interest, tax and
amortisation of the group, excluding the interest and tax from joint
ventures and the profits and losses of smaller portfolio businesses
being sold or ceased, in ine with the group’s strategy Speaific tems
have been disclosed separately The prior year income statement
comparative Information 1s shown at constant exchange rates on
pages 89 to 95 unless otherwise stated The statutory results of the
group at actual exchange rates are set out on pages 99 to 155

Specific items are those that in management’s judgment need to
be disclosed separately by virtue of their size, nature or incidence
Speaiic tems also include provisions for onerous contracts,
NON-recurring restructuring costs, remeasurement of certan
assets and liabilities and the profit and losses from smaller
portfoho businesses

Revenue

Revenue was £6 750m, an increase of 39% on 2013 Organic
growth was impacted by the loss of three significant contracts in
the UK, Netherlands and Australia

Emerging markets grew 8 9% year on year and, with revenues

of £24bn now represent 36% of group revenue (2013 34%)
Developed markets revenues were | 4% higher than the prior

year with growth in North America of 6 9% offset by a small decline
in Europe of 0 6% As expected, UK & Ireland revenues declined by

| 3% as the Electronic Monitoring contract ended in Q1 2014 and
due to contract rationalisation

Gross margin and PBITA

2004 2013

im £m

Revenue 6,750 6,496
Cost of sales (5.409) (5.202)
Gross profit 1,341 1,294
Gross margin (%) 19 9% 19 9%
Selling general and administrative costs {917) (301)
PBITA 424 393

Gross margin for the year ended 3| December 2014 remaned

at the same level as the prior year Developed markets gross
margin remained constant year on year at |187%, emerging markets
gross margins dechned by 20 basis points to 22 0% (2013 22 2%)
Across the group gross margin benefited from our targeted
restructunng programmes and from the progress on our
accelerated best practice programmes on direct labour efficiency
route planning and telematics

Our seling, generat and administrative expenses were £917m,

a | B% increase year on year This was after the invesiment of
£20m we made i sales and business development capability
There remains much to do to continue to drive productivity across
the group We will continue to seek more efficency n our
organisation and to introduce more efficient and leaner processes

PBITA

PBITA of £424m up 7 9% (2013 £393m) represents the ongoing
operations of the group PBITA margin increased to 6 3%

{2013 60%) benefiting from the progress on our Accelerated
Best Practice programmes on direct labour efficiency route planning
and telematics, focus on organisatonal efficency it included the
nvestment of £20m annualised we made in sales and business
development capability Corporate costs reflect the investment in
financial contrel sk managemenit, procurement and IT capability,
together with an increase in non-cash rtems, resutting i a

£12m increase pnncipally related 1o pensions and LTIPs

2013 PBITA has been restated to adjust for discontinued operations,

portfolio businesses that have been sold or discontinued and for the
impact of adopting the new consclidation and joint arrangement
standards ((FRS10 and IFRS! 1) PBITA also excludes interest and

tax relating to joint ventures which are presented on the assocated
Iines 1n the summary income staterment

Specific items

Speafic tems have been disclosed separately from the underlying
results 1o provide a clear understanding of the undertying trading
performance of the group

Other Spec/fic items

2014 2013
£m £m
Contracts review (45) (136)
Review of assets and habilities (32) (166)
Pension settlement gan 21 -
Portfoho businesses and joint veniures (10) {5)
Restructunng (29) (63)
Discontinued operations and profit on
disposal 63 {90}
Tax, interest and NCI 20 6
(12) (454}

Other spealfic items that have been charged to PBITA in 2014

totalled £95m (2013 £370m) and comprised

= £45m increase in provisions for legacy UK Government contracts
In 203 a provision £136m was taken on onerous contracts
tncluding £116m for the Elecironic Montoring contract which
was settled in March 2014

* A net £1 Im charge, manly ansing from the re-measurement

of the 2013 review of assets and habilties of £32m, offset by a

pension settlement gan of £21m in the Netherlands In the prior

year the group provided £166m against certan asseis and

Labilties as part of the 2013 review

A net £10m charge, being the profit and losses from the smaller

portfolio entities being sold or ceased and interest and tax from

Jjoint ventures

* The group invested £29m in restructuning programmes duning
the year (2013 £63m), including programmes in the UK & Ireland
In addtion major programmes were continued in Europe
implementing accelerated best practice programmes focused
on orgarusational effectiveness and back office synergies

In 2013 £41m was written ofl goodwill on acquisitions and the
group recognised a gan of £24m following the disposal of the
Colombia Data Solutions business
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

Amorusaton and impairment

Acquisition-related intangible assets included in the balance sheet
at 31 December 2014 consisted of £1,939m goodwill

£83m acquisstion-related intangible assets and £82m other
intangible assets

The charge for the year for the amortisation of acquisition-related
intangible assets other than goodwill ameounted to £58m
(2013 £6%m)

Goodwill 1s not amortised, but 1t 1s tested for impairment annually
and the group did not incur any Impairment charge to continuing
or discontinued operations for 2014 In 2013 the group incurred a
charge of £41m (at constant exchange rates) relating to goodwill
impairment. See note 18 on page |28 for details of the results of
the groups mpairment test for the year ended 31 December 2014

Interest and tax

Net interest payable on net debt was £100m (2013 £103m),
benefiting from lower interest rates and a decrease in 2014 average
net debt The pension interest charge was £22m (2013 £20m)
resulting in total net interest costs of £122m (2013 £123m)

The effective tax rate for the year on underlying earnings was
25% (2013 25%)

Discontinued operations

The profit from discortinued operations of £63m compnised
£7 Im of profit on disposal, offset by losses from discontinued
operations of £8m

The profit on disposat arises from the sale of the cash solutions
business in Canada, the businesses in Sweden and Norway and
the disposal of the US Government sclutions business in
November 2014

Proceeds received on the disposal of businesses was £177m dunng
2014 (compnising £159m cash proceeds and £18m relating to the
settlement of outstanding leases) A further $55m mainly relating
to retained receivables 1s due to be recewed over the next

I8 months from the US Government solutions business of which
$15m was receved in anuary 2015

Joint ventures

The group has adopted the three new conschdation standards
IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements’. IFRSI | Joint
Arrangements' and IFRS12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities for the year ended 3| December 2014 For more details
on the smpact of adopting these standards please see note 3(w)

The adoption of these new standards resufted in certan group
businesses being re-classified from subsidianes to joint ventures
and therefore changing from being fully consolidated to

equity accounted

As a result of adopung these standards the group has restated

its prior year resufts which reduced revenue for the year ended

31 December 2013 by £222m and reduced PBITA by £21m
(both at 2013 exchange rates) The entities affected are largely In
the Middle East with a lower or zero effective rate of tax, and have
the effect of increasing the group’s effective tax rate on underlying
PBT to 25%
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Non-controlling interest

Underlying profit attnbutable to non-controlling interests was
£18m in 2014, an increase on £15m for 2013, manly due to the
partners’ share of profit increasing i certan strongly performing
businesses in the Asia Middle East region Total profit attnbutable to
non-controlling interests was £17m in 2014, an increase on £8m
due to the partners’share of spealfic items charges in 2013

Profit for the year

The group made a total underlying profit attnbutable to equny
holders (‘earnings’) of £210m (2013 £188m), an increase of
12% for the year ended 31 December 2014

The group made a profit of £169m (2013 loss of £351m) for the
year after specific iiems interest, tax, amortisaton and the results
of discontinued operations

Earnings per share (EPS)

Underting earnings per share
213 013
at constant at actual
2014 exchange rates exchange rates
£m fm £m
Profit for the year 228 203 222
MNon-controlfing interest 18 15 15
Profit attnbutable
to shareholders 210 |88 207
Average number of
shares (m) 1,545 1,452 1,452
EPS (p) 13 6p 129p 14 3p
Total earnings/{loss) per share
2013 2013
at constant at actual
2014 exchange rates exchange rates
£m £m £m
Profit/{loss) for the yeal 169 (351) (357
Non-controliing interest 17 8 8
Profit/(loss) attributable
to shareholders 152 (359) (365)
Average number of
shares (m) 1,545 1452 1,452
EPS (p) 9 8p (24 7)p (25 )p

Underlying earnings per share increased to §36p (2013 129p)
Total earnings per share was 9 8p {2013 loss per share 24 7p}
These are based on weighted average number of shares in
issue of | 545m (2013 |,452m)

Underlying earnings excludes the results from discontinued
operations and smaller portfolio entities being scld amortisation
and impairment of acquisiion-related intangible assets acquisition-
related costs and specific tems, all net of tax This better aliows the
assessment of operational performance the analysis of trends over
time the comparison of different businesses and the projection

of future performance




Cash flow

A reconcilation of profit/{loss) to movement in net debt s

presented below, with 2014 presented at the actual rates in the

year and the prior year presented at 2013 exchange rates

2014 2013
£m {m

Profit/(loss) retained for the year 152 (365)
Adjustments for non-cash and
other items (page 02) 196 78%
Net cash flow from aperating activities
of continuing operations 348 424
Adjustments 1o exclude
Pension defict payments 42 38
Etectronic Monitoring payments
(including fees) e -
Restructunng investment 47 34
Corporate tems (see below) (27) (76)
Cash flow from operating businesses 526 420
Corporate items
Electronic Monnoring contracts receivable
{2013 Olympics receivable) 7 76
Cash flow from continuing operations 553 496
Cash from discormnued operations (12) 3l
Net cash generated by operations 541 527
Investment in the business
Purchase of fixed assets, net of disposals (122) (167)
Restructuring spend (47) 34
Acquisiions of businesses (3) (23)
Disposal proceeds 159 35
Net debt in disposed entities (12} (12)
Net movement in finance leases (%) (1)
Net investment in the business (34) (213)
Net cash flow after investing in the
business 507 314
Other (uses)/sources of funds
Net financing (114} (108)
Tax 81) (83)
Pensions (42) (38)
Dividends (149} (151
Share capital - 343
Electronic Monitoring (including fees) (1186} -
Other® (23) I8
Net uses of funds (525) (19)
Net cash flow after investment, financing
and tax (18} 295
Net debt at beginning of year (1,552) {1.829)
Foreign exchange {8) (18)
Net debt at end of year (1,578) {1,552)

Cash generated from continuing operations was £553m

(2013 £496m) Operating cash flow from operating businesses

was £526m (2013 £420m) before corporate items 2013 included
£76m relating to the 2012 Olympics and 2014 included the £27m
receipt following the Electronic Monitonng contract settlernent with
the UK Government The group invested £122m in capex, net of
asset disposals in the year (2013 £167m) and recenved proceeds

of £177m from the disposal of portfolio businesses (including £18m
for the settlement of outstanding leases)

The net cash flow after ivesting in the business and proceeds
from portfolio rationalisation was £507m (2013 £314m)
an increase of 61%

Net debt

The net debt position as at 31 December 2014 was £1,578m
(2013 £1,552m) The group s net debt to EBITDA rato was 28
(2013 28}

Net debt maturity

The group's credit rating was confirmed by Standard & Poor's

as BBB- (Stable) in August 2014 As of 3| December 2014 the
group had access to unutised and commutted facilities of £998m
The group has sufficent borrowing capactty to finance its current
and medium term investment plans

The group has no materal debt maturities untl May 2017 and has
a diverse range of finance providers Borrowings are principally in
pounds sterling, US dollars and Euros, reflecting the geograptves of
significant operational assets and profits

The group’s pnmary source of bark finance isa £1 |bn
multi-currency revolving credit facdity (RCF ) prowided by a
consortium of lending banks at a margn of | 3% over LIBOR,
maturing on 16 March 2016

The RCF was successfully renewed on 7 January 2015 with
improved pricing, terms and conditions achieved The new facility 1s
a five-year £1bn committed facility with the option of two one-year
extensions which, if exercsed, gives the group faciliies through 2021
and 2022 respectively The inthial margin over LIBOR 1s 70 bps

The group also has US $450m in financing outstanding from the
private placement of unsecured senior loan notes on | March 2007
maturing at vanous dates between 2017 and 2022 and bearing
interest at rates between 5 86% and 6 06%.The fixed interest rates
payable have been swapped into floating rates for the term of the
notes, at an average margin of 0 60% over LIBOR.

On 15 July 2008, the group completed a further US $514m and
£69m private placement of unsecured senior loan notes, of which
US $449mn and £69m remain cutstanding matunng at various dates
between 2015 and 2020 and bearing interest at rates between
643% and 7 56%. US $200m of the loan note proceeds have been
swapped into £10|m fixed rate sterhing for the term of the notes
and the interest rate on £44m swapped to floating rate Iinked to six
month LIBOR unul july 2017

On 13 May 2009 the group ssued a £350m note bearing an
Interest rate of 7 75% and matunng in 2013 n Apnl 2014 the fixed
Interest rate payable on the note was swapped to floating rate
linked to six month LIBOR untl May 2017
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

On 2 May 2012 the group ssued a €5600m note bearing an mnterest
rate of 2 875% and maturing in 2017 €325m was swapped into
£266m fixed rate sterling and the interest rate on €90m was
swapped to a floating rate inked to six month EURIBOR,

On 6 December 2012 the group 1ssued a €500m note beanng an

interest rate of 2 625% and maturing in 2018 €350m was swapped
into £287m fixed rate sterhing and the interest rate on €120m was
swapped to a floating rate linked to six month EURIBOR.

Dividend

The directors recommend a final dvidend of 5 82p (DKK 0604 ()
per share, an increase of 5% compared to 2013 The intenm
dividend was 3 42p (DKK 0 3198) per share and the total dmdend,
if approved, will be 9 24p (DKK 09239) per share, an increase of
3% compared to 2013

The proposed dividend cover s 15 times (2013 | 6 times)
on adjusted earnings The board'’s imtention 1s that dvidends
wilt increase broadly in line with underiying earnings over the
medium term

Other information

Pensions

As at 3] December 2014 the defined benefit pension obligation
on the balance sheet was £319m (2013 £504m} or £255m net
of tax (2013 £405m) of which £264m (2013 £472m) related 1o
materal funded defined benefit schermes At 31 December 2014
the group transferred its Netherlands secure solutions defined
pension scheme into the industry wide defined benefit schemne,
resulting In a net settlement gain of £21m which was recorded
wrthin speafic tems

The most significant pension scheme 1s in the UK and accounts
for 91% (2013 95%) of the total material scheme obligation The
scheme has approximately 30,000 members and further detarls of
the make up of the scheme are given in note 32 on page 141

Defined benefit obligation — UK scheme

2014 2013 Mavement

£m £m £m

Scheme assets 1,983 1,562 421
Oblgations 2222y (2010 (210
Total UK obligations {239) {449) 210

The movement in the UK scheme was as a result of an increase
of £421m in the value of scheme assets pnncipally ansing from an
increase in undertying asset values, partly offset by the scherne
obhgations increasing by £2| Im The increase in the obligation 15
maniy due to actuanal losses incurred in the year, resulong from
discount rates decreasing to 3 7% (2013 4 4%) partly offset by
inflation rates decreasing 10 3 0% (2013 34%)

The group made additional pension contrbutions of £42m

(2013 £38m) mnto the scheme during the year Following the latest
tnenmial valuation in 2012, the group agreed with the Trustees to
ncrease next year's annual defict recovery payment 1o £44m

and extended the term of these payments from 2022 to 2024
The next trienrial valuation 1s i 2015
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Financing and treasury activities

The group’s treasury function 15 responsible for ensuring the
avalability of cost effective finance and for managing the group's
financial nsk ansing from currency and interest rate volatiity and
counterparty credit Treasury is not a profit centre and 1t 15 not
permitted to speculate i financial instruments The treasury
department’s policies are set by the board Treasury 1s subject to
the controls appropnate to the risks it manages These risks are
discussed In note 31 on pages 137 to 14|

To assist the efficent management of the group's Interest costs

the group operates a mutti-currency national pooling cash
management system with a wholly owned subsidiary of an A-rated
bank. At year end, credrt balances of £300m were poaled with debn
balances of £301m, resulting i a net pool debit balance of £1m
There is tegal mght of set off under the pooling agreement and an
overdraft facility of £3m

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

The groups investments and borrowings at 31 December 2014
were a mix of fixed rates of interest and floating rates of interest
inked to LIBOR and EURIBOR,

The private placement notes in March 2007 and July 2008 and the
public nates In May 2009, May 2012 and December 2012 were all
1ssued at fixed rates whilst the group’s investments and bank
borrowings were all at variable rates of interest inked to LIBOR
and EURIBOR.

The group's Interest nsk policy requires Treasury to fix a proportion
of rts interest exposure on a shding scale in US dollars, sterling and
Euro, using the natural mix of fixed and floating interest rates
emanating from the bond and bank markets and by utilising interest
rate and cross currency swaps Part of the proceeds of the private
placement and public notes have been swapped to floating interest
rates and accounted for as fair value hedges, with a net gan at

3| December 2014 of £49m The market value of the pay-fixed
receve-vanable swaps and the pay-fixed receve-fixed cross
currency swaps outstanding at 31 December 2014, accounted for
as cash flow hedges, was a net gan of £9m




Foreign currency

The group has many overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures
denominated in vanous different currencies. Treasury policy 1s to
manage significant translation nsks in respect of net operating assets
and its consolidated net debt/EBITDA ratio by holding foreign
currency denominated loans, where possible The group no longer
uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge the residual portion of
net assets not hedged by way of loans The group believes cash flow
should not be put at nsk by these instruments in order 1o preserve
the carrying value of net assets

At 31 December 2014, the group s US dollar and Euro net assets
were approximately 78% and 74% respectvely hedged by foreign
currency foans As at 3|1 December 2014, net debt held in US dollar
and Eurc and in those cui rencies officially pegged to these two
currencies equated broadly to a ratio of 2 3 times EBITDA
generated from these currencies

Corporate governance

The group's policies regarding nsk management and corporate
governance are set out in the Corporate governance report on
pages 56 to &9

Going concern

The directors are confident that, after making enquiries and on
the basis of current financial projections and available facilities
they have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate
resources to continue 1N operational existence for the foreseeable
{uture For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements as set out In the
Directors' responsibility statement on page 88

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer

To clearly present underlying performance specfic nems have been disdosed
separately Total results inctude specific items For an analysis of spealfic items
see page 9) The group's statutory results at actual exchange rates are set out
on pages 9% to 155

2013 results are shown at constant exchange rates and have been restated
for the adopuon of IFRS10 and IFRS || and re presented for businesses
subsequently classified as disconuinued or identified as part of the porifolho
ratonalisation  see page 90 for details

Includes £22m of outflows related to movements in customer cash balances
{2013 £22rm inflows) £10m of cash outflows related to transactions with
non-controlling interests (2013 £2m outflows) and £9m of cash inflows from
equity accounted investments (2013 £2m cutflows}
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of G4S plc only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

| Qur opinton on the financial statements 1s unmodified

We have audrted the financial statements of G4S plc for the year ended 31 December 2014 set out on pages 99 to |64 In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and fairr view of the state of the group's and of the parent companys affans as at 31 December 2014
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

= the group financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance wath international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union,

« the parent company financal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cormpanies Act 2006, and, as regards the

group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

2 Our assessment of risks of materal misstatement
In arrving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the nisks of materal misstatement that had the greatest effect on our
audit were as follows

Revenue recognition and related provisions on UK Government and other contracts
Refer to page 66 (Audit Committee Report), page 108 (accounting policy) and page | 14 (financial disclosures)

The nsk —The group delivers outsouraing services that may be governed by unique and complex contractual arrangements There s

a heightened risk that billing and revenue recognition on these contracts are not in accordance with contractual entitlernents and therefore
provisions may be required for refunds due There is a further risk that the provisions for refunds are not approprately disclosed and
presented Many of the outsourcing arrangements are contracts of more than one year, and where such contracts are forecast to be loss
making, it would be necessary 1o recognise a provision for future losses The identificabion of potential loss making contracts, and
measurement of any related provision requires significant jJudgement and there 15 a nisk that provisions are not appropnately esumated

QOur response ~ In thes area our audit procedures included testing the revenue billing and contract review process, on complex and
significant contracts in order to critically assass risks which might lead to revenue recognition issues, and comparning the contractual terms
of the relevant agreements to the accounting treatment adopted We made inquinies with contract managers and inspected customer
correspondence to identify, investigate and evaluate any areas of dispute or subjectivity within contracts and related billing We also tested
the secovery of significant overdue recevables, taking intc account the ageing of recevables and companing any provision to recovery levels
post year end We also critically assessed stgnificant accrued (unbilled) revenue balances and tested these against the contractual
entitlerment and, where relevant, post year-end biling

We evaluated the process 10 identify potentially loss making contracts, taking into account our knowledge of those contracts and the
assessment of onerous contract provisions required, including evaluating and challenging future cash flow forecasts and performance
improvement plans We also considered the adequacy of the group’s disclosures in respect of the judgments taken regarding revenue
recognition, provisions arising from contracts disputes and provisions for less making contracts

Recoverable value of goodwill and other intangible assets
Refer 1o page 66 {Audit Committee Report} page 105 {accounting policy) and page |25 (financial disclosures)

The risk —The group has £2 | billion of goodwill and other intangible assets Akhough the majority of this relates to business units where
the carrying value 1s exceeded by the calculated 'value in use’ by a significant margin in the current economic environment there 1s a risk
of iImpairmerit related to partcular business units within the Group The estimation of the recoverable amount of cash generating units
requires significant judgement in relation to the appropnrate discount rates, growth rates terrminal values, forecast cash flows and where
the far value less costs to sell approach 15 used, the appropriate market valuation multiple -

Qur response — In this area our audit procedures included challenging the forecast earmings and cash flows over the three year forecast
period by companison to hustorical results and business plans and by seeking explanations for any assumed trends and growth rates

We also challenged the discount rates and terminal values and where a fair value less costs to sell approach 15 used, challenged the
valuation multiples employed compared to multiples achieved on disposal transactions elsewhere in the Group and by reference to other
companies in the sector We compared the Group's assumptions to externally derved data Our valuation specialists assisted in the
challenge of key input assumptions i the valuation model for the more matenal cash generating units and those with greatest risk of
impairment of goodwill We challenged the Group's sensitivittes to help us assess whether the key assumptions and drivers considered
are correctly identified We also assessed the reasonableness of the group's aggregate recoverable amount by companng 1t to the group s
market capitalisation

We have also assessed the adequacy of the group's disclosures on goodwill impairments (see note {8) and considered whether the
sensitivity analysis prowded properly reflects the risks inherent within the estimate of the recoverable amount of goodwill
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Taxation exposures and provisions
Refer to page 66 (Audit Committee Report) pages 109 (accounung policy) and page |20 (financial disclosures)

The nsk — The Group Is required to make estimates of tax prowisions in jurisdicions and/er arcumstances where the application of the
tax rules 1s complex uncertain and in some cases inconsistent

Qur response — Our audit procedures included, considergtion of each significant exposure on a case by case basis taking nto account our
understanding of the facts, any specific advice the Group has received, past experience and any relevant observations of our tax specalists
Using this information we conducted a cntical assessment of the Groups judgement as to the provision required We have also evaluated
the adequacy of the group’s disclosures about the tax provisions and contingencies in note 34 and the level of esurmation uncertanty n
the tax prowisions in note 4

Risk of management override of internal controls
Refer to page 66 (Audit Commuittee Report}

The nsk —The de-centralised structure of the group and the manual nature of many accounting entries means there 1s a higher risk

of management overnde of financial controls There 15 also a nsk of management bias within judgements and estmates including those
related to the other risks discussed in this report The application of management overnde or biased judgements could be influenced by
targets on which bonuses are pard which could be significant to the relevant indwiduals This nsk affects all areas of the financial statements

Qur response — In this area our audit procedures included extending the scope of our audit to indude businesses where we see a risk

of management bias or override of controls We performed testing on manual journals within all In-scope businesses, performed testing on
the group consolidation system, identifying and testing significant unusual transactions and assessing indications of management bias in
Judgements and estimates This work was performed with assistance from our Forensic Accountng speciahsts

Presentation of the income statement
Refer 10 page 66 (Audit Committee Report), page 103 (accounting policy) and page 99 (finanaial disclosures)

The nsk — In order to give better understanding of the underlying performance of the business, the directors have presented a view of
the underlying results of the group, with separate disclosure of specific tems There 1s a risk that items included within 'restructunng costs
and specific tems’ are not in accordance with clearly disclosed group accounting policies, or that the reversal of any tems previously taken
through these categories have not been correctly identified and therefore the underlying result 15 misstated

QOur response — In this area our audit procedures induded providing detalled instructions to all in-scope audit teams on the definitions of
sterns that can be indluded within these income statement categones to assist thern in their assessment of specific terns and restructunng
costs identified in their components We considered and challenged the work of the group finance team in reviewing with the regional and
local finance teams the basis of any speafic iterns and restructunng costs In deing sc we assessed the appropnateness, by reference 1o the
group accounting policies, of the individual items presented within these categones and therefore excluded from underlying results’ at both
the local and group levels In addition we critically assessed the accuracy and presentation of the wdentified specific tems taking into account
ther group accounting palicy and accounting standards Also, we have tested management's process for identifying and tracking the current
year reversal of any pnor year specific tems, or utihisation of or adjustment to related provisions, 1o 1dentfy whether these have been
appropriately presented in the current year income statement

We have also considered the adequacy of the group’s disclosures about the items included within 'restructuning costs and ‘specific tems’
in note 8 and the related accounting policies for these categonies on page 103 and on page 107

3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The matenaltty for the group financial statements as a whole was set at £10m, determined wrth reference to a benchrmark of group
profit before tax normalised to exclude specific terns and restructuring costs {note 8}, and goodwll impairment (note [8) Matenafity
represents 4 3% of group profit before tax adjusted for these tems

We report to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £0 5m in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

Of the group's 123 reporung components, we subjecied 68 to audits for group reporting purposes

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the following percentages of the group's resulis

% aof the total profits and
losses that made up
Number of components Group revenue  group profit before tax Group 101al asscis

Audit for group reperting purposes 68 G0% 76% 81%
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of G4S plc only continued

For the remaining components, we performed analysis at an aggregated group level to re-examine our assessment that there were
no significant risks of matenal misstatement within these

The Group audit team instructed component audttors as to the significant areas to be covered, including the relevant nsks detaled
above and the information to be reported back. The Group audit team approved the component materialities, which ranged from
£005m to £6m, having regard to the mix of size and risk profile of the Group across the components The work on 67 of the 68
components was performed by components auditors and the rest by the group audit team

The Group audrt team visited or held telephone conference meetings with 30 compenent locations At these visits and meetings the
findings reported to the Group audrt team were discussed In more detail, and any further work required by the Group audit team
was then performed by the component audrtor

4 Qur opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 1s unmodified

In our cpinion

+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compares Act
2006 and

* the nformation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared Is consistent with the financal statements

5 We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under [SAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you If based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have
identified other information in the annual report that contains a material Inconsistency with etther that knowledge or the financial
statements, a material rmisstaternent of fact, or that is otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to report to you If

+ we have identified matenal inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquin ed during our audit and the directors” statement that
they consider that the annual report and financial statements taken as a whole 1s far; balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s performance, business model and strategy; or

* the Audit Committee Report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report tc you If in our opinion

* adequate accounting recerds have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financial staterments and the part of the Directors’ Rernuneration Report to be audited are not i agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

« certan disclosures of directars remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» the directors’ statement, set out on page B8, in relation to going concern, and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on page 60 1n the Chairman’s letter relating to the company's compliance with the
ten provisions of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the above responsibilities

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement set out an page 88, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view A description of the scope of an audit of financial
statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate This report 1s made sotely to

the company’s members as a body and 15 subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilties published on our

website at www kpmg com/uk/auditscopeukea2Qi4a which are incorporated into this report as if set out in full and should be read to
provide an understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions

L]

John Morms (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

IS Canada Square

London

El4 5GL

26 March 2015
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 3| December 2014

2013
2014 Restated
MNotes im fm
Conunuing operations
Revenue 56 6,848 7061
Operating profit before jont ventures 406 409
Share of profit from joint ventures 20 8 8
Operating profit before speafic items and restructuring (PBITA} ) 414 417
Speaific tems 8 (56) (31%)
Restructuring 8 (29} (66}
Operating profit before interest, tax and amortsation 6 329 36
Amortisation of acquisition-refated intangible assets (58) (72)
Goodwill impairment - (46)
Acquisition-related expenses ) 'C))
Profit on disposal of subsidianes - 24
Operating profit/(loss) 68 270 (62)
Net finance expense 12 (122) (128)
Profiv/{loss) before tax 148 (190)
Tax 13 (42) (53)
Profit/{loss) from continuing operauons after tax 106 (243)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 7 63 (114)
Profit/(loss) for the year 169 (357)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 152 (365)
Non-controliing interests 17 ]
Profit/(loss} for the year 169 (357)
Earnings per share attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent 15
From profit/{loss} from continung aperauons
Basic and diluted 58p (17 3)p
From profit/(loss) from continuing and discontinued operations
Basic and diluted 98p (25 Np

* Restated see notes 3(a) and 3{w)
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Consoldated statement of comprehensive iIncome
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2013
2014 Restated
Notes £m fm
Profit/{loss) for the year 169 (357)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements relating to defined retirement benefit schemes 32 155 (60}
Tax on items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss 13 (386) (1
119 (61)
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences an translation of foreign operations 4 {109)
Change in fair value of net investrment hedging financial nstruments (44) 25
Change in far value of cash flow hedging financial instruments 6 (8)
Tax on items taken directly to equity 13 6 (4)
(36) (96)
Other comprehensive income/{loss), net of tax 83 {157)
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 252 (514)
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the parent 236 (521)
Non-controlling interests 16 7
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 252 (514)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Actributable to equity holders of the parent
Share Share Retained Other NCi Total
capntal premium earnings I‘es@l’veslt Totat reserve reserves
£m im £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2014 388 258 (418) 636 864 20 884
Total comprehensive income - - 272 (36) 236 6 252
Dwidends declared - - (138) - {138) ( (149)
Transfer to retained earnings - - 308 (308) - - -
Recychng of translation reserves on disposal - - - (13) (13) - (13)
Transactions with non-controlling interests - - (6) - (6) 3) (%)
Equity-settled transactions - - 5 - 5 - 5
At 31 December 2014 388 258 23 279 948 22 970
At | January 2013 — restated 353 258 143 422 1176 32 1,208
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - (425) (96) {521) 7 (514)
Shares 1ssued 35 - - 308 343 - 343
Dmdends declared - - (130) - {130) {21) (151)
Own shares awarded - - (2) 2 - - -
Transactions with non-controfling interests - - {4) - 4) 2 )
At 31 December 2013 — resiated 388 258 (418) 636 864 20 884

*  Seenote 36
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Consolidated statement of financial position
For the year ended 3| December 2014

2013 2012
2014 Restated Restated
Notes £m fm £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 18 1,939 1,955 2,096
Other acquisition-related ntangible assets 18 83 141 204
Other intangible assets 18 82 77 87
Property, plant and equipment 19 450 484 506
Investment in joint ventures 20 41 34 30
Trade and other receivables 23 97 104 118
Deferred tax assets 34 176 184 179
2,868 2,979 3220
Current assets
Inventores 21 108 112 124
Investments 22 680 39 52
Trade and other recevables 23 1,371 1,380 1,500
Cash and cash equivalents 26 409 532 419
Assets classified as held for sale 25 3 220 229
1,954 2283 2324
Total assets 3 4,822 5262 5544
LIABILITIES
Current habiiuies
Bank overdrafts 26 27 (+8) % -
Bank loans 27 (60) (27) (13)
Loan notes 27 (96) 6eh (40)
Oblgations under finance leases 28 (14) 2n (18)
Trade and other payables 29 (1,103) (§.166) (1 184)
Current tax labilities (69) (48) (38)
Provisions X (30) {195) @n
Liabifties classified as held for sale 25 4 {133 (52)

(1.454)  (1660)  {1372)

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 7 (105) (140) (324)
Loan notes 27 (£.803) {19213 {1,999)
Chbligations under finance leases 8 (26) (31 (43)
Trade and other payables 29 (23%) (13} (18)
Retirement benefit abligations 32 (319) (504) 471
Provisions 33 (105) (64) (45)
Deferred tax labilties 34 (7 (45) {64
(2398)  (2718) (2964
Total labiliues 6 (3.852) (4378) (4338
Net assets 970 884 1,208
EQUITY
Share capital 35 388 388 353
Share premium and reserves 36 560 476 823
Equrty attributable to equity holders of the parent 948 864 1,176
Non-controlling interests 22 20 32
Total equity 970 884 | 208

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonised for issue on 26 March 2015 They were
signed on its behalf by /

Ashley Almanza Himanshu Raja %M a /\f‘dﬂ a
/
Director Direcior ——ﬁ/
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Consolidated statement of cash flow
For the year ended 3| December 2014

2013
2014 Restated
Notes £m £m
Profit/{loss) retained for the year 152 (365)
Adjustmenis for non-cash and other items
MNon-controlling interest 17 8
Pension settlement gain 32 (21) -
(ProfitjAoss from discomunued operations 7 {63) 114
Tax charge 13 42 53
Net finance expense 12 122 128
Deprecation of property plant and equipment 108 14
Amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets 59 76
Amortisation of other intangible assets 25 24
Imparrment of other assets 4 24
Goodwill impairment 18 - 46
Equity-settled transactions 5 -
Share of profit from joint ventures 20 (8) (8)
Profit on disposal of assets and subsidianes 3) 24
{Decrease)/increase In provisions (68) 187
Addrtional pension contributions 32 (42} {38)
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 329 339
{Increase)/decrease in inventones 2} 6
Decrease In receivables 10 40
Increase in payables I 39
Net cash flow from operating actvities of conunuing operauons 348 424
Net cash flow from operating acuvities of disconunued operations (12) 3!
Cash generated by operating acuvities 336 455
Tax paid 81 (83)
Net cash flow from operating activities 255 372
Investing acuvities
Interest receved 12 21
Cash flow from equity accounted investments 9 @
Purchases of non-current assets (138) (178)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangble assets other than acquisition-related 16 [
Acquisition of subsidiaries (3) (23)
Net cash and overdraft balances acquired - (6)
Disposal of subsidianes 159 35
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts in disposed entities (12) )
{Purchase)/sale of investments (17 13
Net cash generated by/(used in) investing activities 26 (131)
Financing activities
Share Issues 35 - 343
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the parent (138) {130)
Dmdends paid to non-controlling interests an 21
Other net movernent in borrowings (1) {188}
Movement In customer cash balances (22) 22
Transactions with non-controlling interests (10) 3]
Interest pad {126) {129}
Repayment of obligations under finance leases {9 (93
Net cash flow from financing actvities {417) (114}
iNet (decrease)fincrease n cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 37 (136) 127
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafis at the beginning of the year 538 439
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash held {1 (28)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 26 391 538
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I General information

GA4S plc 1s a company incorporated i the Unrted Kingdom The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements

of the company and entities {its subsidiares) controlled by the company (collectively comprising the group) and the groups interest In
associates and jointly controlled entrties made up to 31 December each year The group operates throughout the world and in a wide

range of functional currencies, the most significant being sterling, the US dollar and Euro The groups financial staterments are presented
In sterfing, as the groups primary hsting 15 in the UK The address of the registered office 15 given on page 177

2 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
adopted by the European Union (adopted IFRSs} The company has elected to prepare its parent company's financial statements in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) These are presented on pages 156 to 164

3 Sigruficant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the going concern basis and using the histoncal cost bass,
except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets and financial mstruments The principal accounting pohcies adopted are set out
below Judgements made by the directors in the application of these accounting policies which have a significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant nsk of matenal adjustment, are discussed in note 4

The directors considered the group's strategy, iquidity and financial position and reviewed the budget for the next 12 months and the
medium-term strategic plan As part of this review, vanous stress test scenanos to assess the adequacy of resources available to the group
were considered, ncluding the newly refinanced £1bn revolving credit faciity which 1s largely undrawn but committed and the headroom
available within the group’s financial covenants

The directors also considered the nisks facing the business and whilst certain risks such as underperformance on major contracts could
impact profitability they do not present a matenal nsk to the group

On completion of the review the directors were satisfied that the group had access to sufficent resources to allow it to execute its
strategy and continue to operate for the foreseeable future

The comparative income statement for the year ended 34 Decernber 2013 has been re-presented for operations qualifying as discontinued
dunng the current year Revenue irom continuing operations has been reduced by £145m and loss before tax has increased by £3m
compared to the figures published previously Further details of discontunued operations are presented within note 7

(b} Presentation of the income statement

The group's income statement and segmental analysis note separately identify results before specific items This 1s consistent with the way
that financial performance 1s measured by management and regorted to the Board and assists in providing a meaningful analysis of the
underlying results of the group The directors believe that presentation of the groups results in this way aids the understanding of the
group s financial performance Spedific tems are identified by wirtue of their size, nature or incidence Any associated reversal will also flow
through speaific tems such that the underiying results reflect the angong recurang results of the business

{c) Specific items

Specific tems are those that in management's judgement should be disclosed separately by virtue of their size, nature or incidence In
determining whether an event or transaction 1s speaific, managernent considers quantiiative as well as qualtative factors such as the
frequency or predictability of occurrence Specific items nclude items relating 10 acquistions and disposals including amartisation and
imparrment of acquisition-related itangible assets, results relating to discontinued operations, certain restructuring costs, impairments,
onerous contract provisions and other one-off tems such as the review of the carrying value of assets and habiives performed in 2013

Speaific tems may not be comparable to similarly triled measures used by other companies Speafic tems for the current and prior year
are disclosed in note 8
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation

Duning the year the group has adopted the new consolidation standards IFRS10*Consolidated Financial Statements’ IFRS1 1 Jont
Arrangements and IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ The following accounting policies reflect these new standards, and the
impact of adopting these standards on the group’s financial results and position 15 given in more detall 1n note 3(w) on page 110

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group Control 1s achieved where the group has existing nights that give ¢ the current ability to
direct the activities that affect the group's returns and exposure or rights to vanable returns from the entity This can be determined either
by the group’s ownership percentage or by the terms of any shareholder agreement In the case of certain nvestments, detalled analysis
of the different contracts in place 15 required, together with a level of judgement, to ascertain whether there is control under the definition
of IFRS 10 Consolidated financiat statements’ {see nate 4)

On acquisition, the assets and llabsities and contingent hiabilittes of the acquired business are measured at thew far values at the date of
acquisition The cost of acquisition 1s measured as the acquisition date fair value of the assets transferred as consideration to the vendor
and does not include transaction costs Any excess of the cost of acquistion over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 15
recognised as goodwill Any deficiency in the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired {1e discount
on acquisition} 1s credited to the income statement 0 the year of acquisition

The cost of acquisition includes the present vatue of deferred and contingent consideration payable, ncluding that in respect of put options
held by non-controlling shareholders, as estimated at the date of acquisition For acquisitions prior to | January 2010 subsequent changes
1o the present value of the esbmate of contingent consideration and any difference upon final settlement of such a hability are recognised
as adjustments to the cost of acquistion For acquisitions after | January 2010 such changes are recognised in the income statement with
respect to contingent consideration and in other comprehensive Income with respect 10 put options Non-controlling interests are stated at
their proportion of the farr values of the assets and liabilies recognised Profits and losses are applied in the proportion of their respective
ownership to the interest of the parent and to the non-controlling interest.

The results of subsidharies acquired or disposed of during the year are included 1n the consolidated income staterent from the effective
date of control or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate

Jomnt arrangements

A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement which grants the group and other parties joint controt over a shared undertaking Jont
control exists when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control A joint
arrangement Is either a joint operation or a joint venture

Joint operations

A Joint operation 1s a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nights to the assets and
obligations for the habilties, relating to the arrangement The group's share of assets liabilities, revenue expenses and cash flows are
combined with the equivalent items i the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-ine basis

Joint ventures
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have the rights to the net assets of the arrangement

The results and assets and habilities of joint ventures are mcorporated in the groups consolidated financial staternents using the equity
method of accounting Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquistion changes in the group's share of the net assets of the joint venture, less any impairment
in the value of the investment. The groups share of post-tax profits or losses 1s recognised in the consolidated ncome statement.

Associates
An assooate is an entity over which the group s 1n a postiion to exercise significant influence but not control or jont control, through
particpation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

The resutts and assets and labiliies of associates are incorporated in the group's consohdated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting Investments i associates are carmed in the consclidated statement of financial posiion at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition
changes in the group's share of the net assets of the associates, less any impairment In the value of indmidual investments Eosses of the
associates in excess of the group’s interest in those associates are not recognised

Transactions elimmated on consolidation

All Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consohidation Where a group company transacts with a
joint venture or associate of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group's nterest i the relevant joint venture
or assocrate
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(e) Foreign currencies

The financial statements of each of the group’s businesses are prepared n the functional currency applicable to that business Transactions
In currencies other than the functional currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each
balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaling on
that date Non-monetary assets and habihities carned at fair value which are denominated in other currencees are translated at the rates
prevailng at the date when the farr value was determined Non-monetary tems measured at historcal cost denorminated in other
currencies are not retranslated Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are included in the income statement for the perod

On consolidation, the assets and labilties of the group's overseas operatons including goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on their
acquisition, are translated o sterling at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and expenses are translated into
sterling at the average exchange rates for the period (unless this 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rate
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case ncome and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions} Exchange differences
ansing are recognised in other comprehensive Income together with exchange differences arising on monetary ems that are i substance
a part of the group’s net Investment in foreign operations and on borrowangs and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
Investments where and to the exient that the hedges are deemed to be effective On disposal, translation differences are recognised in the
Income statement n the penod in which the operation 1s disposed of

(f) Derwauve financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with its treasury policy the group only holds or 1ssues dervative financial instruments to manage the groups exposure to
financial nsk, not for trading purposes Such finanaal nsk includes the interest risk on the group's varable-rate borrowings, the far value nsk
on the groups fixed-rate borvowngs commodity nsk i relation (o s diesel consumption and foreign exchange nsk on transactions on the
translation of the group’s results and on the translation of the group s net assets measured in foreign currencies The group manages these
risks through a range of denvative financial instruments, including nterest rate swaps, fixed rate agreements commodity swaps, commodity
optians, forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps

Derwative financial nstruments are recognised in the consolidated staternent of finanaial position as financial assets or habilities at fair value

The gamn or loss on re-measurement to fair value 1s recognised immediately in the income statement, unless the dervatives qualify for hedge
accounting Where dervatives do qualify for hedge accounuing, the treatment of any resuftant gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged as described below

Fair value hedge
The change in the fair value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged item Is recognised Immediately in the
income statement

Cash flow and net investment hedges

The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that 15 determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in equity
and subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged cash flow or hedged net mvestment impacts the income staterment
The ineffective poruion of the fair value of the hedging instrument 1s recognised immecdhately in the income statement.

{g) Intangible assets

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for Dy the application of the acquisition method Goodwill anising on consolidation represents the
excess of the cost of acquisiion aver the group's interest in the far value of the dentfiable assets and labilties ang contingent labuties af a
subsidiary, associate or jointly-controlled entrty at the date of acquisition No goodwall arises on the acquisttion of an additional interest from
a non-controlling interest n a subsidiary as this 1s accounted for as an equity transaction Goodwill 1s stated at cost, less any accumulated
impairment losses and 1s tested annually for impairment or mare frequently if there are indications that amounts may be imparred On
disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint arrangement, the attnibutable armount of goodwill ts included in the determination of the profit

or loss on disposal

Acquision-related intongible assets

Intangible assets on acquisitions that are either separable or arising from contractual nghts are recognised at fair value at the date of
acquisition Such acquisiion-related intangible assets include trademarks, technology, customer contracts and customer relationships The
far value of acquisition-related intangible assets 1s determined by reference to market prices of similar assets where such information 1s
avatiable, or by the use of appropnate valuation techmgues, including the royalty reliel method and the excess earnings method

Acquisition-related intangible assets are amortised by equal annual instalments over their expected economic life The directors review
acquisiion-related intangible assets on an ongoing basis and. where appropnate, provide for any impairment in value

The estimated useful lives are as follows
Trademarks and technology up to a maximum of five years

Customer contracts and customer refationships  up to a maximum of ten years

Annual Report and Accounts 2064 G45 ple 105

SWAWRIES [EUELY



Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{g) Intangible assets (continued)

Other ntengible assets

Development expenditure represents expenditure ncurred in estabhishing new services and producis of the group Such expendrture 15
recognised as an intangible asset only if the following can be demonstrated the expenditure creates an identifiable asset, ts cost can be
measured reliably it 1s probable that it will generate future economic benefits it 1s technically and commercially feasible and the group has
sufficient resources to complete development In all other instances, the cost of such expendrture is taken directly to the income statement

Capitalised development expendiiure 1s amortised over the period dunng which the expenditure 1s expected 1o be revenue-producing, up
to a maamum of ten years The directors review the caprtalised development expenditure on an ongoing basis and where appropriate
provide for any imparment in value

Research expenditure 1s written off in the year in which 1t 1s incurred

Capitahsed computer software 15 stated at cost, net of amortisation and any provision for impairment. Amortisation 1s charged on software
s0 as to write off the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values by equal annual instalments over therr expected useful economic
Iives up to a maximum of eight years

(h} Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated deprecianon and any provision for impairment Depreciation 1s
provided on alt property, plant and equipment other than freehold land Depreciation 1s calculated so as to write off the cost of the assets
to their estimated residual values by equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic lives as follows

Freehold and long leasehold buildings up to 50 years
Short leasehold buildings (under 50 years) over the Ife of the lease
Equipment and motor vehicles 2 1o 10 years

Assets held under finance leases are deprecated over the shorter of the expected useful economic life and the term of the relevant lease
Where significant, the residual valses and the useful economic lives of property plant and equipment are re-assessed annually

()} Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habiities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrurnents

Trade recevables

Trade recevables do not carry interest and are stated iniially at their fair value The carrying amount of trade recevables 1s reduced
through the use of a bad debt allowance account The group provides for bad debts based upoen an analysis of those that are past due
In accordance with local conditions and past default experience

Service concession assets

Under the terms of a Private Finance Intiative (PFI} or similar project, the control of the asset remains largely with the purchaser of the
associated services In such cases, the groups nterest In the asset 1s classified as a financial asset and included at its discounted value within
trade and other recewvables, to the extent to which the group has an unconditicnal right to receive cash from the grantor of the coneession
for the construction of the asset To the extent that the group has the night to charge for the use of such an asset condrienal upen the
extent of the use, the group recognises an Intangible asset

Current gsset investments
Current asset investments compnse investments in securtties which are classified as held-for-trading They are ntally recognised at far
value, including transacuion costs Gains and losses arsing from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cosh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an
integral part of the group s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement
of cash flow

Interest-bearmg borrowings

Interest-bearing bank overdrafts, loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds receved net of direct 1ssue costs Finance
charges including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs are recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method

Trade poyables
Trade payables are not interest-beaning and are stated initially at fair value

Equity instruments
Equrty instruments 1ssued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds recerved net of direct 1ssue costs
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(1) Inventories

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents expendrture incurred n the ordinary course of
business in bringing inventones to therr present condmion and location and includes approprate overheads Cost s calculated using erther
the weighted average or the first-n-first-out method Net reahisable value 1s based on estimated selling price less further costs expected
to be incurred to completien and disposal

(k) Impairment

The carrying value of the groups assets, with the exception of Inventories and deferred tax assets 15 reviewed on an ongoing basis for

any indication of impairment and, If any such indication exists the assets’ recoverable amount is estmated An impairment loss 1s recognised
in the Income statement whenever the carrying value of an asset or 1ts cash-generating unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amount

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed in respect of any other asset, an impairment loss 15 reversed If there has
been a change in the esumates used to determine its recoverable amount The amount of the reversal s limited such that the assets
carrying amount does not exceed that which would have been determned (after depreciation and amortisation) if no impairment loss
had been recognised

{) Employee benefits

Reurement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fll due Payments made 1o state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are dealt with as payments to defined coniribution schemes where the group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to
those arising in a defined contnbution reurement benefits scheme

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecogrised past service cost. reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any asset resutting from the
calculation 1s hmited to unrecognised past service cost plus the present value of avalable refunds and reductions in future contributions to
the scheme

For defined benefit plans, the cost charged to the income statement consists of current service cost, net interest cost and past service cost
The finance element of the pension charge 1s shown in finance expense and the remaining service cost element 1s charged as a componenit
of employee costs in the ncome statement Actuanal gains and losses and other remeasurement gains and losses are recognised
immedrately in full through the statement of comprehensive income

Share-based payments

The group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payrments to certan employees The fair value of share-based payments 15 determined at the
date of grant and expensed, with a corresponding increase in equity, on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the groups
estimate of the shares that will eventually vest The amount expensed I1s adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estimate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest, save for changes resulting from any market-related performance conditions

(m) Prowisions and contingent habiities

Provisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive abligation exists for a future lability in respect of a past event and where
the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably The amount recognised as a prowision s the group's best estimate of the cost of
settlement at the end of the reporting percd

In respect of claims and ltigation, the group provides for anticipated costs where an outflow of resources 15 considered probable and a
reasonable estimate can be made of the likely outcome For all risks, the uttimate liabitity may vary from the amounts provided and will be
dependent upon the eventual outcome of any settlement Management exercise judgement 1n measuring the exposures to contingent
habities (see note 33) through assessing the likelihood that a potential clamn or kability wilf arise and in quantifying the possible range of
financial outcomes

Where the time value of money 1s material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expected expenditure using an appropriate
discount rate

(n) Restructuring provision

A restructuring provision is recognised when the group has developed a detalled formal plan for the restructuning and has rased a vald
expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its rain features to
those affected by it The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures ansing from the restructuring
which are those amounts that are both necessarily entaled by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

The group distinguishes between restructuring costs that are recurring and those restructuring costs that refate to one-off or
transformational group programmes that impact a number of operations

Restructunng costs that are incurred in the normal course of business are recorded as part of the group's trading results

Restructunng costs that are Indvidually matenal or relate to programmes inked to the group's wider transformation and require approval
at executive level are presented within specific tems and disclosed separately In the consolidated income statement
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts recevable for goods and services provided in the normat course of business and 1s measured at the fair value
of the consideration recewved or recewable net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes Revenue for manned security and cash
solutions products and for recurning services in secunty systems products 1s recognised to reflect the penod in which the service s
provided Revenue on security systems installations 15 recognised either on completion in respect of product sales, or in accordance with
the stage of completion method in respect of construction contracts

Construction contracts

Whaere significant, secunty system installations with a contract duration in excess of one month are accounted for as construction contracts
Where the cutcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date This s measured erther by the proportion that contract costs incurred for
work to date bear to the esumated total contract costs, or by the proportion that the sales value of work completed to date bears to the
total sales value Variatons in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that 1t 1s Iikely that they will be agreed
with the customer

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably contract revenue (s recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are deemed likely to be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses as they are incurred Where 1t 15
probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected ioss 1s recogmised immediately as an expense in the
income statement.

Construction contracts are recogrised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus profit recogrised to date, less
prowsion for foreseeable losses and less progress billings Balances are not offset

(p) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs in respect of major outsourcing contracts incurred after the point at which the group achieves preferred bidder status
{at which point 1t I1s considered probable that the contract will be obtaned) are capitalised and expensed over the life of the contract
subject to recoverability critena Costs incurred prior to this point are expensed as incurred Capitalised costs are expensed immediately
in the event that preferred idder status 1s not followed by the award of the cantract

{q) Onerous contracts

Onerous contract provisions are recognised for losses on contracts where the forecast costs of fulfiling the contract throughout the contract
penod exceed the forecast income recevable Management plans to recover the position on loss-making contracts require a level of
judgement and are only taken inte account in the calculation of the onerous contract provision when mplementation has commenced and
tangible evidence exists of benefits being delivered The proviston 15 calculated based on discounted cash flows to the end of the contract

Provisions for future losses are charged to the income statement, where onerous contract provisions are material by wirtue of their size,
incidence or nature they are separately disclosed as specific itemns In-year losses from onerous contracts will continue to be reported in
underlying earnings as they are incurred with provisions for future losses on onerous contracts being unwound against these losses In
underlying earnings

Vacant property provisions are recognised when the group has cormmitted to a course of actian that will result in the property becoming
vacant.The provision s calculated based on discounted cash flows to the end of the lease taking into account expected future sub-lease income

(r) Interest

Interest iIncome 15 accrued on a time basis by reference 1o the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable This is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected Iife of the financial asset’s net carrying amount. Borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense In the income staterment
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(s) Income taxes
Tax 1s recogrised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to rems recognised In egquity, in which case it 1s recognised
in equity or other comprehensive income The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because 1t
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible The groups lability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labitities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the
balance sheet hability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are
recognised 1o the extent that 1t i1s probable that taxable profits will be avalable against which deductible temporary differences can be utiised

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments 1n subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures,
except where the group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temparary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

The carryting amount of each deferred tax asset 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s nc longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s measured based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting perod

Tax labitities or refunds may differ from those anticipated due to changes in tax legislation, differing interpretations of tax legislation and
uncertanties surrcunding the application of tax legislation in situations where uncertainties exist, provision s made for contingent tax
habilities and assets on the basis of management judgement following consideration of the avalable relevant information

{t) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee On occasion this classification requires a level of judgement All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the inception of the lease at their fair value o if lower at the present value of the
minimum lease payments The corresponding bability to the lessor s included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation Lease payments made or receved are apportoned between finance charges or income and the reduction of the lease
hablity or asset so as to produce a constant rate of interest on the outstanding balance of the hability or asset.

Rentals payable or recewvable under operating leases are charged or credited to income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, as
are incentives to enter INnto operating leases

(u) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) dassified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
casts to sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if thewr carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use This condition 1s regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset (or disposal group)
is avallable for immediate sale i its present conditton The group must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale wiihin one year from the date of classification

A discontinued operation i1s a compenent of the group's business that represents a separate major ine of business or geographical area
of operations or 1s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale that has been disposed of, has been abandoned or meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale

(v} Dividend distribution
Divdends are recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period in which they are paid or approved by the shareholders at a
general meeting
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

3 Significant accountung policies {continued)

(w) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards and interpretations
In the year ended 31 December 2014, the group adopted the following new standards and amendments

+ [FRS 10 (201 1} ‘Consolidated Financial Statements , which replaces parts of IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Finanaal Statements’
and all of SIC-12 ‘Consohdation — Speciat Purpose Entities’, introduced a new control model that focuses on whether the group has
power over an nvestee, exposure or nghts to varable returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power
to affect those returns This differs from the previous approach where one of the man critena used 1o consolidate was to have the
power 10 govern the financial and operating policies of the entity As a resuft of the adoption of IFRS 10 the group has reclassified
certan businesses within the Asia & Middle East region as joint ventures where previously they were classified as subsidiaries As a
result of applying IFRS 11 ‘joint Arrangements’, the group now accounts for these businesses using the equity method

* IFRS | | Joint Arrangements’ replaces IAS 31 ‘Interests in joint Ventures and SIC- 13 Jaintly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contnbutions by Vendors’ and removes the option to account far jointly controlled entities using the proportionate consolidation
method Instead all jointly controlied entities are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, similar to that used to account
for associates under the previous standards As the group previousty apphed the propartionate method of accounting 1o rts jointly
controlled entities this has impacted the group's consohdated income statement and consolidated statement of financial position

* IFRS |12 Dhsclosure of Interests in Other Entities’1s a new and comprehensive standard on disclosure requirements for all forms of
interest in other entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles The
standard includes disclosure requirements for entities within the scope of IFRS 10 (2011) and IFRS 11 As a result of adopting this
standard the group has re-assessed the criteria used to determine material joint ventures The new criteria are based on the contnbution
of revenue, operating profit and net assets that the joint ventures make to the group's results Under these new measures the group
has determined that none of its joint ventures are iIndmdually matenal for the purposes of disclosure in accordance wath IFRS 12

The group also adopted I1AS27 (revised) Separate Financial Statements’ and IAS28 Associates and |oint Ventures' The adoption of these
standards did not have a matertal impact on the financial statements

The group has presented a restated income statement for the year ended 3| December 2013, restated statements of financial position
at 3| December 2013 and 3| December 2012, and a restated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 The following
pages contain reconchiations between the restated amounts and those previously published

The adoption of IFRSI10 has resufted in certan businesses in the Asia Middle East region being re-classified as joint ventures rather than
subsidiaries These businesses were previously conschdated into each of the relevant line items in the group’s ncome statement, statement
of cash flows and statement of financial position at 100% of their reported results with an appropriate adjustment made to reflect the
non-controlling interests’ share As a result of being classified as joint ventures they fall nto the scope of IFRS |1 and are now reported using
the equity method Under the equity method the group’s share of the entities’ post-tax results are shown in the income statement under
‘share of profit from joint ventures’ and the group s net investment s shown in the staternent of financial position under ‘vestment 1n joint
ventures', with no adjustment required for non-controlling interests

In addition the group prewvtousty apphed the propartionate method of consolidation to its existing jont vertures Under the proportionate
methad of consoldation the group consoldated its share of each relevant line tem in the group’s Income statement staterment of cash
flows and statement of financial posttion As a result of adopting IFRS1 | the results of these joint ventures are now also consolidated using
the equity method as described above

The income statement reconciliation for the year ended 31 December 2013 separately presents restatements for discontinued operations
The restated opening balance sheet as at 31 December 2012 for the year ended 31 December 2C13 has also been presented

Restaternents Entities
for IFRS10 & reclasafied as
As pubhshed IFRS!t | Revised  discontinued Restated
Consoligated income staterment for the year ended 31 December 2013 £m £m £m fm Em
Revenue from continuing operations 7428 {222) 7.206 (145} 7,061
Operating profit before speofic tems and restructuning 442 20 421 (4 17
Loss before tax (170) (17} (187) (3) {190)
Loss from continuing operations after tax (226} {15} (241) [¢3)] {243)
Loss for the year (342) {15) (357) - {357)
Profit attrbutable to nan-controliing interests 20 {12y 8 - 8

*  This adjustment includes a £3m reclassufication 1o the NCI result for the year ended 31 December 2013

110 G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014




Restaternents

for IFRS!0 &
As published FRSI1 Restated
Consolidated statement of financial posiuon for the year ended 31 December 2013 £m £m Lm
ASSETS
Goodwill 1,966 (n 1,955
Investment in joint ventures - 34 34
Other non-current assets 1,022 (32) 990
Trade and ather receivables 1,394 (14) 1,380
Cash and cash equivalents 594 (62) 532
Other current assets 376 (5) 371
5352 (50) 5,262
LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafts {22) 3 (9
‘frade and other payables (1,220} 6 (1,214)
Cther current habiliues (442) 5 (437)
Bank loans (169) 29 {140}
Non-current habilities (2.580) 2 (2,578)
(4.433) 55 (4,378)
Net assets 319 {35) 884
EQUITY
Share caprtal 388 - 388
Share premum and reserves 479 {3) 476
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 867 (3) 864
Non-controling interests 52 {32y 20
Total equity 919 (35) 884
*  This acdjustment includes a £3m reclassification to reserves as at 31 December 2013
Restatements
for IFRS10 &
As published IFRS1 1 Restated
Consohdated satement of cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2013 fm £m fm
Net cash flow fiom operating activities 400 (28) 372
Net cash used in investing activities (163) 32 (131)
Net cash flow from financing activiiies (35) (19) {114)
Net movermnent in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 142 (%) 127
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafis at the beginnmg of the year 472 (33) 439
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash held X)) (h (28)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 587 (49) 538

Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4Splc [ |1

SIURLES [IOLEAY




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

Restatements

for IFRS10 &
As published IFRS1) Restated
Consolidated statement of financial posiion for the year ended 31 December 2012 £m £m £m
ASSETS
Goodwill 2,108 (+2) 2,096
Investment In jomt ventures - 30 30
Other non-current assets [,114 (20 1.094
Trade and other recevables 1,506 (6} 1,500
Cash and cash equivalents 469 (50} 119
Other current assets 413 (8} 405
5610 (66) 5.544
LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafis (17) t7 -
Trade and other payables (1.234) 12 (1.222)
Other current habtlimes (157) 7 (150)
Non-current habilibes (2971} 7 (2.964)
{4.379) 43 (4.336)
Net assets 1,231 (23) 1,208
EQUITY
Share capital 353 - 353
Share prermnium and reserves 823 — 823
Equity attributable to equity hotders of the parent 1176 - 1,176
MNon-controlling interests 55 (23) 32
Total equity 1,231 (23) 1,208

The group has not adopted early any standard, amendment or interpretation A number of new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been announced but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2014 Those that are expected to have
an impact on the group accounts are detalted below

+ IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrurnents’ is effective for the year ended 31 December 2018 and removes the multiple classification and measurement
models for financial assets required by 1AS 39 and replaces it with a model with only two classification categories armortised cost and
fair value The business model for managing the financiat assets and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of those assets drives the
classification There have been no significant changes to the accounting and presentation for financial hiabilities and for derecogrising
financial instruments The group 15 currently assessing the impact this standard would have on its cansolidated results and financial position

* IFRSI5 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ is effective for the year ended 3| December 2017 and establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue 1s recognised The group 1s assessing the potential impact on rts
consohdated financial statements resulting from the apphcation of IFRSIS

The following revisions amendments and improvements are not yet effective and are not expected to have a matenal impact on the results
of the group when they are adopted

* Accounting for Acquisiions of Interests 1n Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRSET)
= Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments to IAS16 and |AS38)
« Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contributions {(Amendments to 1AS(9)

IFRS14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
* Improvements to IFRS 2010-2012 Cycle and 201 1-2013 Cycle
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4 Accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRSs requies management to make judgements, esimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, with respect to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilues at the date of the financial statements, the disclosure of contingent assets and llabiities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of ncome and expenses during the reporting perod These judgements, estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
arcumstances, Including current and expected economic conditions, and i some cases, actuarial techmques Although these judgements
estimates and assocated assumptions are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and circumstances, the actual results
may differ

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised In the period
in which the estimate 1s revised and in any future penods affected

The judgements, estirmates and assumptions which are of most significance In preparing the group's 2014 accounts are detaled below

Revenue recognition and contract review

The group delivers outsourcing services that 1n some circumstances can be complex In nature and may be governed by unique contractual
arrangements There 1s a nsk that revenue recognition on these contracts s not In accordance with contractual entittements and therefore
provisions may be required to be recognised within 'contract provisions’ (see note 33) Estimates and judgements are therefore required to
determine the appropnate level of provisioning apphied to these contracts

Carrying value of goodwll

The group tests tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, for iImpairment on an annual basis or more frequently If there are
ndications that amounts may be impaired The impairment analysis for such assets Is based principally upon discounted estimated future
cash flows from the use and eventual disposal of the assets Such an analysis iIncludes the estimation of future results, cash flows annual
growth rates and discount rates judgement is required in relation to the achievability of the long-term business plan and macroecenomic
assumptions underlying the vaiuation process In certan crcumstances, where market prices <an be ascertained (for example, through
recent transactions), fair value less costs 1o sell is used as a basis for the recoverable amount. This involves judgments and estimates to apply
reasonable valuations techniques and to estimate future selling costs The full methodology and results of the group's simpairment testing 15
presented in note |8

Taxaton

The group operates in many tax jurisdictions including countries where the tax legislation 1s not consistently applied and under some
complex contractual circumstances where the responsibiity for tax arising 1s not always clear Management are required to apply
judgements and estimates to determine the appropriate amount of tax to provide for and any required disclosure around contingent tax
llabihiwes at each period end

Review of the carrying value of assets and liabilities

In 2013 the group carned out a rewiew of the carrying value of its assets and labiliies as at 31 December 2012, taking into account any
changes in facts or arcumstances since that date The purpose of this review was to ensure that the financial statements were presented
in a mare balanced way This exerose required a tevel of judgement and In many cases taking a more balanced judgement based on the
group’s current understanding of crcumstances surrounding each issue The results of the review were presented within ‘specfic tems’
given the one-off nature of the review performed and are disclosed in note 8 As at 31 December 2014 these estimates and judgements
have been updated to reflect any changes in facts or arcumnstances dunng the year to 31 December 2014 with any additional charges or
reversals also being presented within specific items

SWAUWRELS [RukLy

Comphance with foreign ownership rules and consolidation of subsidiaries

The group has a diverse set of complex ownership structures, which are sometimes driven by local laws and regulations relating to foreign
ownership In some Instances the group operates through focal structures with imited direct share ownership of the business, but exercises
control through shareholder agreements In determining whether some group entities qualfy for consolidation under IFRS 10" Consalidated
Financial Statements’, professional and legal advice 1s sought and a level of judgement 1s required Consolidation of any of these entriies
would be at risk if the group’s ability to enforce its nghts of control were successfully challenged

Valuation of rettrement benefit obligations

The valuation of defined retirement benefit schermes 1s arnved at using the advice of qualified independent actuanes who use the projected
unit credit method for determining the group's obligations This methodology requires the use of a variety of assumptions and estimates
including the appropnate discount rate, the expected return on scheme assets mortality assumptions future service and earnings Increases
of employees and inflaton Full details of the group’s retirement benefit obligations including an analysis of the sensitvity of the calculations
1o the key assumptions are presented In note 32
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

5 Revenue
An analysis of the group s revenue as defined by 1AS 18 ‘Revenue, 1s as {oHows
2013
2014 Restated
Notes £m £m
Continuing operauons
Sale of goods 188 159
Rendering of services 6,495 6,721
Revenue from construction contracts 165 L8l
Revenue from continuing operations as presented In the consolidated income statement 6 6.848 706
Ciscontinued operations
Sale of goads ~ I
Rendening of services 391 742
Revenue from construction contracts - 23
Revenue from discontinued operations 67 391 766
Other operaung income
Interest income 12 I 13
Total other operating income ] 13
Total revenue as defined by 1AS |8 7,250 7.840

6 Operating segments

The group operates cn a worldwide basis and derves a substantial proportion of its revenue and operating profit from each of the following
six geographic regions Africa, Asia Middle East, Latin America, Europe, North Amenica and UK & Ireland For each of these reportable
segments, the group executive committee (the chief operating decision maker) reviews internal management reports on a regular basis

Segment information 1s presented below

Continuing  Discontinued

Continuing  Discontinued operalions operations Total

operauons operations Total 2013 2013 2013

2014 2014 2014 Restated Restated Restated

Revenue by reportable segment and geographical area £m £m £m fm m £m

Africa 485 3 488 496 8 504

Asia Middle East 1,327 - 1,327 1,372 | 1,373

Latin Amenca 663 22 685 693 24 717

Europe 1,428 100 1,521 §.526 285 1811

North America 1,365 266 1,631 ) 359 4438 | 807

UK & Ireland 1,587 - 1,587 I 615 — |.615

Total revenue 6,848 391 7,239 7061 766 7.827
Total gross

Total gross segment  Inter segment External

segment Inter-segment External revenue revenue revenue

revenue revenue revenue 2013 2013 2013

014 014 2014 Restated Restated Restated

Revenue from inzernal and external customers by reportable segment £m tm £m £m £m m

Secure Solutions 6,132 (9) 6,123 6,531 (8) 6523

Cash Solutions 118 (2) 1,116 1,306 (2) 1,304

Total revenue 7.250 {1 7,239 7,837 (10) 7827

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices Refer to note 7 for details on discontinued operations
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Contnuing  Descontinued

Conunuing  Disconunued operatons OPeTauONs Total
operauons operations Toual 2013 013 palk]
2014 2014 2004 Restated Restated Restated
Operaung profit by reportable segment and geographical area £m {m £m £m fm £m
Afrca 46 () 45 40 (3) 35
Asia Middle East 101 - 101 108 - 108
Latin America 38 - 38 44 - 44
Europe 84 - 84 88 (3) 85
North America 75 3) 72 59 I8 77
UK & Jreland 130 - 130 119 - 119
Operating profit/{loss} before corporate costs 474 4) 470 458 10 468
Corporate costs (60) - (60) (41) - (41
Operaung profit/(loss) before specific items
and restructuring 414 ()] 410 417 10 427
Specific tems (56) (3 (59 (315) (23} (338)
Restructuring 29) - 29 (66) {4) {70)
Operaung profit/(loss) before interest, tax and amortisation 329 (7 322 36 {7 19
Amortisation of acquisiion-related ntangible assets (58) (n (59) 72) &) {76)
Goodwill impairment - - - (46) {80} (126}
Acquisition-related expenses () - n 4) - (4)
Profit/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries - 71 71 24 (3} 21
Operating profit/(loss) 270 63 333 (62) {104) (166)
Refer to note 7 for details on discontinued operations
Segment assets and habilities
The following information 1s analysed by reportable segment and by the geographical area in which the assets are located
Total Total
Total assets Total hablities
assers 2013 liabilities 2013
2014 Restated 2014 Restated
Total assets and labihties by reportable segment and geographical area £m im £m
Afrca 227 240 (79 (78)
Asia Middle East 676 702 (248) (239)
Latin America 352 348 (19 (105)
Europe 720 851 (256} (357)
North America 768 826 (165) (186)
UK & Irefand 1,285 1,390 (343) (489)
Inter-segment trading balances {188) (192) 188 192
Total segment assets and liabilities 3,840 4165 (1,022} (1,262)
Corporate 169 3 (152} {50y
Total operating assets and liabilites 4,009 4,281 (1.174) (1,352)
Non-operating assets and habilities 813 98I {2,678) (3.026)
Total assets and labilites 4,822 5,262 {(3.852} {4,378)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

6 Operaung segments (continued)

2014 Restzgég
Non-turrent operating assets by reportable segment and geographical area Lm fm
Africa 123 133
Asia Middle East 359 383
Latin America 208 226
Europe 452 514
Naorth Amenca 479 516
UK & Ireland 964 1,019
Total segment assets 2,585 2,791
Corporate 68 45
Total non-current operating assets 2,653 2,836
Non-operating assets 217 245
Less Non-current assets held for sale (2) (102)
Total non-current assets 2,868 2,979

Non-operating assets and liabidities compnise financial assets and liabilities, taxation assets and habifities and retirement benefit obligations

Included within operating and non-operating assets are £6m (2013 £179m) and £nil (2013 £41m) respectively refating to disposal groups
classified as held for sale Incfuded within operating and non-operating hiabilives are £3m (2013 £93m} and £1m (2013 £40m) respectsvely
relaung to habilities associated with disposal groups classified as held for sale Disposal groups are analysed in note 25

Other information

Impairment

Impairment losses  Depreciation
losses Depreciation recognised and Capital
recogmised and Capial nincome  amortisation additions
i INcome  aMOrusaton addmions 2013 2013 2013
2014 2014 2014 Restated Restated Restated
By reportable segment £m £m £m £m fm m
Africa - 13 12 12 5 27
Asia Middle East - 28 30 5 33 40
Latin America - 18 12 - 21 t4
Europe - 39 37 14 4| 47
North America - 19 16 105 29 I
UK & Ireland 4 75 36 7 84 65
Head office — 3 2 7 2 3
Total 4 195 145 i50 225 207
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7 Disconunued operations

Operations qualifying as discontinued in 2014 mainly compnised the US Government Solutions business, sold in November 2014, the

group's cash business in Canada, sold in January 2014 the groups business In Norway, also sold in January 2014, the group's business in

Sweden sold in September 2014 and the group s business in Costa Rica

The US Government Solutions business, the cash business in Canada and the business in Norway were also classified as discontinued as at

31 December 2013

The results of the disconttnued operations are presented below

013
2014 Restated
Note £m £m
Revenue 391 766
Operating (loss)/profit before specific items {4) 10
Specific tems (3) (23)
Restructunng costs - {4)
Acquisition-related amortisation and expenses () {4
Goodwill iImpairment - (80)
Profit/(foss) on disposal of discontinued operations 17 71 {3)
Operating profit/(loss) 63 (104)
Finance income - I
Finance costs - (2)
Profit/{loss) before tax 63 (105)
Tax - (9)
Operatng profit(loss) for the year 63 (114

The effect of discontinued operations on segment results 1s disclosed in note 6

The impairment of goodwill and other assets in 2013 relates to the US Gaovernment Solutions business and reduced the carrying value

of 1ts net assets down to their estimated recoverable amount

Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the consolidated cash flow statement are as follows

013
2014 Restated
£m £m
Net cash flows from operating activities (after tax) (12) 31
MNet cash flows from investing actvities 152 {18)
Net cash flows from financing activities {17) 19
123 32
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8. Operatng profit

The income statement can be analysed as follows

20103

2014 Restated

Conunumng cperations fm £m
Revenue 6,848 7.061

Cost of sales (5.546) (5.779)
Gross profit 1,302 1,282

Administration expenses (1,040) (1.352)
Share of profit from joint ventures 8 8

Operating profit/(loss) 270 (62)

Total specific wems charged in the year were £56m (2013 £315m) and restructuring costs of £29m (2013 £66m)

Cost of sales
Speafic tems mcluded within cost of sales relate to the increase in prowisions for legacy UK government contracts of £45m (2013 £27m)
and other items of £5m (2013 £98m)

Administration expenses
Specific tems relate to the re-measurement of the review of assets and habilities of £27m (2013 £B1m) offset by a pension settlement
gain of £21m (2013 £nil) in the Netherlands

Restructuring costs were £29m (2013 £66m) relating to the re-organisatton of the UK & Ireland business and programmes in Europe
to accelerate best practice and identify back office synergies

Also included in administration expenses are amortisation costs of £58m (2013 £72m) and acgusimion-relaied expenses of £1m (2013 £4m}

In 2013 administration expenses atso included a charge of £109m relating to the settlement on the UK Electronic Monitonng contract and
two smaller contracts, a charge of £45m relating to goodwill impairment and were net of a £24m profit relating to the disposal of the
groupss secure data archiving business in Colombia

9 Profit from operations
Profit from continuing and discontinued operations has been amived at after charging/{crediting)

Continuing  Biscontinued Totat
Conunuing  Disconunued Total 2013 2013 013
2014 2014 2014 Restated Restated Restated
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of sales
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 99 - 99 105 6 1
Crnerous contracts 8 45 - 45 27 - 27
Other tems 8 5 - 5 28 - 98
Administration expenses
Review of assets and habilties 8 27 3 30 81 24 105
Pensicn settlement gan 8 21) - (21) - - -
Restructuning costs 8 29 - 29 66 4 70
Amortisation of acquisiion-related intangible assets 8 58 | 59 72 4 76
Acquisition-related expenses 8 I - | 4 - 4
Electronic Monitoring settlement 8 - - - 109 - 109
Goodwill impairment 818 - - - 46 80 126
Amortisation of other Intangible asseis 25 - 25 24 2 26
Depreciation of property, plant and equiprment 108 3 (AR 114 9 123
(Profit)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries 17 - (71) 7n (24) 3 (21)
Impairment of trade recevables 4 - 4 19 I 20
Lrugation settlerments - - - I - I
Research and development expenditure 10 - 10 5 - 5
Operating lease rentals payable 107 - 107 126 10 136
Operaung sub-lease rentals receivable (14) - (14) (15) - (15)
Share based payments 5 - 5 — — —
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10 Auditor's remuneration

2013
2014 Restated
£m im
Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audrt of the company’s annual report and accounts | I
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services
The audit of the company's subsidianies pursuant to legislation 5 b
All other services’ | |
*  Other servces relates to the provision of tax and non audit adwisory services.
The Audit Committee Report on page 69 outlines the company's established policy for ensuring that audit independence 1s not
compromised through the provision by the company's auditor of other services
bl Staff costs and employees
The average monthly number of employees in continuing and discontinued operations, ncluding executive directors was
2013
2014 Restated
By reportable segment and geographecal area Number Number
Africa 124,024 119,930
Asia Middle East 243,909 236984
Latin Amenca 76,061 75,137
Eurcpe 66,346 72154
MNorth Armerica 59,232 60226
UK & Ireland 41,221 44,681
Head office 196 173
Total average number of employees {excluding joint ventures) 610,989 609 285
Average number of employees employed by joint ventures 20476 19.850
Total average number of employees (including joint ventures) 631,465 629,135
Their aggregate remuneration, In continuing and discontinued operations, compnsed
2013
2014 Restaled
m £m
Wages and salanes 4,243 4,561
Social security costs 489 560
Employee benefits 220 212
Total staff costs (excluding joint ventures) 4,952 5333
joint venture staff costs 11§ 108
Total staff costs (iIncluding joint ventures) 5,063 5441

Information on directors remuneration, long-term incentive plans pension contnbutions and entitlements is set out in the Directors’

remuneration report on pages 70 to 84
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

{2 Net finance expense

2003
014 Restated
£m m
Interest income on cash, cash equivalents and investments 10 12
Other interest income | I
Gain/{loss) ansing from change n fair value of denvative financial iInstruments hedging loan notes 5 (28)
{Loss)/gain arising from fair value adjustment to the hedged loan note rtems {5) 28
Total finance income t 13
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (23) (24)
Interest on loan notes {on {100}
Net interest recewvable on foan note related denvatives I 12
Interest on obligations under finance feases &) €]
Other interest charges 4 (5)
Total group borrowing costs (i {121)
Net finance costs on defined retirement benefit obligations (22) (20
Total finance costs (133) (141)
Net finance expense (122) (128)
Included within group borrowing costs ts a charge of £6m (2013 £6my) relating to cash flow hedges that were transferred from equity
during the year
13 Tax
Continung  Discontinued
Conunuing  Disconunued operations operations Total
operations operations Total 2013 2013 2013
2014 2014 2014 Restated Restated Restated
£m £m £m £m £m m
Current tax expense/(credit)
UK corporatton tax 1 - 11 10 - 10
Overseas tax (33 - 66 58 {4) 54
Adjustments In respect of prior years
UK corporation tax | - | | - I
Overseas tax 12 n 1 20 g 29
Total current tax expense/(credit) 90 () 89 89 5 94
Deferred tax (credit)/expense
(see note 34)
Current year (20) 1 (19 (23) ) (24
Adjustments in respect of prior years (28) - (28) (13) 5 (8)
Total deferred tax (credit)/expense (48) | (47) (36) 4 (32)
Total income tax expense for the year 42 — 42 53 9 62

UK corporation tax 1s calculated at 21 5% (2013 23 3%) of the estmated assessable profits for the period Overseas tax is calculated at the
corporation tax rates prevaling in the relevant jurisdictions
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The tax charge for the year can be reconcled to the profit per the income statement as follows

2013
2014 Restated
fm £m
Profit/(loss} before tax
Continuing operations 148 {190}
Discontinued operauons 63 (105)
Total profit/{loss) before tax 211 {295)
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 2§ 5% (2013 23 3%) (45) 69
Expenses that are not deductible n determining taxable profit {15) (47}
Deferred tax recognised on purchased intangibles 15 ~
Profits on disposal of busmesses not taxable 15 -
Tax losses not recognised in the current year (26) (44)
Diferent tax rates of subsidianes operating in non-UK junisdictions 4 (16)
Movement in deferred tax balance due 1o reduction in UK rate to 20% from 1 Apnil 2015 - (3)
Adsstment for joint ventures 2 2
Adjustments {or previous years 16 (23)
Total income tax charge (42) (62)
Effective tax rate for continuing and discontinuing cperations 20% 219%
The effective tax rate for conunuing operations was 28% (2013 28%)
The following tax charge/(credit} has been recognised directly in equity within the statement of comprehensive income
Restated
W14 043
£m £m
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive iIncome
Change n fair value of cash flow and net investment hedging financial iInstruments () 3
Actuznal profit on defined retirement benefit schemes 16 |
Other — I
Total tax debited to other comprehensive tncome 30 5
14 Dividends
2013
Pence DKK 2014 Restated
per share per share im m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders of the parent in the year
Final dvdend for the year ended 31 December 2012 554 04730 - 78
Interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2013 342 02972 - 52
Final dwvidend for the year ended 31 December 2013 554 04954 85 -
Interimn dvidend for the six months ended 30 June 2014 342 03198 53 -
138 130
Proposed final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2014 582 060414 90

The proposed final dvidend 1s subject 1o approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting If so approved it will be paid on

12 June 2015 to shareholders who are on the UK register on 8 May 2015 The exchange rate used to translate it into Danush krone 1s

that at 9 March 2015
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

15 Earmngs/(loss) per share attributable to equity shareholders of the parent

2013
2014 Restated
fm m
From continuing and discontinued operations
Profit/{loss) for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent 152 (365)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (m) (see note below) 1,545 1,452
Earnings/{loss) per share from continuing and discontinued operations (pence)
Basic and diluted 9 8p {25 Np
From continuing operations
Earnings/(loss)
Profit/(loss) for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent 152 (365)
Adjustment to exclude {profit)/loss for the year from discontinued operations (net of tax) (63) I14
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations a9 2513
Earnings/(loss) per share from conunting operations (pence)
Basic and diluted 58p {173)}p
From discontinued operations
Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued operatons (pence)
Basic and diluted 4 ip (7 8)p
From adjusted earnings
Earnings/(loss)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 89 (251)
Specific tems 56 345
Restructuring 29 66
Amortisation of acquisition-refated intangible assets 58 72
Goodwill mpairment - 46
Acquisition-refated expenses | 4
Profit on disposal on subsidianes - (24}
Tax on amortisation and specific tems (33) (20)
Non-controlling interests’ share of specific items (I N
Adjusted profit for the year attnbutable to equrty shareholders of the parent 199 201
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {m) 1,545 1,452
Adjusted earmings per share (pence) 129 1380

Ad)justed earnings per share

In the opinion of the directors the earnings per share figure of most use to shareholders 1s the adjusted earmings per share This figure
better allows the assessment of operational performance, the analysis of trends over time, the companson of different businesses and the

projection of future eamings

Share placing

In August 2013 the group completed a 9 99% share placing of 140,925,797 shares The increase in average shares during 2014 reflects the

full year impact of this share placing
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16 Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions
The group did not undertake any materral business combinations (n the current year

Prior year acquisitions
The group undertook a number of business combinations in the prior year including the acquisition of Deposita, a cash solutions business
in South Africa

The following table sets out the fair value to the group In respect of all acquisitions made in the prior year

Fair value
2013 acquisitions £m
Intangible assets I5
Property, plant and equipment 2
Deferred tax assets 2
Inventories 4
Trade and other receivables 3
Cash and cash equivalents I
Trade and other payables (6)
Borrowings 4
Deferred tax labies (3)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 14
Goodwill 4
Total purchase consideration (paid in cash) 18

Adjustmenits were made to identifiable assets and labilities on acquistion to reflect their fair value These included the recognstion of
customer-reiated intangible assets amounting to £12m

From their respective dates of acquisition, the acquired businesses contnbuted £28m to prior year revenues, £4m to prior year operating
profit before specific tems and £3m to prior year profit for the part year they were under the group’s ownership If all acquismions had
occurred on | January 2013, group revenue for that year would have been £7,067m operating profit before specific tems would have
been £418m and total loss for the year would have been £356m
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Notes to the conschdated financial statements continued

17 Disposal of subsidianies
During the current year the group disposed of its US Government Solutions business, its cash bustness in Canada, rts business in Norway,
its Jocks business in Finland and its business in Sweden

In the prior year the group disposed of its data solutions business in Colombia recognising a profit of £24m presented in continuing
operations and 1ts cash business in Slovakia resutting in a £3m loss presented In discontinued operations

The net assets and profit on disposal of operations disposed of were as follows

2014 2013
im m
Goodwill 54 -
Acgquisition-related intangible assets | -
Property plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-related 27 8
Other non-current assets 80 -
Current assets 103 I
Liabilittes {150) (5)
Net assets of operations disposed 115 14
Less recycling of cumulative translation reserve {13) -
Net impact on statement of financial position due to disposals 102 14
Profit on disposal 71 21
Total consideration 173 35
Satisfied by
Cash received 161 35
Disposal costs (4 -
Used to repay debt 16 -
Total consideration relating to current year disposals 173 35
Additional consideration received In the current year relating 1o disposals completed in prior years 2 -
Total consideration recognised 0 the current year 175 35

Included in proceeds 1s £16m that was paid by the purchaser directly to the group’s counterparhes to repay existing debt at the time
of disposal
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18 Intangible assets

Acquisiuon-related intangible assets

Customer Other Total
Goodwill  Trademarks relaced Technology ntangibles

2014 £m £m £m Lm im fm
Cost
At | January 2014 2,052 32 657 g 200 2,950
Acquisition of businesses - - | - - I
Addrions - - - - 34 34
Disposals (13) - ) - (n 25)
Translation adjustments {13) - 4) - (3) (20)
At 31 December 2014 2,026 32 653 9 220 2.940
Amorusation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2014 97 @an (520) (6) (123) (777
Arnortisation charge - - (58) n (25) (84)
Disposals 3 - 3 - 8 14
Translation adjustments 7 - 2 — 2 I
At 31 December 2014 {87) (31 (573) (7) (138) (836)
Carrying amount
At | January 2014 1,955 | 137 3 77 2,173
At 3) December 2014 1,939 | 80 2 82 2,104
2013
Cost
At | January 2013 — restated 2,158 33 675 6 199 307t
Acqursition of businesses 4 - 12 3 - t9
Additions - - - - 27 27
Disposals - - - - (5) (5}
Reclassified as held for sale {45) (1} (18) - (14) (78}
Translation adjustments {65) - {12) - ) (84)
At 31 December 2013 — restated 2052 32 657 g 200 2950
Amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
At | fanuary 2013 — restated (62) (30} (475) (5 (112) {684)
Amortisation charge - 03} 73 (n (26) (102}
Impairment charge (46) - - - - (16)
Dhsposals - - - - 4 4
Reclassified as held for sale - 1 17 - 8 26
Translation adjustments Il - 1l — 3 25
At 31 December 2013 - restated (97) 3 (520) _(6) (123) 777
Carrying amount
At | January 2013 ~ restated 2096 3 200 | 87 2387
At 31 December 2013 — restated 1,955 1 |37 3 77 2,173
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I8 Intangible assets (conunued)

Goodwill atlocation

Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated to the cash-generating umits {CGUs) which are expected to benefit from that
business combination A significant portion of the group’s goodwill was generated by the merger of the security services businesses of
Group 4 Faick and Securicor in 2004 which was accounted for as an acquisiion of Securicor by Group 4 Falck

Goodwill impairment testing

The group tests tangible and intangible assets, including goodwall, for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are
indications that any of these assets may be impaired The annual impairment test 15 performed prior o the year end when the budgeting
process s finalised and reviewed post year end The group’s imparment test cornpares the carrying value of each CGU with its recoverable
amecunt CGUs are dentified on a country level basis ncluding significant business urits as per the groups detalled management accounts
Under IAS 36 Impairment of Assets’, an impairment 1s deemed to have occurred where the recoverable amount of a CGU s less than its
carrying value

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s generally determined by its value in use which 1s derved from discounted cash flow calculations The
key inputs to the calculations are described below In rare circumstances, where market prices can be ascertained (for example through
recent transactions or by reference to normal industry standard multisles), the fair value less costs 1o sell 1s used as a basis for the
recoverable amount In the current year the value of goodwill in the UK cash business and the Brazil secunity business was supported by
this valuation methed

Forecast cash flows

All operating countries in the group are required 1o submit a budget for the next financial year (for the current year test this is for the year
ended 3| December 2015) and therr strategic plan forecasts for the {ollowing two years {in this case the years ended 3| December 2016
and 31 December 2017)

The revenue figures submitted as part of this exercise are used to derwve a growth rate for the discounted cash flow calculation (see the
growth rate table below) The group applies a 0% forecast nisk 1o reduce revenue forecasts in each year to reflect the uncertanties
inherent in estimating future revenue streams

Forecast cash flows are adjusted from year 4 onwards by applying a growth rate as detalled in the growth rate section, and discounted
using specific risk-adjusted discount rates as descnbed in the discount rate section

Growth Rate

Growth rates are determened from the budgeted and forecast revenue in years 1-3 and then projected using the lower of the forecast
growth rate and the countrys nominal growth rate (per the IMF) to a terminal growth rate in year |5 of 1% for developed markets or
3% for emerging markets This 1s detalled in the table below

Growth
assumptions  Year | Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6to 15 Terminal value
Input Budget* Forecast’ Forecast’ Projected—-to  Projected —to  Projected to Estimate of
year 5 at lower  year 5 at lower  year 15 residual growth
of forecast or of forecast or ‘terminal growth  developed 1%,
country growth  country growth emerging 3%
Example 8% 7% 6% 5% 4% 4% to 1% 1%
over |0 years

*  Budgets and forecasts are reviewed by the group Board

In the above example, budgeted year | growth rate 15 8%, forecast growth in year 2 15 7% and in year 3 1s 6% The country growth rate 1s
4% so the growth rate 1s reduced each year to reach 4% at year 5 From year é the growth rate 1s then reduced over the next ten years to
provide a terminal value growth of 1% (the example 1s based on a developed market CGU)
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Discount rate

Discount rates are calculated for each CGU based on the relevant local risk-free rate adjusted for that CGU s speafic nsk-adjusted equity
nsk premium For the impairment test performed for the year ended 31 December 2014 the group has revised the calculation of the
pre-tax discount rates applied to certan CGU's. This revision adjusts for the current low-interest rate environment by increasing abnormally
low pre-tax discount rates Detalls of how the other key discount rate inputs are derwved are given below

Input How determined 31 Dec 2014
Risk-free rate The nsk-free rate 1s generally obtained from the local government’s 10 year gil/bond rates 235% in UK
Where these are unavallable the group uses the closest available information (e g shorter
term gilt rates)
UK equity risk prermum The equity nisk premium s determuned for the UK by analysing a vanety of sources mncluding 50% in UK
economic studies carned out by Barclays Capital and others
Operating country Specific local equity nisk premiums are based on the UK risk premium adjusted for specific
equity risk premium economic and financial nsks The sources for these adustments are the Institutional investor
Magazine and the IMF website as well as other studies by independent economists
Leveraged beta Beta 15 a sk adjustment appled to the discount rate to reflect the nsk of the groups 0 8 for the
operating companies relative 1o the market as a whole The group’s beta 1s obtaned from group
independent market studies and 1s adjusted for the appropriate leverage of the group
Tax rate Local tax rates are applied to each CGU to caleulate pre-tax cost of equity 21% 0 UK
Debt margin The group applies @ margin 1& the cost of debt for each CGU, with a hugher margin applled to | 5% 1n UK
thase CGUs operating n higher risk enviranments These margins range from | 5% in less nisky
CGUs (for exarnple in the UK) to 7% in more risky CGUs (e g 6 5% in Yernen)
Weighted average The weighted average cost of capital 1s calculated by weighting the cost of equity and the cost 8 7% 1n UK
cost of capital {pre-tax) of debt by the applicable debt equity ratio at the year end
The table below sets out the pre-tax discount rates and growth rates used for the group’s significant countrigs
Goodwill
Discount rate Dscount rate Growth rate Growth rate Goodwill 2013
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 Restated
% % % % £m £m
South Africa 16 3% 160% 67% 85% 33 30
Braz! 205% 184% 76% 80% 92 98
Unrted States of Amenca 85% 90% 4 6% 53% 407 384
Hong Kong 79% 92% 7 3% 7 5% 41 38
Malaysia 10 4% 104% 79% 7 4% 39 40
Estora 77% 92% 59% 62% 59 63
lsrael 85% 104% 52% 1 0% 34 35
Netherlands 72% 89% 22% 31% 140 150
United Kingdom 87% 86% 40% 43% 710 710
Other {(all allocated) 384 406
Total goodwatt 1,939 1955

*  Lower of year 5 country growth rate per the IMF and implied year 3 business forecast growth rate

Within the UK, the most significant CGUs and ther goodwill carrying values are UK Care and Justice {£247m), UK Cash Solutions (£205m)
and UK Secure Solutions {£102m) Within the USA, the most significant CGU 1s US Commercial Secunty Solutions with goodwill of £321m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

18 Intangible assets {continued)

impairment
There were no impairments recognised during 2014 Durning the year ended 3| December 2013 impairment charges totaling £46m were
recorded in respect of the group’s goodwill, in the following countries

2813

£m

Democratic Republic of Congo (4
Malawi 2)
Nigena {4)
Brazil (24)
Ireland ()
Other impaired 0]
Total (46)

The impairment charge i Brazil was driven by losses incurred in the first half of 2013 in the technology business and a general turndown
in trading The impairment i Ireland was as a result of the economic challenges in the country and the specific stuation of the group s cash
business Certain CGUs in Africa were impairad mainly as a result of worsening economic and political circumstances in those countries

Sensitvity to key assumpuons

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow calculations relate to the discount rates and growth rates used The table below
shows the additional impairment that would arise from an increase in discount rates by 1% and 3% (with all other vanables being equal, for
exarmnple, taking the UK base rate from 8 7% to 97% and | | 79%) or a decrease v growth rates by % and 3% (with all other vanables being
equal, for example, taking the LUK growth rate from 4 0% to 30% and | 0%} for the group in total and for each of its significant countries

Addiional impairment Additianal impairment

Base 1% % Base 1% 3%

Goodwill discount increase Increase growth decrease decrease

2014 rate 2014 2014 rate 2014 2014

£m 2014 £m im 2014 im £m

South Africa 33 16 3% - - 67% - -
Brazil 92 205% 6 16 76% 3 7
United States of America 407 85% - - 46% - -
Hong Kong 4| 79% - - 73% - -
Malaysia 39 10 4% - - 79% — -
Estoria 59 77% - 12 59% - |
Israel 34 B5% - - 52% - -
Netherlands 140 72% - - 22% - -
United Kingdom 710 87% 27 72 40% N 33
Other (all allocated) 384 6 17 3 8
Total 1,939 39 117 17 49

*  Lower of country growth rate per IMF and implied year 3 business forecast growth rate
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|9 Property plant and equipment

Land and Equipment

buildings  and vehicles Toral
2014 fm £m £m
Cost
At | January 2014 24| 993 1,234
Addtions 12 98 110
Disposals - (140) (140)
Reclassified as held for sale - (5) (5)
Translation adjustments (5) 27) (32)
At 31 December 2014 248 919 1,167
Depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2044 {79) 671) (750)
Depreciation charge (15) (96) {(1h
Disposals 6 12 I8
Reclassified as held for sale - 3 3
Translation adjustments 2 21 23
At 31 December 2014 (86) (631) (717}
Carrying amount
At | January 2014 162 32 484
At 31 December 2014 162 288 450
2013
Cost
At | Janvary 2013 — restated 237 980 1217
Acquisiion of businesses - 2 2
Additions 21 138 159
Disposals (10) 63 (73)
Reclassified as held for sale (&) (35) (40)
Translation adjustments (D) (25} 3D
At 31 December 2013 — restated 241 993 1,234

Depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2013 - restated
Depreaation charge

77 (634) D)
(15) (108) (123)
B

Disposals 47 55

Reclassified as held for sale 4 22 26
Transtation adjustments 1 2 3

At 31 December 2013 — restated {79) (671) (750)
Carrying amount

At | January 2013 - restated 160 346 506

At 31 December 2013 — resiated 162 322 484

Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4S plc 129

RUBUBIES [POUPLY



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

19 Property plant and equipment {continued)
The net book value of equipment and vehicles held under finance leases was £34m (2013 £52m) Accumulated depreciation on these
assets was £100m (2013 £124m) and the depreciation charge for the year was £14m (2013 £17m)

The nghts over finance leased assets are effectively secunty for lease liabilities These rights revert to the lessor in the event of default

The net book value of equipment and vehicles includes £28m (2013 £26m) of assets leased by the group to third parties under operating
leases Accumulated depreciation on these assets was £110m (2013 £57m) and the depreciation charge for the year was £8m (2013 £7m)

The net beok value of land and bulldings compnises freeholds of £85m (2013 £73m), long leaseholds of £19m (2013 £20m) and short
leaseholds of £58m (2013 £69m)

20 Investment tn JoInt ventures
The following 1s summansed financial nformation for the group’s interest in immatenal joint ventures, based on the amounts reported in
the groups consolidated financial statements

013

2014 Restated

im m

Carrying amount of interests in joint ventures 41 34
Group's share of

Profit from continuing operations 8 8

Other comprehensive income - (5)

Total comprehensive tncome g 3
21 Inventortes

' 2013

2014 Restated

£m fm

Raw matenals 12 |4

Work in progress H 9

Finished goods including consumables 85 89

Total nventories 108 112

22 Investments

Investrnents compnise primarily hsted securities of £52m (2013 £29m) held by the group’s whally-owned captive Insurance subsidiaries
These are stated at their fair values based on quoted market prices consistent with leve! | of the valuation huerarchy Use of these
Investments 1s restricted to the settlement of claims against the group’s captive insurance subsichares
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23 Trade and other receivables

2013
2004 Restated
MNotes [, fm
Within current assets
Trade debtors 1,629 1,122
Allowance for doubtful debts (50) 37
Other debtors (including tax receivable) 175 183
Prepayments and accrued income 73 74
Amounts due from construction contract customers 24 i 23
Denvative financial instruments at fair value 30 33 I5
Total rrade and other recevables included within current assets 1,371 1,380
Within non-current assets
Derwvative financial instruments at fair value 30 57 74
Other debtors 40 30
Total trade and other receivables included within non-current assets 97 104

Credit nisk on trade recervables

There 15 lirmited concentration of credrt nsk with respect to trade recevables as the group’s customers are both large in number and
dispersed geographicatly in over |10 countries The group's largest customer 1s the UK Gavernment which comprises approximately 10%
(2013 13%) of the total trade debtor balance as at 31 December 2014 Group companies are required to follow the Group Finance Manual
guidelines with respect to assessing the credit worthiness of potential customers These guidelines include processes such as obtaming
approval for credit imits over a set amount, performing credit checks and assessments and obtaining additional security where required

Credn terms vary across the group and can range from 0 to 90 days to reflect the different nsks within each country in which the group
operates There 15 no group-wide rate of prowsion, and proviston 1s made for debts that are past due according to local conditions and past

default expenence

The moverrent In the allowance for doubtful debts 15 as follows

2013

2014 Restated

£m £m

At January {7 {44y

Amounts wrrtten off during the year 4 20

Increase in allowance (7 (3

At 31 December (50 (37)
The ageing of trade debtors, net of allowance for doubtful debt, 15 as follows

2013

2014 Restated

£m £m

Not yet due 864 859

I-30 days overdue 124 128

31-60 days'overdue 42 26

61-90 days averdue 19 27

91-180 days overdue 24 37

|81-365 days overdue 3 6

Qver 365 days overdue - 2

Net trade debtors 1.079 | 085

No additiona! provision has been made on the above amounts as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the group
believes that the amounts are still recoverable The group does not hold any collateral over these palances The proportion of trade debtors
at 31 December 2014 that were overdue for payment was 20% (2013 21%) The groups D5O measure {days sales outstanding) based on

revenue for the last 0 days of the year was 48 days (2013 49 days)

The directors believe the fair value of trade and other recevables, being the present value of future cash flows, approxmates to thewr

book value
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

24 Construcuon contracts

2013
2014 Restated
Naotes £m m
Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other recevables 23 B 23
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables 29 (2) (2
Net balances relating to construction contracts 9 2|
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 127 287
Less progress billings (118) (266)
Net batances relating to construction contracts 9 21

At 31 December 2014, advances recewved from customers for contract work amounted to £4m {2013 £4m) There were no material
retentions held by customers for contract work at either balance sheet date All trade and other receivables ansing from construction

contracts are due for settlement within one year

25 Dhsposal groups classified as held for sale

At 31 December 2014 disposal groups classified as held for sale included the assets and habilities associated with the group s business in

Costa Rica

At 31 December 2013 disposal groups classified as held for sale included the assets and habiliies associated with the group’s cash business
in Canada and the group's business in Norway, both of which were sold in January 2014 Disposal groups held for sale at 31 December 2013
also included the assets and habilities assocated with the classified US Government Solutions business which was sold in November 20 14

The major classes of assets and habiites comprising the operations classified as held for sale are as follows

2014 013
£m {m

ASSETS
Goaodwill - 45
Acquisition-related intangible assets - I
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-related 2 20
Interest in associates - 12
Trade and other recevables (non-current) - 10
Deferred tax asset - V4
Trading investments - 12
Inventores - 2
Trade and other recevables (current) 4 89
Cash and cash equivalents - 15
Total assets classified as held for sale [ 220
LIABILITIES
Bank loans (n (19
Trade and other payables (3 (93)
Retirement benefit obligations - (17
Deferred 1ax habiity - &)
Total habilities associated with assets classified as held for sale (4 {133)
Net assets of disposal group 2 87
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26 Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts
A reconcihiation of cash and cash equivalents reported within the consolidated cash flow statement to amounts reported within the
consohdated statement of financial position 1s presented befow

2013

014 Restated

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 409 532
Bank overdrafts (18) %
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts included within disposal groups classified as held for sale — 15
Total cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 391 538

Cash and cash equivalents compnse principally short-term money market deposits, current account balances and group-owned cash held
in ATM mactunes and at 3| December 2014 bore interest at a weighted average rate of 0 8% (2013 07%) The credit risk on cash and cash
equivalents 1s imited because wherever possible and in accordance with Group Treasury policy the cash 1s placed with bank counterparties
that hold investment grade credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The group operates a multi-currency notional pooling cash management system which included over 140 group companies at 31 December
2014 The group met the condittons of IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments Presentation' allowing balances within this cash poot to be offset for
reporting purposes At 31 December 2014 £300m (2013 £422m) of the cash balances and the equivalent amount of the overdraft
balances were offset

Cash and cash equivalents of £26m (2013 £3%m) are held by the group’s wholly-owned captive msurance subsidiares Their use 1s
restricted to the settlement of claims against the group’s captive insurance subsidiaries

27 Bank overdrafts, bank loans and lcan notes

2043
2014 Restated
£m £m
Bank overdrafts 18 9
Bank ioans 165 167
Loan notes’ 1.899 1,982
Total bank overdrafts bank loans and loan notes 2,082 2,158
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year 174 97
In the second year 129 95
In the third to fifih years inclusive 1,648 1,392
After five years 131 574
Total bank overdrafis, bank loans and lean notes 2,082 2,158
Less Amount due for settlernent within 12 months (shown under current labilities)
Bank overdraits (18) (%)
Bank loans (60) (27)
Loan notes (96) (61)
(174) {37)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1,908 2061

* Loan notes includes £687m (2013 £716m) of pnvate loan nates and £1 212m (2013 £ 266m) of public loan notes
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iNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

27 Bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes (continued)
Analysis of bank overdrafis, bank loans and loan notes by currency

Sterling Euros US Dollars Crthers Toal

£m £m fm £m £m

Bank overdrafts | 3 4 - 18
Bank loans 48 - 108 9 165
Loan notes 419 858 622 - 1,899
At 3! December 2014 468 861 744 9 2,082
Bank overdrafis | 5 3 - 9
Bank loans - 37 80 50 167
l.oan notes 419 915 648 - 1,582
At 31 December 2013 — restated 420 957 731 50 2,158

Of the borrowings in currenaies other than sterling, £926m (2013 £1 014m) 1s designated as a net investment hedge

The weighted average interest rates on bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes at 31 December 2014 adjusted for hedging were
as foflows

2014 2013

% %

Bank overdrafts 09 Il
Bank loans 23 35
Private loan notes 413 42
Public lean notes 41 412

At 3| December 2014, the group’s committed bank borrowings comprised a £1 |bn multi-currency revolving credit facility with a maturity
date of March 2016 At 31 December 2014 undrawn committed avarlable facilities amounted to £398m (2013 £965m) Interest on all
committed bank borrowing faciities s at prevailing Libor or Eunbor rates, dependent upon the peried of drawdown, plus an agreed margin,
and re-priced within one year or less

(N January 2015 the revalving credit facility was refinanced The new facility 1s £1 Obn and matures in January 2020 with two one-year
extension optons exercisable with lending bank consent on the facility s first and second anmiversary If exercised the matur ity date would
extend to January 2021 and January 2022 respectively

Borrowing at fioating rates exposes the group to cash flow interest rate nsk The management of this risk is discussed in note 31

The group 1ssued fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placernent market totaling US$550m {£353m) on | March 2007 $100m of these
notes matured and were repaid on | March 2014, with the remaining notes matunng in March 2017 ($200m), March 2019 ($145m) and
March 2022 ($105m)

The group ssued further fixed rate loan notes i the US Prvate Placement market totalling US$5 [4m (£329m) and £69m on 5 July 2008
$65m of these notes matured and were repad on |5 July 2013, with the remaining notes maturing in July 2015 ($150my), July 2016 {£25m)
July 2018 ($224m) and (£44m), and July 2020 ($75m)

The group 1ssued rts Inaugural public note of £350m using its European Medwum Term Note Programme on 13 May 2009 The note
matures in May 2019

During 2012 the group issued twa further public notes, a €600m note 1ssued in May 2012 maturing May 2017 and a €500m note i1ssued
in December 2012 maturing December 2018

The committed bark facilities and the private loan notes are subject to one finanoal covenant (net debt to £BITDA ratio where EBITDA

I1s calculated as underlying group PBITA plus deprecration and amorusation of non-acquisition related intangible assets} and non-complance
with the covenant may lead to an acceleration of matunty The group complied with the financial covenant throughout the year to

31 December 2014 and the year to 31 December 2013 The group has not defaulted on, or breached the terms of any materal loans
during the year

Bank overdrafis, bank loans, the loan notes issued in July 2008 (with the exception of £44m), €510m of the loan notes 1ssued n May 2012
and €380m of the loan notes issued in December 2012 are stated at amortised cost The loan notes issued in March 2007, £44m of the
loan notes issued in July 2008 the loan notes issued in May 2009, €50m of the loan notes 1ssued In May 2012 and €120m of the loan notes
issued in December 2012 are stated at amortised cost recalculated at an effective interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they
are part of a fair value hedge relaticnship

US3$200m {£128m) of the loan notes 1ssued in July 2008 have a farr value market gain of £28m (2013 gain £21m) resutting from the cross
currency swaps fixng the sterhing value of this portion of the loan notes 4t an exchange rate of | 975
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€325m (£252m) of the loan notes 1ssued in May 2012 have a far value market loss of £14m (2013 gain £5m) predominately resutting
from the cross currency swaps fixing the sterling value of this portion of the loan notes at an exchange rate of | 222 and partly resulting

from the cross currency swaps fixing the sterling and euro interest rates

€350m {£272m) of the loan notes issued in December 2012 have a fair value market loss of £5m (2013 gan £16m) predormenately
resutting from the cross currency swaps fixing the sterling value of this portion of the loan notes at an exchange rate of | 233 and partly

resutung from the cross currency swaps fixang the sterling and euro interest rates

28 Obligattons under finance leases

Present
Present value of
Minimum Value of minmu
Minimum lease minmum lease
lease payments lease payments
payments 2013 payments 2013
2014 Restated 2014 Restated
£m £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 16 23 14 21
In the second to fifth years inclusive 29 31 24 28
After five years 3 3 2 3
48 57 40 52
Less future finance charges on finance leases (8) (5)
Present value of lease obligations 40 52
Less amount due for settlement within | 2 months (shown under current habilities) (4 21}
Armount due for settlement after 12 months 26 31

It 1s the group s policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The weighted average lease term is seven years
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the weighted average effective borrowing rate was 8 2% (2013 7 3%) Interest rates are fixed at
the contract date All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

The group s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors charges over the leased assets

29 Trade and other payables

2013
2014 Restated
MNotes £m £m
Within current habilites

Trade creditors 185 209
Amounts due to construction contract customers 24 2 2
Other taxation and social security costs i85 200
Holiday pay accruals 318 313
Other creditors 108 132
Accruals and deferred income 280 308
Denvative financial instruments at fair value 30 25 2
Total trade and other payables included within current habiliies 1,103 | 166

Within nen-current habilities
Denvative financial instruments at fair value 30 12 2
Other creditors | 14
Total trade and other payables included within non-current labilities 23 13

Trade and other payables comprise principally amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit period taken

for trade purchases s 36 days (2013 36 days)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30 Derivauve financial instruments
The carrying values of denvative financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below

Assets Assels Liabiliues Liabiles
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m Em m
Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 28 42 19
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - | 2
Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges 61 46 12 I
foreign exchange forward transactions | - - -
Commodity swaps - I S |
90 89 37 4
Less non-current portion (57) 74 {12) (2)
Current portion 33 15 25 2

Derwative financial instruments are stated at far value, measured using techniques consistent with Level 2 of the valuation herarchy (inputs
other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset and hability, either direcily or indirectly) The source of the
market prices 15 Bloomberg and in addrtion the third party relationship counterparty banks The relevant currency yield curve 1s used 1o
forecast the floating rate cash flows anticipated under the instrument which are discounted back to the balance sheet date This value 1s
compared to the original transaction value giving a fair value of the instrument at the balance sheet date

The mark to market valuation of the dervatives has fallen by £32m during the year

The interest rate, cross currency, foreign exchange and commodity swaps treated as cash flow hedges have the following matunities

Assets Assets Labilities Liabdiees

2014 2013 2014 2013

fm fm im m

Within one year 21 | 4 |

In the second year - ! 2 -

In the third year - - 14 2

In the fourth year 7 5 5 -

In the fifth year or greater — 2| — -

Total carrying value 28 43 25 3
The projected settlerment of cash flows {including accrued interest) associated with denvatives treated as cash flow hedges

Assets Assets Liabilities Liab#ties

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m fm £m m

Within one year 22 I 9 6

In the second year - 16 6 4

In the third year - - 7 4

In the fourth year 7 I | -

In the fifth year or greater - 26 - -

Total cash flows 29 54 23 14
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31 Financial nisk

Capital management

Post the year end the group refinanced s £1 1bn mutti-currency revolving credr facility with a £1 Obn faciity that was signed on
7 January 2015 The new facility 15 for five years with two extension options exercasable by the banks that potenually results in the
faclity having a Iife of seven years

In August 2014, Standard & Poor's confirmed the group's long term credit rating of BEB- Stable The group will continue to manage its
capital structure so that 1t retains an investment grade rating

The group’s policy 1s to maintan a net debt to EBITDA ratio of less than 25 times At the end of 2014 the ratio was 2 8 times which
reflects the Electronic Monitoring contract settlement The ratio 15 expected to steadlly decline as the benefits from the restructuring and
business transformation programmes take effect

At 31 December 2014 the group had £998m of avallable and undrawn facilities from its committed £1 1bn bank facility Fallowng the

successful refinancing of its committed bank facility in January 2015, the group has no significant maturity untrl May 2017 and has a medium
to long-term debt maturity profile The group is currently well placed to access finance from the debt caprtal markets and the bank market
if required Borrowings are pnnapally in sterhing, US dollars and Euros reflecting the geographies of significant operational assets and profits

Liquidity risk
The group mitigates hquidity nsk by ensuring there are sufficient undrawn committed facilties avadlable to it For more details of the group's
bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes see note 27

The percentage of available, but undrawn committed faciliies during the course of the year was as follows

31 December 2013 32%
31 March 2014 32%
30 June 2014 33%
30 September 2014 2%
31 December 2014 34%

To reduce re-financing risk, group treasury abtains finance with a range of maturities and hence minimises the impact of a single materal
source of finance terminating on a single date

Re-financing risk 1s further reduced by group treasury opening negotiations o ether replace or extend any major medium-term facility
at least |12 months before its termination date
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 Financiat nsk {continued)

Maturity profile of loans and borrowings

The contractual matunties of financial assets and habilties, together with the carrying amounts in the staterent of financal position,
inctuding interest payments, estimated based on expectations at the reporting date, are shown below

Carrying Fair contral-:u::: Within | 2-5 Over §
31 December 2014 Notes Amount Value cash flows year years years
Investments 22 60 60 60 60 - -
Derwative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) 30 49 49 65 18 43 4
Financial assets designated at far value through
profit or loss 109 109 125 78 43 4
Denvatwve financial instruments
(foreign exchange forwards) 30 I | | | - -
Derwatwe financiat instruments
{cross currency swaps) 30 28 28 28 21 7 -
Financial assets designated as cash flow hedges 29 29 29 22 7 —
Net trade recevables 23 1,079 1,079 1 079 1,079 - -
Cash and cash eguivalents 26 409 409 409 405 - -
Loans and recervables 1,488 1,488 1,488 1,488 - -
Loan notes
{issued May 2009, 7 75%, maturing 2019) 7 (354) (354) (486) n (459) -
Loan notes
{issued March 2007, 5 86%-6 06%, maturing 2014-22) 27 (330) (330) (363) (17) (268) (78)
Financial habilues designated as fair value hedges (684) (684) (849) (44) (727) (78)
Denvatrve financal instruments (Cross currency swaps) 30 (19 (1% (17) (4) (13) -
Dernvatve financial Instruments (interest rate swaps) 30 n (N N (1} - -
Derwative financial instruments (commaodtty swaps) 30 (5) {5 (5) (4) (H -
Financial liabihues designated as cash flow hedges (25) (25) (23) (9) (t4) —
Loan notes
{1ssued July 2008, 6 09%-7 56%, maturing 2015-20)° 27 (357) (385) (439) (12n (267) G
Loan notes
{1ssued May 2012, 2 875%, matuning 2017) 27 (467) (478) (5086) (13) {(493) -
Loan notes
(1ssued December 2012, 2 625%, maturing 2018)" 27 (391} (399) (429) (10 (419} -
Bank loans 27 (165) (165) {165) (60) (105) -
Overdrafis 27 (18) (18} (18) (i8) - -
Finance lease labilties 28 (40) (40} (40) (14) (24) 2)
Trade payables 29 (185) (185) (185) {185) - -
Other habilities 29 (i (L) (I - (t) -
Financial habilites measured at amortsed cost (1.634) (1.681) (1.793) (421) (1.319) (53)

*  £44m of July 2008 loan notes, €90m (£70m) of May 2012 loan notes and €120m (£93m) of Decernber 2012 loan notes are recorded at far vafue through profit or loss

138 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2014




Total

Carrying Far contractual Whthn } 2.5 Ower 5
Amount Value cash flows year years years
3} December 2013 Notes Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated
Investments 22 39 39 39 39 - -
Denvative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) 30 46 46 53 16 35 2
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 85 85 92 55 35 2
Denvative financial nstruments (commodity swaps) 30 | I I | - -
Dernwative financial Instruments
(cross currency swaps) 30 42 12 42 (3 45 -
Financial assets designated as cash flow hedges 43 43 43 (2) 45 -
Net trade recevables 23 1,085 1,085 1,085 | 085 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 26 532 532 532 532 - -
Loans and receivables 1617 1,617 1,617 1617 -
Loan notes
{issued March 2007, 5 77%-6 06%, matuning 2014-22) 27 (377) (377) (420) (78) {175) (167)
Derwatve financal nstruments (interest rate swaps) 30 (H () (1) [ (2) -
Financial habilies designated as fair value hedge (378) (378) 420 77 (177) (167)
Denvative financial nstruments {nterest rate swaps) 30 (2) (2) (3) (2) (1 -
Derwvative financial instruments {commodity swaps) 30 (4 () (1) - (1) —
Financial habilines designated as cash flow hedges (3) (3) 4 (2) @ -
L.oan notes
{1ssued July 2008, 6 09%-7 56%, maturing 2015-20) 27 (340) (381) (418) (23) (344) 5Nh
Loan notes {issued May 2009, 7 75%, matunng 20(%) 27 (350) {(376) (513) (27) (109) (377
Loan notes
(1ssueg May 2012, 2 875%, maturing 2017)° 27 (500 (508) (556) (14) (542) -
Loan notes
(issued December 2012, 2 625%, maturing 2018)° 27 (415) {410 (471 (n (460)
Bank loans 27 (167} (167) (167) (27) (140 -
Overdrafts 27 (% (%) &) &) - -
Finance lease liabilties 28 (52) (52) (52) (21) (28) 3
Trade payables pal (209) 209 (209) (209} -
Other labilities 25 oan {an (n - (n —
Financial habihities measured at amortsed cost (2.053) (2,123) {2 406) (341) (1.634) {431)

The gross cash flows disclosed i the tables above represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to derwative linancial assets
and labilities held for nsk management purposes and which are usually not ¢losed out before contractual maturity The disclosure shows

net cash flow amounts for denvatives that are net cash-settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amounts for denvatives thai have

simuttaneous gross cash settlement — e g forward exchange contracts

*  €90m (£75m) of May 2012 loan notes and €120m (£100m) of December 2012 loan notes are recorded at far value through profit or loss
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 Financial nisk {continued)

Market risk

Currency nsk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currencies Transaction risk 1s imited since, wherever possible, each business operates and conducts
its financing activities in local currency However, the group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterling and 1t 1s 1n consequence
subject to foreign exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of its foreign subsidiaries The group hedges a substantial
proportion of its expesure 1o fluctuations in the transtation into sterling of rts overseas net assets by holding loans in foreign currencies

Translation adjustments ansing on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised in equity to match translation adjustments on
foreign currency equity investments as they quakify as net investment hedges

At 31 December 2014, the group's US dollar and Eure net assets were approximately 78% and 74% respectively hedged by foreign
currency loans {2013 US dollar 82%, Euro 55%)

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £10{m are in place hedging the foreign currency risk on US$200m of the second LS Private
Placement notes issued 1n July 2008 effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 1 9750

Cross currency swaps with a norinal value of £266m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk on €325m of the Euro public
notes 1ssued In May 2012, effectively fixing the sterling value of this portton of debt at an exchange rate of | 2217

Cross currency swaps with a norninal value of £284m were arranged tc hedge the foreign currency risk on €350m of the Eurc public
notes issued in December 2012, effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | 2332

Assuming a |% apprecation of sterling against the US dollar and the Euro the fair value net gain on the cross currency swaps which hedge
part of the currency loan notes would be expected to fall by £6m

Interest rate nsk and mterest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 27 exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk, which the group manages within
policy limits approved by the directors Interest rate swaps and, to a Imred extent, forward rate agreements are utilised to fix the nterest
rate on a proportion of borrowings on a reducing scale over forward penods up to a maximum of five years At 31 December 2014 the
nominal value of such contracts was £103m (in respect of US dollar) (2013 £97m) and £54m (in respect of Eura) (2013 £37m), their
weighted average Interest rate was | 3% (US dollary (2013 | 3%) and 0 6% (Euro) (2013 2 8 %), and their weighted average period to
maturity was three years All the interest rate hedging nstruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and moverments in
their fair value have been deferred in equity

The US Private Placement market 1s predominantly a fixed rate market with investors preferring a fixed rate return over the life of the (oan
notes At the time of the first issue in March 2007, the group was comfortable with the proportion of floating rate exposure not hedged by
interest rate swaps and therefore rather than take on a higher propertion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effectively
converting the fixed coupon on the Private Placement 1o a floating rate Following the swaps the resuling average coupen on the US
Private Placerment s LIBOR + 60bps These swaps have been documented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest
loan notes, with the movements in their far value posted 1o profit and loss at the same time as the movement in the fair value of the
hedged stem

The interest on the US Private Placement notes issued in July 2008, the GBP public nates 1ssued in May 2609, 5 10m of the furo public
notes issued i May 2012 and 380m of the Euro public notes ssued in December 2012 was inttially kept at fixed rate In April 2014 the
interest rate on £44m of the US Private Placement notes issued in July 2008 and on all the GBP public nates 1ssued in May 2009 was
swapped from fixed to floating for a period of three years using dervatives

Al three public notes have a coupon step up of | 25% which is triggered should the credit rating of G4S plc fall below investment grade

The core group borrowings are held in US dollar, Euro and sterling Although the impact of rising interest rates 1s largely shielded by fixed
rate loans and interest rate swaps which provide certainty on the vast majority of the exposure, some Interest rate risk remains A 19
increase In interest rates across the yield curve in each of these currencies with the 31 Decermber 2014 debt position constant throughout
2015, would lead to an expectation of an additional interest charge of £1 Im in the 2015 financial year
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Commuodity risk and commuodity swaps

The group’s principal cormmodity risk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices, particularly affecting its cash solutions businesses
Commodity swaps and cormmodity options are used to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatdity
Commodity swaps hedging 23 million litres of projected 2015 diesel consumption and 10 milion litres of projected 2016 diesel
consumpiuion were in place at 31 Decemnber 2014

Counterporty credit nsk
The groups strategy for credit risk management is to set minimum credit raungs for counterparties and monitor these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions, the policy imits the aggregate credit risk assigned to a counterparty The utiisation of a credit hmit 1s
calculated by applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction ouistanding with each counterparty based on the type and
duration of the transaction The total mark-to-market value cutstanding with each counterparty 15 also closely monrtored against policy
lemits assigned to each counterparty For short-term transactions (under one year) at inception of the transaction the financial counterparty
must be investment grade rated by erther the Standard & Poor's or Moody's rating agencies For long-term transactions, at inception of the
transaction, the financial counterparty must have a muinimum rating of BBB+/Baal from Standard & Poor’s or Moocd, s

Treasury transactions are dealt with the group's relationship banks, all of which have a strong investment grade rating At 31 December
2014 the largest two counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £33m and £21m and both were held with institutions
with a long-term Standard & Poor's credit rating of A These exposures represent 43% and 27% of the carrying values of the treasury
transactions, with a far value gain at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loan commitments outstanding to G4S plc
at 31 December 2014

The group operates a multi-currency notional pooking cash managerment systermn with a wholly owned subsidiary of an A rated bank. At year
end credit balances of £300m were pooled with debit balences of £30tm, resutting in a net pool overdraft balance of £1m There 15 legal
right of set off under the pooling agreement and an overdraft facility of £3m

At an operating level the minimum investment grade rating criteria applies Exceptionally, where required by local country arcumstances,
counterparties with no, or a non-nvestment grade, rating can be approved as counterparties for a pertod of up to 12 months Due to the
group's global geographical footpriat and exposure to multipte industries, there 1s minimal concentration risk.

32 Reurement benefit abligations

The group operates a wide range of retirernent benefit arrangemenits which are established in accordance with local conditions and
practices within the countres concerned These include funded defined contrbution mutti-employer and funded and unfunded defined
benefit schermes

Drefined contribution arrangements

The majonty of the retirement benefit arrangements operated by the group are of a defined contribution structure, where the employer
contribution and resukting ncome statement charge is fixed at a set level or 15 a set percentage of employees pay Contnbutions made to
defined contnbution schemes and charged 1o the income statement totalled £96m (2013 £99m)

In the UK, following the closure of the defined benefit schemes to new entrants in 2004 the main scheme for new employees s a
contracted-in defined contribution scheme

The group disposed of its interest in G45 Government Solutions, Inc during the year G4S Government Solutions, Inc was the adrministrator
of several defined benefit schemes and was responsible for making periodic cost-reimbursable deposits to the varnous defined benefit
schemes as determined by independent actuanies In each instance, the US Department of Energy {'DOE’) acknowledged within the
contract entered between the DOE and G45 Government Solutions Inc 1ts responsibility for all unfunded penston and benefit liabilities
Therefore, these schemes were accounted for as defined contrbution schemes up until the date of disposal in November 2014

Mulu-employer arrangement

In the Netherlands, most of the employees are members of the Securtty Industry Wide Pension Fund (MVYPF) This s a career-average
defined benefit plan Pensionable salary i1s subject to a cap and minus an ofiset that reflects social secunty levels Withdrawal from the
scheme 1s only possible under certain strict conditons determined by Dutch law and by the pension fund board of the IWPF

The plan 15 funded by a premium that 15 set by the IWPF board i line with the finanang rufes that state that the premium should cover the
cost of the annual accrual of pension benefits Histoncally the premium has been 30% of pensionable salanes and the employer pays 60%
of this premium and the employees the remaining 40%

The financing rules speafy that an employer 1s not obliged to pay any further premiums in respect of previously accrued benefits This
means that in case of insufficient funding, the benefits of participants could, in theory, be reduced The current solvency ratio 1s 111 7%
(December 2014) The required solvency ratio according to Dutch law is 122 3% (as at 3! Decemnber 2012) Should a surplus appear within
the scheme the board will deaide If a reduction in premium 1s possible although this would only be possible at much higher solvency levels
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

32 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Premiums paid to the scheme by the group and charged to the income statement in 2014 totalled £7m (2013 £8m) The estmated
amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the schemes during the financal year commenang 1 January 2015 in respect of the
on-gong accrual of benefits 15 approximately £8m including allowance for members of the Securicor Staff Pension Plan who have now
joined thrs mutti-employer plan The prermium that the IWPF received in 2014 15 not yet available, in 2013 this amounted to €57 4m of
which approximately €8m was paid by the group and €5m by GA4S employees The total number of employees 1s approximately 22,500 at
the end of 20! 3 The number of employees working for the group is approximately 5000 as at 31 October 2014

The schemne 1s not accounted for as a defined benefit scheme under |AS |9 Employee Benefits’ as it 1s not possible to identfy the groups
share of the scheme’s assets and babilities As a result, and in line wath general practice for such schemes, the scheme 15 accounted for as if
it were a defined contribution scheme under 1AS |9

During 2014 the assets and past and future service habilities of the Nethertands Securicor Staff Pension Plan were transferred to the
Security Industry Wide Fund This led to a settlement gain of €26m (£21m)

Defined benefit arrangements

The group operates several funded defined retirement benefit schemes where the benefits are based on employees' length of service
Whilst the group’s primary scheme 1s in the UK. It also operates other matenal schemes in the Netherlands and other less matenal plans
elsewhere Under funded arrangements, the assets of defined benefit schemes are held in separate trustee-administered funds or similar
structures in the countries concerned

The amounts recognised in the income staternent in relation 1e the ratenial funded schemes are included within the following categories

2014 013
im m

Amounts recognised in the Income statement
Cost of sales (8) (5)
Administration expenses (2) )]
Specific items 21 -
Net finance costs (20) (20
Total for matenal funded defined benefit schemes (9 (ZN

There are also various less matenal unfunded arrangements for these the group dees not hold related assets separate from the group

In aggregate, other unfunded arrangements incurred £1m of cost of sales, £2m finance costs and included a £5m actuanial loss recognised
in ather comprehensive iIncorne

During the year, the unfunded severance scheme hability of £13m in Saudi Arabia was re-classified from employee benefits prowisions into
retirement benefits obligation

The defined benefit obligation (DBO), assets and balance sheet prowvisions for defined benefit schemes are as follows

DBO Assers Provsion

2014 £m £m £m
UK (2222) 1,983 (239)
Netherlands 3 48 (25)
Other (%) 9 —
Total for matenal funded defined benefit schemes (2.304) 2,040 (264)
Total provision for unfunded and other funded defined benefit schemes {55}
Total pravision for all defined benefit schemes (319)
D8O Assels Provision

2013 fm €m Im
UK (2011) 1562 (449)
Netherlands (ny 88 (23)
Other )] 10 -
Total for materal funded defined benefit schemes (2,132) 1,660 473)
Total provision for unfunded and other funded defined benefit schemes (32)
Jotal prowision for all defined benefit schemes {504)
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UK Defined Benefit Scheme

The defined benefit scheme in the UK accounts for 91% of the net balance sheet lability for matenal funded defined retirement benefit
schemes It comprises three sections the Group 4 section which 1s the pension scheme demerged from the former Group 4 Falck AJS, the
Securicor section, responsibility for which the group assumed on 20 July 2004 with the acquisiion of Secuncor plc, and the GSL section

responsibility for which the group assumed on 12 May 2008 with the acquisition of GSL

The UK scheme 15 closed to future accrual apart from some sub-sections of the GSL section and for most members defines the pension
based on final salary The GSL sectron has historically remained open to provide a facility to accept former public-sector employees who
join G45 through outsourcangs in the Group 4 and Secuncor sections members retain their Iink to final salary where approprate on ther

benefits accrued up to closure in 201 |

As at the latest actuanal funding valuation the participants of the UK pension scheme sections can be analysed as follows

Group 4 GSL Securicor

At 5 April 2012 section section section Total
Active participants

* Number - 808 - 808
*+ Average age - 471 - 471
Deferred participants

* Number 4,390 1,318 9973 15681
* Average age 515 500 513 512
Pensioner participants

* Number 3024 581 8891 12,496
* Average age 699 636 712 705

There 15 a mix of fixed and nflation-dependent penston increases (in payment and deferment) which vary from member to member

according to their membershin history and the section of the scheme

The discounted weighted average duration of the accrued liabilities of the sections are respecuvely |8 years (Group 4 section), 20 years
(GSL section) and |9 years (Secuncer section) As at 31 December 2013 the discounted weighted average duration of the accrued
labitiies of the sections were 17 years {Group 4 section), | 8 years {(GSL section) and |8 years {Securicor sectton)

The scheme 15 set up under UK law and governed by a Trustee company which s responsible for the schemes mvestments, administration
and managernent The Board of the Trustee Campany 1s comprised of an independent chairman and further independent, group and

scheme membership representatives

The current schedule of deficit recovery ceniributions provides for a contribution of approximately £44m dunng 2015 In addmion, the
company has pledged a share of any matenal disposal proceeds to the pension scheme (to be shared in the same proportion as the
pension scheme deficit bears to overall group indebtedness) and has agreed that addiional contributions would be made in the event that
the average annual dvidend payment to ordinary shareholders over the three financial years 2014, 2015, 2016 exceeds a certain threshold
or in the event that the company rmakes a significant special dvidend payment (or equivalent capital return) to its ordinary shareholders

over the same period

A funding vatuation 15 carned out for the scheme's Trustee every three years by an ndependent firm of actuaries Depending on the
outcome of that valuation a schedule of future contributions is negotiated the group has guaranteed any contributions due from its

subsidiaries The next valuatton will have an effective date of 5 April 2015

Other materal Defined Benefit Schemes

Apart from the mutu-employer scheme referred to above the group operated two material pension schemes in the Netherlands which
apply to different employee populations, they are known as the Securicor Staff and Cash Solutions schemes Both schemes define pensions
in terms of average career pay, are open to new entrants and are funded in accordance with Dutch requirements

Pension increases in the Securicor Staff scheme are conditienal on the funding level and so are only required if there 1s a funding surplus
The Securicor scheme has a risk sharing arrangement whereby members pay 50% of the cost of the scheme but the group has opted to
record 100% of the defict as a company kability due to uncertainties as to the practicalives of applying the schemes provisians m this

respect for example n 2012 benefits were reduced rather than increasing members’ contributions

During 2014 the assets and past and future service labilities of the Netherlands Securicor Staff Pension Plan were transferred to the

Secunity Industry Wide Fund This led to a settlement gain of €26m (£21m)

The Cash Solutions scheme 15 required to provide benefits at least equivalent 1o the industry-wide mutu-employer scheme and in
particular pension increases in payment and deferment as well as revaluation of active members’ rights In the Cash Solutions scheme have
to follow the multi-employer scheme (which also applies a conditional approach) The Cash Solutions scheme 1s msured, so langewity nsk on
the base level of insured pension (that 1s before increases) 15 carned by the insurer and any bonuses from the Insurer's returns may defray

the cost of pension increases Accordingly, there 1s a counterparty risk aganst the insurer
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

32 Reurement benefit obligations {continued)
During the year the plan was amended to decrease the annual accrual rate from 2 00% to | 87% for future service benefits This resulted
In a past service credit of £1m that has been recognised as a specific tem in the group's consolidated income statement

The discounted weighted average duration of the accrued habilities of the Cash Solutions scheme 1s 31 years (2013 28 years)

In 2013 the group had a materal scheme i Canada The sponsonng business sold on 17 January 2014 and the entire habilities and assets
of the scheme are now the responsibility of the purchaser

Expected contributions

The esirmated amounts of contnbutions expected to be paid to the maternal schemes duning the financial year commenang | January 2015
in respect of the ongoing accrual of benefits should be approximatety £6m {spht £5m UK, £1m Netherlands) and 1t 15 anticipated that these
will remain at a similar level in the medium term subject to changes in financial conditions

Principal risks

The group s pension schemes create a number of risk exposures Annual increases on berefits are, to a varying extent from scheme to
scheme dependent on inflation so the mam uncertainties affecting the level of benefits payable are future inflation levels {including the
impact of nflation on future salary increases) and the actual longevrty of the membership Benefits payable will also be influenced by a
range of other {actors ncluding member decisions on matters such as when to retire and the possibility to draw benefits In different forms

A key risk 1s that additiona!l contributions are required if the investment returns fall short of those anticipated when setung the
contributions to the pension plans For the UK funding valuation those assumed investment returns (for funding vatuations) are set based
on fixed margins over the LIBOR swap curve The management of the pension fund assets has been delegated to an asset manager which
manages the assets agamnst a liability benchmark The key parameters of this mandate can be summanised as follows

* An asset mix which 1s managed dynamically over trme rather than a set strategic allocation

* Interest rate and inflation nsk 1s managed with the benchmark of hedging 100% of these risks as a percentage of the asset value through
the use of debt instruments (government bonds} and dervatives

* Currency risk 1s managed with the objective of hedging at least 70% of the overseas currency exposure in the portfolio through the use
of forward foreign currency contracts

All pension schemes are regulated by the relevant jurisdictions These include extensive legislation and regulatory mechanisms that are
subject to change and may impact G45' penston schemes

Regarding financial reporting measures, the I1AS 19 habilty measurement (DBQO) and the service cost are sensitive to the actuanal
assumptions made on a range of demographic and financial matters that are used to project the expected benefit payments, the most
important of these assumptions beng about future inflation and salary growth levels and the assumptions made about lfe expectation The
DBO and service cost are also very sensitive to the I1AS |9 discount rate, which determines the discounted value of the projected benefit
payments The discount rate depends on market yields on high-quality corporate bonds Investment strategies are set with funding rather
than 1AS 19 considerations in mind and do not seek to provide a specific hedge aganst the |AS |9 measurement of habiliies As a result the
difference between the market value of the assets and the $AS |9 liabilities may be volatile

Assumptions and sensitivities
The weighted average principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuanal valuations were as follows

UK MNetherlands

Key assumpuions used at 3| December 2014

Drscount rate 37% 23%
Expected rate of salary increases 3% | 8%
Pension increases in payment {for the UK, at RP#* with a limit of 5% pa) 28% 1 1%
Inflation 30% 1 8%

Key assumptions used at 3|1 December 2013

Discount rate 4 4% 37%
Expected rate of salary increases 35% 20%
Pension increases in payment (for the UK, at RPf with a bmit of 5% pa) 32% | 4%
Inflation 34% 20%

*  The CPl assumpuon used for the UK valuation in 2014 was 2%

IAS 19 specifies that pension habiities should be discounted at approprate high-quality corporate bond rates The group considers that it is
appropriate 10 consider AA-rated corporate bonds as high quality and therefore have used discount rates based on yields on such bonds
corresponding to the liability profile of the schemes
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Assumptions and sensitivities (continued)
The effect of a movernent i the discount rate applicable in the UK alters reported labilities {before associated deferred tax adjustments)
by approximately the amounts shown in the table below

Increase/{decrease) in the Increase/(decrease) in tha

DBO of the UK Scheme DBO of the UK Scheme

2014 2013

Sensivity analysis £m im
Discount rate assumption being 0 5% higher (186) (163}

Discount rate assumption being 0 5% lower 211 181

The effect of a movement in RP| inflation applhicable in the UK afters reported habilities (before associated deferred tax adjustments) by
approximately the amounts shown in the table below

Increase/{decrease} in the Increase/(decrease) in the

DBO of the LK Scheme DBO of the UK Scherne

2014 2013

Sensitivity analysis £m fra

Inflation assumption being 0 5% higher 87 79
Inflation assumption being 0 5% lower (80) {70y

The above sensrtivities allow for inflation-dependent assumptions such as salary growth and relevant pension increases 10 vary
corresponding to the inflation assumption vanation Due to the caps and floors on pension increases a certain movement in the inflation
assurnption will not generally result in the same movernent in the pension Increase assumption

In addion to the above, the group uses appropriate mortality assumptions when calculating the schemes’ obligations The martality tables
used for the scheme in the UK are Birth year table S1P[M/F]A Base with future improvernents in fine with CMI_2013 Core projections,
based on a fong-term improvernent rate of 1 25% pa and allowing for indwvdual scalng factors based on the majonty anatysis carmied out
as part of the last funding valuation

The resulting assumed life expectancy of a male member of the UK schemes currently aged 65 1s 22 years The assumed life expectancy
at 65 of a male currently aged 52 15 23 years At those ages, the assumed hfe expectancy for a female member 15 between 2 and 3 years
longer than for a male member

The effect of a one year change in this UK life expectancy assumption 1s to aiter reported habilities (before associated deferred tax
adjustments) by approximately £105m {2013 £88m)

The selection of these moverments to illustrate the sensitivity of the DBO to key assumptions should not be interpreted as the group
expressing any specific view of the probability of such movements happening
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

32 Retrrement benefit obligations {contnued)

The amaunts recogrised on the balance sheet in respect of the matenal funded defined benefit schemes and the vanous components of

income, OC| and cash flow are as folfows

DBO Assets Provision
2014 im £m £m
Amounts recogmised on the balance sheet at beginning of the year (2.132) 1.660 (472)
Amounts recognised in income
Current service cost 8) - (8)
Settlernents and past service costs 80 (5% 21
Interest on obligations and assets (92) 72 {20)
Administration costs pad from plan assets - (2 (2)
Total amounts recognised in income (20) L (9)
Remeasurements
Actuanal loss — change in financial assumptions (231) - (231)
Actuanal loss — change 1n demographic assumpuons (2) - 2
Actuanal gain — expenence 4 - 4
Return on assets in excess of interest - 392 392
Remeasurement effects recognised in OCI* (229) 392 163
Cash
Emplayer contrbutions - 50 50
Employee contributions (4) 4 -
Benefits pad from plan assets 72 {72) -
Net cash 68 (18) 50
Other
Exchange rates 9 {5) 4
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at end of the year (2.304) 2,040 {264)

*  Total remeasurements recogmised in OC! of £155m are shown net of remeasurements refating to non-controlling interests of £3m and other unfurded schemes of £5m
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DBO Assets Total
2013 £m £m £m
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at beginning of the year (2.025) 1,589 (438)
Amounts recognised In Income
Current service cost ) - &)
Settlements and past service costs | - |
Interest on obltgations and assets (90) 70 (20)
Administration costs paid from plan assets - 2) 2)
Transfers in (n 14 3
Total amounts recognised n iIncome (109) 82 (27)
Remeasurements
Actuanal loss — change in financial assurnptions (80} - (80)
Actuanal loss — change in demographic assumptions (22) - (22)
Actuanal loss — experience 4 - G}
Return on assets in excess of interest - 46 46
Remeasurement effects recognised in OCl (106} 46 (60)
Cash
Employer contributions - 49 49
Employee contnbutions (4 4 -
Benefits paid from plan assets 79 (79) -
Net cash 75 (26) 49
Other
Exchange rates 2 I 3
Transfer of Canada scheme to held for sale 3| (32) (N
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at end of the year (2132) | 660 {472)

In 201 | G4S won the managed prisons bid in respect of HMP Birmingharn and relevant employees have accrued benefits i the GSL

section since | October 2011 New employees had the option to transfer accrued pension rights This occurred as at | March 2013 and

the effect of this transfer 1s presented in the Transfers in' ine of the above breakdown

The contribution from sponsoring companies in 2014 included £42m (2013 £38m) of additional contributions In respect of the deficit

in the UK schemes
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

32 Retrement benefit obligauons (contuinued)
The composition of the scheme assets at the reporting date 15 as follows

UK Netherlands Toual
2014 £m £m £m
Equity 491 9 500
Bonds 351 39 390
Other 1,141 - 1,141
Total 1,983 48 2,031
UK Netherlands Total
2013 £m £m {m
Equity 413 25 438
Bonds 63 44 197
Other 1,086 19 [,t05
Total | 562 88 | 650
A more detaled sphit of assets of the UK scheme at 31 December 2014 15 presented m the table below
2004 2013
fm £m
Equity 424 387
Private equity 67 46
Government bonds 351 63
Credit 283 274
Property 57 42
Macro-onented 278 296
Multi-strategy 55 48
Dervatives 263 15
Cash and cash equivalents 205 411
1,983 1,562

Within the UK pension fund, the Equity, Credit, Macro-orientated and Mulu-strategy sub-categories consist of pooled vehicles investing
predominantly In assets with quoted prices In active markets All government bonds are 1ssued by the UK government and have quoted
prices in active markets Other UK investments are predominantly not quoted

Derwatives include a range of interest rate and inflation hnked swaps, forward currency contracts equity index total return swaps equity
options, and futures Investing i interest rate and mnflation linked swaps 15 designed to mitigate the impact of future changes in interest rates
and inflation

MNone of the penston scheme assets are held in the group’s own financial instruments orin any assets held or used by the group
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33 Prowvisions and contingent liabilities \

Employee Claims Contract
benefits Restructuring provisions provisions Total ‘
fm im fm fm £m .
At 1 January 2014 26 33 57 143 259
Addstional provision in the year 29 33 54 53 169
LUtilisation of provision (16) (49) (24) {128) (217)
Unused amounts reversed (3) - - (5) (8)
Transfers and reclassifications (13) i 2 2 8
Translation adjustrments - (1) 2 (N -
At 31 December 2014 23 i7 91 64 195
Included in current habilities 90
Included in non-current habilites 105

195

Employee benefits
The prowsion for employee benefits 1s in respect of any employee benefits which accrue over the working hives of the employees typically
inclucing items such as long service awards and termination mdemnity schemes

The group's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits other than retirement benefits represents the present vatue of the
future benefit that employees have earned at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of scheme assets out of which the obligations are
10 be settled directly

During 2014 a lability of £13m relating to the severance scheme n Saudi Arabia was reclassified to retirement benefit obligations to more
accurately reflect the substance of the scheme and to allow for IASI9(R) accounting

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions include amounts for redundancy payments and the costs of closure of activities in acquired businesses and
discontinued operations Settlement of restructuring prowvisions 1s highly probable The timing is uncertain but 1s generally likely to be short
term In the year the group incurred restructuring costs of £29m within speaific items relating to the group wide transformation and a
further £4m associated with costs incurred In the normal course of business

Claims provision

Claims provisions represent any outstanding itigation claims against the group that are hikely to lead to the cutflow of funds in the future
including provisions within the captive nsurance companies to cover (where approprate) anticipated claims incurred as at the balance
sheet date, based on actuanal assessments to calculate the labilities

FIBWTITS EOURUY

Legal claims are recognised based on past expenence of simtar tems and other known factors and represent management s best estimate
of the lkely outcome In the year the group provided £21m in relation to clams on legacy acquisitions and disposals

The claims reserves are held by the wholly-owned captive insurance subsidianies in Guernsey and the US which underwnite part of the
group s cash sclutions, general liability, workers’ compensation and auto hability policies In the year the group prowided £19m in relation to
these claims The provisions are subject to regular actuarial review and are adjusted as appropriate Settlement of these prowvisions 1s highly
probable but bath the value of the final settlements and their iming 1s uncertain dependent upon the ocutcome of ongaing processes to
determine both liability and quantum in respect of a wide range of claims or possible claims

Contract provisions

Contract provisions include provisions for onercus contracts including future habilities for loss-rmaking contracts, for all properties sub-let at
a shortfall, for the cost of replacing assets where there 15 a present contractual requirement and for long-term dle, leased properties Whilst
the likelihood of settlement of these obligations is considered probable, there I1s uncertainty over their value and duraton

Contract provisions are based on the present value of future net cash outflows and includes £45m of provisions for legacy UK government
contracts that were recorded In the year within specific tems The group are continuing to work with the relevant customers to recover
these potential losses

On 12 March 2014 the group announced that it had reached agreement with the UK Ministry of Justuice (Mo)) on a setitement in respect
of claims ansing i relauon 1o Electrome Monrtoning services provided between 2005 and 2013 The agreement also condiuded outstanding
matters relating to two UK faciliies management contracts

The total settlement amount was £109m and is included in utiisation of provisions, having been provided for as at 31 December 2013

Contingent liabilities
Contingent habilities exist 1n respect of agreements entered into In the normal course of business none of which are indvidually or
collectvely significant,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

34 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon duning the current and
prior reporting periods

Retirernent Other

benefit Intangible temporary
obliganons assets Tax losses differences Toual
£m Em £m £m £m
At | January 2014 99 {42) 30 62 149
(Charge)/credit to the income statement 3) 26 I 13 47
Disposal of subsidiaries - 4 - (19 (15)
(Charge)/credtt to equity (32) - - 6 (26)
Transfers/other - — - 4 4
At 31 December 2014 64 {12) 41 66 159
At | January 2013 - restated 104 e 28 56 127
(Charge)credit to the income statement (5} 20 2 i5 32
Acguisiion of subsidiaries - (3) - 2 N
Credit to equrty - - - 4) 4)
Translation adjustments - 2 - (4) (2)
Transfers/other - = - 3) (3
At 31 Decernber 2013 — restated 99 (42) 30 62 149

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilties have been offset where permitted The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(afier offset)

2013

2014 Restated

£m £m

Deferred tax labilities (n {45}
Deferred 1ax assets 176 184
Net deferred tax asset included in held for sale - 10
Jotal deferred tax position 159 149

At 31 December 2014, the group had unutihsed tax losses of approximately £771m (2013 £705m) potentially available for offset agamnst
future profits A deferred tax asset of £41m (2013 £30m) has been recogrised n respect of approximately £166m (2013 £120mj) of
gross losses based on profitability from approved budgets and business plans No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining £605m {2013 £585m) of gross losses due to the unpredictabiity of future profit streams in the 1elevant jurisdictions and the fact
that a significant proportion of such losses remans unaudited by the relevant tax authorties Included in unrecognised tax losses are gross
losses of £19m which will expire between 2015 and 2024 Other losses may be carmed forward indefiritely

At 3| December 2014, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnbuted earnings of non-UK subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have nat been recogrised is £1,102m (2013 £1.220m) No hability has been recognised in respect of these
gross differences on the basis that the group 1s in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s
probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

At 31 December 2014, the group had total unprovided contingent tax labilites of approximately £53m (2013 £58m) relating 1o
unresolved tax 1ssues in vartous junsdictions
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35 Share capital

G4S plc

2014
[

2013
£

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each

387,898,609 387898609

2014 2013
Ordinary shares in 1ssue Number Number
At | January 2014 1.551,594,436 1,410.668639
New shares issued for cash — 140925797

At 31 December 2014 1,551,594,436 1,551.594436

In August 2013 the group issued 140,925 797 ordinary shares as a result of the 9 99% placing The group receved gross proceeds of £348m
and paid related costs of £5m

36 Other reserves

Hedging Translation Merger  Reserve for Totl other
reserve resgrve reserve own shares rejerves
£m £m £m £m Em

At | January 2014 @n (59 734 (18) 636
Total comprehensive loss attributable to equity shareholders of parent a3n (5) - - (36)
Transfer ta retaned earrungs - - (308) - (308)
Recyeling of translation reserves on disposal - (13) - - (13)
At 31 December 2014 (52) (77) 426 {18) 279
At | January 2013 — restated 34 S0 426 (20) 422
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of
parent 13 (109) - - (96)
Shares 1ssued - - 308 - 308
Own shares awarded - - — 2 2
At 31 December 2013 — restated (21) (59) 734 (18) 636

Other reserves include

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow instruments related to the
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred (net of tax)

Transtation reserve
The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as from the translation of habilities that hedge the company's net invesiment in foreign operattons (net of tax)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve comprises reserves arising upen the merger between the former Group 4 Falck A/S and the former Group 4 Securitas
BV 1n 2000 and the acqusition of Securicor ple by the group in 2004 In accordance with Section 612 of the Comparies Act 2006 the
£308m premium on ordinary shares issued in the group’s 9 99% share placement in August 2013 was initially recorded in the merger
reserve and has subsequently been transferred to retained earnings

Reserve for own shares

An employee benefit trust established by the group held 6,408,450 shares at 31 December 2014 (2013 6934,564 shares) to satisfy the
vesting of awards under the performance share plan and performance-retated schemes During the year no shares were purchased by the
trust, whilst 526,114 shares were used to satisfy the vestng of awards under the schemes At 31 December 2014, the cost of shares held by
the trust was £17,060,185 (2013 £18460 753}, whilst the market value of these shares was £17,803083 (2013 £18203 231) Shares held
by the trust are treated as treasury shares, are deducted from equity, do not receive dividends and are excluded from the calculations of
earnings per share
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

37 Analysis of net debt
A reconcilation of net debt to amounts In the conschdated statement of financial position 1s presented below

W3
2014 Restated
£m m
Cash and cash equivalents 409 532
Investments 60 39
Net cash and overdrafts included within assets held for sale - 15
Net debt included within assets held for sale (1 (17)
Bank overdrafts (18) (%)
Bank loans {165) (167)
Loan notes {1,899) (1.982)
Oblhgations under finance leases (40 (52)
Fair value of loan note dervative financial instruments 76 89
Total net debt {1,578) {1 552)
An analysis of movements i net debt in the year is presented below
2013
014 Restated
£m fm
{Decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts per consolidated cash flow staternent (136) 127
{Purchase)/sale of investments 17 (13)
Movement in debt and lease finanang 110 197
Change in net debt resutting from cash flows 9 31
Barrowings acquired with subsidiaries - {4)
Nez additions to finance leases 9 _(12)
Movement in net debt in the year (18) 295
Translation adjustments (8) (18)
Net debt at the beginning of the year (1.552) {1829)
Net debt at the end of the year (1,578) {1552}
38 Operaung lease arrangements
The group as lessee
As at 31 December 2014, the group had outstanding commitments under nan-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows
2013
2014 Restated
£m £m
Within one year 105 121
In the second to fifth years nclusive 231 285
After five years 151 158
Total operating lease commitments 487 604

The group leases a number of its office properties vehicles and other operating equipment under operating leases Property leases are
negotiated over an average term of eight years, at rates reflective of market rentals Penodic rent reviews take place to bring lease rentals
m hne with prevaling market condiions Some but not all lease agreements have an option to renew the lease at the end of the lease term

Leased vehicles and other operating equipment are negotiated over an average lease term of four years

Certan leased properties have been sub-let by the group Sub-leases are negotiated on terms consistent with those of the associated
property The total future rminimum sub-lease payments expected to be received by the group from sub-let properties amount to £6m

(2013 £10m)
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39 Share based payments

In June 2014 a new iong-term incentwve plan replaced the previous performance share plan (the performance share plans), as detaded in
the Directors’ remuneration report from page 70 Shares allocated conditionally fall under erther the group's performance share plans or
the group's performance-related bonus scheme Shares allocated conditicnally under the performance-related bonus scheme vest three
years following the date of grant provided certain non-market performance conditions are met Those allocated under the group’s
performance share plans vest after three years, to the extent that (a) certan non-market performance conditions are met and (b) certain
market performance condrtions are met The proportion of the allocation of awards 1o these criteria s described n the remuneration
report Vesting occurs on the third anniversary of the date the shares were allocated conditionally

The number of shares allocated conditionally 1s as follows

Performance- Performance

related bonus Share related bonus Share
scheme award Totat scherme award Towal
2014 2014 20014 2013 2013 2003
Number Number Number MNumber Number Number
Qutstanding at | January 375,734 16,033,822 16,409,556 812200 15589225 16401425
Allocated during the year 275928 8739114 9015042 58026 7385392 7443418
Transferred during the year (388.305)  (137,809)  (526,114)  (454492)  (161948)  (656440)
Forferted during the year (25.863) (2.219.929) (2245.792) C(2546.129) (2,546129)
Expired during the year - (5018721) (5.018721) — (4232718) (4232718)
Qutstanding at 31 December 237,494 17,396,477 17633971 375734 16033822 16409556

The weighted average remaining contractual Ife of condisonal share allocations outstanding at 31 December 2014 was |17 months
(2013 16 months) The weighted average share price at the date of allocation of shares allocated condiiionally during the year was
2403p (2013 29) 7p) and the contractual Iife of all conditional allocations was three years

Under the group's performance share plans, the vesting of 30% (2013 50%) of the shares allocated condionally depends upon

Total Shareholder Return {(a market performance condriion) over the vesting year measured agamst a comparator group 25% of the
allocation vests upon the group's Total Sharehclder Return equaling median performance amongst the comparator group The farr value
of the shares allocated subject to this market performance condition has therefore been reduced by 75%

The income statement 1s charged with an estmate for the vesting of shares condriionally awarded subject to non-market performance

condrtions The charge for 2014 was £5m (2013 £nil)

Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4S ple 153

SIUALIFES [EIIURUI



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

40 Related party transacuons

Transactions and balances with joint ventures and associated undertakings

Transactions between the company and fis subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Detals
of transactions between the group and other related parties are disclosed below All transactions with related partes are entered into in
the normal course of business

Transactions with joint ventures included revenue recorded of £48m (2013 restated £43m) Amounts due to related parties include
£30m (2013 restated £25m) to joint ventures and £2m (2013 restated £2m) to associates Amounts due from related parties include
£37m (2013 restated £30m) from joint ventures and £1m (2013 restated £nil) from associates

No expense has been recognised In the year for bad and doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by related parues

The group has a legal interest In a number of joint ventures and joint arrangements where the economic interest was divested by the
Global Solutions Group prior to its acquisition by G45 ple in 2008 Transactions with these enbities dunng the year comprised

2014 2013

Servicesfsales Servicesisales

o 1o

£m £m

White Horse Education Partnership Limited 2 2
Integrated Accommodation Services plc 48 39
Fazakerley Prison Services Limrted 36 33
Onley Prison Services Limited t5 14
ECD Cookharm Wood Limited - 12 12
ECD Onley Limited 13 13
Stratus Integrated Services Limited 8 ]
UK Court Serwvices {Manchester) Limited 2 2
East London Lift Company Limrted | I
Total 137 124

The group had outstanding balances of £14m {2013 £9m) with these entties as at 31 December 2014

Transactions with post-employment benefit schemes
Detalls of transactions with the group'’s post-employment benefit schemes are provided in note 32 Unpad contnbutions owed to schermes
amounted to £0 5m at 31 December 2014 (2013 £0 5m)

Transactions with other related partes
In the narmal course of the groups business the group provides services to and receives services from certain non-controlling interests
on an arm's tength basis

Remunerauon of key management personnel

The group s key management personnel are deemed to be the non-executive directors and those indwviduals, including the executive
directors, whose remuneration is determined by the Remuneration Committee Their remuneration is set out below Further information
about the remuneration of indwidual directors included within key management personnel 1s prowided in the audited part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 70 to 84

2014 2013

s ‘

Short-termn employee benefits 10.813.463 10887469
Post-employment benefits 155,178 217937
Other long-term benefits 48,087 56682
Share-based payment 2,886,813 931197
Total 13,903,541 12093285

4| Events after the balance sheet date

In fanuar y 2015 the 1evolving credit faclity was refinanced The new faclity 15 £1,000 milkon and matures in January 2020, with two one
year extension options exercisable with majonty lending bank consent on the facility's first and second anniversary If exercsed the matunty
date would extend to January 2021 and January 2022 respectively

No cther significant post-balance sheet events have affected the group since 31 December 2014

154 G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014




42 Significant investments

The companies listed below are those which were part of the group at 31 December 2014 and which, in the opinion of the directors,
significantly affected the group's resutts and net assets dunng the year The directors consider that those comparies not ksted are not significant
i relation to the group as a whole A comprehensive bst of all subsidiares will be discdosed as an appendix to the groups annual return

The principal activities of the comparnes listed below are indicated according to the following key

Secure solutions S
Cash solutions C

These businesses operate principally in the country in which they are incorporated

Product Country of Ultimate
segment incorporation ownership

Subsidiary undertakings

G4S Soluciones de Segundad S A 5 Argentina 75%
GAS Austraha Pty Lirmited 5 Australia 100%
G4S Custodial Services Pty Limned 5 Australia 100%
GA4S Secure Solutions AG (Austna) 5 Austna 100%
(G45S Secure Solutions SA/NY S Belgium 100%
G4S Cash Solutions (Belgium) NV C Belgium 100%
G4S Interativa Service Ltda S Brazil 100%
Vanguarda Seguranga e Vigilancia Ltda 5 Brazil 100%
G45 Secure Solutions (Canada) Limited S Canada 100%
GA4S Secunty Services Regiones S A S Chile 100%
G4S Secure Solutions Colombia S A 5+C Colombra H0%
G4S Security Services A/S S Denmark 100%
G45 Avaation Serwices (UK) Limited 5 England 100%
(45 Care and Justice Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
G445 Cash Centres (UK) Limited C England 1002
GA4S Cash Solutions (UK) Limited C England 100%
GA4S Facilities Management {UK) Limited S England 100%
GA45 Risk Management Limited S England 100%
GA45 Secure Solutions {(UK) Limited 5 England 100%
(45 Secunty Serwvices {UK) Limited 5 England 100%
G4S Utility and Outsourcing Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
AS G45 Baltics S+C Estonia 100%
GA4S Secunty Services Oy S Finland 100%
GAS Keszpenzlogisztikar Kft - Hungary 100%
G45 Secure Solutions (India) Pvt Limited' 3 S India 49%
GA4S Secure Solutions {Ire) Limited S Ireland 100%
G4S Secure Solutions (Israel) Limited S Israel 92%
G4S Secunty Technologes (lsrael) Limited S Israel 100%
G4S Kenya Limited S+C Kenya 100%
GAS Secunty Solutions SAR.L 5+C Luxembourg 1009%
Safeguards G4S Sdn Bhd?? S+C Malaysia 49%
GAS Cash Solutions BV C Netherlands 100%
(G4S Beheer BV S Netherlands 1003
G4S Peru SAC S+C Peru 1005
Al Majal Serwvice Master LLC S Saudi Arabia 49%
G45 Cash Solutions (SA) (Pty) Limited C South Afrca 75%
GA45 Secure Solutions (SA) (Pty) Lirmited 5 South Afnica 72%
G45 Secure Solutions (Thailand) Limited S Thailand 100%
GA45 Secure Solutions (USA) Inc 5 USA 100%
G4STechnology LLC 5 USA 100%
G4S Youth Services LLC S USA 100%

I GA4S Secure Solutions (India) Pvt. Limited has a year end of 3| March
2 Saleguards G4S Sdn Bhd has a year end of 30 June

3 By wirtue of shareholder agreements options, pre emption nights and other contractual arrangements the group has the power to govern the financial and
operating palicies so as to oblan the benefits from the actvues of these companies These are therefore consolidated as fulf subsidianes
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Parent company balance sheet
At 3| December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets (b} 9 I
Investments (c) 3,045 3055
3,054 3,066
Currents assets
Debtors {d) 2,898 2,992
Cash at bank and in hand | 56
2,899 3,048
Creditors — amounts falling due within cne year
Bank overdraft (unsecured) - (5}
Borrowings (unsecured) (e) (96) (61}
Other creditars 6] (2931 (2856)
(3.027) (2.922)
Net current assets (128) i26
Total assets less current habilities 2,926 3,192
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings (unsecured) (e) (943) {1 040}
Net assets 1,983 2152
Capital and reserves
Calted up share capital 35 388 388
Share prermium and reserves (0] 1,595 | 764
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,983 2152

The parent company financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 26 March 2015

They were signed on its behalf by

Ashley Almanza Himanshu Raja
Director Director
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Parent company reconcihiation of movement in equity shareholders’ funds

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 013

im £m

(Accumulated tossYretained profit for the year (43) 15
Changes in fair value of hedging dervatives 8 (8}

Shares 1ssued - 343
Dvidends declared (138) (130)

Equity settled transactions 5 -

Tax on equity movements (1) 2

Net {decrease)/increase in shareholders’ funds (169) 222

Opening equity shareholders funds 2,152 1,930

Closing equity shareholders’ funds 1.983 2152
Annual Report and Accounts 2014 G4S plc 157

SUBWNEYS [EIURLY



Notes to the parent company financial statements

(A) Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared under
the fustorical cost convention except for the revaluation of certan finanaal instruments and In accordance with applicable United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (UK GAAP)

The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis

Exemptions
Under section s408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account

The company has taken advantage of the exemption frem prepaning a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1 *Cash Flow
Statements’ The cash flows of the company are included within its consolidated financial statements

The company 1s also exempt under the terms of the rewised FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing related party transactions
with wholly owned subsidiaries within the group

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated amortisation and any provision for impasrment Intangible fixed assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected economic life Scftware s amortised over periods up to a maximum of eight years

Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments, which comprise investments in subsidiary undertakings, are stated at cost less amounts written off

Financial instruments
Financizl assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party 16 the contractual prowvisions of the instruments

External debtors
Debtors do not carry interest and are stated initially at their fair value The company provides for bad debts based upon an analysis of thase
that are past due in accordance with local condriions and past default expenence

Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts
Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts comprise cash balances and call deposits

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-beanng bank overdrafts, loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs Finance
charges including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are recognised in the profit and loss account on
an accrual basis using the effective interest method

External creditors
Creditors are not nterest-bearing and are stated initially at their far value

Amounts owed toffrom subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed to/from subsidiary undertakings bear interest at prevailing market rates

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the company are recorded at the value of proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Denrvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with its treasury policy the company only holds or issues derwative financial instruments to manage the group’s exposure 10
financial nsk not for trading purposes Such financial sk ncludes the interest nsk on the group’s vanable-rate borrowings the far value risk
on the group's fixed-rate borrowings, commodity nsk in relation to rts diesel consumption and foreign exchange nsk on transactions, on the
translation of the group’s results and on the translation of the group's net assets measured in foreign currencies The company manages
these nisks through a range of dervative financial instruments, Including interest rate swaps, commodity swaps, commodrty cptions, forward
fareign exchange contracts and currency swaps

Dervative financal instruments are recognised in the balance sheet as financial assets or labities at far value The gan or loss on
remeasurement to fair vafue 15 recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, unless they gualify for hedge accounting Where
dervatives do qualfy for hedge accounting the treatment of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the tem being hedged
as described below

Fair vatue hedge
The change in the fair value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged nem 1s recognised immediately n the
profit and loss account.

Cash flow hedge

The change In the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that 15 determined to be an effective hedge 15 recognised In equity
and subsequently recycled to the profit and loss account when the hedged cash flow impacts the profit and loss account The neffective
portion of the fair value of the hedging instrument s recognised immediately in the profit and loss account
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Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the company are presented in sterling, its functional currency Transactions in currencies oiher than sterling are
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and labilities
which are denominated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried
at far value which are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevaling at the date when the farr value was
determined Non-monetary items measured at histoncal cost denorminated in other currenaies are not retranstated Gains and losses arising
on retransiation are included in the profit and loss account

Taxation
Current tax 15 provided at amounts expected 1o be patd (or recavered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised In respect of all matenal tming differences that have onginated, but not reversed by the balance sheet date
Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which the tming differences
reverse based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised where
their recovery 15 considered more likely than not in that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of underlying
tming differences can be deducted

Pensions

The company participates in multi-employer pension schemes in the UK which prowide benefits based on final pensionable pay The
company 15 unable to identify 1ts share of the schemes’ assets and liabilties on a consistent and reasonable basis In accordance with FRS 17
‘Rewrernent Benefits', the company treats the schemes as if they were defined contnbution schemes and recogmises charges as and when
contnbutions are due to the scheme Details of the schemes are included in note 32 to the consoldated financial staterments

Share-based payments

The company grants equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees The far value of share-based payments 1s determined at
the date of grant and expensed with a corresponding Increase in equity on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the
company's esttmate of the shares that will eventually vest The amount expensed 1s adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the
estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest, save for changes resulting from any market-related performance conditions

Developments expected n future accounting pericds

FRS 100 ‘Application of Financial Reparting Standards' FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Frarmewerk' and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland’ FRS 100 sets out the apphcation of financial reporting requirements in the UK and
Republic of Ireland and FRS 101 ‘IFRS with reduced disclosures’ outtines the reduced disclosure framework available for use by qualfying
entiiies choosing to report under IFRS FRS 102 s applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand and 1s known as 'new UK GAAF The
mandatory effective date for the new framework of reporung 1s for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2015 In the
absence of matenial objections, the company intends to adopt FRS 101 ((FRS with reduced disclosures')

Dividends
Dmdends are recogrised as distributions to equity holders in the period in which they are paid Dividends proposed but not declared are
not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial guarantees

The company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the ndebtedness of other comparies within the group The company
considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such The company therefore treats such contracts as a contingent
labilty unless and until such time as 1t becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Own shares held by employee benefit trust
Transactions of the company-sponsored employee benelit trust are included in the parent company financial statements In particular, the
trusts purchases of shares in the company are debited directly to equity
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

{B) Intangible fixed assets

Software
£m
Cost
Az | fanuary 2014 13
At 31 December 2014 13
Amorusation
At | January 2014 (2)
Amortsation charge (2)
At 31 December 2014 “)
Net bock value
At | January 2014 1t
At 3| December 2014 9
(C) Fixed asset investments
The following are included in the net book value of fixed asset investments
Total
Subsidiary undertakings im
Shares at cost.
At | January 2014 3,055
Additions 19
Imparments (29)
At 31 December 2014 3,045

The impairment within the carrying value of investmenits in the year 1s primarily due to a reduction in the net asset vaiue of certain

subsidiary undertalangs

Full details of significant nvestrnents held by the parent company and the group are detaled in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements

{D) Debtors
2014 2013
£m m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,807 2918
Other taxation and social secunity costs | -
Other debtors 6 8
Derwative financial nstruments at fair value 84 66
Total debtors 2,898 2992
included within derwative financial mstruments at far value 15 £53m due after more than one year (2013 £52m)
See note (g) for further details
Included in other debtors 1s £1m (2013 £1m) with regard to deferred tax comprised as follows
2014 013
Lm fm
Tirming differences in relation 1o the performance share plan and deferred share awards | -
Changes in farr value of hedging dervatives - I
Total deferved tax | I
The recenaliation of deferred tax balances 15 as follows
Total
£m
At January 2014 1
Crednted 1o profit and loss n relation to the performance share plan and deferred share awards |
Charged to equity in refation 1o changes in fair value of hedging dervatves )]

At 31 December 2014
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(E) Borrowings (unsecured)

2014 2013

£m fm

Sterhing 422 419

Euro - 37

US dollar 617 645

Total unsecured borrowings 1,039 1,101
The payment profile of the unsecured borrowings 1s as follows

2014 013

£m £m

Repayable within one year 96 61

Repayable within two to five years 813 469

Repayable after five years 130 571

Total unsecured borrowings 1,039 I 101

Undrawn committed facilities mature as foliows

2014 2013

£m £m

Within one year 998 -

Within two to five years — 965

Total undrawn commitied facilites 998 965

Borrowings, £1,039m, consist entirely of fixed rate loan notes (2013 £1,064m) The Joan notes 1ssued in July 2008 (with the exception of
£44m) are stated at amortsed cost The loan notes issued in March 2007, £44m of the loan notes 1ssued n July 2008 and the loan notes
issued in May 2009 are stated at amortised cost recalculated at an effective nterest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of
a far value hedge refationship US$200m (£128m) of the loan notes 1ssued in July 2008 have a far value market gan of £28m (2013 £21m)
The fair value of the remaining notes approximates to their book value

The management of nterest rate nsk s detailed in note (h) There were no financial liabiibes upon which no interest is paid

{F) Cther creditors

2014 2013
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,903 2821
Other taxation and social security costs - 4
Other creditors 2 I
Accruals and deferred incorne | 15 29
Derwative financial instruments at fair value 1 I
Total creditors — amounts falling due within one year ) 2,931 2,856
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

(G) Dervative financial instruments
The carrying values of derwative inancial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below

Agsers Assets Labiliues Liabilities

1014 2013 2014 2013

fm £m im £m

Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 28 21 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - - ]
Interesi rate swaps designated as far value hedpes 56 45 11 -
84 66 1 |

Less amounts falling due after more than one year (53) {52y - -
Amounts falling due within one year 3i 14 11 |

Denvatve financal instrements are stated at fair value, based upon market prices where available or otherwise on discounted cash
flow valuations

The mark to market valuation of the derivatives has increased by £8m (2013 decreased £33m) duning the year

The interest rate, cross currency and commaodity swaps treated as cash flow hedges have the following maturities

Assets Assets Labilmes Liabilities

2014 2013 Wi4 203

£m £m £m im

Within one year 21 - - |

In the second year - 15 - -

In the fourth year 7 - - —

In the fifth year or greater - 6 - -
Total carrying value 28 21 —

Projected settlement of cash flows {including accrued interest) associated with derwvatives

Assets Assets Liabdities Liabiltes

014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 21 - - |

In the second year - 16 - -

In the fourth year 7 - - _

In the fifth year or greater - S - -
Total cash flows 28 2t -

(H) Financial risk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business In many currencies The group presents its consolidated financiat statements in sterling and as a consequence
Is subject to foreign exchange risk due to the translation of the resufts and net assets of its foreign subsidiaries The company together with
(45 International Finance plc hedges a substantal partion of the group's exposure to fluctuations in the translation into sterling of rts
overseas net assets by holding loans in foreign currencies Translation adjustments arising on the translation of foreign currency loans are
recognised in the profit and loss account

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £10tm were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk on US$200m of the second US
Private Placement notes 1ssued in July 2008, effectively fixing the sterhing value on this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 1 9750

Assurning a }% appreciation of sterling against the US dollar the fair value net gain on the cross currency swaps which hedge part of the
currency loan notes would be expected to fall by £1m

interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

The company 1s exposed to interest rate risk, which the company manages within policy mits approved by the directors When fixed/
floating interest rate debt in the preferred mix 1s unavailable directly from investors interest rate swaps are utihsed to create the desired
blend and meet Treasury policy, with the praportion of fixed interest rate held reducing on a shiding scale over forward penods up to a
maximum of five years The quantity of interest rate swaps outstanding in the company 1s expected to continue to decline as Treasury
activity 15 increasingly conducted by G45 Internatianal Finance plc
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(H) Financial nsk (continued)

The US Private Placement market 1s predominantly a fixed rate market with investor s preferring a fixed rate retum over the life of the loan
notes At the time of the first issue in March 2007, the group was comfortable wrth the proportion of floating rate exposure not hedged by
iterest rate swaps and therefore rather than take on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed 1o floaung swaps effectively
converting the fixed coupon on the Private Placement to a floaung rate Following the swaps the resulting average coupon on the US
Prwate Placement 1s LIBOR + 60bps These swaps have been documented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest
loan notes, with the movements in their far value posted to profit and loss at the same time as the movement n the fair value of the
hedged item

The interest on the US Private Placernent notes 1ssued in July 2008 and the GBP public notes issued in May 2009, was intially kept at fixed
rate In April 2014, the interest rate on £44m of the US Private Placement notes issued in July 2008 and on all the GBP public notes 1ssued
in May 2009 was swapped from fixed to floating for a period of three years using denvatives

The GEP public notes have a coupon step up of { 25% which is triggered should the credn rating of G45 plc fall below nvestment grade

The core company borrowings are held in US dollar and sterling Although the impact of rising interest rates 1s largely shielded by fixed rate
loans some interest rate nsk remains on the element swapped to floating A 1% increase in interest rates across the yreld curve in each of
these currencies with the 31 December 2014 debt positicn constant throughout 2015, would lead to an expectatton of an additional
interest charge of £7m in the 2015 financial year

Commadity sk and commodity swaps

The group's principal commodity sk refates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices, particularly affecting its cash solutions businesses The
company acis as a market intermediary, arranging commodity swaps and commeodity options with its relationship banks with back to back
deals on identical terms with its subsidianes to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatility The company
will no longer perform this market intermediary role from January 2015

Counterparty credit risk
The company's strategy for credit nsk management 1s to set minimum credit ratings for counterparties and monitar these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions, the policy lmits the aggregate credit nsk assigned to a counterparty The uthsation of a credst hrmit s
calculated by applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and
duration of the transaction The total mark to market value outstanding with each counterparty is closely monitored against policy imits
assigned to each counterparty For short-term transactions {under one year), at nception of the transaction, the financial counterparty must
be investment grade rated by either the Standard & Poor's or Moody's rating agencies For long-term transactions, at inception of the
transaction, the financial counterparty must have a mmimum rating of BBB+/Baal from Standard & Poor's or Moody's

Treasury transactions are dealt with the company’s relationship banks, all of which have a strang investment grade rating At 31 December
2014 the largest two counterparty exposures relating to treasury transactions were £33m and £20m and both were held with insttutions
with a long-term Standard & Poor's credit rating of A These exposures represent 45% (2013 429%) and 27% (2013 30%) of the carrying
values of denvative financial instruments, with a far value gain at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loan
commitments outstanding to G45 plc at 3| December 2014

The company participates in the group's multi-currency notional pooling cash management system with a wholly owned subsidiary of an
A rated bank There 1s legal nght of set off under the pooling agreement.

(1) Share premwmum and reserves

Share Merger Profit and Own

premium reserve  loss account shares Total

£m £m Lm £m £m

At January 2014 258 308 1.216 (18) 1,764
Accumulated 1oss - - (43) - {43)
Changes in fair value of hedging dervatives - - 8 - 8
Dmdends declared - - (138) - {138)
Own shares awarded - - 3 2 5
Tax on equity movements - - n - (1)
Transfer - (308) 308 - -
At 31 December 2014 258 - 1,353 (16) 1,595

In 2013 the £308m addition to the merger reserve resulted from the group's 9 99% share placemeni in August 2013 In accordance with
section 612 of the Comparies Act 2006 the £308m premiumn on ordinary shares has been transferred to the profit and loss account

Included in the company profit and loss account 1s £258m (2013 £443m) of realised distnbutable reserves
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

{]) Auditor's remuneration
Fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc and rts asscaates for non-audit services to the company itself are not disclosed 1n 1ts indivadual accounts
because the company’s consohdated financial staterments are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

(K) Share-based payments

The group has one type of equrty-settled, share-based payment scheme in place being the condiional allocations of G4S plc shares An
employee benefit trust established by the group holds shares to satisfy the vesting of conditional allocation awards Reserve for own
share disclosures relevant to the company are presented within ncte 36 to the consohdated financial statements Share-based payments
disclosures refevant to the company are presented within note 39 to the consolidated financial statements

(L) Related party transacuons
Certain disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 40 to the consolidated financial statements Company transactions
with group undertakings primanly consist of royatty charges, central service charges, group insurance recharges and loan transactions

There were no materal transactions with non-wholly owned group undertakings in 2014 (2013 none)

(M) Conungent labilities
To help secure cost effective finance facilities for its subsicharies, the company issues guarantees to some of 1ts finance providers At
31 December 2044 guarantees totalling £370m (2013 £479m) were in place in support of such facilies

The company also guarantees the debt obligations of G45 International Finance plc At 31 December 2014 contingent labilities of £956m
(2013 £1,012m) were outstanding in support of such debt obligations

The company 1s included in a group registration for UKVAT purposes and is therefore jointly and severally liable for all other UK group
companies unpaid debts in this connection The lability of the UK group registration at 3|1 December 2014 totalled £14m (2013 £17m)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document

or the action you should take, you should immediately consult
your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other
independent professional advisor authorised under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 «f you are resident 1n the United
Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately authorised
independent financial advisor i you have sold or otherwise
transferred all your shares in G45 plc, please send this nouce and
the accompanying documents to the person through whom the
sale or transfer was effected so that 1t can be passed on to the
purchaser or transferee

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of G45 ple
will be held at The Platinum Suite, ExCel London, One Western
Gateway, Royal Victona Dock, London E16 | XL onThursday, 4 June
2015 at 11 00 am n order to consider and, if thought fit to pass the
following Resolutions

Resoluttons | 1o 15 and Resolution 18 will be proposed as
ordinary resolutions Resolutions (6, 17 and |9 will be proposed
as special resolutions

Report and Accounts

I To recewe the financial statements of the company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the reports of the directors
and audiior therean

Remuneration

2 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report other than the
part containing the surmmary of the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, as set out in the company s annual report and accounts
for the year ended 3| December 2014

Dmdend

3 To declare a final dmdend for the year ended 3§ Decernber
2014 of 582p (DKK 0 6041) for each ordinary share in the
caprtal of the company

Directors
To re-elect Ashley Almanza as a director

4

5  To re-elect John Connolly as a director ,
6 To re-elect Adam Crozier as a director

7 To re-elect Mark Ellott as a director

8 To re-elect Winnie Kin Wah Fok as a director

%  To re-elect Himanshu Raja as a director

10 To re-elect Paul Spence as a director

Il To re-elect Clare Spottiswoode as a director

12 To re-elect Tim Weller as a director

Auditor

13 o appont PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor of the
company to hold office untll the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the company

14 TJo authonse the audit commitiee of the board to determine
the remuneration of the auditor

Directors’ Authority to Allot

15

That the dwectors be and are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised pursuant to and in accordance with
section 55 | of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act") to exercise
all the powers of the company to allot shares In the company
or grant nghts to subscribe for; or convert any security Into,
shares in the company

() up to an aggregate nomunal amount of £129,299,000, and

(r} compnsing equity securtties (as defined in section 560 of
the Act) up to a further aggregate nominal amount of
£129 299,000 provided that they are offered by way of
a nghts issue to holders of ordinary shares on the regster
of members at such record date(s) as the directors may
determine where the equity securries respectvely
atinbutable to the interests of the ordinary shareholders are
proportionate (as nearly as may be practicabte) to the
respective numbers of ordinary shares held or deemed to
be held by them on any such record date(s}, subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may
deem necessary or expedient to deal with treasury shares,
fractional entitlements, record dates, shares represented by
depositary receipts, legal or practical problerns arising under
the laws of any termtory or the requirements of any refevant
regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter,

provided that this authority shall expire on the date of the
next Annual General Meeting of the company save that the
company shall be entitled to make offers or agreements before
the expiry of such authorrty which would or might require
relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the
directors shall be entitled to allot relevant securtties pursuant
to any such offer or agreement as if this authority had not
expired, and all unexpired authorities granted previously to the
directors to allot relevant securities under section 551 of the
Act shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting (save to the extent that the same are
exercisable pursuant to section 55 1(7) of the Act by reason

of any offer or agreement made prior 1o the date of this
Resolution which would or might require shares to be allotted
or rights to be granted on or after that date)

That the directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant

1o section 570 of the Act, subject to the passing of Resolution 15
above, to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the
Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution
IS above as If sechion 56} of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall be imited to

() the allotment of equity secunities In connection with an
offer or 1ssue of equity securities (but in the case of the
authority granted under paragraph (i) of Resolution (5
above, by way of nghts issue only) to or in favour of the
holders of shares on the register of members at such
record date(s) as the directors may determine where the
equity secunties respectively attnbutable to the interests
of the shareholders are proportionate {as nearly as may
be practicable) to the respective numbers of shares held
by them on any such record date{s), but subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements, treasury shares record dates, shares
represented by depositary receipts, legal or practical
problems ansing under the laws of any termtary or the
requirements of any relevant regulatory body or stock
exchange or any other matter, and
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

(n) the allotment {otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph
(1)) above) of equity securittes pursuant te the authorty
granted under Resolution 15(;) above up to a maximum
nominal amount of £38,788,000

and shall expire on the expiry of the authority conferred by
Resolution 15 abave unless previously renewed, vaned or
revoked by the company in general meeting, save that the
company shall be entrtled to make offers or agreements before
the expiry of such power which would or might require equity
securities to be aliotted, or treasury shares to be sold, after
such expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot equity
securties or sell treasury shares pursuant to any such offer or
agreement as If the power conferred hereby had not expired

All previous unutilised authorrties under section 570 of the Act
shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting

Authority to Purchase Own Shares

|7 That the company be and i hereby generally and unconditionally
authonsed for the purposes of section 701 of the Act, to make
market purchases (within the mearing of section 693(4) of the
Act) of ordinary shares of 25p each in the caprtal of the
company on such terms and in such manner as the directors
may from time to time determine, prowvided that

() the maximum number of such shares which may be
purchased 1s 155,159,000,

{n) the minimum price which may be paid for each such share
15 25p (exclusive of all expenses),

{m}y the maximum price which may be paid for each such share
15 an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle
rmarket quctations for an ordinary share in the company
as denved from The Londen Stock Exchange Daily Official
List for the five business days immecdhately preceding the
day on which such share 15 contracted to be purchased
(exclusive of expenses) and

(w) this authonty shall, unless previously revoked or varied,
expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
of the company to be held in 2016 (except n relation to
the purchase of such shares the contract for which was
entered into before the exprry of this authority and which
might be executed wholly or partly after such expiry)

Authority to Make Political Donations

I8 That in accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the Act,
the company and all companies which are subsidiaries of the
company dunng the period when this Resolution 18 has
effect be and are hereby uncondiwonally authorised to

(1) make pelitical denations to polical parties or
independent election candidates not exceeding
£50,000 in total,

() rmake polical donations to political organisations other
than political parties not exceeding £50,000 in total, and

(n) ncur poittical expenditure not exceeding £50000 in total,

(as such terms are defined in the Act) during the peried
beginning with the date of the passing of this Resolution and
ending at the condusion of the next Annual General Meeting

166 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2014

of the company provided that the authonsed sum referred to
m paragraphs (1), (1) and () above may be comprised of one
or more amounts in different currencies which, for the
purposes of calculating the said sum, shall be converted into
pounds sterling at the exchange rate published in the London
editicn of the Financial Times on the date on which the
relevant donation 1s made or expenditure incurred (or the first
business day thereafter) or, if earlier on the day in which the
company enters into any contract or undertaking in refation
to the same

Notice Period for General Meetings Other Than AGMs
|9 That a general meeting of the company, other than an Annual
General Meeting, may be called on not less than 14 clear

days’ notice

By order of the board

Peter David
Company Secretary

26 March 2015

The Mancr

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RH 10 SUN
Company No 4992207

Notes

I Shareholders are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all
or any of therr rights to attend and to speak and vote on therr
behalf at the meeting A shareholder may appoint more than
one proxy In relation to the Annual General Meeting provided
that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghts attached
to a different share or shares held by that sharehotder A proxy
need not be a shareholder of the Company A proxy form
which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy
instructions accompanies this notice or will have been sent
to you separately by post unless you have elected to receve
shareholder communications electronically Proxy instructions
may also be given by using the registrar's share portal at
www capitashareportal com

2 Detalls of how to appoint a proxy are set out In the notes to
the proxy form In order to be vald, an appointment of proxy
must be returned with any power of attorney or any other
authority under which 1t1s executed, by one of the following
methods in hard copy form by post to Capita Asset Services,
PX5 | 34 Beckenhamn Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4ZF, 1n hard
copy form to that address by couner or by hand during usual
business hours o, in the case of CREST members, by utilising
the CREST electronic proxy appointment service as descrnibed
in paragraphs 8 and 9 below In each case the form of proxy
must be received by the company no later than 11 00 am on
2 June 2015 To change your proxy nstructions you may return
a new proxy appointment using the method set out above
The deadline for receipt of proxy appointments also applies
In relation to amended instructions Persons listed on the VP
Secunities register should follow the instructions on their
Voting Request Form



The return of a completed proxy form, other such instrument 10
or any CREST Proxy Instruction will not prevent a shareholder
attending the Annuat General Meeting and voting in person 1f

hefshe wishes to do sc

Any person ta whom this notice Is sent who 1s a person
nominated under section |46 of the Act to enjoy Information
nghts (a “Nomnated Person ) may, under an agreement
between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was
nominated have a rnight to be appointed {or to have someone
else appointed) as a proxy for the Annual General Meeting
If a Narminated Person has no such proxy appeintment right
or does not wish to exercise 1L, he/she may, under any such
agreement, have a right to give instructions to the shareholder
as to the exeruse of voting nights

The statement of the rights of shareholders in relation to the
appointment of proxies in paragraph | above does not apply
to Nominated Persons The nghts described in that paragraph
can only be exerused by shareholders of the company

To be entrtled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting (and for the purpose of the determination by the
company of the votes they may cast}, sharehclders must be
registered in the Register of Members of the company at
530pm on 2 June 2015 (or in the event of any adjournment,
on the date which 1s two working days before the time of the
adjourned meeting) Changes to the Register of Members after
the relevant deadline shall be disregarded in determining the
rights of any person to attend and vote at the meeting

As at 25 March 2015 (being the latest practicable date prior
1o the publication of this Notice) the company's 1ssued share
capital consisted of 1, 551,594,436 ordinary shares, carrying
one vote each Therefore, the total voting rights in the company
as at 25 March 2015 was 1,551,594 435

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may
do so by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual
(avallable via www euroclearcom/CREST) CREST Personal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those
CREST members who have appointed a service provider{s)
should refer to their CREST spansor or voting service
provider(s), who will be able to 1ake the appropriate action

on their behalf

13

14

In order for a proxy appeintment or instruction made using

the CREST service to be valid, the appropnate CREST message
{(a"CREST Proxy Instruction’’) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Eurodear UK & Irefand Limited's specifications,
and must contain the information required for such instruction,
as descnbed in the CREST Manual The message, regardless of
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is an
amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed
proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be
recewved by the issuer’s agent (ID RAI0} by |1 00am on 2 June
2015 For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be
the time {as determined by the tirme stamp apphied to the
message by the CREST Application Host) from which the issuer’s
agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in
the manner prescribed by CREST After this ime any change

of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should

be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors
or voting serwvice providers should note that Euroclear UK & ‘
Ireland Limited does not make avallable special procedures in

CREST for any particular message Normal system timings and ‘
himitations waill, therefore, apply in relation to the input of :
CREST Prexy Instructions 1t is the respensibility of the CREST
member concerned to take (or f the CREST member s a
CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has
appointed a voting service provider to procure that s CREST
sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as
shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by
means of the CREST system by any particular tirme In this
connection, CREST members and, where applicable, therr
CREST sponsors or voting system providers are referred, in
particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
practical hrmitations of the CREST system and timings

The company may treat as nvalid a CREST Proxy Instruction
in the carcumstances set out n Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertficated Securities Regulations 2001

Voting on all Resolutions will be conducted by way of a

poll rather than a show of hands This I1s a more transparent
method of voting as shareholders votes are to be counted
according to the number of shares held As soon as practicable
following the Annual General Meeting, the results of the voting
at the meeting and the numbers of proxy votes cast for and
aganst and the number of votes actively withheld in respect
of each of the Resolutions will be announced via a Regulatory |
Information Service and also placed on the company’s
website wwwgds com

Any corporation which 1s a shareholder can appoint one

or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its
behalf all of sts powers as a shareholder prowvided that they
do not do so In relation to the same shares

Under section 527 of the Act members meeting the threshold
requirements set out In that section have the nght to require
the company to publish on a website a staterment setting out
any matter relating to (1} the audit of the company’s accounts
(including the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit)
that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting, or ()
any circumstance connected with an auditor of the company
ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which
annual accounts and reports were iaid in accordance with
section 437 of the Act The company may not require the
shareholders requesting any such website publcation to pay
Its expenses 1n complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Act
Where the company 1s required to place a statement on a
website under section 527 of the Act it must forward the
staternent to the company's audtor not later than the time
when it makes the statement avalabte on the website The
business which may be dealt with at the Annual General
Meeting includes any statement that the company has been
required under section 527 of the Act to publish on a website
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

I3 Any shareholder attending the meeting has the right to ask
questions The company must cause to be answered any such
question relating to the business being dealt with at the
meeting but no such answer need be given If (a) to do so
would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
or involve the disclosure of caonfidential nformation, (b) the
answer has already been given on a website in the form of
an answer to a question, or (C) it 15 undesirable in the interests
of the company or the good order of the meeting that the
question be answered

16 Under sections 338 and 338A of the Act, members meeting
the threshold requirements in those sections have the nght to
require the company {1} to give, to members of the company
entitled to receive notice of the meeting, notice of a resolution
which those members intend to move (and which may property
be moved) at the meeting, andfor (i) to inctude in the business
to be dealt with at the meeting any matter (other than a
proposed resolution) which may properly be included in the
business at the meeting A resolutton may properly be moved or
a matter properly included in the business, untess (a) (in the case
of a resolution only) it would, if passed, be ineffecuve {whether
by reason of any inconsistency with any enactment of the
company’s constitution or otherwise) (b) it 1s defamatory of
any person, or {¢) it 1s frivolous or vexatious A request made
pursuart to this nght may be in hard copy or electronug form,
must identify the resolution of which notice 1s to be given or the
matter to be included in the business must be authenticated by
the person(s) making it and must be received by the company
not later than 22 April 2015, being the date six clear weeks
before the meeting, and (in the case of a matter to be included
In the business only) must be accompanied by a statement
setting out the grounds for the request.

|7 A copy of this notice, and other Infermation required oy
section 3| | A of the Act, can be found at www gds com

I8 Aany electronic address or web site address is provided In
this Notice of Meeting solely for the purpose stated expressly
herein and may not be used to communicate with the
company other than for such purpose Notwithstanding any
telephone number, fax number or email address that appears
on this document or elsewhere, neither the company nor
Capita Asset Services will accept voting instructions received
via media other than by post, courer or hand, or by CREST
Proxy Instruction in accordance with the notes abave

t9  An explanation of the Resolutions is given in the
Recommendation and Explanatory Notes 1o the Resolutions
which are set out after the Important Information about
Attending the Annual General Meeting
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Important Informaucn about Attending the

Annual General Meeting

If you are a shareholder and you have recerved an admission card
you should bring it with you if you wish to attend the Annual
General Meeting If you do not have an admission card you should
bring photographic proof of identty

If you are attending as a proxy of a shareholder, your appointment
as a proxy must be with our registrar, Capita Asset Services, no
later than 1100 am on 2 June 2015 If you are attending as a
representative of a corporate shareholder, you must bring a
currently dated corporate letter of representation as evidence of
your entitlernent to attend on behalf of that corporate shareholder
In erther case you should bring photographic proof of identity
and evidence of your appointment to represent that shareholder,
including their admission card if possible If you hold your shares
through a nominee, you must bring photographic proof of identity
and evidence of your share ownership in the form of a currently
dated latter from your nominee

The Annual General Meeting 1s a private meeung of the
sharehclders and their properly authorised representatives
Guests are not entitled to attend the meeting as of right but they
may be permitted entry at the absolute discretion of the company
Shareholders wishing to bring a guest must notfy the company
In advance by contacting the registrar, Capita Asset Services,

The Regisiry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU
(shareholdersenquines@capitaco uk) who will adwise of the
companys decision on the request Any permitied guests will be
required to bring photegraphic proof of iIdentity and to enter the
meeting venue at the same time as the shareholder

Behaviour that may interfere with anyone’s securtty or safety or the
good order of the meeting will not be permitted Secunity checks
will be carried out on those attending the meeting Please arrive n
good tme before the meetng commences to allow sufficient time
for checks to be carried out Those wishing to attend should be
prepared to have any bags or briefcases inspected Please do not
bring suitcases, large bags or rucksacks If you do you may be asked
to leave them in the cloakroom

Cameras, recording equipment and electronic cormunication
equipment (including mobile phones, tablets and laptops) will not
be permitted in the meeting There will be secure storage facilities
avallable where mobile phones and other small items of personal
equipment may be deposited




Recommendation and explanatory notes relating to business to be conducted at the

Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2015

The board of G45 plc considers that the Resolutions set out In the
MNotice of Annual General Meeting are likely to promate the success
of the company and are in the best interests of the company and its
shareholders as a whole The directors unanimously recommend
that you vote in favour of the Resolutions as they intend to do in
respect of thewr own beneficial holdings

Explanatory notes in relation to the business to be conducted at
the Annual General Meeting are set out below

The ordinary resolutions (Resolutions | to 15 and 18) wili be
passed If there are more votes cast for the resolution than those
cast aganst it The specal resolutions (Resolutions 16, 17 and 19)
will be passed If at least 75% of the votes cast for and against the
resoluticn are in favour

I Financial statements of the company (Resolution 1)

The chairman will present the financial statements of the company
far the year ended 31 December 2014 and the reports of the
directors and audrtor thereon to the Annual General Meeting

2 Remuneration (Resolution 1)

Resolutien 215 the resclution to approve the directors’
remuneration report, other than the part contaning a summary
of the directors’ remuneration pelicy {pages 72 to 77) which was
approved by shareholders at the 2014 Annual General Meeting
As this 1s an advisory resolution, 1t does not affect the future
remuneration paid to any director

3 Final dividend (Resolution 3)

A final dradend of 5 82p (DKK 0 6041) per ordinary share for the
year ended 3] Decemnber 2014 1s recommended for payment by the
directors If the recommended final dmdend s approved it will be
paid on Fnday {2 June 2015 to all ordinary shareholders who were
on the register of members at the close of business on 8 May 2015

4 Election and re-election of directors (Resolutions 4 to 12)
Resolutions 4 to 12 deal with the re-election of the directors in
accordance with the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Cede which provides for all directors of FTSE 350
companies to be subject to re-election by shareholders every year
Grahame Gibson and Mark Seligman will retire from the board at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting and so they are not
seeking re-election

Biographies of each of the directors seeking re-election are set out
on pages 52 10 53 of the company's 2014 Annual Report The
board has confirmed followang a performance review that afl
directors standing for re-election centinue to perform effectively
and demanstrate commitment to their roles

5 Appaintment of auditor and auditor’s remuneration
{Resolutions 13 and 14)

Resolution | 3 relates to the appointment of PncewaterhouseCaopers
LLP (*PwC "} as the company's auditor to hold office until the next
Annual General Meeting of the company PwC was selected by the
board upon the recommendation of the audt committee following a
formal tender process which 1s descnbed on page 68 of the company's
2014 Annual Report, and consequently KPMG Audtt plc the companys
current auditer, has confimed that they wall not seek reappointrment
Their term of office will therefore expire at the conclusion of the 2015
Annual General Meeting

Resclution 14 authorises the Audit Committee to set the auditor's
remuneration

6 Authority to allot shares (Resolution 15)
Resclution 15 seeks shareholder approval for the directors to be
authorised to allot shares

At the last Annual General Meeting of the company held on 5 June
2014, the directors were given authanty to allot ordinary shares in
the capral of the company up to a maximum nominal amaount of
£258,598,000 This authority expires at the end of this year's Annual
General Meeung Of this amount 517,196,000 shares could only be
allotted pursuant to a rights 1ssue

Resolution 15 will if passed, renew this authonity to allot on the
same terms as last year's resolution The board considers it
appropriate that the directors be granted the same authority to
ailot shares In the capital of the company up to a maximum nominal
amount of £258,598,000, representing a Itle under two thirds of
the company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 25 March 2015
(the latest practicable date prior to publication of the Notice of
Annual General Meeting) Of this amount 517,196,000 shares,
representing a little under one third of the company s ssued
ordinary share capital can only be allotted pursuant to a nghts issue
The authority will last untit the conclusion of the next Annual
General Maeting In 2016

The directors do not have any present intention of exerasing this
authority In accordance with best practice, if the directors were 10
exercise this authority so as to allot shares representing maore than
one third of the current capital of the company, they would all offer
themselves for re-election at the following Annual General Meeting,
although it 1s the directors’ current intention to stand for election
annually in any event in accordance with the requirements of the
LUK Corporate Governance Code

As at the date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting, the
company does not hold any ordinary shares in the capital of the
company in treasury Hawever, the 6 408,450 shares held wsthin
the G4S Employee Benefit Trust and referred to on page 151
{note 36 to the consolidated financial statements) are accounted
for as treasury shares
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Recommendation and explanatory notes refated to business to be conducted at the

Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2015 continued

7 Disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights
(Resolution 16)

Rescluton 16 seeks shareholder approval to give the directors
authonty to allot equity secunities in the capital of the company
pursuant to the authorty granted under Resolution 15 for cash
without complying with the pre-emption rghts in the Comparnies
Act 2006 (the “Act™) in certain circumstances This authority wall
permit the directors to allot

(a) equity securihes up to a nominal amount of £258,598,000
(representing a little under two thirds of the company's 1ssued
share caprtal) on an offer to existing shareholders However
unless the shares are allotted pursuant to a nghts ssue (rather
than an open offer), the directors may only allot shares up to a
nominal amount of £129,299,000 (representing a little under
one third of the company s 1ssued share caprtal} (in each case
subject to any adjustments such as for fractional enttlements
and overseas shareholders, as the directors see fit), and

(b) equrty secunties up to a maximum nominal value of
£38 788 000 representing approximately 10% of the 1ssued
ordmary share capital of the company as at 25 March 205
(the latest practicable date prior to publicanon of the Notice
of Annual General Meeting) otherwise than in connection with
an offer to existing shareholders

This disapplication authonty 15 in ine with Institutional shareholder
gudance, and in particular with the Pre-emption Group’s Statement
of Principles (the “Pre-emption Principles’) The Pra-emption
Principles were revised 1In 2015 to allow the authonity for an issue
of shares otherwise than In connection with a pre-emptive offer
to be increased from 5% to 10% of the company s 1ssued ordinary
share caprtzl provided that the company confirms that it intends
to use the additional 5% authonty only i connection with an
acquisition or specified capital investment The directors therefore
confirm, in accordance with the Pre-emption Principles that, to the
extent that the authonty in paragraph (1) of Resolution 16 1s useg
for an 1ssue of ordinary shares with a nominal value in excess of
£19,394,000 (that 1s approximately 5% of the company’s issued
ordinary share capital as at 25 March 2015), they intend that it will
only be used in connection wrth an acquisition or specified capital
investment which 1s announced contemporaneously with the 1ssue,
orwhich has taken place in the preceding sx-month period and s
disclosed n the announcement of the 1ssue

The directors also confirm, in accordance with the Pre-emption
Principles, that they do not intend to 1ssue shares for cash
representing more than 7 5% of the company's 1ssued ordinary
share capital in any rolling three-year period other than to existing
shareholders, save as permitted in connection with an acquisition
or speufied capital investrment as described above, without prior
consuliation with shareholders

As noted in relation to Resolution |5 above, the directors have
no current intention of exerasing this authomy

The authortty contained in Resolution |6 will expire upon the
expiry of the general authorty conferred by Resclution IS5 {1e
at the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the company}
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8 Purchase of own shares (Resclution 17)

Resolution |7 seeks to renew the company’s authonty to buy back
its own ordinary shares in the market as permitted by the Act The
authority imits the number of shares that could be purchased to a
maxamum of 155,159,000 (representing a Iittle less than 10% of the
company's issued ordinary share capital as at 25 March 2015 (the
latest practicable date prior to publication of the Notice of Annual
General Meeting)) and sets minimum and maximum pnces This
authority will expire at the conclusion of the company’s Annual
General Meeting n 2016

The directors have no present intention of exercising the authority
to purchase the company’s ordinary shares but will keep the matter
under review, taking nto account the financial resources of the
company, the company's share price and future funding
opportunities The authorrty will be exercised only If the directors
beleve that to do so would result In an increase in earnings per
share and would be n the mnterests of sharehoiders generally No
shares were purchased pursuant 1o the equivalent authorty granted
to the directors at the company s last Annual General Meeung

As at 25 March 2015 (the latest practicable date prior to the
publicaticn of the Notice of Annual General Meeting), there were
na options over the ordinary shares in the capital of the company

9 Political donations (Resolution 18)

Resolution 18 deals with the rules on political donations contained
in the Act. Under these rules, political donations to any political
parties, ndependent election candidates or pofitical organisations
or the incurming of poliical expenditure are prohibited unless
authonsed by shareholders in advance What constitutes a poltical
donation, a polucal party a political organmisation, or political
expendrture 15 not easy to decde, as the legislation 15 capable

of wide interpretation Sponsarship subscriptions, payment of
expenses, pad leave for employees fulfilling public duties and
support for bodies representing the business communtty in pahcy
review or reform, may fall within this

Therefore notwithstanding that the company has not made palitical
donations requiring shareholder authority in the past, and has no
Intention erther now or In the future of making any such politicat
donation or incurnng any such political expenditure in respect of
any political party, political organisation or independent election
candidate, the board has deaded to put forward Resolution 18,
which 15 the same as the resolution on this subject which was
passed at the company’s Annual General Meeting held on 5 June
2014 This will allow the company to support the community and
put forward its views to wider business and government interests
without running the nsk of being in breach of the law This authority
will cover the period from the date Resclution 18 1s passed untl
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the company
As permitted under the Act, Resolution |8 also covers political
donations made, or political expenditure incurred by any
subsidianes of the company




|0 Period of nouce for calling general meetings
(Resolution 19)

Resolution 19 1s a resolution to allow the company to hold general
meetings (other than Annual General Meetings) on 14 days notice

The minimum notice period permitted by the Act for general
meetings (other than Annual Generat Meetings) 1s 21 days
However the Act allows comparnies to reduce this period to 14
days (other than for Annual General Meetings) provided that two
condrtions are met The first condition s that the company offers a
facility for shareholders to vote by electrenic means This condition
15 met if the company offers a facility, accessible to all shareholders,
to appoint a proxy by means of a websrte The second condition

1s that there is an annual resolution of shareholders approving the
reduction of the minimum notice period from 21 days to 14 days

The board s therefore proposing Resolution 19 as a speaal resclution
1o approve |4 days as the mimmum peniod of notice for all general
meetings of the company other than Annual General Meetings The
approval will be effective until the company's next Annual General
Meeting, when it 1s intended that the approval be renewed

The board will consider on a case by case basis whether the use of
the flexibility offered by the shorter notice period 1s merrted, taking
into account the arcumstances, including whether the business of
the meeting s ime sensrtive, and wiil balance that against the need
for sharehclders to consider their voting decisions, particularly
where the proposals concerned are complex and may require
more time for proper evaluation
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Group financial record

G4S plc was formed in 2004 from the merger of the security business of Group 4 Falck
and Securicor Since that time, the group has delivered robust shareholder returns and its

five year financial performance i1s shown by the following financial record.

Revenue® at constant exchange rates
£6.8bn
GAS revenue has grown consistently dunng the last five years

*  Prior years have been restated for businesses that have been
discontinued sold or ceased and for IFRS10 and | |

PBITA" at constant exchange rates

£4)4m

Operating profit, defined as profit before interest, tax
and amortisation and excluding specific tems increased
8% to £424m (2013 393m)

*  Prior years have been restated for businesses that have been
discontinued sold or ceased and for IFRS10 and | |

Dividend

Pence per share

9.24p

In the five years since 2010, G45 has delivered
average dividend per share growth of 4%
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Cash generated from operating businesses®

£526m

Cash generated from operating businesses was £526m
which 1s a 25% increase compared to £420m in 2013

* Prior years have been restated for businesses that have been
discontinued and the impact of IFRS 10 ang i 4

Share price

From the merger in july 2004 to the end of 2014, the G45
share price has increased |27%, cutperforming the FTSE 100
by 76% (see page 82 for the comparative TSR performance)

+127%
+8.1%

share price increase
since 2004

G4S share price CAGR’
from 2004 to 2014

+  CAGR s compound average growth rate

Employee numbers

623,000

(including joint ventures)
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CSR performance in 2014

2014 CSR highlights

Securing our environment
GA45S total carbon footprint in 2014 was

538,303 t/CO.e

Achieved a carbon intensity of 76 3 /CO,e per
£m revenue in 2014 representing a reduction of

6.3%

since 2013

Measured 56% of the waste generated by the group,
totalling 10,400 tonnes of mixed waste with |8%
diverted from landfil

Measured 64% of the group's water usage with
a total censumption of 1,678,000 litres

Installed telematics technology nto a further | 14
UK-based vehicles, bringing the total number of UK-based
vehicles fitted with telematics to almost 2,000 The use

of this technoliogy helps to reduce fuel and mantenance
costs, while improving driver safety

Achieved an Energy Star rating at the headquarters
of G4S North Amenca Energy Starcertified builldings
generate lower greenhouse gas emissions than

typical bulldings

IMAGE REMOVED
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A snapshot of some of our key
CSR achievements during 2014

Securi ng our communities

Conducted studies of the economic impact of G45
within the UK, demonstrating total contnbution
to the UK economy of

£1.74bn

Invested approximately

£1.9m

in charttable community programmes
and welfare programmes for employees

Matched

£.38,000

of employee fundraising for local community good causes

Supported more than | 000 community projects
across 74 countries, ncluding

* Bhubesi Pride (Africa)
* IndiaVision Foundaton (ndia)
* Bromley by Bow Centre (LK)
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Safeguarding our integrity

Inttiated a programme to reinvigorate our group
values across all business practices

Continued embedding our human nghts framework into the
business, ncluding nsk assessment and due-diligence processes

implernented a governance, risk and compliance system
and process which includes human rights, business
ethics and lzbour nghts reviews

Completed a planned recrganisation of Group Risk

and Internal Audrt departments, increasing the resources
available and expanding the remit to reflect a risk-based
audrt approach providing assurance on key risk areas
and adherence to the updated enterprise risk
management systems

Commissioned an independent human rights and legal
review of G45 operations in Israel and the West Bank.

Completed a review of the group's whistleblowing
policy and processes against the prinaiples of the
UK Whstteblowing Comrmussions Code of Practice

Completed

2

on-site Internal audrts, including measurement
of compliance with business ethics standards

Conducted

20

human nights country risk assessments
as part of regular ‘heatmap’ reviews

Signed a commiutment to the UN Global Compact
Business for Peace platform, promoting the positive
change that business may bring to former conflict
environments by enabling stability, development
and advancement of peace

IMAGE REMOVED

Securing our people
Established ‘Safety first’ as a new group value

Developed a health and safety management framework
on which businesses can base their approach 1o

ensure that they embed health and safety into ther
business practices

Implemented performance objectives related
to health and safety for all senior business leaders

Extended the Driving Force Rules campaign
to all regions

Provided health and safety training to our global
leadership team

Completed six health and safety critical country
reviews In countries where senous incidents
accurred during the year

Enhanced the monitoring of health and safety key
performance indicator (KPl) performance, particularly
in respect of Incident investigations

Implemented a new senior management,
onboarding tool

Extended our talent management system tc capture
more data on the wider employee population

Launched a new senior leadership development
programme with attendance from all six regions

Continued to support businesses embedding
cultural awareness training

Ongoing Implementation of the actions arising from the
2013 global employee engagerment survey, such as a
values based leadership programme in the UK
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For more Informauon visit. www g4s com/csr
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Application of FRS (01

On | January 2015 old UK GAAP used in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements ceased to exist We have the option to adopt
one of three reporting regimes |) the EU endorsed International Financial
Reportng Standards (IFRS), already used for the preparation of the group s
consolidated financiat statements 2) a new reporbing regme known as the
FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework permitting entiies that otherwise
apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements

of IFRS to adopt a reduced level of disclosure for their indwdual financial
statements or 3} FRS 102 which is a modification of FRS for small and
medium enterprises

VWe are proposing that the FRS [0 Reduced Disclosure Framework

will be appled for the indwidual financial statements of the company

{1e the parent company financial statements} for financial years beginning
on and after | January 2015, allowang the parent company to use the same
accounting framework as s utilised n the consclidated financial statements
for the group

The framework permitted by FRS 101 reduces disclosures covenng a wide
range of topics including cash flow statements, financial instruments, far
value measurement, share-based payments and related party transactions,
which would already be provided in the group’s consolidated financal
statements A brief narrative summary of the disclosure exemptions
adopted under FRS 101 will be disclosed in the notes to the indwidual
financial statements of the company There may also be some
presentational changes in the individual financial statements of the

parent company

The parent company’s accounts will still be prepared to meet the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 including giving a true and far
view of the company’s assets liabilities, financial possion and profit or toss
This means the parent company will therefore always be required to
include i 1ts accounts all information relevant to shareholders and
necessary to show a true and fair view

For further information about FRS 101 please wisit

http/fwww icaew com/enftechnical/financial-reporting/reduced-disclosure-
framework

Before an entity can apply the reduced disclosure framework it

1s required to inform its shareholders and provide a reasonable
opportunity for its shareholders to object The company will not be able to
adopt the reduced disclosure framework If a shareholder or shareholders
holding in aggregate 5% or more of the total allotted shares in the
company object

If you have any objections to the company applyting the FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework to the individual financial statements of the parent
company, please notify us in writing to the Company Secretary G4S ple
at The Manor; Manor Royal Crawley,West Sussex RH |0 SUN on or
before 29 May 2015
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General information

Financial calendar

Results announcements
Half-year results — August
Fnal resutts — March

Dividend payment
Intenim paid — 17 October 2014
Finat payable — 12 June 2015

Annual General Meeting
4 June 2015

Corporate addresses

Registered office

The Manor

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RHI(0 9UN
Telephone +44 (0) 1293 554 400

Registered number
4992207

Auditor (untl 2015 AGM)
KPMG Audit Plc

15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

Stockbrokers

J P Morgan Cazenove
25 Bank Street
Canary Wharf
London E14 5P

Ciugroup Global Markets Limited
Ciigroup Centre

Canada Square, Canary Wharf
London E14 5LB

Financial advisors
JP Morgan Cazenove
25 Bank Street
Canary Wharf
London E14 5P

Barclays Capnal

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London E14 4BB

G4S website
wwwgds com

General shareholder informaton

Registrars and transfer office
All encuiries relating to the administration
of shareholdings should be directed to

Capita Asset Services

The Registry

34 Backenham Road

Beckenharn

Kent

BR3 4TU

Telephone within the UK 0871 664 0300
(calls cost |0p per minute plus network
extras), from outside the UK

+44 20 8639 3399

Fax +44 {0) 1484 600 911

Email shareholderenquines@capita co uk
Secure share portal

wwaw capriashareportal com

Please note that beneficial owners of shares
who have been nominated by the registered
holder of those shares to recene
information rights under section |46 of the
Companes Act 2006 are required to direct
all communications to the registered holder
of their shares rather than to the company
or the company s registrar

Capita share portal

The share portal I1s an onhine facility
provided by the company's registrars, Capita
Asset Services for shareholders to manage
thew holding securely online reducing the
need for paperwork. By registening for a free
portal account, shareholders are able to
access a range of onhne faalities 24 hours

a day including those described below

View account holding details

Allows shareholders to access their
personal account, shareholding balance,
share fransaction history, indicative share
valuaticn and dividend payment history
It also enables shareholders to buy and
sell shares

Change of address, bank mandates,
downfoadable forms

Allows shareholders 1o update their postal
address and complete, change or delete
bank mandate instructions for dividends

A wide range of shareholder information,
including downloadable forms such as stock
transfer forms, 1s also avatlable

Dedicated helphine

Caprita Asset Services also has a helpline
to help users with all aspects of the service
Telephone (from the UK) 0871 664 0391
Calls cost [0Op per minute plus network
extras, ines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm
Monday to Friday

Telephone

(outside the UK) +44 (0) 20 8639 3367
Email shareportal@capita co uk
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www.g4s.com

G45 ple

The Manor
Manor Royal
Crawley

West Sussex
RHI10 SUN
United Kingdom

Telephone +44 (0) 20 8770 7000
Emasl investor@g4s com

Regstered in England No 4992207
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